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Yang Berhormat Datuk Amar Dr. George Chan Hong Nam,
DA, PNBS, KMN, PBS, ABS

ty Chief Minister, Minister for Finance and Public Utilities and
Minister for Social Development Sarawak

HEARTIEST CONGRATULATIONS to Saudara Chang Pat Foh for
his great effort to produce this rare local historical book known as
“LEGENDS AND HISTORY OF SARAWAK”. The book highlights
Sarawak legends in general, its geography and its people, the history and developments of all the nine
divisions ais well as the twentyight districts in Sarawak from the early years until today.

Sarawak legends and oral traditions must be recorded so that scholars, general public, our children

and our future generations will know our historical past lest they be forgotten with the passing of ime. In
order 1 know who we are, the past events are important. If there is no past, there is no present and,
therefore, there will be no future, In this particular case, Saudara Chang has sacrificed his leisure time
and energy 10 record down the local legends and oral raditions throughout the length and the breadth
of Sarawak during the course of his official duties.

1 wish o call upon the general public especially the government officers to emulate the good
example shown by Saudara Chang Pat Foh to record down various events and interests occurred in the
areas they are serving so that this knowledge can become a vast reservoir of knowledge for writing. Tam
particularly proud and happy that Saudara Chang who really takes the trouble and initiative to record
down our colourful legends and cventful history of Sarawak. In acuial fact, this excellent book, which is
the first of its kind published in Sarawak, is a dictionary on the legends, history and developments of the
State. Texpectand encourage Sarawakians especially the students to read the book for the sake of knowing
more about this beautiful Land of Hombill

Yy

Y.B. Datuk Amar Dr. George Chan Hong Nam
Deputy Chief Minister, Minister for Finance and
Public Utilities and Minister for Social Development Sarawak
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GENERAL INTRODUCTION

“LEGENDS AND HISTORY OF
SARAWAK” is a local book which is actually
describing the history of Sarawak.  The book
which consists of 13 chapters concentrates on
Sarawak in general, Geography and its
People, Ancient and Modern History of
Sarawak. It also describes in detail the nine
divisional headquarters and in brief all the
twenty-cight districts in Sarawak.

Sarawak has a colourful and interesting
history dated way back to the 8th century
when both Buddhism and Hinduism first
extended  their influence on  Sarawak
especially in the Sarawak River Delta until the
early 15th century when Islam had advanced
to South East Asia region. Sarawak then
became the southern part of Brunei Territory.
Brooke Regime then seized over the control
of Sarawak from the weak Brunei authority
from 1841-1941. Then the Japanese invaders
came and conquered the State  from 1941-
1945, With effect from 19461963 Sarawak
became a British colony. On 16.9.1963,
Sarawak achicved her independence within
Malaysia. For the past 36 years, Sarawak has
wansformed itself from an unknown, less
developed area into a wellknown and fast
developing state in Malaysia towards the next
millennium.

Every historical event is a legend by
itself and, therefore, both legends and history

are equally important to a country and its
people. History always alters our future. That
is why we frequently recall the past in order o
think ahead. Hence, if there is no past, there
is no present and, therefore, there will be no
future. The past is a repository of precedents,
the present and the future grown out of the
past. This is history.

However, legend is distinct from history.
All societies no matter how advance and
modemn trace their origins in legends. A
legend is in fact an unauthenticated story
from early times, preserved by tradition and
popularly thought to be historical. From that
perspective, legend is an account of historical
origins of a particular group. Itis an account
of carly life that provides that particular
group some sense of spiritual and cultural
attachment not only to the natural
environment but also the group, known as
socicty. This is legend.

This book is therefore a combination of
both legends and history. While writing down
the factual history of Sarawak, a collection of
a series of legends on Sarawak is being
highlighted below:-

1) Was “Sarawak” meant “Antimony”
or “Serah ke awak” (in Malay
language it means give to you)?



2)

3

6)

7

8)

Does “Kuching” really mean “Cat™
or something cls

Was “Muara Tuang” the former
name of Kota Samarahan a place
for pouring water?

Was  “Simanggang” the former
ame of Sti Aman a place where
Il of them die™ (“Si” in Chinese
Teochew means die and “Magang™
in Iban dialect means all of them)?

Was “Sarikei” a place where they
were really a lot of “Silly Guides™

Was “Sibu™ really a place where
there were plenty of Sibau (wild
rambutan)?

Was  “Kapit” a  place  where
longhouses made of split bamboo-
sheets were situated in the olden
days.  (In 1 language  split
bamboosheet means Kepit)?

Was “Bintulu™ where the natives
picked up human heads in  the
olden days (Ment Ulau in Bintlu

Melanau meant “Pick up heads)?
9) Was "Miri” denved from the
of a community called “Mirek™ who
stayed at the mouth of Mini River?

me

10) Was “Limbang” really a place where

people went to pan gold at Bukit

(“Limbang™ in local Malay
ns panning gold)?

me

There are many other legends, stories
and oral traditions as to how the names of
other places in Sarawak were derived from.
Please read the book and find out the details
for yourself.

Knowing the legends and history of a
state as well as its people provide a better
insight into the reasons behind the way a
state is organised, its beliefs and its past
historical activities. Both legends and history
contain much information about the
culture, the way of life and social activities of
astate and its people. So being Sarawakians,
we must therefore know our legends and
history of our beloved state in order that we

know who we are.




CHAPTER 1

SARAWAK IN GENERAL

Map of Borneo showing the location of Sarawak




L. INTRODUCTION

Sarawak is a land of many rivers,
rolling terrains and majestic mountains. It
has been described as the “Land of
Super nd Superwonders”. Sarawak
is also best known as the land of vastness -
vast mass of land, vast ethnic diversity and
vast natural wonders. The name “Sarawak™
was taken from the Sarawak River which
flows through Kuching Division.

Sarawak is the biggest state alaysia.
The State has the longest river (Batang
Rajang), the state with the most districts (28
districts) in Malaysia, the world's largest
flower (Rafflesia), the world's biggest
butterfly (Raja Brooke's Birdwing) the
world's largest passage and natural chamber
in Gunung Mulu National Park. Even a
varicty of carnivorous pitcher plants can be
found in the state of Sarawak. It has also
evidence of the earliest known existence of
man in Southeast Asia  (Niah Cave).
Besides, it has the rich cultural heritage of
the diverse ethnic communities of Sarawak.
For record purpose, Sara has 27 cthnic
communities and it is the only state in
y having the most cthnic groups
living together in harmony. Moreco

)

Sarawak has an enchanting history which is
one of the heroic adventures and romance.
It has a pawiotic story of brave tribal
of

warriors intensely protective their
respective territories, engaging crce
battles 1o protect their domains against
foreign intruders.

Sarawak saw itself making a sudden
leap from being a province under the
Brunei Sul ate, a country under the
Brooke Regime and, later, a colony under
the British Rule to being one of the major
dynamic, progressive and bustling business
and hopefully a developed state in
sia by the Year 2020.

centre
Mala

The multiracial state is very proud of
her outstanding image in the country.
Sarawak has her own state flag, state crest,
state bird, state fish, state wree and state
flower to project herself not only in the
country but also to the world at large.
Besides, Sarawak has some of the world's
richest forests and most spetacular scenery.
Indeed, itis difficult to find another place in
the world that has so much diversity in
nature, people and culture in one package.

Sarawak was not only well-known for
the production of large quantity of gold
from Upper Sarawak since 1760, the
discovery of diamond at Landech in 1876
had also made Sarawak famous in the
country. A picce of diamond weighing 72
carat was discovered at a small river along
Sungai Sarawak Kanan at Landeh. Lau
Huat Company bought the diamond for
$20,000.00 from the miner and presented it
to the wife of second White Rajah and at that
time, the diamond was known as “the Star of
Sarawak™. The nver where the diamond was
found was called Diamond River until today.

an




District of Sarawak (1846)

Geological Survey Map of Part of the




The  original  Sarawak
was a s place  when
Pengiran Muda Hashim, the
tive of Sultan  of
Brunei gave it to Sir James
Brooke as a re 1 of his
service 1o pacify the Anti-Brunei
Movement headed by Data
Patinggi Ali on 24.9.1841. Tt was
only 18,000 square kilometres

suetching from Tanjung D Sonmi
to Samarahan River. _|’,.u:.:m\
1. ORIGIN OF THE NAME
OF SARAWAK
There are three versions:
1) “Serawak” - the name of
a mineral
In old Bahasa Melayu,
“Ser means
“antimomy™.  In 1823, Sungai
there was a discovery of Sarauak at the
antimony in Upper ;:':i/ of
Sarawak, especially in i
Siniawan  area,  Bau. K’“,“";,‘,“‘”"

Until the closure of the
Paku Kong Mine in

Kitang Road

1985, more than 90,000
tonnes  of  antimony

had been produced and exported James Brooke wrote home while
from Upper Sarawak, Since § ak contemplating his navigational plans
River flows through Siniawan, it is in 1839, he was aware of the
likely that people in the olden days antimony ore in Sarawak. He wrote,
referred  the river which  flows “My intention is first to visit Sarawak
through  antimony  arcas  as - a river whenee they get antimony
“Serawak” rver.  Even when Sir ore.”




There are three wibutaries which
form Sarawak River Proper i.e.
Sungai Sarawak Kanan, Sungai
Sarawak and Sungai Sarawak.
Sungai Sarawak is found running
at the side of Kampung Bombok at
Kuching/Batu Kitang Road. The
people of Kampung Bombok claim
that the name Sarawak River
Proper  derives  from  Sun
Sarawak at  their Kampung area.
However, upon  checking  the
historical data, it was discovered
that the people of Kampung
Bombok migrated from Gunung
Serembu, Siniawan  where  the
original Kampung Bombok was
situated sometime after 1842, By
then, the name of Sara River
Proper already in existence
even before Sir James Brooke
became the first White Rajah of
S ak in 1841, Hence, the
claim by the people of Kampung
Bombok that the name Sarawak
River Proper derives from Sungai
Sarawak at Kampung Bombok is
difficult 10 be accepted.

“Serawak” - the name of pincapple

Another version related to the
production of pineapple along
K especially around
a. In the olden day:
A4 was
extraordinary sweet and, hence, it
was called “Nanas Serawak”.

Sungai Saraw

1L

3) “Serawak”- “Give it to You™
There was a legend being related by
the old people in the olden days
that when Brunei authority took
over Sarawak Riverareain the 15th
century, the local people at that
time welcomed the move.  Hence,
they agreed and said, “Serah ke
Awak” which means “Give it to you”™,
“Serah ke  Awak”
rawak” (Sarawak) until

A check on the meaning of Serawak
(Sarawak) from Kamus Dewan
(Dictionary published by Dewan
Bal dan  Pustaka, Kuala
Lumpur, Malaysia 1997 Third
Edition) reveals that there are two
meanings to the word “Serawak” i.e.
“Antimony” or “Sweet Pineapple”
(Nanas). Version 1 of the origin of
Sarawak is therefore more reliable
because antimony was discovered in
Upper Sarawak in the carly 19th
century and Sarawak River flows
through Upper Sarawak (Siniawan)
and  Kuching District  before
reaching the South China Sea.

STATE FLAG

Red Colour: symbolises courage,
determination and sacrifices of the
Rakyat in their tireless pursuit to at
and maintain progress and esteem in
the course of creating a model State;




Sarawak
State Flag,

Yellow Colour: denotes the supremacy
of Law and Order, unity and stability in
diversity;

Black Colour: symbolises the rich
natural resources and  wealth  of
arawak such as petroleum, timber, etc
which provide the foundation for the

advancement of her people;

The yellow nine pointed Star denotes
the nine divisions where the Rakyat
lives in harmony.

The Star symbol also embodies the
aspiration of the people of Sarawak in
their quest to improve their quality of
life.

The present Sarawak Flag was hoisted at
Kuching State Stadium on 31.8.1988 by
Ketua Menteri Sarawak, YAB Datuk
nggi Tan Sri (Dr.) Haji Abdul Taib
Mahmud on the occassion of the State

25th Anniversary of Independence

within Malaysia.

.

STATE CREST

The State Crest consists of the symbol
of a ceremonial Kenyalang with its
wings and tails each comprising 13
strips to represent 13 states in Malaysia
and Bunga Raya appearing on each of
the outer sides of the legs. The bird
ands on a ribbon with the mouo
“Hidup Selalu Berkhidmat™ and State
flag on the chest. However, the motto
has been replaced by the new State
Motto “Bersatu, Berusaha, Berbakti®
which means “United, Industrious,

Dedicated”.

The Crest signifies the proud “Land
of the Hornbills™ flying high in

aspirations and achievement in all
fields of endeavour, guided by the

Sarawak
State
Crest.



ideology of the “Politics ~ of and, hence, it is called the "Land of the

Development™.  The State Crest also Hombills®.  The types of Hombill are as
serves to distinguish Sarawak from the follows:-
rest of the world. 1) Enggang Badak

The present State Crest was adopted (Rhinoceros Hombill)

and used in Sarawak with effect from 2) Enggang Berkedut
$1.8.1988 on the occasion of the 3) Kekalau

25th Annivel ¢ of Independence 4
within Malaysia.

Enggang Terbang Mertua
5) Enggang Gatal Birah

V.  STATE BIRD OF SARAWAK 6) Enggang Jambul Putih

7) Enggang Guning; and
Alau Pedada

&

Among all the hornbills, the magnificent
Rhinoceros Hornbill is the most revered of all
by the natives of Sarawak. Its beauty is best scen
in flight when its black wings form a stark
contrast to its white tail and head.

All types of Burung Kenyalang are
protected birds, anyone who catches and kills
the birds will be fined for RM25,000.00 and 2
years imprisonment.

VI. STATE FISH OF SARAWAK

Name: Rhinoceros Hornbill
Local Name: Burung Kenyalang
(Enggang Badak)

The state bird of awak is Burung

Kenyalang.  The bird is not only found in

Borneo but also Peninsular Malaysia, Local Name: Ikan Semah
Sumatra of Indonesia and Thailand. In Scientific Name: Tor douronensis

Sarawak, there are eight species of Hombill (Valenciennes)



This freshwater fish can be found
upper reaches of the rivers in Borneo,
Peninsular  Malaysia, Indonesia  and
Thailand. In Sarawak the fish can be found
in most of its major river systems e.g. Rajang,
Baram, L ng Ai and Layar
i At one time it was in abundance.
presently the natural stocks in the
rivers have decreased tremendously due o
over exploitation and pollution of the
natural habitats, both directly and indirectly.

Depending  on locality, the fry/
fingerlings may be called by different
names. In Lubok Antu/ Al area, the
locals them  “Tengih,” while in
Layar/Spak  ar it is called “Tengas™
Others may simply call them “Semah”™.

Semah has been named as the State
Fish. The fish, which often reaches 40
ietres in length, is highly esteemed for
ad, hence, it is one of the most
freshwater fish in Sarawak. It
fetches high price in the market; as much as
RM40.00 or more per kilogramme weight,
depending on locality.

Observations  in Agriculture
Station in Serian show that this fish can
lapt to pond conditions
tificial  feeds  readily.
observations have indicated that the fish
tends to be slow growing in ponds without
adequate aeration and water exchange.

Observations from on-farm trials has

shown that with adequate acration, water
nge and good quality pellet feeds of at

excha

least 30% crude protein the fish ¢
the body weight of 800 grammes in about
one year. Observational trials are now being
ried out to determine its performance

ca
under cage culture system.

VII. STATE TREE OF SARAWAK

ame: Belian Tree
entific Name: Eusideroxylon Zuwageri

The nick name of Belian tree is Iron
tree. It can be found in Borneo and
Sumatra. In Sarawak, Belian Trees can be
found in the forest of about 500 metres
above the sea level in Kuching/Samarahan,
Sri Aman, Miri and Kapit Divisions,




Belian posts or planks can y last for
ages without rotting. Hence, itis commonly
used in house construction, telephone and
electricity posts and survey pegs.

During the celebration of World
Forestry Day a few years ago, Belian uee was
declared as the State Tree of Sarawak by the
State Government.

VIII. STATE FLOWER OF SARAWAK

Orchid Normah
Phalaenopsis Violacea Witte

Name:
Scientific Name:

This lowland epiphytic orchid inhabits
shady places by the rivers. It is found in
umatra and Borneo. It
species. Flowers about 45
centimetres across, alternate, 2-ranked, 1 or 2
opening at a time. Sepals and petals are very
pale greenish, flushed with mauve towards
the base. Lateral sepals with inner halves at
the base dark mauve. The flowers are very
variable in colouring. There is also an alba

(white) form which is extremely rare. This
species  has been used to produce many
colourful starshaped ‘novelty’ hybrids.

This Orchid flower can be found in the
forests of Sarawak especially in Lundu
District of Kuching Division. In 1983, it was
declared by the State Government of Sarawak
as the State Flower in honour of the late wife
of TYT Tun Abdul Rahman Ya'kub, the 4th

Yang Dipertua Negeri Sarawak, Toh Puan
Datuk Patinggi Hajjah Normah Abdullah.

IX. BIGGEST FLOWER IN THE WORLD

Bunga Pakma

dentific Name:  Rafflesia Tuanmudae

Gunung Gading is the home of
numerous rare plants including the world’s
largest flower, the spectacular Rafflesia
Tuanmudae. When it is fully bloom, it
stretches nearly one metre in width.
Although the flower generally blooms
throughout the year, November, December



and January can be regarded as the peak
flowering season as the  frequency of the
blooms is high. Hence, Rafflesia has no
specific flowering s on, taking nine months
to mature and each flow bloom lasts only
4 or b days before withering.  This flower
smells faintdy rotten, attracting  carrion flies
for pollination.

ional Park which is
ca of 4,106
onal Park in

Gunung Gading N;
situated in Lundu District has an
hectares, It gazetted as the
1983 and opened to the public in 1994,

X. BIGGEST BUTTERFLY IN THE
WORLD

Name: Raja Brooke's
Birdwing

Scientific Name:  Trogonoptera
Brookiana

It is the biggest type of butterfly in the
world. It can be found flitting around the

and flowers in the forest of Sarawak
ly in arcas between Gunung Mulu
ing Murud in Miri Division.

plants
especi

This beautiful famed buuerfly has a
pair of very long and pointed wings and
with a wing expanse of from 6 to 6 ches.
The wing is deep velvety black, w curved
band of spots of a brilliant metallicgreen

colour.

Raja Brooke's Birdwing, one of the
most striking butterflies of Borneo was first
discovered by a nawuralist, Mr. Alfred Russel
Wallace in 1855 and named after the first
White Rajah of Sarawak, Sir James Brooke.

XI. WORLD FAMOUS CAVE SYSTEM -
GUNUNG MULU

Gunung Mulu National Park is being
idered as the 9th Wonder in the World.
It was etted asa National Park in 1974
and it is situated within Miri and Limbang
Divisions. Tt has an area of 52,866 hectares.




Itincludes:-

1) The world est cave passage
(Deer  Cave), it can  hold
England’s St. Paul’s Cathedral five
times over.

The world’s largest chamber
(Sarawak Chamber) is 600 metres
long, 450 metres wide and 100
metres high. It can accommaodate
40 Boeing 747 aircrafts with room
1o spare.

t

3) The longest cave in South
i 107

(Clearwater Cave) -
kilometres long.

The world famous pinnacles rise
over 50 metres high with razor-
sharp tips at Gunung Api and
Benarat.

XIL. CARNIVOROUS PITCHER PLANT

Sarawak is one of the world's centres of
diversity for tropical pitcher plants of the Genus
Nepenthes. This fascinating plants have more
than 30 species in Bomeo. Some pitcher plants
can trap flies in their saxophone shaped leaves
and then digest them in a resenvoir of corrosive

fluid. Some varieties in Sarawak grow so big
that they even drown rats in the enzyme soup.

The most famous pitcher plant is
epenthes Rajah. It is the largest of all
camivorous plants producing pitches capable of
holding two litres of fluid and can trap frogs,
lizards and even rats. Nepenthes is the most
complex and diverse array of animal-plant
asociations. A glimpse into any pitcher will
provide the observer with a delightful, if not
smelly, insight into these unique micro-habitats
of a hidden world of tiny animals. They choose
to live within the pitchers rather than being
captured.  More than 70 species of animals
including the larvac of flies, mosquitoes,
butterflies, moths, spiders and ants have been
recorded living in Nepenthes plants.
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1. INTRODUCTION

Sarawak, the Land of Hornbills, is one
of the thirteen states and the largest state in
the Federation of Malaysia. Covering an
area of 124,450 square kilometres in north
west of Borneo, its area is about 37% of
Malaysia total land area which is almost the
size of the whole of Peninsular Malaysia. It
enjoys an  extensive coastline of 720
kilometres along the South China Sea. It is
bounded by Brunci on the north, Sabah on
the b and Kali Ind, ia on
the south, all in Borneo, the third largest
island in the world.

The State of Sarawak is generally
rugged and  topographically complex.
Swampy plains extend along most of the
coastal areas, backed by a broad belt of
undulating lowland intersected by many
Ti which merge out from the
mountainous interior. Situated in the
tropical region, the greater part of Sarawak
is still covered by primary forests and large
portions of the area are practically
uninhabited. The remaining land is mainly
used for agricultural purposes. The highest
mountain in the State is Gunung Murud
which is 2,424 metres high and the longest
river is none other than Batang Rajang
which runs 564 kilometres through Kapit,

Sibu and Sarikei Divisions in the central
region of Sarawak. Batang Rajang has been
referred to as “The Pulse of Borneo™
because its tentacles spread across the
central region of Sarawak reaching into
Kalimantan Borneo.

1. ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISIONS

At present, Sarawak is administratively
divided into nine divisions. Under the
Administrative Areas Order 1987, all the
di were 1 after the divisional
headquarters, namely:-

Kuching Division
Samarahan Division
Sri Aman Divi
Sarikei Division
Sibu Division
Kapit Division
Bintulu Division
Miri Division and
Limbang Division

Each Division is headed by a Resident
who is assisted by District Officers each
taking charge of a district. There are
altogether twenty-cight districts and thirty-
one sub-districts in Sarawak.



The area and percentage distribution by Divisions and Districts in Sarawak are as follows:-

District/Division Area (sq. km) Percentage Distribution
Kuching 1,869 15
Bau 884 0.7
Lundu 1.812 1.5
KUCHING DIVISION 4,565 3.7
Samarahan 594 0.5
Serian 1.6
Simunjan 1.9
SAMARAHAN DIVISION 4.0
Sri Aman 3.1
Lubok Antu 19
Betong (Saribas) 1.4
Saratok (Kalaka) 1.4
SRI AMAN DIVISION 78
Sibu 25
Mukah 4.0
Dalat 18
Kanowit 1.8
SIBU DIVISION 10.2
Sarikei

Meradong (Bintangor)

Daro

Maw

Julau

SARIKEI DIVISION

Rapit

Song 35

Belaga 19,403

KAPIT DIVISION 38,934




Bintulu 7,220 58
Tatau 4,946 4.0
BINTULU DIVISION 12,166 9.8
Miri 4,707 3.8
Baram (Marudi) 22,070 17.7
MIRI DIVISION 26,777 215
Limbang 3,978 3.2
Lawas 3,812 3.1
LIMBANG DIVISION 7,790 6.3
SARAWAK 124,450 100.0

Source: Land & Surveys Department, Sarawak

1.  CLIMATE is between 330 centimetres and 460

Sarawak lies just above the Equator from Cptiitiies

latitude O” 51" N to 5" N and extends from

109 10 115" 40 \l.('nn(vh;\m of longitude. IV. POPULATION
It has a hot-wet equatorial climate.

Sarawak is the most multiracial state in

Sarawatk enjoys @ tropical climate with Malaysia with 27 ethnic groups living
daytime temperature hovering together. The theme of Sarawak is harmony

between 24 degrees to 32 degrees Celsius. At and, hence, living in harmony is a way of life
night, on rainy days, the mercury might dip to among the people in the State.
a minimum of 22 degrees Celsius. Sarawak can
be visited at any time throughout the year. The The population of Sarawak based on
monsoon scason or Landas is between the 1990 figures provided by the Statistics
November and February,  While there are Department  was  1,670,000.  However,
occasionally days when it rains continuously according to the Mid-Year Population
during the Landas, more likely than not the Estimates 1999, Sarawak had a population of
showers fall abruptly and are over just as 2,027,100. It is made up of the following
quickly as it comes. The average annual rainfall cthnic groups:-




Ethnic Group Population Percentage

i) Malay 348,000 20.84%
ii) 96,000 5.75%
iii) Iban 493,000
iv) Bidayuh 140,000
v)  Other indigenous
(Kenyah, Kayan,
Lun Bawang, Kelabit,
Ke n, Bisaya,
Ka 91,000
vi) € 493,000
vii) Others 19,000

(Indians,

: 1,670,000 100%

According to the MidYear Population Estimates by Ethnic Groups provided by Statistics

Department, Sarawak, the breakdown figures from 1994 to 1999 arc as follows:-

Ethnic Group 1994 1996 1997 1998 1999
i) Malay 388,700 407,600 416,600 25,800 435,000
i) Me g 107,200 109,000 110900 112,800
i) Iban 534,800 552,100 800 567.800 5
iv)  Bidayuh 150,100 156,100 58900 161,700

V) Other Indigenous 109,900
Groups (Kenyah,
Kayan, Lun Bawang,
Kelabit, Kedayan,

112,900 114,200 115,700

514,200

1.600 529,300

A S 536,900 544,400
vii) Others (Indians,
Eurasian, Javanese,

cte) 16,600 17,000 17.500 17.800 18,300 18,700
33,200 40,500 44,400 48,600 53,200 58,300
Total: 1,842,100 1,885,200 1,919,300 1,954,300 1,990,200 2,027,100
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Below is the Mid-Year Population Estimates by Districts in Sarawak in 1999.

1 Kuching 1) Kuching
2)  Bau
3)  Lundu
2. Samarahan 4)  Samarahan
5) S n
6)  Simunjan
3. Sri Aman 7)  Sri Aman

8)  Lubok Anw
9)  Betong
10)  Saratok

4. Sarikei 1)
12)  Meradong
13)  Daro

14)  Julau
15) Mat

5, Sibu 16)  Sibu
17) Dalat
18)  Mukah
19)  Kanowit

6. Bintlu 20)  Binwlu
21) Tatau
% Kapit 22)  Kapit
23) Song
Belaga 30,700
8. Miri Miri 208,700
Marudi 90,400
9. Limbang 27) Limbang 41,800
28)  Lawas 36,600
Total 2,027,100

However, based on the projected population in the year 2000, there will be 2,149,000
people in Sarawak.
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V.

MAIN ETHNIC GROUPS IN
SARAWAK

n

Java and others believed they

The Malay

At present, more than half of the
Malay population live in both
Kuching Division and Samarahan
Division at the south-western end of
the State. However, this community
can be found throughout the
length and breadth of Sarawak. It
was believed that the origin of the
Malay community came from
Minangkabau in Sumatra via Datu
Merpati and his followers.  Some
said their ancestors mi

from Johore, Brunei or Kalimantan
Indonesia.  Although they are
coastal people, they can be found
in all the principle inland towns,
living mostly in villages along river
banks. A major portion is employed
in the civil service, private sectors or
involving themselves in various
business. Many of them are
fishermen and farmers. Ethnically
they are a mixture of races. This is
a result of their varied history and
physical as  well as  cultural
assimilation of different people
who have settled along the coast of
Sarawak. Islam is the culral force
that unites them.

The Iban

The ITban, Kayan lect “Ivan”
means “wanderer” or Iban's own

3

ver means  “person”  are
formerly known as Dayak. They

from Kapuas and
Kalimantan Indonesia as
carly as 1540 are by far the largest
indigenous group in Sarawak as it
forms nearly a third of the total
population.  They comprise halt
the total number of people
engaged in agriculture, the main
part of which is hill padi cultivation
small-holdings  of
rubber, oil palm and pepper.
However, many of them have been
engaged in public services, private
sectors and commercial activities.
The Iban are found throughout the
lowlands of Sarawak, living mostly
in longhouses along the streams
and river banks. A tively large
number  of  Iban © now
Christians, although they have a
strong cultural identity of their

originated
Ketungas

and cocon,

own.  The Ibans are exclusively
renowned for the weaving of Pua
Kumbu and making wooden
carvings.

The Bidayuh

The Bidayuh formerly known as
vak are the third largest

group in Sarawak. In

Bidayuh language. “Bi" mcans
Buag

“people” and “Dayuh™ means

“Land”. Hence, “Bidayuh” means
“people of the land”. They came
from Sungkong in Kalimantan
about twenty generations before



Y

=

Krakatau eruption on 27.8.1883.
This indicated that the Bidayuh
community had settled down in
Sarawak sometime in 1380s already.
huudll\ they seuled around Kuching
. However, in later years, when
lllc\ were  being atacked by other
stronger groups, they moved to the
hilly areas in  Kuching and
Samarahan Divisions till today. Their
population distribution was limited
to the Kuching and S
Divisions, but today Bidayuhs
found throughout the length
breadth of Sarawak. Some Bidayuhs
still live in longhouses but most of
them stay in individual houses in the
kampungs. Most of them are still
padi farmers, planting cocoa and
other cash crops.  Many of them
involve  themselves i oil palm
plantations. Majority of the Bidayuh
population are Christians while
there are still some small groups
prefer to remain as pagans and a few
prefer to be converted into Istam.

The Bidayuhs are divided into four
different ethnic dialect groups as
follows:-

i) Bukar/Sadong dialect (Serian
District)

i) Biatak dialect (Kuching district)

iii) Singai/Jagoi  dialect  (Bau

District)

Selakau and lara  dialects

(Lundu District).
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4)

The Orang Ulu

These groups are known as
“upriver people” or “people of the
interior™ are found in the interior
highlands of the Miri, Limbang
and Kapit Divisions, Orang Ulu
refers o the 21  minority
indigenous groups in Sarawak.
Their origin came from Apau
Kayan River in Kalimantan,
Indonesia in the 1800s. Of these,
the Penan are semi-nomadic and
live in the remote upper reaches of
the Rajang and Baram Rivers. The
Kayan and Kenyah people, lhough
quite distinct, are often found in
association and live in the regions
of the middle and upper reaches
of the main rivers in Sarawak and
Kalimantan, Indonesia. They are
primarily farmers, planting hill
padi and rubber as well as rearing
pigs and poultry. They are also
outstanding craftsmen who are
skilled at wood carving, making
good knives and spears as well as
building fine longboats. The
Kelabit and Lun Bawang who
literally means “people of the
place or country” are the hill
people inhabiting the land beyond
the navigable limits of the Baram,
Limbang and Trusan rivers. Most of
them reside in longhouses and
Kampungs. Majority of them are
followers of Christianity but some
of them are still pagans or being
converted into  Islam  faith.



Orang  Ulu  are  generally
disciplined and courteous people.
They have been endowed with
music and dancing culture since
time immemo

The Melanau

The  Melanau,  often  refer
themselves as “A-Likou™ which
means “people of the river™ mainly

occupy along the coastal belt of the
land extending from the mouth of
the Rajang River (Sarikei Division)
to the mouth of the Baram River
(Miri Division) and  extending
inland some wenty miles from the
. It was believed  that their
ancestors came from Bali Island,
Indonesia more than 500 years ago.
Another  group  of  Melanau
ancestors were the Malays from
Brunei when Mukah and  the
surrounding  areas were under
Brunei rule. Some Melanaus also
live in the upriver areas of the
Batang g The Mel,
language is divided into 4
dialect groups namely Rajang area
(Belawai, Rajang, Jerijeh, Igan,
Bukit  Kinyau and  Selalang),
Paloh/Daro4Matu arca, Mukah/
Dalat area and Balingian/Tatau/
Bintulu arca. Very often, the:
groups experience  difficulty in
understanding cach other’s dialect
especially Bintulu Melanau dialect
which differs 1o a high degree
from that of the Mukah Melanau.

6)

Generally, the n be categorised
into three subgroups: n,
Muslims and Christian Melanaus.
The Melanaus have traditionally
been  associated  with  the
production of raw sago and fishing.
However, today many of them
involve themselves in business and
wations. A number of them are
ployed in the civil service
and private secto

The Chinese

The Chine is ranked as the
largest  community i
Sarawak. They can be found in all
the  divisions  of  Sarawak

second

centralising in the towns and other
urban Most Chinese in
S inated  from  the

province of 1 and Guangdong
in South China. Chinese contacts
with Borneo including Sarawak
stretch over a period of more than
1000 vears.  Most of the ecarly
contacts, however, were primarily for
barter trading.  Although some
Chinese came to Sarawak well before
the arri umes Brooke in
1841, the major Chinese immigrants
actually came after 1841 especially
when the Brooke regime needed
more people to develop Sarawak in
all fields. Most of them are traders
and businesmen.  However, those
who stay in the rural areas are small

fishermen  and
jor Chinese dialect

ate  farmers,
. The ma

sl

mines




groups in Sarawak are Foochow,
Hakka (Kheh), Hokkien, Teochew,
Cantonese, Henghua and Hainanese.

The Indians

tute less than one
the  population  of
Sarawak. However, they came to the
shore of Sarawak as carly as the 12th
century for barter trading with the

The Indians co
percent  of

natives in the State. During the
colonial rule, small groups of Indian
migrants came to work in the coffee
and tea plantations at Matang. A
small number of Punjabi were
recruited then to join the police
force. The last batch of Indian
migration occurred after World War
I1. The Indians in Sarawak comprise
of Tamil, Punjabi, Malayalam,
Tegulu and Bengah.

Ethnic Groups
of Sarawak.



L. INTRODUCTION

Owing to the lack of suffic
archacological investigations in the past, the
carly history of Sarawak is almost unknown.
However, since 1948 extensive and systematic
archaeological work has been carried out in
Sarawak by the Sarawak Museum. As a result,
Hindu and Buddha figures as well as gold
ornaments have been found predominantly
in the Sarawak River Basin,  The Pagan
Bidayuhs (Land Dayak) in Kuching and
Samarahan Divisions, by the name of their
god Jewata (Hindu deva) showed that at one
time they were likely brought into intimate
contact with the Hindus from India. Hence,
the above evidence suggested that Sarawak
might have been visited and probably settled
down by the Indians or by the Javanese
Hindus. At the same time, the forcign
traders who came to Sarawak or Borneo not
only left behind evidence of their more
obvious pursuits such as ceramics and iron
slags but also that of their spiritual beliefs
and practic

The ocenrrence of gold in Borneo was
known to the Hindu and later to the
Chinese population as carly as the 4th
Century A.D. Gold ornaments found in an
i site at Santubong  arc
se pottery and
Hindu ornaments dated from about the

Gold has long been worked
in the are ending from Upper Sarawak
(Bau) south-westward to Sambas and
Montrado in West Borneo dated from about
1760. It seemed that Borneo gold was
known in the days of the great Indian
trading expeditions and. therefore, it had
n important metal

been considered o be
in Borneo in the olden di

vs.

The history of Sarawak goes as far back
s 40,000 years ago to the Stone Age with the
carliest signs of man found in the famous
Niah Cave Miri Division.  These ecarly
people were food gatherers and hunters
i ¢ crude tools known as choppers.
|)rub.|bl\ lived in small groups and
already knew the use of fire. Archacological
and other related works indicated that a
smalkscale of barter trading prior to the 6ith
Century A.D. in Borneo grew to a luger scale
traffic with both China and Siam (Thailand)
by the 12th and 13th Century and, in
Sarawak, at the area around Santubong as
carly as the 1th Century. There is sufficient
evidence to indicate that Sarawak River Delta
was an important trading centre which was
established as carly as in the 7th Century A.D.
In the 8th Century Arabian princes sent their
emissaries to collect the world's  best
camphor from Borneo.
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Buddha figure
i the Gupta
tradition found
at Bukit Maras,
Santubong.

INFLUENCE OF BUDDHISM AND
HINDUISM

Both in the Buddhist Kingdom of
1, centred in Sumatra from the 8th o
ntury and  Hindu-Jav
,\p.nhu Empire had exerted a
strong  Buddhist  and  Hindu
influence especially in the Sa
River Dela and coastal areas of
Sarawak. This can be proved with
the discoveries of the following
figures  and  shrine. A stone
monument of the Buddhist Tantric
Shrine built on a raised platform
was discovered at Bongkissam, an
excavation site located at the foot of
Gunung Santubong in 1967. In the
sanctuary of the Shrine, a silver
deposit  box  containing  gold

anese

an
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ornaments in the shape of a sitting Buddha,
cphant, turtle and st
This relic had been

crescent moon, ¢l
were also discovered.
dated to about 12th  Century D.
According to the archacologists, the
practice of burying deposit boxes was a
Hindu-Buddhist tradition originated from
India.

Some forty rock-carvings had been
discovered along Sungai Jaong in the
Sarawak River Delta, Santbong. The most
prominent was a half lifesize spread-cagle
gure with a curious ‘head-dress’
discovered in 1886. It was believed that the
carving was in existence in 970 A.D.

wits

Besides, a statue of the
headed god, the nesa,
Limbang in 1921 and the second picce was
discovered at Bukit Berhala in Samarahan in
1848. The third piece was found in Limbang
at the site of its Residency in 1921, At the

me site, a Baw Lesong which was a
Symbolic I‘h.lllm of veneration of the Hindu

elephant-
was found in

Rock carving
of Hindu
influence
found at
Sungai
Jaong
Santubang.



A scene
painted by
Hasbie Chee
shows the early
hustory of
trading at the
foo of the
Santubang
Mountam

also discovered
Remains of a stone  bull
empro, Penrissen in the
carly 1840s which represented  the guardian
outside a temple of All these remains
constituted the oldest known

religions and worships in Sarawak.

Pallavas in South India w;
at Bukit Berha
were found n

Ar

III. EARLY TRADE CONTACT

Strong  archacological  evidence
indicated that the island of Borneo began
1o atract foreign waders to its shores by
the 1lth century A.D. onwards. The
archacologists ~ of rawak  Museum
discovered the remains of a trading village
of about one thousand years old at
Santubong excavation site. The traders who
came mostly from China and India brought
such goods as ceramics wares, metal objects
and ornaments to exchange for local
products such as rhinoceros’ horns, turtle
cggs. kingfishers' feathers ds’ nests,

relics of

hornbill ivory, bezoar
stones and other jungle
produces.

There are reasons as to
why Bormeo atracted
the foreign merchants
during  this  carly
period.  Firstly, the
island is situated close
to the passage through
which all those seeking
commercial  contact
with China had to pass.
Secondly, it is an
island rich in natral
resources, many of an exotic nature, which
were highly desired by the cosmopolitan
clites in China, India and the Middle East in
the olden days.

Many thousand ceramics shreds had
been recovered from some 40 proto-historic
sites so far conducted by the staff of the
Sarawak Muscum in Sarawak since 1948, The
ceramics excavated from 1948 to 1967, in
association with other related material like
gold objects, ancient glass beads, Chinese
coins and other relics, particularly from sites
in the Sarawak River Delta and Gedong, all
dated 1o the Song and Yuan periods (from
11th 1o 14th centuries A.D. Since 1967,
however, new ceramic material of recent
periods in sufficient quantity has also been
recovered from other sites in the western part
of Sarawak. In view of this evidence, it is

to assume that ime trade was
established in this part of Borneo from the
11th century A.D. to the 19th century A.D.




Cheng Ho
statue at his
temple, Batu

Kawa,
Kuching.

In association with the trade ceramic
items, large quantities of iron slag ogether
with tube-like crucibles, used in smelting
iron, were also found widely distributed all
over the ¢ i S:
Delti. This indicated that there w
ironsmelting industry in operation in this
part of Bormeo at that time. The
development of the iron industry could have
been caused by the shortage of bronze,
especially after the Tang Dynasty, which
prompted the Chinese to search for other
metals elsewhes

s an active

The Sarawak River Delta was therefore
the site not only of an important rading
post but also of an iron-smelting centre.
The delt area developed and thrived from
as carly as the Ilth century AD, and
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continued until the 14th century when it
was mysteriously abandoned.

IV. ADVANCEMENT OF ISLAM

With the fall of Srivijaya about 13th
century later and Majapahit Empire in the
y 15th century, the Muslim States were
ablished by the advance of Islam into the
archipelago.

After the fall of Majapahit Empire,
Si k formed part of the dominance of
the Malay Sultan of Brunei. During the rule
of the Brunei Sultanate from 16th 1o 19th
century Sarawak was also known as “the
Land of Perfection”™ (Darul Hana). In actual
fact, when Sultan of Brunei ok over the
control of awak, Sarawak Malays had
already established their settlements in
Santubong (Sarawak) where Datu Merpati
g was the leader, Saribas (Pusa) where
Harun and

Santubong.

Datu Merpats fepang,



Cheng Ho
Road,

Kuching.

his followers from Sun;
there, Kalaka and Sam
discovery of 138 rare art
800 years old produced during the Chinese
Sung Dynasty in the Tlth Century at
Kampung  Senangeh, Sadong Jaya in
Simunjan on 24.9.1997 was a concrete
evidence of the carly human

Samarahan

arca in the olden da
was obvious that after
Sarawak formed the
southern province of Brunci
that  Imperial  Admiral
Cheng Ho, the famous
Chinese trade ambassador of
Ming Dynasty (1368 - 1644)
visited Brunei. In order to

settlement in

s, It

honour this great man, a
road  between Tun Jugah
Road and Rock Road and a
Chinese Temple at Batu
Kawa in Kuching are named
after Cheng Ho.

In 1521 through the visits to
Brunci by Pigafeua, of Jorge de
Menezes  in 26 and of
Consalvo Pereira, the
Portuguese explorer in 1530
and by an early map of the East
Indies by Mercator, the name of
awak was made known to the
world. At that time, it was the
name ol ge and the river of
the same name - Sungai Saray
occupying more or less the same
position as the present State
Capital, Kuching.

V. FIRST SULTAN AND FIRST
CAPITAL OF SARAWAK
According to the history of Brunei,
there was a strong indication that

Sanwbong was the first capital of Sarawak in
the late 16th century when Pengiran Tengah
Ibnu Sultan Muhamad Hassan, the second

The
Mausoleum
of Sultan
Pengiran
Tengah along
Jalan Sultan
Tengah,
Damai.



Datu Patinggi Al,

Ludah Tanah.

son of the third Sultan of Brunei became
the first and the last Sultan of Sarawak.
Sultan  Pengiran  Tengah  became  the
Sultan of Sarawak in 15%. Before sailing to
Johore and Pahang, he appointed Datu
Patinggi Setia, Datu Shahbandar Indera
Wangsa, Datu Amar Seri Diraja and Datu
Temenggong Laila Wangsa as the State
Ministers to administer Sarawak. On his way
back from Johore, Sultan Pengiran Tengah

Tengah and Jalan Kampung Sanwbong in
Kuching. It was restored and declared as a
historical monument in Sarawak on 11.3.1993.
Costing RM546,000.00, the mausoleum was
constructed and completed in May 1995,

Upon the death of Sultan Pengiran
Tengah, there was no record to show that
the Sultan of Brunci had ever sent a
replacement for Sultan Pengiran Tengah.
The administration of Sarawak affairs could
have been placed under the State Ministers
such as Datu Patinggi Seri Setia, Datu
Shahbandar Indera Wangsa, Datu Amar
Seri: Diraja and Datu Temenggong Laila
Wangsa. Based on the historical record of
Brunci, around 1820 Sultan Muhammed
Kanzul Alam summoned Pengiran Mohd.
Salleh who stayed in Sambas to return to
Brunei and conferred him the titde of
Pengiran Indera Mahkota. Seven years later
when the Sultan of Brunei heard that there
was a discovery of antimony in Upper
Sarawak (Siniawan). he sent Pengiran
Indera Mahkota to Sarawak as the Governor
of Sarawak. At that time, the capital of
Sarawak which was shifted from Sanwbong
was well blished at Lidah Tanah situated

was shipwrecked near the cost of Suk

In Sukadana, he married a princess of the
Sukadana Ruler.  On his way back to
Sarawak, Sultan Pengiran Tengah passed
away at Batu Buaya and was buried at
Santubong in 1641, His mausoleum is
located at the junction of Jalan Sultan
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at Kuala Sungai Sarawak Kanan by Daw
Patinggi Ali. It was Pengiran Indera Mahkota
who shifted the second capital of Sarawak
from Lidah Tanah within Bau district to a
led Sungai Kuching which is the
te of Kuching City.




CHAPTER 4

HISTORY OF MODERN SARAWAK

I.  INTRODUCTION

It was in the middle of the nineteenth
century that the Brunei Sultanate, possibly
the oldest surviving political unit in the whole
of Bomeo at that time, came increasingly
under Western interference, demands and
dominance. But it was during this period of
high imperialism and Western dominance
that the written sources of Sa
began.  Sad but true, the curious
increasingly acquisitive. Westerners around
Bomeo were the ones who provided carly
sources of Sarawak history.

The name ‘Sarawak' spelt ‘Cerava’,
appeared in some written sources as carly as at
the beginning of the six
However, it was then a province of Brunei,
was left largely in the control of Brunei
Pengirans.  Despite of our archacological
findings at Niah Caves, more activities and
human development took place around
Kuching as well as the present Kuching and
Samarahan  Divisions. Of course, other
divisions were also being peopled by the Ibans
and other indigenous migrations from Kapuas
and other parts of presentday Kalimantan,
Indonesia.  In other words, settlements had
occurred not only at suitable coastal areas and
ributaries but also along the upper reaches of
rivers, such as the Rajang, Baram, Kemena and
Mukah Rivers, where earlier people such as the

Punans, Muruts, Kelabits, Kenyahs and Kayans
were pushed further inland by the Ibans,
Melanaus, Sarawak Malays and  Brunei
noblemen. One might consider the pushing
around of one ethnic group by another as a
kind of premodemn indigenous imperialism in
Sarawak; but the fact was that the various
ethnic groups were not very far different from
one another. In spite of a number of religious,
pantheistic and cultural divergences, the
salient point was that the different indigenous
people of Sarawak were increasingly learning
from one another as their perforce came into
contact whether through war, head-hunting or
more peaceful co-existence .

In the 15th century, Brunei Darussalam -
Abode of Peace was the centre of a mighty
empire which encompassed much of Borneo
Island. The coming of James Brooke signalled
the start of the gradual loss of Brunei's territory
in South Borneo, 10 a new entity ruled by
Brooke Regime i.e. Sarawak. Over a period of
lengthy years from 1841-1905, Brunei waned
and its wealth as well as territories disappeared
until it became no larger then itis now. Inan
effort to prevent the country from
disappearing altogether as an entity, Brunei
became a British protectorate in 1906, In 1984,
Brunei became independence and was able o




regain full sovereignty over its own affair over

aland area of

700 square kilometres.

Although Brunei claimed the whole of
presentay Sarawak as her territory, in acuual
fact, the Sult e had very linde influence
and effective conurol of even the lower
riverine and coastal settlements. The Brunei
Pengirans who were the representatives of
the Sultan usually governed fairly limited
arcas; and certainly the further the ethnic
. the more
nous

ast

groups were from the cc B
remote and independent the ind:
people were from Brunci or the Pengiran’s

authority and demands.

This kind of independence from the
al authority or the bit of ethnic
ps being able 0 make decisions for

the
had become a
of the life and history of 1
the indigenous people of Sarawak. But it wa
during the early part of Brooke's rule that the
pride and spirit of independence among
Sarawak people were demonstrated clearly

isclves without replying upon other
trong and persistent feature
any, if not all, of

and repeatedly.

Il.  SARAWAK UNDER SIR JAMES
BROOKE

the
ly began with

We have to @
modern history of Sarawak 1
the first landing of James Brooke on
1581839, At that time, Sarawak was the
southern province of the Brunei Sultanate.
altan Omar Ali Saifuddin was a man of weak
and had no control over his

character

relatives who were intriguing against cach
other. Because his weak gove

stable and his power gradually declined,

nent was not

there was a social unrest, as it was the case in
Sarawak.  The Governor, appointed by the
Sultan to administer Sarawak, was Pengiran
Indera Makota who was intelligent but selfish,
greedy and crel. Sarawak was governed by
corruption and extortion which caused great
sufferings to the people.  The cruel and
inhuman reatment by the Governor from
Brunei, Pengiran Indera Mahkow, who
forced the M nd  Land k
(Bidayuhs) to extract antimony like slaves in
Siniawan, Upper Sarawak (Bau) stirred up
Anti-Brunei feeling among the locals,  The
Malay Hero, Datu Patinggi Ali. led an Anti-
Brunei force against Pengiran Inde

ivs

Sir James Brooke
the first white

Rajah of

Sarawak from
186

1841 -




Sultan Omar ™%

Ali Saifuddin
U of Brunei. 3

Mahkota in 1835. In spite of tl
Sultan of Brunei Omar Ali Saifuddin I sent
his uncle, Pengiran Muda Hashim, the
Bendahara of Brunci, to pacify the country,
the revolt continued because  Pengiran
Indera Mahkota refused to listen to Pengiran
Muda Hashim. The Brunei Governor carried
on with his exploitation and exaction of the
local people: Thus, the situation remained
riotous. James Brooke departed Sarawak after
a short stay and he returned on 29.8.1840 1o
find the fighting was still in progress. At the
request of Pengiran Muda Hashim and at the

same time to fulfill his own dream of having
a kingdom in the cast, James Brooke
interceded in the dispute and finally he
brought about a peaceful settlement. James
Brooke was rewarded for his service and he
was given the territory of about 18,000 square
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kilometres stretching from Tanjung Datu to
marahan River and inland up to Upper
awak (Bau) by Pengiran Muda Hashim on
L1841, On 1.8.1842, James Brooke
proclaimed as the White h of Sarawal
Brunei and he was installed to the throne in
Kuching on 18.9.1842.

Being a foreigner who became the
Rajah of the land which had already been
inhabited by the multi-racial communities
comprising of the Dayaks, Malays and
Chinese, James Brooke had a difficult time
extending his influence and exercising his
power over the people in Sarawak. Although
the cruel administrators of Brunei had
departed, the new ruler in the person of
James Brooke himself had similarly imposed
taxes and restrictions on his subjects. As a

Raja Muda
Hashim.



Map showing the Extension of Sarawak Territory
from 1841 - 1905
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Skrang/Saribas.

Rentap, Ulu

whole, the people of Sarawak did not want a
foreign power to administer their own land.
To Sarawakians, James Brooke nothing
more than a pirate himself, a man who seized
the land and took taxes from the people of
Sarawak. Moreover, they hated James Brooke
who brought in foreigners to rule them.
Even in England, the famous radical Member
of Parliament, Mr. Joseph Hume and Mr.
Richard Cobden charged James Brooke for
murdering innocent natives in Sarawak. The
Brooke antiribe expeditions killed more
innocent  souls,  burned  kampungs,

{ and destroyed ies as well
as the crops of the local people. For the
remaining twenty-three years of his life, James
Brooke who was not contended to rule over a
small riverside town of Kuching devoted

Bau.

himsell to expand his territory, the
ppression of “piracy”, head-hunting, Anti-
White Ra movements and Anti-Brooke's
Rule by the Malays, Dayak and Chinese
communiti The following heroes from
various communities in Sarawak were actually
the champions of the people of Sarawak who
clearly demonstrated their true feelings
against white men’s rule over them.

1) Iban Hero Rentap Against Brooke Rule

For a period of 17 years, from August
1844 until 1861, Rajah James Brooke
had to fight against sea-faring Saribas
and Skrang Ibans, especially the Iban
Hero, Rentap.  Rentap was a native of
Skrang and he never wanted Rajah

Liu Shanbang,



2)

James Brooke to rule over his people. He
first fought against the White Rajah at
Skrang in August 1844 and in 1853. He
successfully attacked Nanga Skrang Fort
where his sonindaw, Layang, Killed
Lee of the Rajah’s force. In August 1
James Brooke, with a force of 7,000
attacked and overran Rentap at Sungai
Lang but Rentap and his  followers
retreated strategically to the top of Bukit
Sadok. On 2.4.1857, Charles Brooke led
an attack on Bukit Sadok with a strong
force of 4,000 but failed to penctrate
Rentap's stronghold. The following year,
a larger expedition of Charles Brooke
also failed despite the use of a six-
pounder gun. Itwas not until September
1861 when Charles Brooke returned with
a twelve-pounder gun that he finally
defeated Rentap and destroyed  his
Belian stockade at Bukit Sadok on
28.10.1861.  Although Rentap’s power
was eventually broken, he did not
He and his followers retreated
howit where he died of old
age sometime in the 1870s.  He was
remembered as a great hero and a
determined defender of Sarawak.

Chinese Hero Liu Shanbang refused to be
ruled by Brooke Regime

The Chinese miners in Bau who arrived
in Sarawak 20 years carlier than James
Brooke and had formed a self-
established government in Bau also
refused to be ruled by a foreigng
Brooke restricted their freedom of
in opium, wine and other necessities with

3)

foreign countries and prohibited them
from exporting gold and other local
products 1o overseas besides imposing
taxes on them based on the actual
population. On 19.2.1857, the Anti-Rajah
movement led by the freedom fighter,
Liu Shanbang, from Bau Lama, had
successfully conquered Astana Kuching
for a few days but Rajah James Brooke
managed 0 escape.  However, Rajah

James Brooke together with his nephew,

Charles Brooke, who had brought a
strong force from Second Division (Sri
Aman), counterattacked the Chinese
fighters. In the end, Liu Shanbang was
killed at Jugan on or about 24.2.1857.
He was a hero who did not want a foreign
rule and he died for the sake of
defending the sovereignty of the country.
In actual fact, Liu Shanbang became the
de facto Rajah of Sarawak for 5 days from
19.2.1857 10 23.2.1857.

Malay Hero Sherip Masahor fought
against Brooke Authority

The Chinese Anti-Rajah movement had
been sudden and dramatic. More serious
was the disaffection of Malay nobles who
were resentful of restrictions upon their
privileges and power. Rajah James
Brooke retained most of the influential
and respected Malays in office. though
some of them watched cagerly for his
weakness. Knowing that the old Malay
ruling class was an aliernative o his

jah James Brooke did not
tust them, an attitude even shared by
Rajah Charles Brooke later.

government, Raja




Sherip Masahor, Sarikei.

In 1853 when Sultan Abdul Mumin of
Brunei ceded the Lower Rajang Basin 1o
Rajih James Brooke, the Governor of the
area was Sherip Masahor. Rajah James
Brooke retained Sherip Masahor in his
position but he paid liule auention and
continued o act in the semi-
independent manner as usual. In actual
fact, Sherip Masahor was a Malay patriot
who was deadly against Rajah James
Brooke's attempts to rule over Sarawak.
The proclamation of James Brooke as
the White Rajah of Sarawak in 1841
bewildered and angered Sherip Masahor.
When James Brooke began to swallow up
more territories of the Sultanate of
Brunei, Sherip Masahor together with
Datu Patinggi Gapur planned to attack

®

Sawing, Kanowit

Kuching but they failed. Daw Patinggi
Gapur was sent to Mecea for pilgrimage
whereas Sherip Masahor returned to
Sarikei quietly.

In 1855, when Sherip Masahor
intervened in a dispute between two rival
Pengirans namely Pengiran Ersat and
Pengiran Matusin at Mukah, he was fined
by the second White Rajah Sir Charles
Brooke. After several abortive attempts
for freedom against Brooke Rule, Sherip
Masahor was banished to Singapore
where he spent the rest of his life. The
Hero Sherip Masahor died in February
1890, in Singapore still full of
determination to push the British out of
Sarawak.



Orang Ulu Hero Sawing who was deadly
against Brooke Reign

During the same period, an Orang Ulu
Hero in the person of Sawing who was

also deadly against the rule of Brooke

Regime.  On 7.6.1859, Sawing killed
two Brooke's officials i.c. Mr. Charles
Fox and Mr. Henry Steele in Kanowit.

However, in December 1863 after four
years of fighting against the Brooke
authority, he gave up himself 10 the
intruder in order to avoid further
bloodshed of the innocent Kayan
people and the destruction of their

Sir Charles
Brocke, the
second white
Rajah of Sarawak
from 1868 - 1917,

properties by the Brooke's force. The
Hero Sawing was exccuted by the

merciless intruder - the  Brooke
authority.

Sarawak Territory Further Enlarged
Sarawak was  recognised as  an

independent state by the United St
of America on 24.10.1850 and G
Britain  granted  recognition  and
appointed Mr. G.T. Rickeuts as the
British  Consul on  19.1.1864. On
24.8. 1853, upon the demand for more
land by Brooke Regime the territory of
arawak was further enlarged when the
Sultan of Brunci ceded all the land
between Sadong River to €
11.8.1861, the territory of
further extended when the Sultan of
Brunei ceded all rivers and lands from
Oya River to Kidurong, Bintulu to the
Brooke Regime who never satisfied with
whatever territory surrendered by the
Brunci authority.

III. SARAWAK UNDER SIR CHARLES
BROOKE
When Sir James Brooke died in England on
T1L6.1868 at the age of 65, he bequeathed to his
nephew, Charles Brooke who was proclimed as
the second White Rajah of Sarawak on 3.8.1868.
Sir Charles Brooke in his long reign of fifty years
built upon the foundation laid by his uncle, ruled
with such conspicuous success that “piracy”
disappeared, head-hunting was reduced and the
prosperity of the country increased.  He was an
excellent administator who set up a proper
wiem of government, gradually expanding and
swallowing more territories from the weak and
powerless Sultan of Bruny In order not to
confuse the name of the capital of Sarawak and
the State of Sarawak, Sir Charles Brooke
announced Ruching as the official name of the
capital on 128.1872. Brish  protection was
accorded to Sarawak on 13.6.1888.




Sir Charles Vyner
Brooke, the third
white Rayah of
Sarawak from
1917 - 1946,

Prince Maide of
Japan who
visited Sarawak
during Japanese
occupation.

On 19.6.1882, further large accretions of
territory occurred when the
advanced beyond Batang  Baram  from
Kidurong. The agreement of accretion was
signed by Sultan Abdul Mumin and Rajah
Charles Brooke in Brunei on 13.6.1883. On
3.1.1885, the valley of Trusan River was ceded
and on 1890 Batang Limbang was
annexed to Sarawak at the request of the local
people from Limbang, On 5.1.1905, the Lawas
River ¢ was taken from the British North
Bomeo Company with the consent of the
British Government.

frontier was

IV. SARAWAK UNDER SIR CHARLES

VYNER BROOKE

Sir Charles Brooke died on 17.
the age of 88, The third White Rajah, Sir
Vyner Brooke succeeded his father on 24.5.

and progress continued in all spheres. In 1041,
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the centenary year of the Brooke rule, the State
was in a sound economic position with a large
sum of money in reserve.  As a centenary
gesture, the Rajah enacted a new constitution,
which abrogated his absolute powers and st
the feet of the people of Sarawak on the first
step towards the road to a democratic self-
government.  However, the 1941 constitution
id not immediately prove conducive to
itical progress, but it at least helped to
rize the people of Sarawak the ideal of
liberal and democratic self-government.

Shortly after the Century celebrations, Sir
Charles Vyner Brooke and his family cowardly
fled to Sydney, Australia to escape from Japanese
invasion. This was very revealing of the third
White Rajah's lack of commitment to Sarawak,
further confirmed by his decision to cede the
State to Great Britain in 1946, He passed away in
England on 9.5.1963 at the age of 88,




This house at
No. 1, Jawa
Road Kuching
served as the
Japanese
Headquarters
during the
occupation
period (1941
1945),

V. JAPANESE OCCUPATION (1941 - 1945)

On 8.12.1941, when the Japanese
attacked the U.S. Naval Base at Pearl Harbour,
Hawaii, both US.A. and Britain declared
on Japan, thus the outbreak of the Pacific War
spread over o Sarawak. On 16.12.1941, the
Japanese invaders occupied Miri.

The bombing of Kuching Town on
19.12.1941 signalled the beginning of the
tragic and terror years under the Japanese
Occupation. Bombs fell along Ban Hock Road
to the wharf of Bomeo Company causing fire
around the as well as 33 deaths and 78
injuries due to air raid. The Japanese authority
occupied Kuching on 24.12.1941 and ook all

the Europeans and other local inhabitants
suspected of destroying important installations
in Kuching as prisoners.  Chief Secretary of
Sarawak, Captain Le Gros Clark had to stay
back to shoulder the respons y and to await
events,  Many of the European government
officers who had wives and children in the
country decided to stay behind. They were all
taken prisoners and like the other prisoners of
war suffered atrocious treatment under the
Japanese. The Prisoners of War Camp at the
present site of the Bat Lintang Teachers’
Training College, Kuching, housed several
thousands of them and more than a thousand
died there. Kuching town suffered immensely
due to lack of food supply and other basic




During the three years and eight months
of the Japanese occupation, the administrative
and economic infrastructures were severely
damaged and the civilian population suffered
much hardship. The local people were
reduced o poverty and misery and
malnutrition spread throughout the 3
The local people looked upon the Japanese
invaders with distrust and anger because of
their cruelty .md guu:l and, l\u\ct. Anti-
Japanese 1
the length and breadth of Sarawak. Even just
before the end of the war, the Japanese forces
carried out major arrests and killed many more
people.  The Chief Secretary of Sarawak,
Captain Le Cros Clark, and Consul Dr. Cho
Lai, the Chinese Consul of North Bommeo
(Sabah), together with three other European
prisoners were taken to North Borneo (Sabah)
and brutally killed at Keningau on 6.7.1945.

The landings of the British and
Australian Paratroops in the Kelabit highland
in Miri Division in early 1945 received excellent
response and support from the people there.
t paved the way for the major Allied
landings on Labuan and along the northavest
as far down as Miri in June,

. the Japanese
unconditionally on 14.8.1945,

VI. AUSTRALIAN MILITARY
ADMINISTRATION

When the Japanese sought in armistice
on 15.8.1945, all regular resistance ceased.
The Allied Force under Major General
Wooten entered Kuching on 11.9.1945 o0
receive the formal surrender of the Japanese

Army. Kuching was liberated and about 2,500
prisoners were set free on the Liberation Day.

Sarawak was then placed under
Australian Military Administration for about
seven months untl 14.4.1946. The main task
of the military administration was to oversce
the distribution of rice and other essential

lities to the local During
this period, the constabulary reformed and the
medical as well as educational services were
reorganised.

VII. SARAWAK AS A BRITISH COLONY
(1946-1963)

When peace was restored, the third
White Rajah Sir Charles Vymer Brooke, came
back from Australia and resumed his authority
over the State of Sarawak on 15.4.1946. It had,
however, for sometime been evident for him
that greater financial resources were needed to
restore Sarawak even a semblance of her
former prosperity. Perhaps the consequence
of Japanese Occupation was the effective
termination of Brooke's Rule and Sir Charles
Vyner Brooke's disinterest in continuing the
Brooke legacy over Sarawak.

When  Sir Charles  Vyner Brooke
announced his intention to cede Sarawak o
Britain in carly 1946, the British Government
sent two Malay speaking Members of
Parliament namely the honourable Mr. D.R.
Ree Williams and Mr. L.D. Gammans to
Sarawak to ascertain whether the people
wanted cession. The finding was that there was
sufficient support for the question of cession to
be put before the Council Negri. The motion



Sir Charles
Arden Clarke,
G.CMG, Firt

Mr. Duncan
Stewart, Second

British British
Colonial Colonial
Governor of Gavernor of
Sarawah Sarawak.
subsequently debated for three days in the 3 Sir Anthony Abell (Period from

Council Negri. The Bill of Cession was read for 341950 to 14.11.1959)

the third time on 17.5.1946 and was passed by

nineteen votes against sixteen. The Bill was in 4 Alexander Waddell (Period
fact carried mostly by the votes of the from 23.2.1960 to 15.9.1963). He
European members who were not the local passed away in  England on
people of Saraw By an Orderin-Council, 14.6.1999 at the age 85.

Sarawak becume a British Colony on 1.7.1946.
Afte ra had become a Colony, the
Counc nl Negri and Supreme Council remained
as constituted before the war, but with the

Governor taking over the place of the Rajah.

VIII. ANTI-CESSION MOVEMENT

tual fact, the end of the Japanese
sowed the seeds of
nationalisms. The people in Sarawak had been

Fora period of 17 years under the British divided over the question of Cession and the
Colonial Rule, four British Governors had passing of the motion by a narrow European
been appointed to rule Sarawak. They were:- majority in Council Negri did not end the

isuc.  In order to resist the authoritarian
decision of the third White Rajah, a major
protest was organised by the Malay National
2)  Mr. Duncan Stewart (Period from Union. A total of 338 government officers and

14.11.1949 10 10.12.1949) teachers, most of them with long years of

1) Sir Charles Arden Clarke (Period
from 29.10.1946 to 26.7.1949)
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Sir Anthony

Abell, Sir Alexander
J Waddell,
GOMG G.CMG.
7 : G.CM.G.
Thim ot Fourth Britsh
olonial Colonial
Governor of ety ol
Sarawak Sarawak.
service, resigned from the government in rented it to  Chung Hua School
protest against the colonial government’s Administration for $100/- per month until
instruction not to take part in political activity. 31.5.2002. It is now used as Chung Hua
Middle School No. 4, along the present Haji
Datu Patinggi Haji Abdillah bin Datu Taha Road, Kuching.

Bandar Abang Haji  Kassim
opposed most strongly to the
cession of Sarawak to Britain, The
Sarawak Government had given
him a sum of $12,000 (Sarawak
dollars) but he rewrned the
money considering it as a bribe.
His house known as Darul Kurnia
built in 1947 at Haji Taha Road
became the assembly place for the

anticessionists. In June 1949, his Chung Hua
descendants sold it to Mr. Ong Middle School
Kuan Hin for $30,000/- who No. 4 - Darul
. Kurnia
handed over to the Sarawak by
Chinese Charitable Trust Board alatng
% Kuching.

in 1972, The Trust Board in turn - L b
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The climax came on 3.12.1949 when the
second British Governor of Sarawak, Mr.
Duncan Stewart, was stabbed in Sibu by a
our hero Rosli

young Malay student-teache
bin Dhoby. using a Kris greased with poison
and the Governor died a week later in
gapore on 10121949, Being an idealistic
young man, he believed he could end the
colonial rule by killing the British Governor. In
the end, the heroes Rosli bin Dhoby, Awang
Rambli, Morshidi bin Sidek and Bujang bin
Suntong  who w involved  with  the
assassination were convicted and sentenced to
death for their patriotic act towards the
country. The anticession movement showed
the awakening of political consciousness in
Sarawak. The people of Sarawak  were
determined to control their own future and
destiny. This was the beginning of the spirit of
nationalism in the State.
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IX. 1962 BRUNEI REVOLT

On 812,19 1 revolt broke out in
Brunei. It was led by AM. Azahari who
hoped to find cnough support in Brunei,
wawak and Sabah (then known as British
North Borneo) to overthrow all the three
governments and unite the three territories,

AM. Azahari was deadly against the
formation of Malaysia. He found little
support in some : and Limbang
Div

Limbang and arcas around Niah and Sibuti
in Miri Di

However, with litde support from the
local people and prompt action by the British
troops stationed in Singapore, the British
commandos recaptured the above areas from
the poorly armed force of AM. Azahari on

Tunku Abdul Rahman



12.12.1962. The Rebellion was a total failure
and the rebels rewreated the
Indonesian border.

towards

X. FORMATION OF MALAYSIA

In May 1961,
Malaya, Tunku Abdul Rahman Putra Al-Haj,
put forward a proposal which was to change
This
proposal centred upon the formation of
Malaysia, ion to include Malaya,
ngapore, Sarawak, Sabah and Brunei.
Slowly the idea became more acceptable

the whole course of Sarawak's future.

a feder

the Prime Minister of
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particularly as it became understood that
Malay wd Singapore were prepared to
concede certain safeguards to protect the
interests of the Borneo territories,  In a
series of meetings, Sarawak delegates met
with tk'l(';:.llu from the other territories and
ipated actively in the working out of
s of such safeguards. These ‘Malaysia
y Consultative Committee’
mectings gave Borneo delegates much
useful experience in political bargaining.
Eight members of Sarawak Council Negri
attended the first meeting of the Committee
in Kuala Lumpur on 6.1.1962,

Tk Abdul
Rahman
proclaiming
Malaya’s
Independence
on 31.8.1957.



Tun Abang
Haji Openg
witnessed the
match past in
Kuching on
16.9.1963 in
conjunction
wilth the
Jormation of
Malaysia

Meanwhile, the Colonial Government
had declared its support for the Malaysia Plan
provided the people of Sarawak found it
acceptable. A Commission of Enquiry was
appointed under the Right Hon. Lord
Cobbold to ascertain the feelings of the
people of Borneo. The Cobbold Commission
arrived in Kuching in February 1962, The
Commission issued an open invitation o all
and
also collected a large volume of written
memoranda
parties, Chambe
leaders and individuals.

interested persons to give oral evidence

from associations, politic

of Commerce, ¢

The conclusion of the Commission
showed that about a third of the population
was strongly in favour of the formation of
Malaysia; another third appeared to favour it

on the condition that certain safeguards were
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cluded in the agreement;  the remaining
third wanted either to remain under British
mule for some time or clse to obtain full
independence before considering joining the
Federation.

Soon after this, an Inter-Governmental
Committee was set up to work out details of
the constitutional arrangements. Sarawak was

well represented on this committee with the
Council Negri itself selecting the delegates.
The report of the Commitiee paved the way
for the successful implementation of the
Malaysia proposal. It fully provided for the
safeguards demanded by Sabah and Sar

and granted the Borneo States a generous
allocation of seats in the Federal House of
Representatives or Dewan Rakyat - Sarawak
was allocated 24 5 Inaddition it provided
for generous development grants for the
Malaysian States.

The atractiveness of the:
Malaysia
became
evident and in
1963
Council Negri pa

proposal
incre

singly
March
awak

the
sed a
motion adopting  the
recommendations
contained in the Inter-
Government
Committee Report, and
welcoming the cre:
of  the
Federation of Malaysia
by August 31.

ion

proposed



First Chief Second Chisf
Minsster Tan Sri Minister Datuk
Datuk Tanwi Si.
Stephen Kalong
Ningkan
XI. FURTHER CONSTITUTIONAL increased  the  number of  elected

CHANGES

Meanwhile, important constitutional
changes had taken place to ensure that
Sarawak would have a fully democratic
legislature and a ministerial  system  of
government before joining Malaysia. As laid
down under the 1956 new Constitution the
rawak Council Negri included 14 officia
24 members indirectly elected

te

members,

by the people, 4 nominated members and 3
standing members. It gave an unofficial
majority to the Council Negri for the first time.
The first direct local government elections
were held in November that year.

y in 1963 this Constitution was
modified to give Sarawak a fully democratic
legislature.  The constitutional armangements

representatives from 24 1o 36 and reduced the
official and the nor ed members to three
persons cach,

The new Constitution also provided for a
ministerial system of government for the first
time. One of the members of Council Negri,
the one who in the opinion of the Governor
was likely to command the confidence of the
jority of the members, would be appointed
as the Chief Minister. He in tum would advise
the Governor on the appointment of five other
members of the Council Negri to the Supreme
Council.  These members would then take

ponsibility for G Dey
and be known as Ministers. The remaining
three members of the Supreme Council were
official members - the Chief Secretary,




Fourth and
present Chicf

Third Chicf Minister Datuk
Minister Tun Patinggs Tan
Datuk Patinggi Sri (D) Hagi

Haypi Abdul Abdul Taib bin

Rakman Ya'kub, Mahmud.
Attorney-General 3 d ial Secretary. However PANAS withdrew from the Sarawak
When independence came, the Chief Minister Alliance on 15.4.1963.  Sarawak United
would preside over the Supreme Council. People’s Party (SUPP) was an opposition

party also participated in the general
Thus in effect the new Constitution clection.
meant that political leaders elected (indirectly)
by the people would take over control of the Since Sarawak retained the threetier
Government from the Colonial Government. system of election, the first stage involved
election to Municipal and District Councils,
the second stage from District to Divisional
XII. 1963 STATE ELECTIONS Advisory Councils and the final stage from
In the light of these constitutional Divisional Advisory Councils to the Council
nges, new state elections were held between Negri.

April and July 1963.
formed by Party Negas
vak National Party (S!

After the elections were completed in
Party Pesaka July 1963, the first meeting of the Sarawak

 Jati Sarawak Alliance  to form the elected  State
(ll.»\k]r\&\) and Sarawak Chinese Association Government was held at Rumah Ma
(SCA) participated in the State Election. the villa of Tan Sri Datk Amar Ling B‘ng
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Sicw in Sibu. Mr. Stephen Kalong Ningkan (Now
Tan Sri Dat Amar) of Sarawak National Party
(SNAP) was clected Sarawak’s first Chief Minister
Designate. Later, the members of Sarawak's first
State Cabinet were announced. They included
two members from SNAP, o from Barisan
Rakyat Jati Sarawak (BARJASA) and one from
Sarawak Chinese Association (SCA).  On
31.8.1963 the Britsh Colonial Governor Sir
Alexander Waddell handed over the control of all
government affairs o the Chief Minister, Mr.
Stephen Kalong Ningkan.

The original date chosen for the formation

of Malaysia was on 31.8.1963 but as a result of the
pposition of Ind and the Philippi

expressed at the Manila Conference on 30.7.1963
o 581963 Malaysia agreed that the date be
postponed in order to allow a United Nations
team to ascertain the wishes of the people of the
Borneo States.

The mission visited wak and Sabah
between 16.8.1963 and 5.9 1963 and in its report
it stated that a substantial  majority of the
population did indeed support the formation of
Malaysia. Indonesia, however, refused o accept
the conclusion of the report, arguing that the
conditions under which it had been carried out
were not  satisfactory, On 16.9.1963, Sarawak
achieved full independence as a member state of
the Federation of Malaysia after 17 years under
the British Colonial rule. The first local Governor
was Tun Abang Haji Openg bin Abang Sapice.

XIII. THE UNDECLARED WAR-
CONFRONTATION (1963-1966)
Before Malaysia was formed, President
Sukamo of Indonesia accused the proposed

federation of being neo-colonial and the
Philippines G joined him in opposing
the formation of the new nation, In August
1963, the Prime Minister of Malaya, Tunku
Abdul Rahman Putra Ah-Haj, President Sukarmo
of Indonesia and President Macapagal of the
Philippines met in Manila and decided to ask the
United Nations to send a team of officials to
Sarawak and Sabah to ascertain the wishes of the
people about joining Malaysia. The United
Nations” report confirned the majority of the
people of Sarawak and Sabah supported the
formation of Malaysia.

In spite of the United Nations® finding,
President Sukarmo continued to show his
hostility of offering assistance to militant
communist_terrorists operating along the
Sarawak/Kalimantan  border, resulting in
numerous skirmishes and loss of life. The first
atack by the Indonesians was on 12.4.1963 at
2,00 aum. at Police Station, Tebedu in which a
police corporal was killed and two constables
wounded. There were more than 150 attacks
by the Indonesians all over Sarawak during
confrontation from 12.4.1963 to 19.6.1964.
Eventually, confrontation ended on 11.8.1966.
However, communist activities were still active
especially among the Chinese dominated areas
in Sarawak. On the night of 26.6.1965,
communists attacked the Police Station at 18th
Mile Kuching/Serian Road in which 9 police/
field force men were killed. As a result of it,
Hammer Operation  was mounted  and
controlled arcas were imposed from 15th Mile
to 25th Mile Kuching/Serian Road with effect
from 6.7.1965. On 30.10.1967, new villages at
Siburan, Tapah and Beratok situated along
Kuching/Serian Road were completed and all




Chinese families from the areas were required to
move into the new villages in order to separate
them from the communist influence and, at the
same time, to protect them from the communist
threat.  Consequently, Operation Petek was
mounted in 1972 and 1973 1o uproot the
communist movement. On 26.3.1972, the
Rajang Security Command (RASCOM) was
established in Batang Rajang area to wipe out the
communist influence there.

XIV. SRI AMAN - PEACE RESTORED

On 13.10.1973, Bong Kee Chok, top
leader of the North Kalimantan People’s
Guerilla: Force and Director and Political
Commissar of PARAKU, personally wrote to
the Chiel Minster and Director of Operation,
rawiak, YAB Datuk Haji Abdul Rahman
Ya'kub, of his desire to abandon the armed
struggle and 1o work for political and social
change within the Malaysia Constitution.

On 18.10.1973, 585 men and women
including most of the top military and
political leaders representing 85 percent of
the commu; fighting force, emerged from
the jungle and laid down their arms. A
Memorandum of Understanding between the
Chief Minister, YAB Datuk Patinggi Haji
Abdul Rahman Ya'kub and Bong Kee Chok,
Director and Political Commissar of PARAKU,
was signed at Rumah Sri Aman in Simanggang
(Sri Aman) on 21.10.1973. The voluntary
surrender of members of the Sarawal
Communists Organisation, representing 85%
of the guerillas, brought peace and security
to Sarawak,

In the moming of 4.3.1974, the then Chicf
Minister, YAB Datwk Patinggi Haji Abdul
Rahman Ya'kub, announced before about 100
representatives of the local and international
press and State dignitaries at Dewan Tun Abdul
Razak in Kuching that after more than eleven
years of communist armed struggle, peace had
returned  to Sarawak. On 980, the
Government of Malaysia approved the complete
lifting of security restrictions in the Operation
Hammer Arcas (Siburan, Tapah and Beratok
New Villages) along Kuching/S

XV. POLITICAL CHANGES 1963 - 1999
During the initial phase of Sarawak's
independence within Malaysia, from 1963 to
1966 all imy government deps
were headed by expatriate officers,  The
Sarawak Alliance le , being entrusted with
the heavy responsibility of running a State
Government for the first time, invariably turmed
1o the expatriate officers for advice on political
matters.  This resulted in much political
dissatisfaction.  In mid 1966, the State Cabinet
headed by Datk Amar Stephen Kalong
Ningkan was replaced by a new cabinet with
Datuk Tawi Sli as the Chief Minister.

le:

Under Datuk Tawi Sli Government
expatriate officers were excluded from  the
decision-making level and the replacement of
top expatriate officers greatly accelerated. The
three top posts of State Secretary, State Financial
Secretary and State Establishment Officer were
taken over by local officers, and all other
expatriate officers in the administration were
replaced rapidly as well as many of the top
expatriates in other departments.
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Sarawak first direct general election was
held on 7.7, The Sarawak Alliance joined
forces with the Sarawak United People's Party
o form Sarawak first coalition government
under the leadership of Dawk Patinggi Haji
Abdul  Rahman  Ya'kub. The Coalition
Government was returmed to power in 1974
and in September of the same year, SN/
Joined PBB and SUPP to form the State Barisan
Nasional Government, which was again
reclected in 1979, Ihmkl atinggi Tan Sri Haji
Abdul Rahman Ya'kub remained as Chief
Minister until his resignation on 1981.
Datwk Patinggi Tan Sri Haji Abdul Taib
Mahmud was swomn in as the fourth Chief
Minister of Sarawak on the same date.

In July 1983 some Dayak members of
SNAP left the party to form Parti Bansa Dayak
Sarawak (PBDS) which opted to remain in the

Barisan Nasional Government under the Chief
Minister Datuk Patinggi Tan Sri Haji Abdul
Taib Mahmud.

To counter a plot to oust him as the Chief
Minister in March 1987, Datk Patinggi Haji
Abdul Taib Mahmud dissolved the State
Legislative Assembly and called for a State
clection in the following month. PBDS
contested as an opposition party. Datuk
Patinggi Tan Sri Haji Abdul Taib Mahmud was
returned as Chief Minister for a third term
leading the State Barisan Government
composed of PBB, SUPP and SNAP.

On 289.1991, the incumbent Chief
Minister was returned for a fourth term of
office when the State Barisan Nasional (B.N.)
achieved a landslide victory, winning 49 out
of a total of 56 seats in the State Legislative




Assembly. On 31.5.1994, Parti Bansa Dayak
Sarawak (PBDS) was reaccepted to State
Barisan Nasional after some seven years in
exile. Due 1o the increase in voting
population and pace of development of the
State, the Constitution of the State of Sarawak
was amended in order to increase the elected
members of the Council Negri from 56 to 62
in October, 1995, In September, 1996 St

Election was held and Datuk Patinggi '
(Dr.) Haji Abdul Taib Mahmud was returned

The thind Yang
Dipertua Negeri

for a fifth tenm as the Chief Minister of Tun Datuk
Sarawak when the State Barisan Nasional won Patinggi Abang
57 out of 62 . On o
26.10.1997, ased Salahuddin,
another s e Legislative

Assembly when Mr. Michacl Sim m Hui

won the Kidurong By-Election after he
defeated DAP's candidate and two other
independents. The latest breakdown of the In December Parliamentary
scats in Dewan Undangan Negri Sarawak is as Election,  State B Nasional (BN)
follows:- contested and won all the 28 parliamentary

seats in Sarawak giving a clear mandate for
State  Barisan Nasional 10
continue serving the people

PARTY NUMBER OF SEATS in Sarawak for the next 5
1. State Barisan years in the new millennium.
Nasional 58
(PBB - 29 XVI. HEAD OF STATE
SUPP -14 FROM 1963
FBLS 8 After achieving independence
SNAE-17) within Malaysia, Sarawak has
2. Democratic 9 four Heads of Stte. Its first
Action Party (DAP) Head of State, then known as
X X the Governor, was the late Tun
3. Independent candidate 2 Dauk Abang Haji Openg bin
= Abang Sapice from 16.9.1963
Towl: o2 unil his death on 28.3




The fourth Yang
Dipertua Negen,
Tun Datuk
Patinggi Haji
Abdul Rahman
ban Ya kub.,

The second Governor was Tun Datuk
Patinggi Tuanku Haji Bujang bin Tuanku
Osman from 2.4.1969 until he completed
his second term of office on 1.4.1977. He
was then succeeded by the third Governor
Tun Datuk Patinggi Abang Haji Muhammad
Salahuddin who was in office from 2.4.1977
till 1.4.1981. The fourth Governor who was

YT Tun Datuk
Patinggi Haji
Ahmad Zaidi
Adruce bin
Muhammed
Noor, the
present Yang
Dipertua of
Sarawak.

then known as Yang di-Pertua Negeri was
Tun Datuk Patinggi Haji Abdul Rahman bin
‘a'kub who held office of Head of Sta
from 2.4.1981 to 1.4.1985. The present
Head of State is Tun Datuk Patinggi Haji
Ahmad Zaidi Adruce bin Muhammed Noor
who became the fifth Yang di-Pertua Negeri
from 2.4.1985 until today.
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Kuching - The Cat City and Capital of Sarawak

L. INTRODUCTION

Kuching Division, the First Division of
Sarawak, has an area of 4,565 squa

kilometres and based on 1991 censu
had a population of The majority

Sarawak at Tanjung Datu to the divisional
border with Samarahan Division. The name
of the towns/bazaars are as follows:-

of the people are Chinese, Malays, Bidayuhs Lundu District
and fhans. 1) Sematan Bazaar
o o
The Division has three districs ang ) LunduTown
three sub-districts namely:- 3)  Biawak Bazaar
Bau District
District Sub-District Population in 1991 4)  Serikin Bazaar
Kuching District 1) Siburan Sub-district 368,386 ) :;‘"'gk“""‘ Tebang
azaar
2) Padawan Sub-district 6)  Krokong Bazaar
Lundu District 1) Sematan Sub-district 24,599 7)  Taiton Bazaar
8)  Bidi Bazaar
au Distrd
Baws District 9)  BauTown
Total: 420511 10) Jambusan Bazaar
_ 11) Paku Bazaar
12)  Siniawan Bazaar
However, based on the Mid-Year 13) Buso Bazaar
Population Estimate 1999, Kuching Division 14) Musi Bazaar
had a ulation of 532,100,
rac ¥ popiatang 15) Tondong Bazaar
This Division has one city and 38 16) Keranji Bazaar

towns/bazaars strewching from the tip of
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17) Tanjung Durian Bazaar



Locality Map of Kuching in 1890

KUCHING 1890

Court House - 1874
Indian Mosque - 1876
Sarawak Cly 1876,

Residency

New Bormco Co. promises - 1877
Prison - 1877

Fortat Pankalan Baws - 1879

Fort Margherita - 1879

Malay Mosque, rebuilt about 1880
R.C Mission - 188

New Hospital - 1882

ISloelelolloelelele)

Police Station - 1882
Rajalvs Stables - 1885

Dispensary (Round tower) - 1856

Ong Family House, built about 1886

5. PG, Mission new Boy's School - 1886
R C. Convent - 1886

Ewe Hai Strect - 1886

sambier R, built between 1578 & 1894
“arpenter Street Temple - 1859
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Kuching District

18)
19)
20)
21)

26)
27)
28)
29)
30)
31)
32)

Baw Kitang Bazaar
Baw Kawa Bazaar

Kota Sentosa (7th Mile)
Kota Padawan (10th M;
Siburan Town (17th
Beratok Bazaar
Tapah Bazaar

Tang Bukap Bazaar
Beliong Bazaar
Muara Tebas Bazaar
Bako Bazaar

Buntal Bazaar
Santubong Bazaar
City of Kuching
Sungai Maong Town (3rd Mile)

33) Tabuan Jaya Town

34) Hui Sing Bazaar, Stampin

35) BDC Bazaar, Stampin

36) Semongok Bazaar

37) Lintang Park Bazaar

38) Jalan Astana Bazaar

39) Raja Setia Commercial Centre, Stutong

1. KUCHING CITY

Historical Background

Kuching is the capital city of the State of
sia. The scenic city is situated
along the bank of Sungai Sarawak about 40
kilometres from the river mouth. Kuching is
not only the administrative centre but also the

Kuching in
1839, with
Gunung
Serapi in the
background.



centre  and
the gateway to Sarawak.
The y s situated
within Kuching District
which has an area of
L113 square kilometres,

financial

Although the
history of Sarawak goes
back 40,000 years to the
carliest signs of man in
the famous Niah Cave in
Miri Division, there is
very littde being written
on Kuching or Sarawak
before the arrival of James Brooke in 1839
Archacological and other related work also
showed that a smallscale of barter trading
prior to the th Century A.D. in Bomeo grew
to a largescale waflic with both China and
Siam by the 12th and 13th Centries and
continuing into the next century.

Both the Srivi Empire, centred in
Sumatra until the 13th Centry and Majapahit
i nese successor in the 1th and 15th
Centuries - exerted  a strong influence on
Sarawak. Majapahit fell to the Muslim States in
the 15th Century and Sarawak became the
southem province of the Brunei Sultanate. At
that time, the name “Sarawak” spelt as "Cerava™
appeared in some written sources.

Pengiran Tengah Ibnu Sultan Muhamad

Hassan, the second son of the third Sultan of

Brunei sent over and became the first
Sultan of Sarawak.  Sultan Pengiran Tengah
founded the fist capital of Sarawak at
Santubong in 1599,
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When Datu Patinggi Ali was appointed as
Daw Patinggi by Sultan of Brunei in the early
19th century, he shifted the administration
headquarters from Santubong to Lidah Tanah,
a strategic pl at the confluence of Sungai
Sarawak Kiri and Sungai Sarawak Kanan in
Upper Sarawak. Hence, Lidah Tanah became
the second capital of Sarawak.

According to the history of Brunei
Darussalam, around the year 1820 Sulan
Muhammad  Kanzul  Alam  summoned
Pengiran Mohd. Salleh who stayed in Sambas
to return to Brunei and conferred on him the
title of Pengiran Indera Mahkota
years later, he was sent to Sarawak as the
Governor of Sarawak representing the Sultan
of Brunei. It was Pengiran Indera Mahkota
who founded Kuching at Sungai Kuching
be the third capital of Sarawak in 1827. On
15.8.1839, when James Brooke visited Kuching
with his ship “Royalist”, the present Kuching
was only a very tiny seulement. The Rajah
Muda’s house on the left bank was surrounded

Kuching in
1840.



by small Malay
villages and a
cemetery of
graves marked by
carved ironwood
monuments. On
the opposite side
of the river there
was a row of
Chinese
shophouses built
by the side of a
marshy road and

Kuching in
1920.

more Malay villages extending along the river Brunei and a few Chinese traders, However, a
bank above them. There were about 600-800 big fire occurred in Kuching on 20,1.1844 and
people, most of whom were Malay nobles from destroyed 160 wooden shophouses.

The Main
Bazaar is one
of the old
streets in
Kuching City.
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Locality Map of Kuching in 1917

KUCHING

1917

lZlelelelelollaclelclc)

Museum - 1891

Thompson Road - 1891

RC. Chapel - 1891

Wayang Theatre - 1891
Curator's House - 1892
Sarawak Club rebuilt - 1593
Rest House - 1893

Orchid Howse - 1894

New RC. Mission School - 1594
New Blacksmith’s Houses - 1894
Ewe Hai St Temple - 1895

Finst Ladies Club - 1596
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Sarawak Union Club - 1899

Khoo Hun Yeang St - 1901 - 1902
Government Lay School - 1902
Bukit Mata - 1903

Pavilion - 1907 - 1909

Curator’s Office - 1907

Second Ladies Club - 1908

Dry Dock - 1908 - 1911

Kmark new Sarawak Club - 1911
Chinese Court - 1911 -
Hokkien Free School - 1911

Headmaster's House
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“Welcome to
Kuching™ 15
landscaped by
the City
Council, the
hornbill
structure was
completed in

1995

On 1.8.1988 when Kuching was
officially inaugurated as a city, Kuching was
also known as Cat City. The statue of a big
cat was erected at Padungan area.  The
question now remains as to whether
“Kuching” really me: P!

II. HOW KUCHING DERIVES HER
NAME

There are many versions as to how
Kuching gets her name.

(1) Version No. 1
An oral tradition has it that when
James Brooke wtravelled up Sungai
Sarawak with a local Malay guide in
1841, he saw an animal jumping
along the bank of Sungai Sarawak.
Out of curiosity, he asked the Malay

(2)

3)

guide what it was. The guide
replied, “Im Kuching” (that's cat).
Then James Brooke named the
place “Kuching™.

Version No. 2

In 1839 James Brooke referred to
the present Kuching  City as
“Kuchin” which might suggest the
old word *Cochin” or port as in
India or Indochina.

Version No. 3

Another version is that Kuching
probably derives her name from
being a wild cat’s haunt within the
vicinity of Bukit Mata Kuching a
long time ago.



The statue of
a big cat at
the entrance of
Padungan
Area,

Kuching,

(4) Version No. 4
A Chinese story reveals  that
Kuching which means Old Well
( %4 ) in Chinese Mandarin is
actually named after some old
wells found in the vicinity of
Sungai Ruching. One old well was
found within the compound of St.
Many's School and the other one
found at the end of Upper
hina Street but both wells had
been filled up duc 1o the road
construction in the areas,

(5) Version No. 5

Some people say that Kuching is
a small river known as

named afte:
Sungai Kuching which used to run
in front of Tua Pek Kong Temple
at the junction of Jalan Tunku
Abdul Rahman (formerly known
as Thomson Road) and Jalan
Padungan.

g (6) Version No. 6

Others believe that Kuching is
named after the “Mata Kuching™
fruit. Sungai Kuching was in the
vicinity of Bukit Mata Kuching
which was teeming with a type of
local fruit called “Buah Mata
Kuching™ (Nepheliwm Malarense).

IV. POSSIBLE ARGUMENTS TO

THE VERSIONS

(1) Version No. 1

Cats have been in existence for at
least afew thousand years in the
world including the homeland of
James Brooke - England. James
Brooke should have seen a cat
before and, therefore, the cat was
nota strange animal to him.

Another point s that local Sarawak
Malays do not call a cat “Kuching™
but *Pusa”. There is a rural town in
Sri Aman Division which is known
as Pusa. "Pusa™ is the term used
locally by the Malay to mean cat but
not “Kuching”.




Kucliing City Map in 1988




(2) Version No. 2

3)

Before James Brooke became the
first White Rajah in 1841, the place
was known as “Kuching” but James
Brooke changed it to “Sarawak”
when Kuching was officially handed
over to him by Pengiran Muda
Hashim on 24.9.1841.

Version No. 3

Even if the arca surrounding Bukit
Mata Kuching was a wild cat’s haunt,
it would not be known as “Kuching”
but possibly “Pusa” or “Pusa Hutan™.

(5)

( % ) in Chinese Mandarin but
m’cluur«: showed that it was the
ak  (Malay and
lhd.wuh) who stayed in the vicinity
of Kuching first. The Chinese traders
came in very much later. Therefore,
there is no historical data o support
the belief that Kuching is named
after an old well.

Version No. 5

To name a town after a Sungai
(river) is very common in Sarawak.
Sarikei is named after Sungai Sarikei
while Kapit gets her name from a
river at the downriver of the town.
Serian derives her name from a river
called Sungai Serian which flows at
the side of the town whereas
Limbang is so called because of
Sungai Limbang.

Sungai Kuching was found running
in front of Tua Pek Kong Temple but
due to the construction of the road
now known as Temple Sueetand the
expansion of the town, the river was
filled up sometime in 1928 and,
hence, had disappeared from the
map of Kuching.
(6) Version No. 6
Kuching may derive her name from
the local fruit known as “Mata
Kuching”  (Nephelium ~ Malarense)
which were found plenty at Bukit
Mata Kuching. At least, the name
Mata Kuching is still being used for
Bukit Mata Kuching and a road
within the vicinity is known as Jalan
Mata Kuching.

ANALYSIS OF THE VERSIONS

In acwal fact, Kuching was so called
during the Brunei rule and before the arrival of
James Brooke. This could be proven in James
Brooke's private letter to his mother on
14.9.1841. James Brooke used the word
“Ruchin™ with a note stating that *Kuchin™ was
the native name of Sarawak.  However, in
another letter addressed to his mother dated
1842, the word “Kuchin” was dropped and
only Sarawak was used.

V.

On 1281872, during the Supreme
Council meeting, the second White Rajah of
\1rm.|k Charles Brooke reverted to the name
wak” in place of “Kuching™ because he
wanted to define the township of Sarawak by a
more positive appellation. At that time,




Kuching City Map, 1999




Sarawak was the name of the capital
and the river which flows through it
as well as the territory of Sarawak.
From then onwards, Kuching was
the name of the town and the name
of Sarawak was used when it meant
to represent the whole territory,
(Sarawak  Gazette No. 47 dated
16.8.1872 refers).

The discovery of 280 picces of
old coins backdated 10 the 16th
Century at the former Rex Theatre
demolition site at Temple Street
Kuching in 1995 was another
concrete proof of the existing of
Sungai Kuching and an inland wharf in the
area before the river filled up for road
construction,

Itis believed that Kuching City was more
likely named after Sungai Kuching.  Sungai
Kuching was in the vicinity
Kuching which bore a lot of *Mata Kuchi
fruits (Nephelium Malarense) in the olden days.
‘Therefore, “Kuching” may not mean “cat” and
itis unlikely that it has anything to do with cats
but rather derived from the name of the river
Kuching or the local fruit known as “Mata
Kuching”, a close relative of Lychee fruit which
grows widely in the olden days.

VL. CAPITALS OF SARAWAK
(1) First Capital of Sarawak - Santubong
Santubong became the first capital
of Sarawak in 1599 and it was
founded by the first and last Sultan
of Sarawak, Sultan Pengiran Tengah.

2)

Upon the death of Sultan Pengiran
Tengah in 1641, his  body was
buried at the junction of present
Jalan Sultan Tengah and Jal
Kampung Santbong, Damai.
Mausoleum was constructed
1995 in honour of Sultan Pengiran
Tengah.

Santubong is obviously not a M
name.  In Chinese  Hol
dialect, “Santubong”™ means “the
ing of wild boar” whereas in
Chinese Hakka dialect, it means
“the King of the jungle™. A third
version of “Santubong” in Iban
word means “Coffin™.

Second Capital of Sarawak - Lidah
Tanah

From 1641 until ecarlier 19th
century, there was no record 1o
show that the Sultan of Brunei had

Santubong,
the first
capital of
Sarawak in
the late 16th
century.




Ladak Tanah
- the second
capital of
Sarawak in
the carly 19th
century.

ever sent a replacement for Sultan
Pengiran Tengah. In the carly
1820s, when Datu Patinggi Ali
was appointed as Datu Patinggi
in  Sarawak, he shifted the
administrative headquarters from
Santubong to Lidah Tanah, a
strategic place at the confluence in
Upper Sarawak (Bau). Hence,
Daw Patinggi Ali founded the
second capital of Sarawak at Lidah
Tanah. “Lidah Tanah™ in Malay
dialect means “the tongue of the
land™ because the area around
Lidah Tanah looks like a tongue,

Third Capital of Sarawak - Kuching
As mentioned earlier, the third
capital of Sarawak was founded by
the representative of Sultan of
Brunei, Pengiran Indera Mahkota
in 1827, at Sungai Kuching.
Sungai  Kuching was found

A3 running in front of Tua Pck Kong
Temple but the river was filled up
in 1928 for the construction of
Temple Street in Kuching.

VIL KUCHING AS CAPITAL OF
BROOKE ADMINISTRATION

Fourteen years after being founded
by the Brunei representative,
Kuching was handed over to Sir
James Brooke on 24.9.1841 by
Pengiran Muda Hashim, the uncle of
Sultan of Brunei as an award 1o Sir
James Brooke who pacified Anti-
Brunei Movement led by Daw
Patinggi Ali. Hence, Sir James Brooke became
the first White Rajah of Sarawak in 1841 which
also marked the onset of three generations of
Brooke family rule over Sarawak.

Kuching which became the seat of the
Brooke government underwent remarkable
changes.  As the administrative capital, it was
the focus of attention and development. At
first, Sir James Brooke introduced a code of
laws and later he built his residence on the right
bank of Sarawak River. This residence
eventually paved the way for the present Astana,
which is the official residence of the Yang Di-
Pertua Negeni. Under Sir James Brooke, (1841-
1868) laws and orders were enforced. However,
Kuching remained cramped and lacked in
facilities.

It was not until 1868, when Sir Charles
Brooke became the second White Rajah that
greater efforts were made o upgrade the
town. Drainage was improved, new buildings



Kuching City

Satok
Commercial
Centre.

The present
Capital of
Sarawak

and streets sprang up, and old wooden
shophouses replaced by concrete ones. In fact,
most of Kuching - from Main )
Carpenter Street - was rebuilt after being
gutted by a great fire on 20.1.1884. By the end
of Sir Charles Brooke's rule, (1868-1917)
Kuching had grown from a small ramshackle
place into a own with attractive government
buildings and telec ication service.
Rickshaws and trains became important means
of ransport. There was even a race course and
a club house with a bar, billiard tble and
bowling alley for sports and entertainment. In
1881, the first rubber tree in Sarawak was
ted at Sckama Road, Kuching. On
1881, the Roman Catholic Mission
was introduced o Kuching. In 1885,

®




The esplanade
“The people’s
place.”

St. Thomas’s School was built and on
12.12.1894 St. Joseph's School was also
opened to provide English education to the
local children.

In 1920, a Recreational Club was
established and the Sarawak Turf Club was
opened in 1924 in Kuching. In 1934, Sir
Charles Vyner Brooke built a cinema at the
present site of G.ums.nk Foundation Building
or Bangunan Yayasan Sarawak, and named it
) Cinema after his wife. This cinema
became the centre of relaxation for the
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Kuching populace. On 15.6.1923, the Power
Station which was erected at the site of the
present Electra House provided  electricity
.m(l street lighting in Kuching Town. In
5, the Sarawak Library was opened and in
1939, a Malay Teachers Training College was
established at Maderasah Kuching.

In October 1924, the Chartered Bank
of England opened a branch in Kuching,
providing services in currency exchange in
order to meet the increasing commercial and
banking demands of Sarawak. In 1926 Satok

i




Padang
Merdeka
1998,

| carrying

Suspension Bridge was compl
the pipes with water supply from Matang to
Kuching town. In 1 Sarawak had cight
wire stations in service and by 1926 this
number had increased to fifteen.

Hospital and medical services were
improved. In July 1925 Sarawak had its own
government dentist. In October 1925 Rajah
Charles Brooke Memorial Hospital for the
lepers at the 13th Mile, Penrissen Road,
provided medical care to the lepers who
had been moved from the Leper Settlement
on Satang Island. In 1926, the new
Government General Hospital at Rock Road
was completed.

On 24.9.1930 the road joining Kuching
and Serian was completed. In October 1931,
new Ruching Police Station was completed.
In December 1932 the British Empire
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Broadeasting Station began its
regular ransmission to Sarawak
became very popular
. On 26.9.1938, the
construction of old Kuching
Airport costing 25,000 pounds
was completed and opened to air
raffic.

Kuching continued to prosper
under the third White Rajah
Sir  Charles  Vyner  Brooke
(1917-1946) who succeeded his
father. In 1941, Kuching
became the venue for the Brooke
government's centenary
celebrations, which  included
official  ceremonies and - an
agricultural show at the Sarawak Museum
ground. A few months later, the Brooke
administration came to a close when the

Japanese occupicd Sarawak (1941-1945).

After World War Two, Kuching was
revitalized as the capital of Sarawak under
the British Government (1946-1963). When
Sarawak joined the Malaysian Federation in
1963 Kuching remained as the state capital.
The rapid pace of development it enjoyed
after the war had gained increasing
momentum until this day.

VIII. TRANSPORTATION
DAYS

Kuching during the time of the first
White Rajah was a small settlement nothing
more than a row of wooden houses which
stretched along Main Bazaar and the

IN OLDEN
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“Mosquito
Bus”

The first bus
service in
Kuching
launched in
1912

opposite bank of the river. The thoroughfare
along Main Bazaar was litthe more than a dusty
i for the bullock carts which made
arance in the mid 1880's. These
bullock carts were used to transport goods.

Heavy loads were also carried on two big
baskets supported by a pole slung across the

shoulders.

In 1895, the first rickshaw arrived from
Singapore and for many years to come,
remained a popular form of public transport.
Rickshaw stands were convenienty found at

rious locations in town. The bic provided
another popular means of getting about in
town since it was introduced in the 1900%s. It
was not until 1907 that the first motorcar -a 10-
12 HP Coventry Humber - was brought to
Kuching by the Manager of the Borneo
Company, Mr. JM. Bryan, By 1926, there were
already several cars, buses and lorries plying the
streets of Kuching. The first public bus service
launched in 1912 made use of a 24onne lornry
and the “Mosquito Bus” which plied along
Rock Road (Jalan Tun Openg) at a speed of
about 14 miles per hour.




In 1883, the
Kuching/Penrissen Road began
the construction of the Simanggang (Sri
Aman) Road had started.  In 1912, Rajah
Charles Brooke started to build a railway
which connected the Kuching town area to
the tenth mile (Kota Padawan) presently
Jalan Kereta Api route. It was opened to the
public on 9.4.1916. The railway made easier
for the movement of farm produce and
people to and fro the outskirts of the town.
However, the service was discontinued in
1933 for unknown reason.

building of the
id in 1930,

Kuching’s aviation history recorded the
first landing of a seaplane on 16.10.1924. The
the town and eventually landed
on the Sarawak River in front of the Main
Bazaar. On 24.8.1983, RM35 million new
terminal building of Kuching International
Airport was opened for public use.

plane flew ove

IX. KUCHING CITY STATUS IN 1988

988 was a historical day
for Kuchin, the day when Kuching
became a ¢ rea of 69 square
kilometres with a multi-racial population of
300,000.

The day 1.

Kuching has a unique and effective
administration because the is divided
into two parts.  Kuching City North is
administered by a Commissioner known as
Datuk Bandar and Kuching City South by a
Mayor. It is the only city in Malay d
perhaps in the world with two mayors. For
record purpose, Dat Dr. Yusoff bin
Hanifah was appointed as the first Datuk

Bandar of kuchmg City North while Y.B.
Dato Song Swee Guan as the first Mayor of
Kuching City South.

X. KUCHING CAT MUSEUM

Kuching as a “Cat City" had drawn the
attention from our neighbouring Lion City of
Singapore. On 31.7.1991, Encik Othman Wok
of Singapore Tourist Promotion Board,
Singapore donated 3 sculptured porcelain
Singapore cats as an additional collection to
Cat Gallery in Sarawak Museum. The
Singapore cats with wideeyed, short-furred
in different postures were unveiled at a
simple  handing-over ceremony in - the
Sarawak Museum by the then Permanent
Secretary of Ministry of Social Development,

Crvie Centre,
Kuching,



Datuk  Haji Taha Ariffin.
During the acceptance speech
of the Singapore cats, Datuk
Taha Ariffin wished that
the cat museum could enter
the Guiness Book of Records
as the first muscum of its kind
in the world.

The muscum-quality,
hand-painted  Singapore
cats an - important
contribution to Sarawak's
Cat Gallery which houses
what s possibly the biggest
collection of cat figurines,
illustrations, literature and
even ummified Egyptian
cat. The Cat Gallery which was an extension
of the Sarawak Museum and it temporarily
housed in Tun Abdul Razak Building. It had
a total of 1,632 items of cats related exhibits
collected throughout the world and the
whole collection was acquired at a cost of
RM350,000.00.
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A Cat Muscum is established on the
ground floor of Kuching North City Hall
Building at Bukit Siol, Petra Jaya, Kuching
since 1993, It has a reference library and an
audiovisual room where movies and video
tapes on the cat family are shown. It has
four galleries which hold various collections
of catartifacts. There are also live cat shows
held wice yearly for cat lovers and tourists.

XI. LARGER KUCHING CITY

In November 1991, when the Dewan
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Undangan Negeri Sarawak unanimously
passed the Kuching City and Kuching Rural
District Council (Alternation of Boundaries)
Bill, the area of Kuching City has increased
tremendously. The area under Kuching City
North has increased from 53 square
kilometres to 481.01 square kilometres and
the area under Kuching City South from
16 square kilometres o 77.53 square
kilometres.

Kuching City has grown bigger literally
since attaining the city status in 1988, The
wisdom of the YAB Chief Minister of
Sarawak, Datuk Patinggi Tan Sri (Dr.) Haji
Abdul Taib bin Mahmud in dividing the City
under two administrations  becomes
apparent and in line with his policy on
“Politics of Development”. With an addition
of 439.54 square kilometres, Kuching City
has an area of 508.54 square kilometres, By

Khoo Hun
Yeang Street,
Kuching.



having two administrations, it
is possible 1o extend the
municipal service of the city
administrations to the formerly
sub-urbans such as Santubong,
Bako, buan, Stampin and
Airport  areas.  With  the
simultancous  updating  of
facilities of these areas, the
City as a whole will be more
complete with more  public
amenities so that more  people
will get the benefit.  The
Kuching City North
Commission Building costing
RM60 million was declared
open on 30.8.1993 whereas the
Kuching South City Council
costing RM55  million  w:
declared open on 15.3.1996.

XIL. PRESENT DAY
KUCHING

Kuching once a visual
history book and a modern
metropolis.  Relies like Fort
gherit. rawak Museum,
Square Tower and Astana are
crete  testaments of ity
colourful history.  Standing
cheek by jowl with these relics
are imposing structures which
boast of modern architecture.  This mixture
of the old and new has increasingly endeared
the city to tourists. In 1991 census, Kuching
District had a population of 368,386.
However, based on the Mid-Year Population
Estimate 1999, the population of Kuching

District had inereased o 460,200. Kuching
District. has two sub-districts known as
Siburan Sub-district and Padawan  Sub-
District which has a population of 35,094 and
11,667 respectively based on 1991 Census.
Siburan Town which is 28 kilometres from

The Building
of Dewan
Bandar
Kuching
Selatan
(Kuching City
South).

The Building
of Dewan
Bandar
Kuching
Utara
(Kuching City
North).




Federal
Complex,
Jalan Simpang
Tiga,

RKuching.

20-storey
Chonglin
Condominium
building at
Jalan Green,
Kuching.
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Kuching consists of 165
shophouses (66 units in
Siburan Old Township, 57
units in Siburan New
Township and 42 units in
man Duranda). The
headquarters of Padawan
Sub-District is Tang Bukap
Bazaar which is 54
kilometres from Kuching
and it has 5 units of
double-storey  wooden
shophouses.

Tourism has recently
gained increasing
recognition as contributing
towards the economic development of the
state.  Kuching is enjoying a share of the
tourist dollar, encouraged by the presence of
an international airport. Malaysia Airlines
(MAS) operates a total of about 40 direct and
indirect services weekly between Kuching
and Kuala Lumpur.  There are also direct
flights to Singapore, the Philippines, Hong
Kong, China, Japan, Korea, Indonesia and
Brunei. Besides, its importance as a gateway
to the rest of the state, Kuching is also the
gateway to nearby tourist attractions such as
the Bako National Park, Damai Beach
Resort, Cultural Village and Santubong
historical sites, The Culture Village is a micro
image of Sarawak. It features some of the
cthnic groups living in their native
surroundings and buildings, as well as
demonstrates their life style and handicrafts.
It is especially designed for those who are
unable to travel into the interior to see for
themselves the various ethnic cultures. The




Merdrka
Hotel is built
in the old
Aurora
Hotel's site.

village offers a glimpse of the complexity of It is a dazzling blend of people (currenty
Sarawak culture. numbering more than 400.000) and culture.
With vast improvement in transport, the

In Ruching itself, visitors can enjoy a people have become more mobile. Many have

leisurely walk to the historical buildings;
visit the Sarawak Museum which i al city in search of better prospects. The
house of local history and culture; result is a colourful congregation of people -
Tuxury of modern hotels; savour local fares Malay, Melanau, Iban, Bidayuh, Orang Uly,
at the numerous stalls and restaurants or Chinese, Indian and others - who brought with
buy arts and craft items from various parts of them their unique lifestyles and culture to the
the state. city. The city provides a ready market for some
of these locally grown and manufactured

The city is a microcosm of Sarawak in products. Others are exported through Tanah
terms of its population make-up and culture. Puteh Port and Sim Kheng Hong Port. The

mig
capi

ated from various parts of the state to the
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city’s commercial and industrial activities are
further supported by a system of financial
institutions.  Currently, it has about 40
commercial banks and finance houses, of which
6 have international affiliations.

As the capital of Sarawak, Kuching is the
seat of the State Government.  Most of the
administrative institutions are found here. |
State Se i, Wisma Bapa Malaysia houses
the State d some government
agencies. Beside lh( State
Dewan Undangan Negri, which is the venue for
parliamentary sessions for the elected
Assembly,  Wisma  Sumber  Alam,
Headquarters, Menara Pelita Building, RM5
million State Library Park, Kuching High Loun
Building and Normah Specialist Medical Centre.
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In 1983 the first stage of Stadium Negeri,
situated at Petra Jaya, was constructed at a cost of
RM4.6 million. In 1989, it was reconstructed at
acostof RM11.2 million. In 1991, the third stage
which added an exia block to the existing
stadium at a cost of RM6.8 million. The total
cost for the construction of Stadium Negeri was
RM22.6 million. In 1988, the State Civic Centre
and the Indoor Stadium (Stadium Perpaduan)
costing RM22 million were constructed ‘\nd
opened to b f the public in conj
with Kuching City Day and State Silver Jubilee
celebration.

In 1997, in conjunction with the holding
of World Youth Football Cup competition, a
world standard outdoor stadium known as
Sarawak Stadium  costing more than RM120

Wisma Bapa
Malaysia,
Dewan
Undangan
Negeri
(Legislature)
at the vight
and Lapau
(Ceremonial
Hall) in the
Joreground,
Petra Jaya,
Kuching.



Bangunan
Gateway
Kuching - the
highest
building in
Kuching

City

million was built in Petra Ja
was declared open on 17
landmarks  obviously give ¢
Kuching's skyline and enhance its image as a
modern city. In order to reduce the heavy traffic
flow, Satok Flyover costing RM27.4 million was
completed and declared open on 17.4.19 nd
later, Simpang Tiga Flyover also opens to the
public. The vital link in Kuching City's expansion
chain was the completion of Sungai Sarawak
Regulations Scheme (SSRS) costing RM150
million. The SSRS includes the barrage, Bako
causeway and a fourlane road linking Pending
and Sijingkat as well as the installation of a
Telemetry System.  The systems form another

Kuching and it
997, These
I [

important link to the industrial estate and for the
expansion of residential and business centres in
Kuching City. It was declared open by the Prime
Minister of Malaysia, Dato Seri Dr. Mahathir
Mohammad on 27.8.1998. In order to solve
parking problem in the City, the RM7.4 million
Saujana Carpark and the RM19.5 million Taman
Kereta in Kuching were constructed and opened
to the public on 15.3.1991 and on 23.10.1994
respectively. The highest building in Kuching
City, known ais Gateway Kuching, is situated along
Jalan Mata Kuching. The RM55 million building
which consists of 44 units of aparunent and 24
floors of offic ces is still under construction.
Itis expected to be completed in late 2000.

However, unlike some cities which have
become mere concrete jungles, Kuching still has
plenty of wide open spaces and greens.  The
authority has made increasing efforts to m it
into a garden city. Trees, shrubs and flowers line
all the major roads and decorate the round-
abouts.  Cleanliness campaigns are constantly
carried out 10 keep eateries and other public
premises clean and tidy. On 11.7.1999, the Chief
Minister of Saray YAB Datuk Patinggi Tan Sri
(D) Haji Abdul Taib Mahmud declared open
the RM4 million Stutong Forest Park which he
renamed as Sama Jaya Forest Park in Kuching.
The main purpose is to conserve the forest
resources with an arca of 43 acres within Kuching
City for the urban people the enjoy the rich
greenery at their convenience. The Timber
Museum, the Forest Biology Museum and the
Bamboo Museum are all located within the park.
Other facilities available at the park include
Friendship tracks, a reflexology path, natural
trails, cycle and jogging tracks, an Enthno -
Botanical Garden ete.




Kuching’s warm climate is perfect for
indulging in all sorts of sports. There are clubs
offering their members a wide range of
recreational facilities. One of the oldest of these:
is the Sarawak Club, which has a swimming pool,
tennis and squash courts, and indoor game
facilitics. The Sarawak Golf Club at Petra Jaya
has a restaurant, an 18-hole golf course,
snookerium, tennis courts and soon to be
completed - an Olympic size swimming pool,
and tennis and badminton courts.

Kuching can certainly be considered as
one of the most pleasant cities in this part of the
world to visit or to reside in. It offers .xdcqu.lu.
facilities for both business and

beautifully landscaped and dotted with

wooden benches, food stalls, restaurants

and entertainment facilities. A number
of older buildings have been preserved
and incorporated into the design,
including the Chinese History Museum,
the Sarawak Steamship Building, an
open-air theatre and the Square Tower.
Modern additions to the Waterfront
include a restored Chinese pavilion, an
observation tower, a tea terrace and the
spectacular musical fountains, as well as
a number of modern sculptures. During
the daylimc. the Waterfront offers
cxcr.llcnl views of the Astana, Fort

without the congestion and rat race lifestyle of
some cities. Around Kuching City, there are a
lot of auractions which reflect the culture,
history and natural environments of the state.
Evidence of Brooke and Colonial times till
be seen in Sarawak both in the old b

herita and the Malay Kampungs
which line along the north bank of the
river, but at night the waterfront really
comes alive.

Nauw culluml pcrfomnnces are being
the

such as the Court House, Astana, Forts and
Museum.

(1) Kuching Waterfront
To glimpse Sarawak’s rich culwre,
Kuching Waterfront s the centre. Costing
RM89 millions, it has transformed the
n\v:rb.mL into a modern functional and
centre comparable to that of the
RucL\ in Sydney, Australia.

Kuching ~ Waterfront, a  major
restoration  and land  reclamation
project, has become the most popular
in the city. Drab
warchouses have been replaced with an
almost 900 metres long esplanade,

2)

found in bulklmg‘ architecture, craft
stores, local cuisine in restaurants and
hawker carts, slated murals and
sculptures, even on the bows of small
Malay Sampan boats which ferry people
across the historic  Sarawak River.
Indeed, the Waterfront has truly become
the “People’s Park” for not only the locals
but also the tourists as well,

Main Bazaar

Main Bazaar, opposite the Waterfront, is
the oldest street in - the city and the heart
of old Kuching dated back to 1864. It has
some superb examples of Chinese
shophouse architecture, many of which
have been occupied by the same family




Old State
Mosque,
Kuching,
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punsue traditional occupations such as
tinsmithing, carpentry and petty trading.
Kuching’s highest concentration  of
antique and handicraft shops are to be
found there, and shoppers can rest
between bargaining sessions in a number
of old-fashioned coffee shops  with
panelled walls and marbletopped tables.

Tuapekong Temple, Kuching

The omately decorated  Tuapekong
Temple is located on Jalan Tunku Abdul
Rahman, opposite the Waterfront, and
it is the oldest Chinese temple in
Ruching. It is believed to have been
built in 1843, although official records
show its existence in 1876,

(5,

Kuching Mosque

Kuching Mosque, previously the State
Mosque was built in 1968, at the cost of
RM1 million and its gilded cupolas make it
one of the city’s most striking kandmarks,
particularly at sunset. The site originally
housed an old wooden mosque built in
1852, The new State Mosque is situated
across Sungai at Petra Jaya, Itisa
striking design, featuring a single cupola
and Italian marble interior detailing.

Civic Centre (Dewan Suarah Kuching)

The viewing platform which is 74
metres high at the top of the futuristic
Civic Centre tower offers the  best all-
round views of Kuching and the
surrounding area.  The city and its




(6)

hinterland, Mount  Serapi, Mount

bong and even the ins of
Kalimantan are visible on a clear day.
There is a restaurant, canteen and pub-
cunrkaraoke one floor down. The Civic
Centre  complex  also houses  a
Planetarium, a Public Library and a big
meeting hall which can accommodate
about 1,000 people. The Centre was
declared open on 4.9.1988.

Astana

The Astana, the imposing palace on the
north bank of Sarawak River was built in
1870 by Sir arles Brooke, the

bridal gift to his wife Ranee Margaret.
It is actually three separate buildings

(7)

fused into one, with each connected by
the other by short and narrow passage
ways. It has undergone substantial
alterations and renovations. Today itis
the official residence of the Yang
Dipertua Negeri, the Governor of
Sarawak.

Fort Margherita

The Fort was built in 1879 to guard
Kuching's river approaches from pirates.
Named after Charles Brooke's wife, Rance
Margaret, it is an extremely attractive and
interesting building. The Fort houses a
Police Museum, with fascinating exhibits
of Brooke militaria, weapons captured
during the communist insurgency and
the famous “laughing skulls.”

Astana - the
official
residence of
TYT Yang



Fort
Margherita,
Kuching
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Square Tower
Built in 1879 as a detention camp, the
tower was converted into - a fortress. It

never fired a shot in any unlike its

wooden predecessor which was burnt
down by the Chinese  Anti-Rajah
Movement from Bau in the 185
Nowadays it houses a  multimedi
information centre and video  theatre,

providing information and documentar
on Sarawak's tourist attractions.

Court House

The Court House complex was built
in 1874 as the seat of Sarawak’s
governn and was used until 1973.
It is a superb collection of buildings,
with gnificent Belian (ivonwood)
roofs and beawtiful detailing inside as
well as outside, reflecting local art
forms. The colonial-baroque Clock

(10)

Tower was added in 1883
and  the Charles Brooke
Memorial in 1924, The
complex also includes The
pavilion Building - a piece
of old New Orlcans
transplanted  to Kuchiy
builtin 1909 and used for
many as the General
Hospital untl 19 The
Round Tower, originally
anned as a fort (1886)
er fully completed.
It was used as a dispensary
for awhile and laterit  was
Labour

g

used by the
Department until 1980, The whole
area  is  currently  undergoing
redevelopment. The original buildings
and used for art

will be restored
galleries, cultural exhibits, ete.

Historical Museum
a) Sarawak Museum

The idea of creating a museum to
hold Sarawak’s relics was first mooted
by Sir Charles Brooke, the second
White Rajah of Sarawak. Later, the
man who influenced him to build a
red

permanent museum was Mr.
Russel Wallac i
Sarawak for two years conducting a
research on the evolution of man
based on the Orang Utan of Bomeo.
Straddling both sides of Jalan Tun
Abang Haji Openg, the Museum is
one of the best museums in Southeast




RM70 million
Wisma
Seberkas along
Jalan Tun
Abang Haji
Openg,
Kuching.

SR
Asia. The old wing, opened in 1888,
is designed in the syle of a
Normandy town-house. The
building was later renovated 1o its
present form in 1911, It houses an
exceptional ethnographic collection,
some good natural history displays
and a section on the oil industry
in Sarawak. The exhibition of
traditional wood-carvings s
magnificent.  The new wing has
more  ethnographic  exhibits,
splendid  Chinese ceramics and
furniture, an art gallery, a section on
Sarawak's  history, and some
excellent archacological exhibits,
including a reconstruction of the
carly human setlements at Niah

Caves. In the Muscum grounds there
is an Aquarium, the Botanical
Gardens and the Heroes’ Memorial,
built to commemorate the deads of
World War Two, the Communist
Insurgenc and Confrontation with
Indonesia as well as the Heroes of
Sarawak.

Sarawak Islamic Museum

The Islamic Muscum, near the
Sarawak Museum is the first of
its kind in South-East Asia. Ithas 7
galleries exclusively devoted to the
exhibits of architecture, coinage,
weaponry, textile, pottery, porcelains
and other artefacts of Islamic origin.

Clock Tower
and Brooke's
Memorial
Monument,
Kuching,



It was declared open by
the  Chief  Minister of
Sarawak  YAB  Dawk
Patinggi Tan Sri (Dr) Haji
Mahmud
The huge
on of artefacts from
ASEAN  countries  and
other  Islamic nations
provides a source of rich
information to those who
wish 0 trace  the
development of Islam in
the Malay  Archipelago
and its connection with
the development of Islum
in other countries, such as India,
China, Persia and the Arab state.

Itis located at Jalan P. Ramlee in the
beautifully  restored  Maderasah
Melayu Building (1930). It is also
accessible  from  the  Sarawak
Museum’s new wing. The sk

Muscum presents a clear picture of
the rich historical heritage and
special - culire of the Muslim
community in Sarawak  and
hrough the Malay-l i
archipelago, and traces connections
with the  development of Islam in
the rest of the World.

Chinese History Museum

Originally built as a court house for
the Chinese community in Kuching
in 1912, the building was taken
over by the Chinese Chamber of
Commerce in 1930, Since 1993, it

Sarawak
Museum.

New state
mosque. Petra

Jaya.
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e

has tumed into the Chinese History
Museum.  This Museum is housed
at the old building belonging to
Kuching Chinese  Chamber  of
Commerce  Association  on  the
Wi opposite the Th

temple. It traces the history of the
Chinese community in Sarawak.
Exhibits include the early trade
routes, initial migration from various
regions of China, geographical
distribution, the carly pioneers,
traditional trading activities, the

ion of trade and o i

associations, political history and
the involvement of the Chinese
community in modern, multi-racial
Sarawak. It was declared open on
23.10.1993 by the then Assistant
Minister for Culture Youth and Sport
Y.B. Encik Alfred Yap Chin Loi.

Cat Museum

The World's first Cat Museum,
devoted to all things feline, is in
Petra Jaya in the office complex of
Kuching City North Council and it
was declared open on 6.11.1993. Cat
lovers will find a range of exhibits,
photos, feline art and cat souvenirs.
It has a towl of 1,632 items of
cats  related  exhibits  collected
throughout the world and they are
being displayed in four galleries.
The whole collection was acquired at
a cost of RM350,000.00.

Timber Museum
It is situated in the Sarawak Timber

8

Industry  Development  Council
Building (Wisma Sumber Alam) in
Petra Jaya, Kuching. Those who have
the interest in forestry, wood items,
forest products and the development
of timber industry should visit the
museum.

Police Museum

It is housed in Fort Margherita built
in 1879. There are many old
cannons, cannon balls, guns, pistols,
swords and other restiges of its
artillery are being displayed there.
The armoury still exists as does the
condemned prisoner’s cell. Besides,
it has a display of old police weapons,
reconstructed opium dens, scenes of
hanging and other forms of criminal
punishment.  The Police Museum
was established on 31.8.1971.

Living Museum

The Santubong Peninsula is located
at the West Mouth of the Sarawak
River. . At its northemn tip, Mount
Santubong (810 metres high) rises
majestically from the sea. The area
has been settled since ancient times,
and was once a major trading centre.
Nowadays the Peninsula, particularly
Damai, is a popular beach resortarea
and a good base for discovering the
charms of Southwest Sarawak. Al
manner of attractions are here;
sleepy fishing villages, primary
rainforests, superh scafood
restaurants, an  Amold Palmer-



Timber
Museum.

The Culture
Villagr,
Damai.

Chinese
History
Museum.
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designed golf course, a “living
museum” and luxury beach
resorts.

Sarawak Cultural Village: “See
Sarawak in Half a Day” is the claim
made by Sarawak Cultural Village,
a unique award-winning living
museum  offering an  excellent
introduction to local cultures and
lifestyles.  Popularly known as the
Living Museum, the Sarawak
Cultural Village is a showcase for
Sarawak’s rich cultural diversity.
Visitors to the Village can sample
Sarawak all in one single place.
The Cultural Village, built on a
seven  hectares  site  at  the
foothill of the legendary Mount
Santubong, is 35 kilometres from
Kuching City and is a stone’s throw
from Damai Holiday Inn, a beach
resort.

The Cultural Village is quaintly
landscaped with a manmade lake
at the centre surrounded by 7
authentic  replicas of  ethnic
houses: the Bidayuh cultural
house and longhouse, the Iban
longhouse, the Penan hut, the
Orang  Ulu longhouse, the
Melanau Rumah Tinggi, the Malay
house and the Chinese farmhouse.
Displayed in each house are many
artefacts made by the individual
dwellers. Demonstration of arts
and crafts like beadworks, wood

and bamboo carvings, pua weaving
and straw weaving can be seen
while touring the Village.

The rich cultural heritage in the
form of dances and music
presented by various ethnic groups
is one of the highlights of the visit.
The grand cultural show which
lasts about one hour is performed
in the Village theatrette.




(11) Sunday Market

2

“Pasar

Kuching City’s Sunday
Minggu” is, as its name implies, held every
Sunday although the market activities
start as carly as Saturday afternoon. This is
perhaps the best place o meet the local
people since this is where the indigenous
groups bring out jungle fruits and
vegetables o sell to the city folks.

“The Sunday Market, which actually starts at
1.00 p.m. on Saturday aftemoon, is held at
Jalan Satok. It is renowned for the Ihans
and the Bidayuhs who set up temporary
stalls here selling fruits and vegetables, but
there are also many good Chinese and
Malay salls.  Goods on offer include
handicrafts, forest produce (including
delicious wild honey), meat, pets of all
descriptions, orchid plants, live fish, and a
whole range of local snacks and delicacies.
The market is a must for weekend visitors,
as it is very colourful and teeming with
shoppers.

National Parks

There are a number of national parks near
to Kuching City. The famous Bako
National Park gazetted in 1957 is situated
at the northern tip of Muara Tebas
Peninsula covering an area of 2,728
hectares. It is the home of the rare
probosics monkeys, wild boars, squirrels
and monitor lizards.  The park is 37
kilometres from Kuching,

Kubah National Park covering an arca of
2,230 hectares is accessible from Kuching

13)

within one hour drive along Matang
Road. It is the home of bearded pig,
mouse deer, black hombill and reptiles.
Besides, it has onc of the widest selections
of palm and orchids in Bomeo. Gazetted
as a National Park in 1989, Kubah
National Park is 20 kilometres west of
Kuching.

Borneo Highlands Resort

The Resort which covers 5,000 acres on
the 1,000-metre Penrissen Highland
Platcau about 70 kilometres from
g will be fully completed after
2005, The 1ol cost of the project,
estimated at RM500 million, is a joint -
venture  project  between  Country
Heights Holding Bhd and the Sarawak
Land Custody and Development
Authority (LCDA). The first phrase
costing about RM100 million which
consists of an 18-hole golf course, a golf
hotel, visitor chalets, tropical gardens,
residentical  bungalows  and  other
supporting infrastructures was
completed at the end of 1999. The RM53
million 20.5 kilometre Bomeo Heights
Road was declared open for public use
on 26.11.1999.

XIII) LUNDU DISTRICT

]

Lundu in General

Lundu is a district of Kuching Division
and it is situated at the western part of
Sarawak. The district has an area of 1,812
square kilometres. Tt has one sub-district




called Sematan which is 24
kilometres from  Lundu.
Sematan Bazaar has 16
wooden and 14 concrete
shophouses.  According 10 a
Selakau story  “Lundu” was
actually the name of a small
group of people known as
“Undu” who stayed around
Lundu arca long long ago.
Due to small in number
and intermarried with the
Sclakau, the race was no
more in existence but the
name “Undu” and later it was
pronounced as  “Lundu”
remains until today. “Lundu”
is also the name of a local
riverine fish found in the area
and its scientific name is
Macrones Guilo. The symbols
of Lundu Town are Orchid
Normah and Rafflesia Flower.

Based on 1991 census the district had
a population of 24,599, the majority
of them are the Selakau, Bidayuh
followed by the Malay, the Chinese and
the Iban. However, according to the
Mid-Year Population Estimate 1999,
Lundu District had a population of
29,100,

Lundu Town

Lundu Town was first established
in 1860s along Batang Kayan.
Some Chinese Hakka immigrants from
alimantan Indonesia and
Chinese Teochew came direct from

China to settle down in Lundu. The
Chinese Temple in the town was built
in 1890. In 1930, Chinese Primary
School was established in Lundu, In
those days, like other bazaars in
Sarawak, the shophouses were made
of wood and Autap roof. On 3,12.1949,
the whole bazaar was gutted by fire.
Today, there are 49 doublestorey
wooden shophouses, 6 doublestorey
concrete shophouses and 16 three-
storey concrete shophouses totalling
o 71 shophouses in Lundu Town.
There is one private clinic and one
commercial bank in the town.
Besides, Gading Hawkers' Centre, Wet
and Dry Market are built by

District
Office eum
Community
Hall
Lundu.

Lundu
Town

Square.



Artifact of
Onchid
Normah.

Lundu District Council in the town.
The old District Office built in 1952 is
given to FELCRA as its office in Lundu
and the new District Office cum

Community Hall was officially
declared open on 21.8.1996.  Lundu
is accessible by sea and by land. On
6.10.1968, the construction of 82-
kilometre  Bau/Lundu  Road  was
completed and opened to raffic.

Lundu Development

From 1958 to 1965, about 1.52 million
tonnes  of washed bauxite were
produced at Sematan. Lundu is the
only district which has a silk worm
farm producing silk products for local
and oversca markets.  Besides, the
district is also producing palm oil, sca

Rafflesia
Flower.

food, timber and other agricultural
produce. A youth camp known as Kem
Belia Puch is the first youth camp in
Sarawak built at Pueh, Lundu in 1991
Since then, thousands of youth from
various agencies have been trained in the
camp. A district sport complex costing
RM6 million was also constructed in
Lundu. At the moment, we have to cross
Batang Kayan by a ferry before we reach
Lundu Town. By 2001, upon completion
of RM17.3 million 415-metre long Batang
Kayan Bridge, Lundu will be more
accessible by road from Kuching.

Up to June 1999, wwelve estate
arcas totalling to more than 13,000
hectares  were  planted  with  oil
palms by FELCRA, SALCRA, LCDA,
FELDA and 3 other companies at

Artifact of




Sempadi, Bokah, Sebako, Kandaie,
and Tamang areas in Lundu
District. In 1997, the total
production of oil palm was more
than 145,000 metric tonnes. These
oil palm estates have created
numerous employments for the
local people there.

Lundu has two national parks
namely Tanjung Daw National
Park covering an arca of 1,379
hectares and  Gunung  Gading
National Park covering an area of
4,106 hectares which are gazetted
in 1994 and 1983 respectively.
Tanjung Datu National Park is the
park where the mountains meet
the sea with crystal clear rivers and
wildlife abound. Gunung Gading
National Park is the place where
the largest flower in the world, the
spectacular Rafflesia Tuanmudae or
Bunga Pakma could be found.
Satang Island and Talang-Talang
Islands are the small islands off the
coast of Lundu where turtles from
all over the world come and lay
cggs. Samunsan Wildlife Sanctuary
is also situated within Lundu
District.

Lundu and its sub-district Sematan
are the local favourite tourist
centres where hundreds of local
tourists come and spend their
weekends with the families to

enjoy the natural and clean
beaches, the best of which are
Pandan and Siar in Lundu and
Puch in Sematan.

(XIV) BAU DISTRICT

1) Bauin General

The district which is about 35
kilometres from Kuching has an
area of 884.40 square kilometres
and based on 1991 census it had a
population of 36,526 people. The
majority of them are the Bidayuhs

. The
X RM145,000/-

Landmark of
Bau - The
natural
heritage and
legacy of gold
mining unique
to Bau are
strikingly
depicted in this
yecently evected.

monument.



followed by the Chinese and the
Malays, However, according to the
Mid-Year Population Estimate
1999, Bau district  had  a
ion of 42,800. The symbol
1is the rock structure which
consists  of 3 human figure
sculptures depicting the history of
goldmining in the district together
with artifacts of Orchid Normah
and the carnivorous pitcher plants.

2) The Origin of the name of Bau

Bau which is another district of
Kuching Division was established
in 1820 and, hence, itis seven years
older than Kuching City which was
founded in 1827. The old name of
Bau district was “Upper Sarawak”
whereas the old name of Bau Town
was “Mau San” or “Bukit Mau™. In
Chinese Hakka, “Mau San™ means

The author
(on the left)
and M. Tan
Hock Hee,
the Public
Liarson
Manager,
Bukit Young
Gold Mine at
the bottom of
Tasik Biru
Bau on
25.8.199M.




“Hat's  Mountain”
because  Gunung
Krian looks like a hat.
European  authors
during the Brooke
Regime pronounced
“Bau" as “Bow”. “Bau”
in Bahasa Malaysia
means “smelly”.
Actually the word
“Bau” is not “smelly”
because it derived
from the word “\
(which means hat in
Chinese Hakka) butit
was wrongly
pronouned as “Bau”
by  the  Brooke
Regime in the olden
days until today.

From the

untl recently, Bau was
famous for its rich
mineral TESOUrces.
Based on the Annual
Reports of Geological
Survey Department for
the year 1980 1o 1996,
Bau had produced
21,598 flasks (76 Ibs
per flask) of mercury
from the early 19th century up to
1898 and 90,000 tonnes of high
grade antimony from ecarly 19th
century until the closure of Paku
Kong Mine in 1985. The total
production of gold in Bau since the

carly 19th century until the closure of
gold mines in 1996 was 44.7 tonnes of
which nearly 184 tonnes of gold
from the famous Tai Parit Lake
(T.mk Biru) deposit. Hence, the nick
name of Bau is Gold Town.




Bau has produced two heroes in the
past, namely:-

a)  LiuShanbang, the Chinese Hero
who refused 0 be ruled by the
White Rajah. He was the leader
of Twelve Kongsi operating
mining activity in Bau. He
became the de facto Rajah of
Sarawak for 5 days from
19.2.1857 10 23.2.1857. He was
killed by the Brooke's force at
Jugan, Sinawan on 24.2.1857.

b

Datu Patinggi Ali, the Malay
Hero who refused to be ruled by
the Brunei Authority. He was the
founder of the second Capital of
Sarawak at Lidah Tanah, Bau in
the early 19th century. When the
Governor from Brunei, Pengiran
Indera Mahkota forced the
Malay and the Land Dayak
(Bidayuh) to extract antimony
like slaves in Bau, he led an Anti-
Brunci force against the Brunei
Authority in 1835, However, he
submitted o James  Brooke in
1840 on the condition that the
Brunei Chief returned to Brunei,

Both Liu Shanbang and Datu
Patinggi Ali were declared as the
heroes of Sarawak by the State
Government of Sarawak on
27.7.1998. Their relief figures
were protrayed on the plagues
around the base of the Heroes'
Monument at Museum Garden,
Kuching.

4) Bau Town

Bau Town suffered four big fire in
the past. The first big fire occurred at
Bau Lama (Mau San) on 25.12.1857
when all the  buildings of the
setlement were burned down by the
Rajah  Brooke's force against the
Chinese Anti-Rajah Movement who
stayed there. The second big fire
occurred at Bau Town on 3.12.1909
in which all the shophouses along

Jalan Ong Guan Cheng were

completely bumned to the ground.
The loss was estimated at $50,000/-.
The third big fire happened on
9.1.1942. It was during the Japanese
Occupation, looters from the gold
mines and rubber tppers from
Dahan Estate set fire to Bau Town
for the purpose of looting. The
fourth big fire ok place on
24.9.1978 at 330 am. All the 69
shophouses along Jalan Datuk Salau
tumed into ashes by 5.00 am. that
morning. About 900 people were
made homeless. The present Bau
Town was rebuilt in October, 1982,

v famous caves
namely Fairy Cave, Wind Cave and
Ghost Cave. At the side of Fairy
Cave, asection has been tumed into
Batman Wall at the cost of RM
700,000/ for rock climbing activity.
Especially during weekends, people
from the district itself and the
surrounding areas as well as urists
go to the cave areas for picnic, cave
climbing and swimming. Besides

—_—



producing minerals and a tourist
destination, Bau is also producing
palm oil, rubber, pepper, bird nests
and other agricultural produces. A
housing project consisting of 583
Rumah Rakyat, 110 units of double -
storey medium cost terrace house, 27
units of shophouses is to be built at
Jalan Jambusan, Bau. The project
was launched by the Minister for
Housing, Y.B. Dato Celestine Ujang
on 14.8.1998. This project will
certainly solve some of the problems
on shortage of housing in the district.
The whole project upon completion
will cost in the region of RM8.8

million. Tasik Biru, the famous blue lake
where tonnes of gold had produced
ceased production in 1996. Anyway, it
was restored as a prime tourist spot at
the cost of RM500,000/- contributed by
Gladioli Enterprises Sdn. Bhd. for Bau
District on 31. 8. 1999, According to
Encik Rodger Ling, the Manager of the
Bukit Young Gold Mining Company, the
lake surface has been expanded 0 19
acres from the previous 15 acres and the
deepest point is 300 feet as compared to
200 feet in 1982, According to the
Minister for Tourism, Y.B. Dato Dr.

James Masing, another RM2 million will

be made available to extend the existing

Old Bau
Bazaar in
1907. The
background
is Bukit
Seringgok.
The Chinese
at the ground
was still
kecpring the
pig-tail.
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canteen, 10 restore
the bridge across the
lake and to provide
other basic facilities to
the scenic
then Tasik Biru will
become  a  more
attractive and popular

tourist centre,

According  to  a
survey conducted in
February 1999, there
are 175 units  of
shophouses in  Bau
Town. The details are
as follows:-

Type of shophouses

1)

o

4

Doublestorey concrete
along Jalan Datuk Salau

Doublestorey wooden shophouses
along Jalan Ong Guan Cheng
Doublestorey concrete shophouses
along Jalan Ong Guan Cheng/
Jalan Krokong

Doublestorey concrete shophouses
along Jalan Penghulu Durin
Doublestorey concrete shophouses
along Bau/Kuching Road

Doublestorey including one single
storey concrete shophouses along
Jalan Tukang Besi

Total:

Besides the shophouses, Bau District
Council has built RM350,000.00 Mult-
purpose Hawker's  Centre in 1998 and it
was renovated in 1999 at the cost of
RM160,000/-, another RM2 million
Hawker Cenure in 1994, once integrated
market which was also renovated at the cost
of RM200,000/- and RM618,000/- Bukit
Mas Food Court to provide a venue for the
hawkers and petty traders to do their
business. It has one magnificent Civie
Centre with Bidayuh culture and design, a
mini sport complex, RM3.5 million indoor
stadium, three government secondary
schools, a  General  Hospital,  two
commercial banks, a theatre and several

housing estates in the district. On
L1986, the new temple building of
famous Bong Low Sian Tze which was first
brought over by the gold miners from
Sambas Indonesia in 1854 was completed
at the cost of RM700,000/-. This historical
temple not only provides a place of worship

Civic centre
Bau.




Datu Bandar Abang Haji
Mustapha bin Abang Haji Moasili.

for its followers but also it has
become a tourist attraction and
landmark of Bau Town.

XV. OUTSTANDING LEADERS IN
KUCHING DIVISION

Kuching Division, being the centre of the
government administration, political activities
and commercial trading is the home of many
outstanding figures in the State. Here are the
outstanding leaders in the Division:-

1) Tun Datu Abang Haji Openg bin
Abang Sapice was the first local
Governor of Sarawak from 16.9.1963
ill 28.3.1969. Part of Rock Road
from Pangkalan Bawi up to the
junction of Green Road, Baw
Lintang Road in Kuching and
another road in Sibu are named
after the first local Governor.

2) Datu Bandar Abang Haji Mustapha
bin Abang Haji Moasili (1906-1964)

3

Ong Exwe Hai.

was the first Chairman of Party Negara
Sarawak  (PANAS)  which  was
registered on 6.4.1960. In 1964, he was
appointed as Federal Minister without
Protfolio. A road and a gyratory in
Kuching are named after him.

Ong Ewe Hai who was born in China
in 1830 arrived in Kuching in 1846
He was among the first Chinese
Pioneers who was active in business
and shipping. He was appointed as
the Kapitan China by the Rajah. He
died in 1889, Astreetin Kuching was
named after him in 1886.

Ong Tiang Swee, the son of Ong Ewe
Hai, was born in Kuching in 1864 and
he died in 1950. He was the first
President of the Chinese Court and
was appointed as the Kapitan China as
well. A road in Kuching was named
after Ong Tiang Swee.



Ong Tiang Swer.

5) Tan Sri Dawk Amar Ong Kee Hui
who was born in Kuching in 1914 was
the first Chairman of Sarawak United
People’s Party (SUPP) registered
on 4.6.1959. He was the former
Federal  Minister  of  Science,
Technology and Environment until
he retired in 1982, Part of the Central
Road between Jalan Budaya and Jalan
“Tabuan in Kuching is renamed after
“Tan Sri Ong.

6) Tan Sri Datk Amar Stephen Yong
was the second Chairman of Sarawak
United People’s Party (SUPP), the
former State Deputy Chief Minister
of Sarawak and the former Federal

er of Science, Technology and

Environment. A road between Jalan

Bat Kawa and Jalan Batu Lintang in

Kuching is named after him.

7) Tan Sri Dawk Amar Sim Kheng
Hong from Party SUPP was the

Tan Sn Datuk Amar Ong Kee Hu.

8

9)

Tan Sri Datuk Amar Stephen Yong.

former State Deputy Chief Minister
of Sarawak and Minister for
Finance. A road in Kenyalang Park
and RM23 million Kuching Port
Extension at Pending, Kuching are
named after Tan S m. He died
in Kuching on 1.2.1992.

Datuk Abang Haji Abdulrahim bin
Abang Haji Moasili was the former
State Deputy Chief Minister of
Sarawak and the Minister for Local
Government from 17.6.1966 to
6.7.1970. A road in Kuching is
named after him.

Tan S Datk Amar Abang Ikhwan
Zaini was the former State Minister

for lLocal Government  from
24.9.1966 10 9.9.1974. A road in Kot
5 han and Dewan Masyarak
re named after him.

Asi




Tan S Datuk Amar Sim Kheng Hong. — Datuk Abang Haji Abdulrahim bin Tan $ti Datuk Amar Abang INkwan

Abang Haji Moasili. Zaini.

10) Dawk Teo Kui Seng

was the State Minister
for Natural Resources
from 181963 to
24.9.1966 and Minister
for Communication
and  Works  from
24.9.1966 1o 6.7.1970.

11) Datuk Chong Kuin
Kong from Batu Kawa
was the State Assistant
Minister for Youth,
Sport and  Culwre

from 9.9.1974 1o untl Datuk Teo Kui Seng. Datuk Chang Kuin Kong.

he passed away on

28.7. n Kenyalang Park 12) Datk Abang Othman bin Abang
and RM13.4 million Bat Kawa Haji Moasili was the former
Bridge are named after Datuk State Minister for Welfare, Youth
Chong. A community hall at Batu and Culture from 22.7.1963 to
Kawa Bazaar is also named after him. 23.9.1966.
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Datuk Abang Othman bin Abang Datuk Hajjah Hafsah binti
Haji Moasils Haji Harun

13) Dawk  Ajibah  binu

Abol was the former
Minister  for
from 7.7.1970

24.9.192:

1d died on
A road in
Kuching is named
after her.

14) Datk Hajjah Hafsah
binti Haji Harun was
the former Assistant
Minister and  State
Minister for Culure,
Youth and  Sports
from 1111976 10 19.:

VB Datuk Amar Dr. Haji Sulaiman VB Encik Yong Khoon Seng.
Bin Haji Daud,

1987,

15) Y.B. Datuk Amar Dr. Haji Sulaiman bin 16) Y.B. Encik Yong Khoon Seng who
Haji Daud who is the Member of is the Member of Parliament from
Parliament from Petra Jaya. He was Padawan is the Parliamentary
the Federal Minister of Agriculure Secretary for the Federal Ministry

until 9.12.1999. of Works.

98



i

Y Datuk Abang Hoji Abdul Rahman  V-B. Datin Paduka Hajah Sharifah Y.B. Datuk Ramsay Noel Jitam.
Johari Tun Datuk Abang Haji Openg. Mordiah binti Tuanku Haji Fasi.

Dawk  Abang
i Abdul Rahman
Johari  Tun  Datuk
Abang  Haji  Openg
who is the Council
Negri Member from
Satok is the State
Minister for Industry
Development.

18) Y.B. Datin  Paduka

Hajah arifah
Mordiah binti Tuanku
Haji Fawi who is

the  Council  Negri

Member of Pantai Damai from April
1987 onwards is the State Assistant
Minister for Welfare.

19) Y:B. Dawk Ramsay Noel Jitam is the
Council Negri Member of Tanjung
Datu, Lundu from April 1987 onwards.

Y.B. Encik Sim Kheng Hui

Encik Alfred Yap Chin Loi.

He is the State Assistant Minister for
Agriculture and Food Industry.

920) YB. Encik Sim Kheng Hui who is the
Council Negri Member from Pending is
the State Assistant Minister of Industry
Development from 1992 until today,



VB Dr. Abang Haji Abdul Rauf
Abang Hap Zan

bin

21)

Y.B. Encik Alfred Yap Chin Loi who
is the Council Negri Member from
Batu Kawa became State Assistant
Minister for Culture, Youth and
Sports on 10.9.1992 and  the State
Assistant. Minister in the Chief
Minister's Office on 2.1.1998 until
today.

22) YB. Dr. Abang Haji Abdul Rauf bin

23)

Zan who is the Council

v
the State Assistant Minister for
Housing from 2.1.1998 until today.

Tan Sri Datk William Tan was the

President of Kuching Municipal
Council from
former Speake
Sarawak from 1968 1o 197.

Tan Sn Datuk Willsam Tan

24)

Tan Sri

Tian Sn Datuk Abang Ahmad Urai
tin Daatu Hakim Abg. Hagi Mohudeen.

arca, Kuching is named
Datuk William Tan. He
Kuching  on

in Padungs

after Tan
passed  away in
6.12.1998.

Datuk Abang Ahmad
Urai bin Dam Hakim Abg Haji
Mohideen was a State Assistant
Minister of Culture, Youth and
11974 to 1985 and
the former Speaker of the House
of Senate, Malays

Sports from 9

25) Y.B. Dato Song Swee Guan from

Padungan is the Member of
Council Negri and a Member of
Parliament of Kuching.
appointed as the Speaker of
Council Negri Sarawak with effect
from 15.11.1996 until today.

He was




26) Encik Lo Foot Kee
from Kuching was
the State Assistant
Minister of Local
Government  from
9.9.1974 to

1979. He died

Kuching  on

20. 1. 1979 at the age

of

27) Dr. Patau Rubis was
clected as a Member

of Council Negri for
Tasik Biru in 1983 Y.B. Dato Sang Suve Guan. Encik Lo Foot Kee.
and a Member of
Parliament for Mas
Gading in  1986. He
was  appointed  as
the State  Assistant
Minister for
Infrastructure
Development  from
1987 o 1996, In
1996, Y.B Dri. Patau
Rubis formed Parti
Reformasi  Negeri
Sarawak (STAR).

28) Dato Abu 3
Bakar Haji  Dato Abang Abu Bakar Abang Dr. Patau Rubis,
Mustapha was  the Haji Mustapha.

Member of
Parliament from Kuala Raj He XVI. CONCLUSION

was the Speaker of Council Negri B
Sarawak from 1976 to 1981, He was Kuching is relatively a new city but it

ederal Minister of Defence shows the promise of a great metropolis.
wntil 9.12. wﬁ The present  State  Government s
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determined to make Kuching City a Garden
City in the year 2005. In actal fact,
Kuching has been transformed into a
beautiful urban centre  with  bed
landscaping, open green areas, well planned
as well as

commercial and residentia
ceful clean environment to live in.
ne of Kuching City is a blend
of minarets and domes, religious roofs and
colonial forts and  buildings,

highrise buildings set amidst a profusion of
greenery against the dramatic backdrop of
Santubong and Ma ins. Kuching
City was greatly honoured when the Federal
Minister of Health, Y.B. Dawk Chua Jui
Meng announced that Kuching City was
judged as a Healthy Living City by the World
Health Organisation in 1998,

The population of Kuching City does
not mind whether “Ruching™ means “cat”™ or
“Kuching River” or "Mata Kuching” fruit as
long as the name “Kuching” brings prosperity
d speedy development to the new born city.
From a small settlement which the Sulan of
Brunei gave to James Brooke 158 years ago,
Kuching has really grown from a village into a
city. Now with the ity status being conferred on
Kuching, itis up to the Government, the City
administrations and the people of i
general o develop it in order o fulfil the
requirements and qualities of a city. Nine years
after becoming a city, Kuching was declared as
one of the best cities to live in among the major
tals. Based on the survey conducted

by Asiaweck Magazine in November, 1997,
Kuching City ranked the 21st best city out of 40
selected cities in Asia.  In December, 1998, the
same Magazine conducted the similiar survey,
Kuching City improved its ranking and became
the 1th best city in Asia. Kuching was also rated
as the 3rd safest of the 40 Asian Cites polled
with 3.12 criminal cases per 10,000 people. The
poll also showed that there are 300 vehicles per
kilometre of the city's road systems and the dust
suspended particles in the air is 90 micrograms

per cubic metre.

The people of Sarawak call the cat with
various names but mostly with a strong hint of
the sound it makes. The Ibans call the cat
107, the

My “hinese name it as
Melanau “Ngau”, the Kenyah “Miew” whe
the local Malays call it *Pusa”™. However, in the
minds of the Sarawakians, it has become a
reality that “Kuching” is “cat” even though
“Kuching” may not mean “cat”™. Nevertheless,
the lovely and helpful animal - cat - is not only
a houschold pet among Malaysians but it has
become the symbol of Kuching City.

s

During the closing of Kuching Festival at
Kuching Waterfront on 3081998, YAB the
Chief Minister of Sarawak, Datuk Patinggi Tan
Sri (Dr) Haji Abdul Taib Mahmud said,
“Kuching City is poised to be the Culiural
Garden of Sara in the next millennium, a
model of racial harmony”™. Well, let us hope that
the vision of YAB the Chief Minister of Sarawak
to make Kuching City the Cultural Garden of
Sarawak will come true in the next millennium.




CHAPTER 6

SAMARAHAN DIVISION

Map of Samarahan Division
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Kota Samarahan - The Centre of Academic

Development
1. INTRODUCTION headquarters  at Kuching.  After  the
. - declaration of the new di Kuching
an Division, the 8th Division of  Djvision remains three disticts. Kot
s an arca of 4,962 square Samarahan (Muara Tuang) which was then
kilometres and based on 1991 Census, it had a sub-district headquarters was upgraded o
a population of 166959, The majority of the (e district as well as the  divisional

people are Malays, Bidayuhs, Chinese and headquarters of Samarahan Division on
llxmn,A 'In I‘N‘J based on the .\l.nl-\cur 1.1.1987. There are 485 Kampungs/
Population Estimate the population of longhouses/settlements with 24,884 families
Samarahan Division was 197,900, i Sarnarahas D

Prior to 1.1.1987, Samarahan was part Samarahan Division has three districts
of the then First Division with its and four sub-districts as follows:-

District Sub-district Population in 1991

1) Samarahan District 1) Sub-district 46,983
(Muara Tuang) (Nonok)

2)  Serian District 1 Tebedu Sub-district 73,293
(Upper Sadong)

3) Simunjan District 1) Sebuyau Sub-district 46,683
(Lower Sadong) ~ 2) Sadong Jaya (Pendam)

Sub-district

Total:




Artial view
of Kota
Samarahan

Samarahan Division has 26 towns/

bazaars name

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)
7)
8)
9)
10)
1
12)

an Town

marahan (Muara Tuang)
Simunjan Town

Panchor Bazaar

Baru Bazaar (27th Mile Bazaar)
Baki Bazaar (32nd Mile Bazaar)
Ta azaar (35th Mile Bazaar)
Ray
Tebakang Bazaar

Tebedu Bazaar
Pangkalan Tebang Bazaar
Mongkos Bazaar

=
=

Terbat Bazaar

Ringin Bazaar

Tambirat Bazaar

Sambir Bazaar

\lu).ul Bazaar

Asajaya Town (Nonok Bazaar)
Asajaya Laut Bazaar

Semera Bazaar

Jemukan Bazaar

Sadong Jaya Bazaar (Pendam Bazaar)
Sebangan Bazaar

Sebuyau Bazaar

Gedong Bazaar

Mutiara Town




sToalsd

Old Muara
Tuang Bazaar.

II. MUARA TUANG,

THE FORMER

NAME OF KOTA SAMARAHAN

1

General Information

Before Samarahan was upgrs
to a division, the former na
Kota  Samarahan  was  Muara
Tuang. Muara Tuang was only
sub-district of Kuching l)nn
and  there  was
Administrative

aded
¢ of

one
Officer
stationed there, Muara T
a small Kampung Baza
W
ang  Sub-district
constructed in 1933,
il

oden shophouses

was
The building
e of red (Clink
built) walls. During the Japanese
occupation, the building was used
as the Japanese administ
office and fortress. The sub-district
office is now being declared as one

of the Iusmrn.xl buildings by
the c vernment  of
Sarawak under the Sarawak
Cultural Heritage Ordinance,
1993.

A teacher by the name of Vun
Mui Lan was posted to SRK
in 1971, She

g was

ra Th

related how M
in the 1970s.

“Muara Tuang, in 1971, w;
very small isolated Kampung.
i was no road except

footpaths  leading 10 the
Kampung. The only means of
transportation was a motor launch,

operated by a Foochow group o
and fro Kuching/Muara Tuang/
Sun, Pinang/Kuching da It
took two hours for the launch to
travel from Pending Wharf to
reach Muara Tuang.

There were only five old wooden
shophouses on stilt in Muara
Tuang Bazaar, all operated by the
Chinese trade The population
around the Bazaar and Kampung
Muara Tuang was in the region of
0. A simple government primary
school was constructed at the back
ol the Baz to cater Muara
Tuang Kampung children. There
were a few bicveles being nidden
along the Kampung roads but
most people walked around on

foot.



There was a government
dispensary headed by a
Dresser to look after the
health of the people in
the sub-district.  There
was no maternity clinic yet.
There was a sub-district

office with an upriver
agent there. The District
Officer or Sarawak

Administrative Officer,
Kuching  occasionally
travelled o Mu:
for administrative we

sometimes  accomp:
some important  people
visiting  the  sub-district.
Howev there was an
Agriculture Station where
a few Agriculture staff were
stationed there, The small
handful of government
officers had  their own
longboats  or speed boats
to travel around the
sub-district. Life in  those
ays simple  and
aceful and people in the
and kampung were
very friendly

s were

Origin of the name of Muara Tuang
and Samarahan

How did Muara Tuang get her
name? An oral tradition revealed
that in the olden days the young
people in the Kampung were very
playful. Whenever they anted (o

3 r'l‘fg‘;_
'LOROD
.MUARA T

|KPG.ML
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take their bath, cach one tried to
pour the other with a bucket of
water but each one tried to avoid
being poured. As time passed, the
place where they used to pour
water slowly became a small stream
which flew into Batang Samarahan.
Hence, the place was known as
“Muara Tuang” (the river mouth for
pouring water). However, the State

Lowng No. 1
Kampung
Muara
Tuang,

Kota
Samarahan
Arch.



Government  of  Sarawak
officially renamed the place
from Muara Tuang to Kota
Samarahan on 1.1.1987 when
arahan was upgraded as a

According 10 a story related by
the local people, “Samarahan”
wats actually  two words “Sama
Rahang™ in dialect and
the meaning together we
cat raw Rahang/Jering fruits™.
In the olden days, there  were
plenty of Rahang/Jering fruits
in Samarahan area. Iis scientific
name is Pithecellobium jiringa.
The local Malys liked to eat
Rahang/Jering in raw  with
Belacan  ing s (sama
mal ulam  Rahang/Jering
dengan  Sambal - Belacan).
Slowly, the place was known as
“Sama Rahang” and eventually,
it was  pronounced  as
“Samarahan” until today.

III.  SAMARAHAN DISTRICT

Samarahan District covers an area
of 59 are kilometres and based
a
of 46983, However,
ording to the Mid-Year Population
Estimates 1999, Samarahan District had
a population of 56,600. The majority of
the people in the District are Malays,
Ibans and Chinese. It has one sub-
a, formerly it was

district namely Asajay

-

Muara
Tuang

Sub Distrct
Office
Building -
(1933).

New
shophouses,
Kota
Samarahan.

Commercial
Centre,
Kota
Samarchan




Samarahan
Teachers'
College.

Sadong Jaya
Old Bazaar.

Sadong Jaya
New Bazaar.
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known as Nonok and according to
1991 Census the sub-district had a
population of 13,322,

A large majority of the Samarahan
population depend on agriculture as
their main source of income. There
are 78 Kampungs and longhouses
with a total of 5,565 families in the
district. The local people are mostly
farmers planting coconut, padi,
cocoa and other annual crops. Some
of them rear sheep and open up fish
ponds under agriculture schemes.
For those who stay along the coastal
areas they become fishermen.

In the past, the district lacked of
social and community facilities due
to poor infrastructures which made
Kota Samarahan (Muara Tuang)
almost inaccessible by land. Before
Dawk Mohammed Musa  Road
(Muara Tuang Road) was completed
in the early 1970s, Kota Samarahan
was relatively isolated from Kuching
and its surrounding areas. At that
time riverine transports were the
only means of transportation and,
hence, it was difficult for the people
to market their agricultural produce.
As a result, the economic growth in
Samarahan was slow and remained
almost stagnant. It was not until the
expansion of various road networks
that the socio-cconomic situation in
the district began to show signs of
improvement.
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The  Department  of
Drainage and Irrigation has
contributed tremendously
towards i and
improving the drainage system
in the district. The Department
trns the deep peat soil into
fertile land for planting cash
crops. Besides, the Integrated
Agriculture Development
Project (IADP) is entrusted
with the tasks to develop 86,170
hectares of land with in situ
development  in Kuala
Samiarahan covering an area of
11,311 hectares,

ce 1986, the district
has  achieved  tremendous
development.  On 26.7.1996,
PPES  Wang  Mas  Poulury
Farm at Muara Tuang Road
(Renamed as Datuk Mohd.
Musa Road) costing RM3.8
million  commenced s
operation.  Sadong  Jaya
(Pendam)  along  Batang
Sadong was connected by a
road from Kota Samarahan.
Along the road, vehicle
access 1o
Moyan, Asajaya, Semera and

Jemukan,  The 36 kilomewre Sadong Jaya
road was opened to waffic on 15.10.1990.

In order 0 improve and 0 provide
better administrative service in the district, YAB
the Chiel Minister of Saruwak, Dawk Patinggi

District Office and Community Hall
Asajaya on 23.8.1991. On 26.5.1993
Sadong District Office cum
Community Hall in Asajaya costing RM7.9
million was declared open. On 4.8.1993, the
S: | habilitation Centre for the

Tan Sri (Dr) Haji Abdul Taib Mal 1 laid

110

Asajaya
New
Tasonship.

Dustrict Office
Cum
Community
Hall Asajaya.




handicapped completed at the
costof RM6.4 million. From that time
onwards, the handicapped children
can have a better caring home for
them to live and to be trained as more

useful citizens in the country. On
15. )7, the new town, Bandar Baru
Asajaya was born. There are 44 units
of concrete double-storey

shophouses, 24 units of lockup
shophouses and Council Market in
Asajaya Town.

Secondary school education in
the district was also greatly improved
with the completion of RM6.4 million
it Secondary School on 21.8.1993. On
, the foundation stone for University
ysia Sarawak (UNIMAS) was laid in Kota
Samarahan and Unimas Experimental Theatre
was declared open on 9.4.1996. On 10.8.1996,
Unimas Rescarch Park was also launched.
Today, there are four tertiary institutions
namely  Univesity  Malaysia  Sarawak
(UNIMAS), MARA Institute (University) of
Technology, Cermai Jaya Matriculation College
and Samarahan Teachers” College being
established in Kota Samaral However,
Cermai Jaya Mauiculation College has moved
down to Jalan Pending, Kuching at the
beginning of 1999,

In Kota Samarahan, an arca of 102
hectares of land have been set aside for light
industrial purposes. At the moment, 31
hectares of the land have been developed.
Along Datuk Mohd. Musa Road to Kota
Samarahan more and more factories and
housing projects are being built and some of

i

them are still under construction. These
factories are providing more job opportunities
to the local people and the housing projects
are providing essential accommodation to the
local people as well as workers in and around
Kota Samarahan.

WALAY,
& K
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IV. UNIVERSITY MALAYSIA SARAWAK
(UNIMAS)

The first University being established in
Sarawak is University Malaysia Sarawak
(UNIMAS). It is located at Kota Samarahan,
the divisional dq of h
Division and it is 27 kilometres or about 30
minutes’ drive from Kuching City.
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The entrance
of Universiti
Malaysia
Sarawak
along Datuk

Mohd. Musa

Road.

Unimas was established as a result of
the meeting of vision and wishes of the
founding fathers in the persons of YAB Dato’
Seri Dr. Mahathir

Mohamad, the Prime
YAB Datuk Patinggi Tan
b Mahmud, the Chief
Minister of Sarawak and Y.B. Datuk Amar
i i Daud, the then Federal

future of the State of Sarawak and Ma
as a whole. The most important factor is of

to provide a venue for the higher
on of a university in Sarawak in order
to achieve the goal of national

On 19,1992, a Steering Committee for
the establishment of the Univer red by
the then Minister of Education was first met to
start the ball rolling. The Vice-Chancellor
designate ed on 1101992,
Unimas ted as Malasia's cighth
univensity on 20121992, The corporate
Academic Plan (January 1993), laying out the

UNIVERSITI MALAYS[A

SARAWAK

i blucprint, was presented by the Vice-
wellor to the third and last Steering
Committee on 19.2.1993.  In May 1993, a
temporary campus was being  planned.
Admission for the first batch of 119 students
began on 8.8.1993 and the students moved into
the current buildings before the beginning of
the second semester — in October of the same
year. By April 19 all buildings planned for
the temporary campus were completed at a
total development cost that exceeded RM20
million. The current main campus at Ke
Samarahan is however only a temporary one.
Nevertheless, it caters the current needs of
facilities, institntes, centres and divisions. Tt is

well equipped and fully wired with a fibre optic
backbone that provides Internet access 1o every
corner of the campus.

The permanent UNIMAS Campus lies
to the west of Kota Samarahan about 14
Kilometres southeast of Kuching City to which
it is lined by an expressway or ring road
running  along  the
western boundary  of
thesite. Itis planned so
that  the campus will
not only accessible by

road but also has a
direct connection for
boats from Kuching via
Sungai Bayor. For its
development, UNIMAS
is presented with a site
approximately 1,050
hectares. This includes
165 hectares which is
part of the original site
and an addition of 885




hectares  for acquisition.  The
University  has  planned 1o
accommodate 12,000  fulltime
students in the year 2005 and for
strategic planning purposes, plans
have also been projected for a full-
time student population of 20,600 by
the year 2020.

During the third convocation
of UNIMAS on 3.7.1999, the
Chancellor of UNIMAS who is also
the Yang Di-pertua Negeri Sarawak
Tun Datuk Patinggi Ahmad Zaidi
Adruce bin  Muhammed Noor
announced that RM850 million had
been allocated for the first phrase of
development of the permanent campus.
Another RM550 million to build the Medical
and Health Science Faculty as well as a
teaching hospital is forthcoming. By the year
2001, the permanent campus  of UNIMAS
would be completed while entering the 21st
century.

The corporate mission of UNIMAS is to
establish itself as an exemplary university of
internationally acknowledged stature as well
as a scholarly insitution of preference and
choice for both students and academic staff
through the pursuit of excellence in
teaching, research and scholarship. It will do
so by offering a range of opportunities in
education, training and scholarly service.
Besides, through the strategic and innovative
application of knowledge, it will enhance the
quality of the nation’s culture and the
prosperity of its people.

The members of the University Board
of Directors arc as follows:-

Chancellor
TYT Tun Datuk Patinggi (Dr.) Ahmad Zaidi
Adruce bin Muhammed Noor

Pro Chancellor
YAB Datuk Patinggi Tan Sri (Dr) Haji
Abdul Taib Mahmud

Vice Chancellor & Chairman Senate
Professor Dato’ Zawawi Ismail

Chairman
Tan Sri Datuk Amar Haji Bujang Mohd Nor

Members

Tan Sri Datuk Amar Haji Hamid Bugo
Professor Dr. Hassan Said

Datuk Amar (Dr) Leonard Linggi Jugah
Mr. Alex Ling Lee Soon

Dato’ Megat Zaharuddin Mcgat Mohd Nor
Datuk Shahril Tan Sri Shamsuddin

g General View

of Universiti
Malaysia
Sarawak
(UNIMAS).
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VB Dato Haji Adenan
Haji Satem

UNIVERSITY TECHNOLOGY MARA

In July 1973, the Sarawak Branch
Campus of Institute Technology Mara (ITM)
was first established in Kuching with the
assistance and coope: of Sarawak State
Government, Sarawak Foundation and ITM
itscll. From its establishment until July 1987,
Saruwak Campus was temporarily housed at
the Baw Lintang Teachers” Training Coll
Kuching.  With the assistance of the
Government of Sarawak especially thy
Minister of Industrial Development, Y.B. Datuk
Abang Haji Abdul Rahman Johari Tun Abang
Haji Openg, ITM S ak moved to the
Agriculture College at Semongok which was
vacated by UPM when it moved to their new
campus in Bintulu. At that ime, [ITM Sarawak's
permanent campus was also being developed
at Semariang. In June 1989, ITM Sarawak
moved o Semariang.

V.

tion

Due to the short comings of the
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piece of land in Kota Samarahan in order to
upgrade the Campus to accommodate more
students and provide better facilities. On
26.3.1997, the new campus of ITM was
completed and opened for  qualified
students to study there. Apart from offering
full time courses up to advanced diploma
levels, ITM Sarawak Branch also conducts
ofF- Prog and  Distance
Learning Progran those who are
working as well as th who are unable to
attend the full time classes. ITM Sarawak is
the only branch campus in the ITM system
to conduct advanced diploma courses
apart from the main campus in ITM Shah
Alam. In 1998, there were 3,400 studen

mme
e for

in Institute  Technology MARA, Ko
Samarahan. With effect from September
1999, ITM is known as University

Technology MARA (UNITEKMA).



VI

Datuk Robert Jacob Ridu.

OUTSTANDING PERSONNELS IN
SAMARAHAN DIVISION

2)

3

YAB Datuk Patinggi Tan Sri (Dr)
Haji Abdul Taib Mahmud is the
Member of Council Negri from
Asajaya and Member of Parliament
of Samarahan. He is the Chief
Minister of Sarawak from 1981 until
today.

YB Dato Haji Adenan Haj
the Member of Council Negri from
Muara Tuang from 20.1.1979 until
today. He is the State Minister of
Agriculture and Food Industry.

YB Encik Michael Manyin ak Jawong
is the Member of Council Negri from
Tebedu. He is the State Assistant
Minister of Land Development from
2.1.1998 until today.

o

Datuk Michael Ben ak Panggi.

En. Nelson Kundai.

4) Datuk Robert Jacob Ridu from

6

Tarat  was the State Assistant
Minister of Infrastructure
Development from 26.3.1981 until
March 1987 and  the Speaker of
Dewan Undangan Negri Sarawak
from 18.3.1987 to 28.2.1994.

Datuk Michael Ben ak Panggi from
Tebedu was the State Assistant
Minister for Youth Culture and
Sports from 28.9.1979 until March
1987. Now he is the Temenggong
for Bidayuh Community in
Samarahan Division.

Encik Nelson Kundai who was a
Member of Council Negri from
Tarat was the State Minister for
Youth and Sports from 7.7.1970 to
9.9.1974.
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VII. SAMARAHAN AGRICULTURE
PRODUCE

Samarahan Division is one of the most
active and advanced divisions agriculturally.
This is due to the close proximity to the
higher demand of food crops, livestocks and
fishery products from Kuching City as well as
the general soil suitability in the division
conductive for diverse cropping pattern.
This is evidenced from the land use (area
size) pattern on settled Agriculture for
Samarahan Division which is 14.04% as
against the state average land utilisation on
settled Agriculture of only 3.4%. As a whole,
Samarahan Division is an agricultural arca

where it produces rubber, pepper, padi,
coconut and other agricultural produce.
Based on the report of Divisional
Agriculture Office, Kota Samarahan in 1997,
the division has planted and produced the
follo -

Samarahan District is very famous for its
pineapples especially Nanas Josapine. At the
moment, more than 300 hectares of the suitable
land in the district are planted with pineapples.
Most of the big and sweet pineapples are sent to
Kuching for sale at RM1.50 to RM2.00 per fruit.
Samarahan sweet oranges are also popular
because the district produces nearly 75% of the
sweet oranges for the State. By the year 2000, the
target for sweet oranges planting is 1,200
hectares.

Coconut shells are in abundance in
Samarahan. Hence, Carbon Supplies (Sarawak)
Sdn. Bhd. is established in Kota Samarahan on
24.1997 10 produce activated coconut shell
carbon and export to oversca market. In 1999,
the company achieves world standard in I1SO
9002.

VI SERIAN DISTRICT
1) Historical Background

Agriculture Produce Area Planted (ha)
1) Rubber
- Ordinary Rubber 9,500

- High yield Rubber 5,500

2) Padi

- Wet Padi 10,150
- Hill Padi 3,600
3) Pepper
- White Pepper) 2,200
= Black Pepper)
4) Coconut 15,100
numbers
5) Cocoa 7400

1,027 tonnes population  of

2,760 tonnes

Town is the administrative
headquarters of Serian District.
The district covers an area of
2,040 square kilometres and
263 tonnes | based on 1991 Census it had a
73.293. The
majority of the people here are

Production

18,400 tonnes | Bidayuhs, followed by the
2,000 tonnes Chinese, Ibans and Malays.

based on 1999 Mid-Year
Population Estimate, the district
had increased its population up
to 84.800. The district has one

567 tonnes

49,000,000 in sub-district called Tebedu.

Actording to written records,
Serian (Upper  Sadong

District and Si jan (Lower

me
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Sadong  District)  were
formerly a district known as
Sadong District with Simunjan
as the district headquarters
from 1901 to 1955. In
February, 1955, Serian (Upper
Sadong District) was officially
split from Simunjan (Lower
Sadong District) and a full
district of its own was born.
The first colonial District
Officer of Serian District was
M. HL.R. Harbow.

In the olden days, there were
durian trees around Sungai
Rian. After the establishment
of the settlement along Sungai
Rian, people slowly called the
place “Se-Rian™ rather than
Sungai Rain until today. In
actual fact, Serian is a durian
town where good quality of
durians are produced at the
nearby  kampungs  and
longhouses.  Based on the
agricultural statistic, there are
more  than 80,000 durian
trees in the district. Thatis why
Durian is the symbol of the town.

The Founding of Serian District/ Town
Initially, the District Office of Serian
was located at Gedong (now still
under Simunjan District). Gedong
derived its name from “Gedong Padi”
because in the olden days, merchants
used to have paddy stores there.
However, in 1929, the District Office

was moved from Gedong to
Tebakang. “Tebakang” is actually the
name of an inland fish which is
common in the area and its scientific
name is Helostoma temmincki. A fort
known as Tebakang Fort was built
on the top of a small hill near
Sadong River, behind Pangkalan
Embong, Tebakang. Besides being
used as a fort, the District Office,



Serian was also housed there.
The structure of the fort was
built of Belian in the Malay
style.

The  District Officer  of
Sadong District or his Native
Officers made  occasional
visits 1o the adr rative
centre for Ulu Sadong at
“Tebakang from time to time.
Traversing this community
was a tributary of Sadong
River called Batang Kayan
restructed the n
ion of the Ma
ght bank and  the
Bidayuh and Chinese o its
left. The Chinese Hakkas
who were traders occupying
the immediate bank.  The
conscientious entrance of a
few European Missionarics of
the Roman Catholic Church
built the first school in the
district in 1928,

Meanwhile, opting out of
this community was a small
Chinese  family, ndwiched
between the Sadong River and its
wibutary, Sungai  Rian  about
13 kilometres  coastward
Tebakang,  be serving  the
trading needs of its neighbouring
villages. This was  the shop that
started the establishment of a town -
Serian.  In early 1930, due o
administrative and  governmental

from
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reasons, the District Headquarters
was shifted from Tebakang to
overlook this lone settlement and
was renamed after the tributary
although the governing tongue in
those years found it easier o
pronounce “Se-Rian” than Sungai
Rian. On 24, 30, the construction
of Kuching/$ri Aman (Simanggang)
road reached Serian Town.

Aerial view of
the old Serian
T in the
1950s.

Tebakang
Fart.
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By then, with the arrival of a few more
Chinese traders, a trading centre had
taken shape where the first shop first
stood. However, because the site was
subject to floods that often resulted in
great losses, it was later abandoned
and Sungai Serian was crossed for the
higher ground beyond it The
structures which doted this landscape
Serian Town in its infant stage. By
1939, the town had well over 10
wooden shophouses.

Tebakang Fort remained as it was. In
the 1950s it was renovated to
accommodate various government
agencies. During World War I1, it was
v the Japanese invaders as an
trative centre. In 1994, it was
used as Pusat Giat MARA until today.

PreJapanese Occupation

Before the Japanese invasion in 1941,
the racial disaffection was inherent in
the invaders to the Chinese in
Sarawak especially to those began to
relish the prosperity of their business
in Serian. The shopkeepers began to
desert and desolate the town. It was
struggling to survive as Banana
Currency overflowed through some
shop windows and doors whose
owners had not bothered 0 shut
these apertures as their cconomic
and financial situation worsened,
preferring to just pack their bags for
the isolation of the less harsh jungle
setlement in anticipation of peace.

Along with them went their business
knowledge which later accounted
for the birth of such bazaars as
Tebedu and Balai Ringin.

Japanese Occupation and its Effect

In the meantime, the Japanese were
commanding the construction of the
Kuching/Serian Road to completion
and the abortive irrigation project at
Samarahan. Natives, Chinese and
other forcigners caught in the war
tide were compulsory recruited to
proside the labour required. Under
the strain of physical exploitation
rebellious tendencies surfaced in
sporadic quarrels only to be quelled
by some Japanese-handpicked local
force who spied, policed and
reported on those who trod on
the “Words of the Emperor”
Construction of the Sadong Bridge
had also began, but was completed
only after the invaders had left. Anti-
Japanese feeling was sawrating by
1945 and finally the Japanese
surrendered on 14.8.1945.

Colonialism

The task of restoring order was left
in the hands of the colonial power.
Serian Town began another phase
of growth. The Roman Catholic
Church-owned school known as St.
Teresa’s School was restarted as a
boarding school. In 1946, the
shophouses totalled nearly 20. In
1950 the Kuching/Serian road was
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bituminized and with the inception
of the Upper Sadong District
Council in 1959, the town had
already far surpassed the booming
days of the prewar period.

Serian Toun today

Serian Town is fast developing
for the past 25 years and it has
now become the biggest town
in Samarahan Division. Rubber
gardens at the back of Serian Old
Bazaar gave way to Council Market,
Community Hall and Bus Station.
More  shophouses, industralised
buildings and residential houses
take over the empty space. More
modern buildings are added in
Serian Town.  Landscape changed
from a small trading cenure for Ulu
Sadong 70 years ago to a present-
looking Serian Town. Serian is a
tourist centre where thousands of
foreign and local tourists passing
through the wown everyday either 1o
Sri Aman Division or  to Tebedu
Border Point or just to spend their
time in $ Ranchang Pool
which is about 3 kilometres away
from Serian Town and Taman
Danau  (Lake  Garden)  have
attracted thousands of  tourists 1o
enjoy the nawral and  cool
surroundings.  Some tourists have
commented that Serian Town is one
of the cleanest towns in Malaysia.

The old building of District Office

Serian was pulled down sometime in

120

1970. A new District Office building
costing Malaysian Ringgit $123,000/-
was constructed and it was declared
open by YAB Dawk Patinggi Abdul
Rahman Ya'kub, the then Chief
Minister of Sarawak on 28.8.1971.

Native participation in commerce
and trade is very encouraging. With
the assistance from MARA, a row
of 6 shophouses were constructed
to provide an opportunity for
Bumipuua o fulfill the New
Feonomic Policy.  The Serian Co-
operative  shops, a  threestorey
building was also put up in 1980
under the generous loan from Co-
operative Centre Bank. A RM3
million of Nurses Trading School
Complex was constructed at the side
of 1 District Hospital in early
1982, The Complex has not only
enlarged the Serian Township but
also provided a training ground  for
the nurses in the State.

S Town is blessed with a
commercially strategic location in
that it is linked 64 kilometres
westward to the State  Capital,
Kuching City by the best stretch of
highway in Sarawak and northward
10 Sri Aman and Sibu. The only tea
plantation in Sarawak is located at
Mayang along the Mongkos Road.
The Bidayuh longhouse at Mongkos
is a tourist spot in the district. Serian
District started to plant oil palms and
on 10.8.1996, the RM20 million




Sarawak Palm Oil Mill
was launched in Serian.
The oil palm estates and
mills have created many
employments for  the
local people in the rural
areas.

Based on a  survey
conducted in February
1999, there a

altogether 282 units of
shophouses  excluding
the industralised

shophouses near Kampung Cina

and Seri
The deta

n By-F
s are as follows:-

ass in the town.

Type of shophouses
Within Serian Town

1)Single-storey wooden shop

2)Double-storey wooden shophouses

3)Double-storey concrete sk

p
1) Threesstorey concrete shophouses

5)Foursstorey concrete shophouses

Outskirt Serian Te
1)Double-storey wooden shophouses
along Jalan Melor

2)Doubl y concrete st h

at Ayer Manis Housing Estate
Totl

S

No. of units

25
117
103
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The expansion of Serian Town is
more towards Serian By-Pass arca.
With the construction of both Serian
By-Pass and Scrian/Tangga By-Pass,
more fund is being channelled into
the maintenance of ground, urban
road, sanitation, street lighting and
recreational facilities in and around
the town. The expansion of the town
warrants more housing  estates
including the low-cost housing
projects are being implemented in
the outskirts of the town. Besides,
there are 31 units of lock-up
shops, Council Market, Council
Multipurpose hawker centre and
one cinema, Lina Theatre, are built
in the town. Moreover, Serian  has
an outdoor stadium, an indoor mini
stadium and a community hall at the
side of the town, Serian Township is
still expanding. Another 21 units of
double storey concrete shophouses,
are under construction along Serian
By-Pass. Upon completion of more




shophouses, Serian will become
a bigger town. By then, the
vision of Serian District Council
o tum Serian into a Municipal
Council by the year 2015 is not
far from its reality.

7)  Tebedu Sub-district
Tebedu is a subdistrict of Serian
and based on 1991 Census, it
had a population of 6,560. In
Bidayuh  language, “Bedu”
means a dry place. Tebedu
r, 42 kilometres from
1 is the legal and only
and drive-in gate [}

Border Entry
Point, Tebedu.

AT
Kalimantan, Indonesi

1, the

Immigration Complex and the
international road  connecting
Tebedu  with  Entekong in i
Kali an Barat, Indonesia 3
was officially declared open. A Bandar
new township known as Mutiara Mutiara,
Town was being built on Tebedu.
7.8.1993, Tc this border
town has 68 new concrete
shophouses but not even one
is operating for business yet.
The old Tebedu Bazaar which
consists  of 20 wooden
shophouses is still the centre for
border trading in the district.
XI. SIMUNJAN DISTRICT Tdlaly
Border Pomt

1) Historical Background torwards
Simunjan ~ Town is  the Indonesian
administrative headquarters of Bl

the Simunjan District.  The



district covers an arca of 2,328 square
kilometres and based on 1991 Census,
it had a population of 46,683. The
majority of the people in the district are
the Malays, Ibans and Chinese. In 1999,
based on the MidYear Population
Fstimate, the population of Simunjan
District had increased up to 56,500, It
has two subdistricts namely Sadong
Jaya (Pendam) and Sebuyau. Sebuyau
was formerly a subdistrict of Sri Aman.
Scbuyau Bazaar which was established
by the Chinese Teochew in 1892
consists of 57 shophouses and 6 units of
new concrete shophouses are  still
under construction in June 1999. Due
to closer promixity o Simunjan, it was
transferred to Simunjan District on
18.8.1990. The other sub-district
Sadong Jaya was formerly known as
Pendam. ased on 1991 Census,
Sadong Jaya had a population of 15,814
whereas Sebuyau had a population of
9,926. “Pendam” in Malay dialect
means graveyard. In order not
10 call the people there staying
in the graveyard, the authority
changed the name of Pendam
(graveyard) to Sadong Jaya.
There are 7 units of wooden
double- storey shophouses and
4 units of wooden singlestorey
shophouses in the old B
as well as 8 units of concrete
double-storey shophouses in
the new Sadong Jaya Bazaar.
The 138 rare artefacts
believed to be 700 to 800 years
old were excavated from

an area formerly the site of an old
longhouse built in 1880 at Kampung
Senangeh, Sadong Jaya in 1997. This
was a concrete proof that Sadong Jaya
area had been inhabited for at leasta
few centuries already.

Based on written records and oral
traditions, Upper Sadong District
(Serian) and Lower Sadong District
(Simunjan) were formerly a  district
known as “Sadong District” with
Simunjan as the district headquarters.
The first District Officer for Sadong
District at that time was Mr. LK.
Caldecot who stationed at Simunjan
for a period of 4 years from 1901 w0
1904.

Upper Sadong and Lower Sadong
remained as a district for a period of
about 54 years. In February 1955,
Upper Sadong (Serian) was officially
separated  from  Lower Sadong
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(Simunjan) and a full district of
its own was born. At that time,
Mr. W.CB. Wilson was the finst
District Officer for Simunjan and
Mr H.R. Hardow was made the
first District. Officer for Upper
Sadong (Serian).

How did Simunjan get its
name?

There are many legends as o
how Simunjan got its name.
Below are the possible versions.

(a) Verston 1 (Chinese Version)

Upon the discovery of coal at
Gunung Ngeli in the e
19th - Century, quite  a

number of Chinese Hakka
Sambas,

migrated  from

Kalimantan  Indor
Lower Sadong to work in the
coal mine. From Sambas,
they came on foot 10 Bau
and from Bau, they used
boats to go to Kuching.
From Kuching they boarded
sailing boats to reach Lower
Sadong. The whole journey
ook them about 10 days to
their

reach destination.

When they armived at Lower
Sadong, they complained  the
ly o far”, In
se Hakka, it pronounced

place was “rea
Chir

foondan”. Eventual

“Simunjan” until today.

wn as “Sifoondjan”
and later it was pronounced as
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b)

Version 2 (Iban Version)

In the olden days, the ar
around Gunung Ngeli and
Simunjan area always had mist
(in Iban it is called Simun) in
the carly morning. The Ibans in
the area said that it might rain

e Landmark
of Simunjan-
Burung Mujan.

Part of
Simtnjan
Toom



()

(in Iban it is called
Ujan) at the later
part of the day. The
two words “Simun”

and “Ujan" always
repeated  initially
but  eventually it >
was pronounced as B )

“Simunjan” until
these days.

Version 3

(Malay/Iban Version)
The a around
Simunjan in the olden days was
a jungle and full of wild animals
and birds. There was a type of
bird called Asian  Pai
Flycatch (in local term it is
known as Burung Lelangai
Mujan) which are plentful in
the area. Within th
were plenty of insec
hence, Burung Mujan liked 0
catch them for food.

While selecting the landmark
for  Simunjan,  Simunjan
District. Council with the full
concurrence of the councillors
selected Burung M because
the name of "Simunjan™ might
derive from the  bird called
“Mujan”.

In the Simunjan Town Square,
an artefact pair of Burung Mujan
is being displayed there as the
landmark of the town.

SN

3) Coal Mining in Simunjan

Simunjan Town, which is situated at
Lower Sadong River was once an
important port from 1872 o 1932.
During that period ships used to ply up
there for loading coal from the nearby
mines at Gunung Ngeli, a hill about 5
kilometres cast of Simunjan.

Although Sadong Coal Mine was
officially mined on 31.1.1872,a group of
Chinese from Sambas Indonesia under
the leadership of Liew Syn Ted migrated
over and settled in Simunjan sometime
in 1850 to participate in the coal mining
activity there, However, in 1867, after the
abortive Anti-Rajah Movement in Bau in
1857 the White Rajah Government
invited Liew Syn Ted and his group to
move from Simunjan to Bau in order to
rework in the gold mines.

Coal was actually discovered soon
after James Brooke became the  first
White Rajah of Sarawak in 1841. An

Aerial view of
Simunjan
Town.




attempt was made o mine the coal in
18505 but it was making a loss. In
1872, the Sarawak Government
advertised in the Sarawak Gazette to
invite any company to work in the
coal mine but there was no taker. In
May 1874, it was reported in the
Sarwak Gazette that the Sarawak
Government itself was mining the
Sadong Coal Mines and produced
sufficient coal to supply their own
steamships.

At finst buffaloes were used to haul
the coal from the mines 0 the
wharf.  In 1896, the old wack
between the mine and the wharf was
replaced by iron rails and a
locomotive had taken the © of
the water buffaloes. In 1896, when
Mz Fisher was the manager of the
Simunjan Coal Mine, the production
of coal had been steadily increased
up to 20,000 tonnes. It remained
above the average amount sold until
the mines were closed down on
1.1.1932,

About 1,000,000  tonnes  of
Simunjan  coal were produced
between 1874 and 1981 of which
over 800,000 tonnes were sold, the
rest being used at the mine and
supply to the local locomotive.
During the Japanese occupation
from 1941-1945, some prospecting
of coal deposit on the south side of
Gunung Ngeli east of the old

working sites near Sungai Lepong,

The Japanese opened an adit and
obtained about 3,000 tonnes of
coal.

According 1o Mr. .W. Exans who was
the manager at that time, the main
reason for the closing of the coal
mine in 1932 was due to the loss of
the local market and the conversion
from coal 1o oil for many ships
1 power stations. Moreover, the
deposits were no longer considered
to be of commercial value.

Batang Sadong Tidal Bore

Batang Sadong which flows through
Serian and Simunjan districts is the
second river besides Batang Lupar
with Benak movement (Tidal Bore)
inthe river. When the tide comes up
to Sadong River from the sea, it
forms a big wave, especially during
the time of full moon and the new
moon, the Benak is very high. It
looks like a big wall of water moving
up the river fast. It makes a loud
roaring noise which can be heard
from far away. At Lubok Bunting
where the river is very wide, the tidal
bore wms  round and goes back
towards the sea. Then it tums round
again and rushes further upriver.
Accarding to Pemanca Bong Thi
Chin of Simunjan, sometime in the
late 19th Century, rows of wooden
shophouses with Atap roof were
built along Batang Sadong near o
Jalan Lau Loong Quee and Jalan
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Masjid. However due to the tidal
bore called "Benak” which constantly
eroded the riverbank, all the
shophouses, the Chinese Primary
School, Chinese  Temple and
Government buildings were washed
away by Benak one after another. In
the end, all shophouses, the primary
school, Chinese Temple, Police
Station,  District  Office  and
government quarters had to be
dismantled and  moved  further
inland.

Agriculture Produce

The Simunjan District, covering
extensive swamps on the Lower
Sadong River and coastal areas atthe
mouth of the river, is a fertile padi
growing arca and oil palm planting
arca. In 1996, Land Custody and
Development Authority (LCDA) had
commenced RM72 million oil palm
planting scheme in Sadong Area
(5910 hectares) and Gedong Area
(5,770 hectares) and itis expected o
be completed by the end of 1999,
Based on Agriculture Department
data in 1997, the district had planted
5,124 hectares of wet padi and 643
hectares of hill padi which produced
10,571 tonnes of wet padi and 440
tonnes of hill padi respectively. In
1997, Simunjan District had planted
968 hectares of pepper vines and
produced 2,158 tonnes of black
pepper and 415 tonnes of white
pepper. Besides, the district had
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2,640 hectares of land planted with
rubber wrees which produced 950
tonnes of rubber sheets and 8,349
hectares of coconut  producing
22,748,000 coconuts in 1997,

In October 1998, Padi Beras National
(Bernas) started an inital 31
hectares padi project at Lubok
Tranggas ncar Gedong using
mechanisation. If it is proved to be
successful, it will form  the basis for
the commercialisation of large scale
padi planting in the State so as to
reduce the import of rice from other
countries,

Simunjan Today
Simunjan  District  has 207
Kampungs/longhouses with a total
of 2,785 families. It is a multiracial
district whereby all the communities
live and work together happily.
Simunjan Town is 165 kilometres
by road from Kuching and 169
kilometres from Kota Samarahan.

Although Simunjan town has a
history of more than 130 years, the
development of the town is slow but
steady. In 1958, the present Simunjan
Town was rebuilt at the existing site
after the land in the old town was
washed away by the Benak. A total of
36 units of doublestorey shophouses
were built and completed in 1960,
Later on, Simunjan Cinema was built
along Jalan Nanas but due to poor




Tkan Bulu

- the symbal of Samarahan.

business, it was converted into a
hotel on the top floor and 14 units
of shophouses on the ground floor.
2 units of threestorey concrete
buildings were also built at the side
and at the moment, the only bank
the town known as Bank Pertanian
Malaysia is housed there. There are
3 other units of doublestorey
concrete shophouses and - 4 units of
singlestorey shophouses also being
erected along Jalan Nanas. There
are another 5 units of singlestorey
shophouses built at the side of
Simunjan District Library. Based on
the survey carried out in September
1998 there were 67 units of
two  Council food

shophouses,

Fshacater Prazon - the symbol of

Samarakan.

and drink buildings,
Council wet market,
Fire Station and other
government agencies
found in the town. In
1962, the Chinese
Primary School was
rebuilt at the  existing
site and the Chinese
Temple was shifted 10
d\c present locality in
On 14.3.1996,
the Chinese Primary
School was gutted by
fire but it was rebuilt
and completed  on
5.1.1998. In 1993,
Simunjan District
Hospital was
completed 1o look
after the health of * the people in the
district.  There are  two secondary
schools in Simunjan. On 13.1.1966,
Simunjan  District  Office  was
completely gutted by fire and it was
rebuilt in the following year. At
Pendam (Sadong Jaya), the Health
Sub-Centre and Sub-district office
were opened 10 the public on
20.7.1974. Ten days later, the RM1.6
million Gedong Road was opened
lm used by all vehicles. On
29.7.1986, Simunjan was accessible
by road from Kuching/Sri Aman
Road through Punda Road to the
town. The new Police Station was
completed in 1997 to serve the
public.




Simunjan is famous for the
Simunjan fragrant rice and
giant fresh water prawns
whereas its  sub-district,
Sebuyau is important for
the production of Terubok
fish and fish roe as well as
its granite quarry.

X. KOTA SAMARAHAN TODAY

Samarahan District which has
an area of 540 square kilometres had a
population of 46,983 in 1991 Census.
However, in 1999 based on the Mid-
Year Population Estimate, the district
had a population of 56,600.

Kota Samarahan, located 33
kilometres from Kuching, is fast
emerging as the new commercial and
administrative centre of Sarawak. The
town serves as a key growth centre to
the coastal and riverine settlement
along Batang Samarahan and its
surrounding areas. UNIMAS is
expected  to bring  robust
development through creation of
new employment opportunities and a
larger population base to a division
which is currently economically dependent on
agriculture. Kota Samarahan is growing into a
tranquil universi ip in i

with the bustling Kuching City.

The landmarks of Kota Samarahan are
fresh water prawns and Tkan Bulu because
both of them are very common and can casily
be caught in Batang Samarahan. The statues

of the prawn and Ikan Bulu are erected at the
entrance of Kota Samarahan District Council
Building.

From a Kampung status with the old
name Muara Tuang where there are only five
wooden shophouses on stilt established more
than 60 years ago, the new name Kota
Samarahan was used upon the upgrading of

Resident's
Office, Kota
Samarahan
declared

open on
28, 8. 1992,

MARA
Institute
Technology
(ITM) Kota
Samarahan.



Samarahan Sub-district (o the status
of a division on 1.1.1987. Within a
period of 12 years, the small
Kampung Bazaar has transformed
itselfinto a modern town. 10 units of
Satorey concrete building  were
constructed along Jalan Datuk Mohd.
Musa where banking facility (Bank
Utama and Bank Islam) lable
there. Adjacent to the original Muara
Tuang wooden bazaar, 2 rows of 20
units of double- storey shophouses,
Kota Samarahan Council Market and
Council Hawker Stalls are also built
1o cater the increasing population in
the new town. A bus station is also
established nearby.

Kota Samarahan
modern  architecty ingenuity
Government  buildings such  as
District Ol Land and Survey
Department Office, RM2.4 million
Samarahan District Council Building
which was declared  open  on
21.9.1990 and Resident's Office
which was  declared  open  on
28.8.1992 were being built one after
the other in Kota Samarahan.  The
Civic Centre costing RM7.1 million
was also completed and declared open on
5.3.1995. Four light industrics namely
awak Coconut, Borneo Enamel, KIG
Ceramics and  Carbon  Supplies  are
established and in production. Besides
Government Housing Project known
Perumahan Rakyat and private residentis
areas are being built in order to provide

plays its

ommodations to the

creasing population

a
in Kota Samarahan.

Rota  Samarahan  has
tremendous improvement in- infrastructure
development and other related amenities over
the pastyears. Most of the road infrastructures
in Samarahan are implemented by Jabatan

Swimming
Pool,

Outdoor
Stadium



Kerja Raya (JKR). One of the most
significant road developments is
the Kampung Entingan/Kampung
Melayu Road which was completed
in 1996. The road enables the
population of Asa and Sadong
Jaya to wavel directly to Kuching
without using the ferry service at
Kota S The medical
service, water and  electricity
supplies and the good network
of roads to the rural areas of the
division  have  been  greatly
improved. The recent completion of
30.2-kilometre Kuching/Samarahan
Outer Ring Road or Expressway
costing RM120 million has cut down
the distance and time to  travel to
and fro Kuching/Kota Samarahan
and Serian arcas. The Outer Ring
Road was declared open by the
Deputy Prime Minister of Mal
YAB Dato Seri Abdullah Ahmad
Badawi on 20.7.1999. Sports and
recreational  facilities  such  as
swimming pool and outdoor sport
complex are also constructed to
provide better sport facilities in the
town. The construction to RM11.9
million  Samarahan  Divisional
Mosque to be completed in September 2000
will be the catalyst of growth for the emerging
township of Kota Samarahan. Upon
completion, the mosque can accommodate
3200 people. An integrated fishdanding
complex costing RM30 million is to be built
within two years' time at Tembirat near Kota
Samarahan. Once completed, it will provide
landing facilities for both local and foreign

sy

fishing boats and to reduce the State’s fish

import bill. The complex will have the
capacity for at least 15 deep-sea fishing vessels
to land their catches at any single time,

The sitings of Universiti Malaysia
Sarawak (UNIMAS) and the new campus for
MARA Institute Technology (ITM) in Kota
Samarahan have further opened up Kota

RM 2.4 miltion Kota
Samarahan District
Council. It was
declared open on
21..9. 1990.

Civic Centre Kota
Samarahan.

It was declared
open on 5.3.1991.



Samarahan to the state and to the whole nation
as the Centre of Academic Development. On
22.11.1999, RM68 million Samarahan Teachers'
College was declared open in- Kota Samarahan.
Built on a 26 hectare site, it has 28 lecture
rooms, 5 blocks of hostel for 1,050 trainces, an
Islamic Studies Centre and a mosque. Itis the
first smart college in Malaysia, equiped with a
computer network for teaching information
technology skills in order to prepare teachers to
face the challenges of education in the new
millennium. Speaking at his 63rd birthday
celebration at Kota Samarahan on 21.5.1999,
the Chief Minister of Sarawak, YAB Datuk
Patinggi Tan Sri (Dr.) Haji Abdul Taib Mahmud
stressed  that Kota Samarahan would  be
transformed into the biggest, excellentand well-
known education centre in the state within the
next 10 years. He said, “Besides the existing

UNIMAS, ITM and Samarahan Teachers'
College, a medical centre, the Technology  and
Science Park and other educational centres
especially  those  related o information
technology, science, rescarch and development
are already on the government's agenda”. In
actual fact, Kota Samarahan is achieveing its
target as a top educational and information
technology centre now.

Under the able and farsighted
leadership of the Chief Minister of Sarawak
YAB Datuk Patinggi Tan Sri (Dr) Haji Abdul
Taib Mahmud, the future of Kota Samarahan
to become  the Centre  of  Academic
Development or “Academic City”, an economic
growth centre and Samarahan Division to
become a productive agriculture area have
become a reality.




CHAPTER 7

SRI AMAN DIVISION
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Sri Aman - The Town of Peace

1. INTRODUCTION

Sri Aman Division, formerly known as
Simanggang, is the Sccond Division of
Sarawak. It has an area of 9,647 square
kilometres and based on 1991 Census, it had
a population of 165,252 of which the
majority are the Ibans, followed by the
Malays and the Chinese. Based on 1999
Mid-Year Population Estimate, the Division
had a population of 189,600. In 1997, the
Department  of - Agriculture  statistics
recorded a total of 935 villa and 22,423
farm families. The Division cessible by
river and Pan Borneo Highway.

Historically, Sri Aman (Simanggang)
Division was under the rule of Brunci
Sultanate until 1853 when Sultan of Brunei
ceded all the land between Sadong River to
Oya River o the Brooke Regime.  From
that time onwards, Sri Aman (Simanggang)

Division formed part of the Sarawak
Territory. Moreover, it was on 1.6.1873 that
the division became a residency with its
i i at

quarter

Simanggang.

Topographically, it has three broad
zones vizz coastal, mid-Jand and hilly
interior, which are traversed by numerous
meandering rivers. The nature of the terrain
and soil present posses much limitation to a
large scale of agricultural development.
Excluding the low lying, flood prone coastal
swamps and rugged interior land associated
with infertile soils, the total available suitable
land for agriculture is estimated to be around
24125 square kilometres only.

Sri Aman Division has four districts
and ten sub-districts namely:-



Aerial view of Sri Aman Town.
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District Sub-district Population in 1991
1) Sri Aman District 1) Meludam Sub-district 60,085
(Simanggang) 2) Lingga Sub-district
3) Pantu Sub-district
2)  Lubok Ant District 1) Engkilili Sub-district 22,270
3)  Betong District (Saribas) 1) Spaoh Sub-district 44,979
2) Debak Sub-district
3)  Pusa Sub-district
4) Saratok District 1) Nanga Budu Sub-district 37918
(Kalaka) 2) Roban Sub-district
3) Kabong Sub-district
Total:
There are altogether 23 towns/bazaars 17) Pusa Bazaar
in the Division:- 18) Kaki Wong Bazaar
o . S 19) Roban Bazaar
) o Aman Toun (Simanggang) 20) Kabong Buar
3)  Saratok Town -:2 SCC""K“; ‘;a“’a‘“;
- 'SSan; raar
117 Meludatn Faanas 23) Beladin Bazaar

5)  Lingga Bazaar

6)  Banting Bazaar

7)  Sungai Tenggang Bazaar

8)  Pantu Bazaar

9)  Kerangas Gayau Bazaar
(Lachau Bazaar)

10) Engl Bazaar

1) Baw Lintang Bazaar, Undup

12) Lubok Antu Bazaar

13) Spaoh Bazaar

14) Nanga Budu Bazaar

15) Bungin Bazaar

16) Debak Bazaar

1. ORIGIN OF THE NAME OF
SIMANGGANG

According to a version related by the
Iban community in Sri Aman, about two
hundred years ago, there were wo Chinese
Teochew families using Sampan boats to trade
along Batang Lupar River. Both stationed at
the mouth of the present Simanggang River.
Due to business conflict and jealousy, they were
not in good terms with cach other. One day
one Iban from Batang Ai wanted to visit one of




the Chinese families in
the Sampan Boat, but it
happened that the whole
family was in the farm. The
Iban then asked the owner
of the other Sampan Boat,
“Where do the family of so
and so go?” The Chinese

man in the boat replied
in half Teochew and half
Iban ¢ i

magang!” “Si” in Chinese
Teochew means “die” and
“Magang” in Iban language
means  “all of them”.
Therefore, “Si magang”
means “all of them had
died already”.  From that
time onwards, anybody who
visited the Chinese family
for business in that area
would call the family “Si

i
Magang™ and eventually
the phn was |mumunnul
until

as

1973.

Simanggang”

Another
disclosed that a lLZI(hlf in

Sri Aman when she was

asked by the students in the olden days what
was the origin of the name of Simanggang.
She answered, “Cina Parai Magang™ (It means
“all Chinese died already” in Iban language)
Perhaps the answer might h
connection with the first version.

some

Today Sungai Simanggang still
and it flows at the side of the present Police

157

Sri Aman
Main Bazaar
in 1998.

Sri Aman
(Simanggang)
Main Bazaar
in 1950.

Station down to Batang Lupar passing at the
upper reach of Bandar Sri Aman.

IIl. HISTORICAL BACKGROUND OF
SRI AMAN TOWN
Sri Aman Town is the Divisional
Headquarters of Sri Aman Division and itis
190 kilometres by land from Kuching, the



Lau Chek

State Capital of Sarawak. Sti Aman
was known as Simanggang prior to
October, 1973. The symbol of the
town is a pair of doves greeting
visitors and the symbol indicates that
Sri Aman is a town of y in
Sarawak. Based on historical record,
the first group of Chinese headed by
Lau Chek sailed directly 1o Batang
Lupar areas in 1830 to look for good
farming land.  They seuled there
for a while but later they moved over
to Kuching and seuled down at
Satok arca. Both written records and
oral traditions predate the existence
of  Simanggang Bazaar 1o its
predecessor at Nanga Skrang where
Fort James was [ built in 1849,
There were about five Chinese shops
and a small Malay Kampung first
established at Nanga Skrang but the
low-lying land and its proneness to

flooding in the area caused Fort James and
Nanga Skrang Bazur 1o be shifted 1o the
present Simanggang (Sri Aman) site som
in 1864. At fist the Chinese Teochews built
about 10 Auap shophouses at the existing Main
Bazaar. Based on Sarawak Gazette dated
1.4.1872, Simanggang had 46 shops with
probably sever Ired Chinese. Mr. AB.
Ward who was senving in Simanggang noted

Fort James,
Skrang
(1849 - 1863).

Simanggang
Tin 1950
(The rwad
passing
through the
padi field is
Club Road),




that the Bazaar was a row of open-fronted
shops extending along the riverbank. In
1894, Tze Hun Kok Chinese Temple was built
in front of Simanggang Town. The first
school to be built in Simanggang was St.
Luke’s Primary School at Sabu Road in 1863.
Abang Aing Primary School, the second
school in Simanggang, was built in 1920,
Nine years later, Chung Hua Primary School
Simanggang was constructed in 1929 to cater
the Chinese children in the area. In 1956,
Chinese Foochows moved from Sibu and
setled down in Simanggang for rubber

planting. In 1959, there were 3,000 acres
already planted with rubber. After the signing
of the "M d of 1 ing"

between the then Chief ister of Sarawak,
Datuk Patinggi Haji Abdul Rahman Ya'kub
1d the then communist leader, Bong Kee
Chok, on 21.10.1973, Simanggang took its
new Bandar Sri Aman. Most of the
people in Sri Aman are farmers, planting
padi, pepper, rubber, fruits and vegetables on
a small scale. Some are fishermen and there

ame:

are merchants and loggers as well.

During the Brooke Rule, Sri Aman
Division was administered by a Resident, who
enjoyed tremendous riches and power. He
often changed his policies on important
matters such as land and taxes. The
Simanggang Malays became the intermediary
between the Resident and the lower rank
officers of the Brooke Regime and the
general public. On the whole, the White
Rulers brought minimal changes and
minimal improvement to the people. Only
very few of the Ibans, who had no formal

education, had the courage to oppose the
unfair ‘head taxes’ (Cukai Kepala) imposed by
the Brooke Regime.

The Malays of Kampung Hulu and
Kampung Tengah of Bandar Sri Aman came
from the various Malay Kampungs around  the
Skrang River, which before the Brooke era,
had been a very powerful centre of
administrative and trade activities.  Some
s were said to have immigrated to Bandar
Sri Aman (Simanggang) from smaller villages
around Nanga Lemanak, near Engkilili. Abang
Aing and Panglima Taib were two wellknown
Malay leaders responsible for the consolidation
of these Malay fragmented villages, around
Nanga Skrang and Nanga Lemanak, which had
been frequent targets of auacks by the pirates.
They were among the most respected Malay
leaders in the Skrang and Batang Lupar areas.
They worked very hard to unite their followers
and to leave their smaller Kampungs to settle in
much bigger, safer and more peaceful villages
such as Kampung Hulu and Kampung Hilir in
Sri Aman.

As Bandar Sri Aman grew into an
important seat of government and a centre of
business activities, more and more people
especially the Chinese and the Ibans as well,
came to settle here in large number. In fact, the
entire Simanggang Bazaar has been the
landmark of Chinese settlement here, Many
Iban longhouses and some Malay Kampungs
are also found at the outskirt of Bandar Sri
Aman. Sri Aman (Simanggang) is also
popularly known as the centre of Iban
community.




IV. ECONOMIC ACTIVITIES

In the past, the primary economic
activity in Sri Aman Division was farming
and the people were engaged in rubber
planting, hill and wet padi cultivation. In the
1989, production of coal in Silantek began.
Lately, oil palm plantations have been set up
on a commercial scale in all the districts.
SALCRA is mainly responsible for the
establishment of oil palm schemes. In Lubok
Antu District, the main arcas planted with
oil palms are Merindun and Batu Kaya
where: the Sri Aman District, the arcas
are Pakit, Po-ai, Nyelam, Empadi, Panw,
Entawa and San Ugol. In Saribas and Kalaka
districts, the areas are mostly along Sri
Aman/Saratok Road and Ulu Roban as well.

Tod more than 13,000 hectares of land in
Sri Division are planted with oil
palms. Besides, there are two big rubber
schemes in Melugu and Skrang areas.

Anotherbig project known as Integrated
Agriculture Development Project (IADP) is
also being implemented in Kalaka/Saribas
arcas.

There are two oil palm mills at Lubok
Antu and Saratok.  One oil palm complex
costing RM4.2 million was built near Roban.
All these commercial projects not only
create employments but also bring extra
income 1o the local people.  For the coastal
dwellers, the people are largely engaged in
inshore fishing in places such as Kabong,
Beladin, Pusa, Meludam and Lingga.

rawak first eco-hotel is located at
Batang Ai hydro-clectric dam.  There are
many longhouses along Batang Skrang
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which are popularly visited both by (nrugn
tourists and local people. The Skrang Safari
disembarks at Pangkalan Pais along Sri
Aman/Betong Road. The tourists go to
Skrang longhouses to spend night there in
order to attend cultural and traditional
shows performed by the locals. Tourism
brings foreign tourists and foreign money to
the area and at the same time the local Ibans
m extra income from them by providing
transport, accommodation and cultural
performance to them.

The two most popular River Safari
destinations are:-

1) The Skrang River Safari

Skrang is an exciting destination

itors who wish o see and
experience the life in a traditional
longhouse, once the home of the
“pirates” and  head-
hunters. The journey to Skrang
is about 232 kilometres from
Kuching. It takes about 4 hours by
road and followed by a one and
half hours by motor-propelled
longboat journey along the Skrang
river.

notorious

Spending the night at a longhouse
1o see the waditons and customs
of the Ibans is a great experience.
The lubhllghl of the Skrang River

is an evening entertainment
by the longhouse residents,
featuring traditional dances and
music. Tuak, a specially brewed

rice wine, is served during the
evening entertainment.



2. The Lemanak River Safari

A jungle walk on the
following day is equally
interesting. It is an
exciting experience o
stroll  through  the
dense tropical rainforest,
where stimulating sights
and sounds open up a
world = of wonderful
discovery.

Lemanak is a tributary of
the main Batang Lupar
River. Many traditional
longhouses  can  be
found sitwated along
the river bank. Like
Skrang, the Lemanak
River is another exciting
destination within easy

reach from Kuching.
About 220 kilometres
away from Kuching,

Lemanak can be reached
in about 4 hours by
road. The journcy passes
through  the  scenic
countryside, rubber and
pepper plantations, padi fields,
sago palms and followed by an
hour of motorised-longboat ride
P ing the tropical

through meandering stream.

An overnight stay gives you an
opportunity to have a glimpse to the
lifestyle of the longhouse and its

people. An evening entertainment
by the longhouse folks is most

interesting  and  educational.
Traditional dances and music are
the highlight of the evening
entertainment. Cock-fighting and
jungle trekking on the following day
are other highlights of the Lemanak
River Safari.

Magnificent
Chinese

Sri Aman
Bus Station.




Silantek Coal

Silantek
which

field
is ted
within Pantu  Sub-
district  contains  a
measured reserve of
7.3 million tonnes,
with inferred reserves
exceeding a further
50 million  tonnes.
The earliest reference
ek coal was in
Between then
1962, severs
tions  were
undertaken. Further
investigations between
1969 to 1981 were
carried out by se
oversea
Finally, in
mining certificate was
issued to the Lucky
Hill Mining Sdn. Bhd.
over the castern part
of the Silantek coal
field covering an arca
of 2,100  hectares.
Production began in

ay 1989 and 9,979 tonne:
were produced during that y
of which 7990 were exported.
Production for 1990 wa
tonnes. However, the operation
was suspended in carly 1991,

coal
situ

V.

its fare share of
interesting historical sites, forts and tourist
spots. There are altogether seven forts built
by the Brooke Regime partly to provide its
to members of the

daily administration

Resident’s
Office,

Sri Aman.

Sri Aman
Divisional
Mosque.




Fort Alice,
Sn Aman.

public but mainly to control-and atack
Sarawakians who refused to be ruled by the
White Men. The forts are:-

Name of Fort (Kubu)

1)

Year Built

Kubu James, Nanga Skrang 1849
(Dismantled in 1863)

Kubu Alice, Sri Aman 1864
Kubu Lily, Betong 1855
Kubu Charles, Kabong 1878
Kubu Ranee, Saratok 1888

Antu 1912
1924

Kubu Arundell, Lubol
Kubu Leonora, Engkilili

1) Fort Alice (1864)

Alice, which  commands
1t view from the banks of
the Batang Lupar, represents a
unique historical heritage of Sri
Aman. It was declared as a historical
monument on 1 971 Tt
of the oldest forts in Sarawak, having
originally been built at Nanga
Skrang in 1849 (then known as Fort

is one
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James named after the fist White
Rajah Sir James Brooke) and then re-
crected, at its present site using much
of the original building materials in
1864.

The fort, like other forts in Sarawak, is
built of Belian and it is the only fort of
its kind in the State. It has a square
floorplan with a watch-ower at each
corner. What is attractive about this
fortis the large open central courtyard
as well as its entrance steps which can
be drawn up in time of awack. The
whole fortress is surrounded by a
fence of sharped iron spikes.

Fort James was built to control  the
activities of the Ibans (especially Hero
Rentap and his Skrang allies) from the
Saribas and the Skrang areas. On
31.7.1849, a great battle was fought at
Beting Maru between Kuala Saribas
and Kalaka rivers. In 1863, Fort James
was dismantled and in 1864, the
building materials were shifted 10
kilometres downriver 1o its present
location, It was then renamed Fort
Alice in 1870 after Rance Margaret's
second Christian name. There was an
old tradition observed at the fort for a
hundred years untl 1964. This was
the evening call at eight o'clock by the
policeman until the police moved out
of the fort in 1965. It was the time
for the Resident of Simanggang (Sri
Aman) Division to have his dinner
and the drawing bridge was drawn up
for the night.

{
i
1
2
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‘The call (in Iban language)

Oh ha! Oh ha! Oh ha!

am diatu pukul lapan
ngga udah ditarik

Pintu udah ditambit

Orang ari ulu

Orang ari ili

Nadai tau niki kubu agi

Translation

Oh ha! Oh ha! Oh ha!

The time is now eight o’clock
The steps have been drawn up
The door is closed

People from upriver

People from downriver

Are notallowed to come to
the fort anymore

them a free reign in
their own area. On
31.7.1849, with the
help of three British
arships, he launched
an attack against the
natives at  night at
Beting Maru between
{uala  Saribas  and
aka rivers, and thus
put an end to their

political power. The

In those days, Fort Alice mounted
some guns and the White Rajah

garrisoned it with a  swong
detachment of Sarawak Rangers.
The fort was situated in a strategic

position o prevent the powerful
Skrang  Ibans  from  passing
downriver 1o the sea to join their
strong partners, the Saribas Tha
These Dayaks were supposed o be
ferocious “pirates” who practised
ampant head-hunting raids against
the weaker tribes in the lower Batang
Lupar.

This gave the White Rajah and his
administrators ample  excuse 1o
curtain their so<alled activities. It
was also the same site as that taken by
Captain Keppel of the Dido, in his
expedition against Skrang “pirates”
in 1844, It was obvious that it took
the White Rajah a great deal of
trouble to subdue the strongly Anti-
Rajah - Movement and  he was
determined that he would not allow
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fact that the British
warships had been used 1o suppress
the local natives caused a great uproar
in the Briush Parliament.

The natives were no match for the
guns  of the British warships.
I liately after this, Mr. Crookshank
was sent to build the fort at Skrang and
put it under the charge of Sherip
Matussin. M. Bereton, only twenty
years of age was also sent 1o take charge
of the fort assisted by Alan Lee.

In 1850, Rentap, a local warrior and
hero decided to atack the  fort
known as Kubu James. Before he
could do so. Bereton and Alan Lee
brought up a strong force of Balau
Ibans from the Lingga River, went
upriver to meet him. Alan Lee was
killed on 26.4.1850 by Layang, the
son-in-law of Rentap, but Kubu James
remained intact.  From that day
onwards, there had never been any
fear of attack on the fort. However, it
took three expeditions on part of the
White Rajah to defeat our Hero




Rentap, but he never surrendered to
the intruder - Brooke.

From 1864 to 1869, Fort Alice came
under Henry Stuart Johnson, the
younger brother of the second White
Rajah, who was Resident of Batang
Lupar and Saribas. Fort Alice was also
the first station in which the third
ajah served his cadewship at
the age of sevent The disastrous
cholera epidemic started from Fort
Alice in 1902 when 2,000 men out of
a force of 12,000 died without even
coming within sight of the enemy.

For a long time, Fort Alice
represented a complete  station.
Besides serving as a fort, it was also
used as the Officers’ Quarters, the
Government  Offices, the Court
House, the Police Station and even
the Prison Department. Fort Alice
has been gazetted as a historical
building but there are plans to
restore it to its former glory.

The Deputy Chief Minister of 2
Sarawak, Datuk Amar Dr.
George Chan inspected the
historical fort on 12.1.1999 to
plan for the reconstruction of
the fort at the estimated cost
of RML8 million.

Although there were isolated
cases of head-hunting during
the reign of Rajah Charles
Vyner Brooke, there was no
longer any major war. The
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2)

different native tribes and ethnic
groups had already realised the
importance of peace and stability in
the country and the feuding tribes
began to make peace. On 4.8.1920,
Sir Charles Vyner Brooke witnessed
a big peace-making ceremony in
Simanggang. At this peace-making
ceremony the Ibans of Ulu Ai and
Engkari, and the Ibans of Skrang,
Layar and Lemanak, in front of the
third White Rajah, expressed their
decision to end their feuds and make
peace with each other.

Rumah Sri Aman

Rumah Sri Aman, the most unique
building found in the area is another
historical building found in the town.
Sitated high on the hill, it was
formerly called the Government Rest
House. Before it became the Rest
House, it was the official bungalow of
the Resident, Simanggang. It was

Sri Aman.



here that a Memorandum of
Understanding  was signed
between  the  then  Chicf
Minister Tun Abdul Rahman
Ya'kub and Bong Kee Chok,
Commander and Commissar
of North Kalimantan Peoples’
Arm (Pasukan  Rakyat
Kalimantan Utara or
PARAKU) on 21.10.1973, thus
ending man, ars of strife
nd conflict. On 19.3.1974, it
was officially renamed as
“Rumah Sri Aman”.

The ‘Operation Sri Aman’ was the
peace movement that ended the ten-
year turbulence in Sarawak. This was
a significant event in the modemn
history of Sarawak. The armed
struggle by the communists had
caused a heavy loss in terms of
finance and lives. The Sarawak
Government's effort in seting up
the Rajang  Security Command
(RASCOM) in 1972 gradually gained
control of the ation as well as the
setting up of armed Vigilante Corps
(RELA) by the local residents. First
batch of Sarawak armed communists
laid down their weapons and
returned to society.

Rumah St Aman is now a VIP
rest house used by ministers and
top  government  officers.  The
surrounding area of pine trees and
tall trees has been carmarked for a
public park soon.

3)

“Benak™ - Tidal Bore

The people of Bandar Sri Aman
have a habit  of  grouping
themselves along Batang Lupar
riverbank or go up to the hill
where the famous Fort Alice is
sited in order to see for a
phenomenon that is rarely seen
Ily it occurs during
v and cighteenth day
lunar calenda

elsewhere. U
the third da
of the Chinese
month and when the high tide is
rushing up the mighty Baang
Lupar.  To the locals, this
phenomenon s like a dragon
which roars by an incredible speed
for it often rushes up so fast
one could miss it with a blink of
the eye.

When will the phenomenon occur?
Sometime last year, the author went
10 Sri Aman. It happened it was the

Memorandum
signing
ceremony at
Rumah Sn
Aman between
YAB the Chief
Minister of
Sarawak, Tun
Datuk Patingi
Haji Abdul
Rahman
Yakub and
Director of
PARAKU Bong
Kee Chok on
21. 10. 1975,



third day of the Chinese lunar
calendar month, the strange
phenomenon could be seen at the
small jetty along Batang Lupar. At
first I saw express boats at the side of
the wharf giving out a shrilling alarm
and then the activity along Batang
Lupar heightened with all small
ships and boats moving towards
the centre of the river. Suddenly 1
saw the express boats rocking

dangerously from side to side. The
sound grew louder and 1 saw big
waves crashed onto the shore. The
ing, rushing and
g angry torrent a
few metres away from the river bank.
It happened so in a sudden
and it ended in such a sudden
as well. People went back to

their houses and the river
bank remained quict. This
strange  phenomenon  is
locally known as “Benak™. To
the locals, the “Benak” has
the head, the il and the
children.

What is “Ben: Based on
the interview with the locals,
it is a tidal bore created
when the force of the tide
water rushes up  the river causing
the river emptying into the sea o
reverse its flow. The height of the
tidal bore depends on the time of
the year, weather and phase of
the moon. The tidal action is
significant for the speed in which a
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large volume of water fills the river
channel.

The unique feature about Benak in
the Batang Luparis thatit reaches its
height at the river in front of the Sri
Aman Town, which is an astounding

A pair of doves -
the symbol of
peace in Sri
Aman.

Building.

izt



38 kilometres from its mouth. The
tidal bore travels further up river for
another 30 kilometres to reach
Engkilili, a toal of 68 kilometres
from South China Sea! Another
unique feature of the Batang Lupar
“Benak™ is that it can reach up to a
height of more than one to two
metres, which is supposed to be
the highest in the world. To me,
“Benak” is obviously one of the local
wonders in Sarawak. To the locals,
they can see the “Benak” very often.
Nevertheless, outsiders including
mysell who view the “Benak”
definitely envy the local wonder in
their life time.

Batang Ai National Park

The Park has an area of 24,040
hectares and its locality is within
Lubok Antu District in Sri Aman
Division. It was  gazetted as a
National Park in 1991,

This beautiful national park is the
home of one of the world's most
endangered species, the Orang
Utan. Besides being home to many
other protected wildlifes like the
hombills and gibbons, it is also the
water catchment arca of Sarawak’s
only artificial lake. This huge lake
stretches up the Engkari and Batang
Ai valleys. The dam is part of the
Batng Ai Hydroclectric complex.
Beyond the artificial lake, more than
an hour's boat ride upriver from the

dam, visitors can see beautiful lowtand
mixed dipterocarp forest, with
drooping trees overhanging the rivers.
River transport is the main mode of
communication here. The rivers are
fast flowing, clear and very refreshing.
During dry weather, the water level
gets quite low and visitors have to help
pushing their boats upstream - an
enjoyable experience.

Another major attraction upriver is the
Iban longhouses. Visitors can  get to
experience the authentic longhouse
atmosphere as most of the longhouse
dwellers still practise their traditional
lifestyle. The Ibans also produce local
handicrafts, like their ‘Pua Kumbu',
ratan backpacks ‘Selabit’ and ratan
mats “Tikai Lampit’

At the moment, the National Parks
and Wildlife Office does not have any
visitor facilities yet. Some private tour
companies, however. do  provide
visitors accommodation.  Trails are
now available in the park. There are
4 rails 10 choose from and they pass
through mixed dipterocarp forest, old
secondary forest, active  shifting
cultivations  and  ancient  burial
ground.

The Park is located about 250
kilometres from Kuching City. Batang
Ai Hiltlon Longhouse Resort and
several longhouses have
accommodation facilities just outside
the park.




This Park is unique in having the
local communitics involved in its
g The ¢ it
have formed a co-operative known
as ‘Kooperasi Serbaguna Ulu
Batang Ai’ and is helping the
Forest Department to conserve the
park. Visitors are encouraged to
use the boating facilities offered by
the co-operative as their funds are
kept within the community for
continued development purposes.

VI.  SRI AMAN OPERATION:
SARAWAK’S SUCCESS IN
ERADICATING THE COMMUNIST
THREAT

The day 4.3.1974 was a memorable
date in the history of Sarawak. It signified ¢
trning point for the State and its multi-
racial populace.

To mark the victory against
communism, a conference, referred o as
the Sri Aman Conference, was held at the
Dewan Pembangunan Tun Abdul Razak in
Kuching on 4.3.1974 at 9.00 am.. It was
attended by 100 journalists from all over the
world as well as the reporters from the state
and national newspapers. The date saw the
beginning of the Sri Aman Operation and it
signified the disarmament and surrender of
585 communists headed by Bong Kee Chok.
To mark the success of Sri Aman Operation,
the State Government of Sarawak declared
5.3.1974 as a public holiday throughout the
State.

For 12 years, from December 1962 to
March 1974, the security situation in Sarawak
was very bleak so much so that Sarawak was
nicknamed “Litle Vietam”. But, through
Sarawak's new leadership under the then Chief
Minister of Sarawak, Datuk Patinggi Haji Abdul
Rahman Ya'kub, and other leaders who were
farsighted, the security situation which
resembled Viemam changed into one which
was stable and Sarawakians began to feel the
real significance of independence through
Malaysia.

The Sri Aman Operation was not an
act of selling the country's sovercignty. It
was the wish of all leaders to bring an end to
a conflict, to give the leaders the
opportunity to think and devise plans for
development as well as to project the State's
new image in Malaysia. The communist
insurgency was a total fruitless and brutal
affair. Many lives were lost along the way. It
could not be ended through bloodshed but
through winning the hearts and minds of
the terrorists. The Sarawak Government,
with the help of the Federal Government,
changed its tactics 1o win over the so-called
Pasukan  Rakyat  Kalimantan  Utara
(PARAKU). Development plans to improve
the political, economic and social spheres of
life of the people were well under way, even
before Operation Sri Aman was in force.

Operation Sri Aman was done through
the vision and courage of Sarawak leaders,
especially that of Datuk Patinggi Haji Abdul
Rahman Ya'kub who had been responsible
for the peace, stability and prosperity in




Sarawak. He was also fortunate to have
ters and officials who shared his vi
ightedness. Tt was indeed a relief to
insurgencices
surrender for
peace through the Sri Aman Operation.
The principle behind  the Sri Aman
peration had worked because our leaders
had the knowledge and insight into the
motives  of the communist  guerrillas.
Knowing the cause of their grouses made it
casier to find solutions to these problems.

The success of the Sri Aman
Operation was hailed throughout the world
as a stroke of genius and a victory not only
for the people of Sarawak but also the
triumph of democracy over communism.
Datuk Patinggi Haji Abdul Rahman Ya'kub
was hailed as a hero of democracy.

Without  the Aman  Operation,
Sarawak would stll be in a state of war and
unrest. It would not be able to enjoy the
progress because a4 major portion of the
revenue carned would be channelled o
military  expenditure  to combat  the
communists menace.  With the reveniie
diverted to military spending, Sarawak would
have been still backward and poor.

VII. HERO OF SRI AMAN DIVISION

The most outstanding and well-known
Sarawakian leader in the olden days was
none other than the famous Iban hero from
Sri Aman Division. He was Panglima Rentap
who refused to be ruled by the White Rajah.
“Rentap” which means “one who makes the

world shake™ in the Iban language was born
about the year 1800 and lived most of his life
in Ulu Skrang/Saribas river arcas.

When Rentap first heard the changes
of the Government in Kuching in 1841 and
the plans that James Brooke wanted to put
an end to “piracy” along the coast of
Sarawak, he was both amused and angry. He
amused at Brooke's claim to govern
and was determined to prevent him
from interfering with his traditional way of
life.  To him, James Brooke was nothing
more than a pirate himself, a man who stole
the land, took taxes and imposed unjust laws
on his people. Moreover, Rentap hated
James Brooke who brought in other
foreigners to rule over

people.

Rentap and his- men took an activ
partin the famous Battle of Beting Maru on
31.7.1849 against the Brooke's force. When

Panglima
Rentap




Rentap realised that Brooke had won the
battle, he withdrew to Bukit Sadok together
with his followers and he considered himself
as “Rajah Ulu” or “Inland King” to fight
against the intruder - James Brooke. On
26.4.1850, Rentap ambushed Brooke's force
at Nanga Skrang and his son-in-law, Layang,
managed to kill Alan Lee, the English
Officer-in-charge of Lingga reinforcement.

First Sadok Expedition was organised
by Charles Johnson Brooke on 2.6.1857 to
attack Rentap at Sadok. The stronghold of
Rentap was unable to break through after
Brooke's force spent cight days on the
mountain top. So the first Sadok Expedition
against our hero Rentap by the Brooke
authority was unsuccessful.

In August, 1858, another atempt by
Brooke's force to crush our Hero Rentap's
power was a total failure again on the part of
the intruders. Rentap and his followers
bravely drove away the Brooke's force with
poisioned darts, stones and gunfire.

The third attempt by the Brooke
Regime against our Hero Rentap w:
carriecd out on 16.10.1861.  With better
equipment including a rocketfirer, a 12
pounder gun “Bujang Sadok” and a 6
pounder gun together  with  Chinese
workers, Negro troops and many Dayak as
well as Malay forces, the intruder managed
10 break through Rentap's stronghold.

When Rentap realised that he and his
men could not defend his fort at Bukit
Sadok anymore, he and his force retreated
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10 Bukit Lanjak and then moved down to
Entabai, Kanowit. Although his power might
have been broken by the intruder, Rentap
did not surrender. When he died of old age
sometime in 1870, he was not buried but
honourably laid down to rest in a mortuary
known as “Lumbong” and his remains was
keptin a jar.

Rentap was a great leader who had the
fighting courage and bravery, talent and
ability in leading the attacks and defences
against the White Men’s rule. In spite of his
limited manpower and inferior weapons,
Rentap and his force could go on fighting
for cight long years and withstood three
onslaughts of the intruder’s force. Rentap
was indeed a man of principle. He swore
that he would never see the face of a white
man again. It was true that he never saw any
white man again until his death. He met
several defeats but he never surrendered.
Although he had been branded as a great
rebel leader by the Brooke's Regime, he was
actually a freedom fighter and a nationalist
who fought against the intruder. A new
memorial tomb was installed for him by
the State Government of Sarawak as a
token of Rentap's fight for freedom and
independence from the Brooke's Regime at
Bukit Sibau, Pakan on 28.10.1989. It was
declared open by Y.B. Tan Sri Datuk Amar
Alfred Jabu ak Numpang, the Deputy
Chief Minister of Sarawak and the then
Minister for Agriculture and Community
Development.

In Betong, he was well remembered.
The Saribas District Council Building,




Dewan Masyarakat Building
and a town road are all named
after this great man. The
lounge at Damai Lagoon Hotel
is known as "Rentap Lounge”.
Rentap was declared as one of
the heroes of Sarawak by the
State Government of Sarawak
on 27.7.1993. His figure was
protrayed in relicf on a plague

around the  ba: of the
Heroes' Monument at
Museum  Garden, Kuching.

Until today, Rentap is stll
being considered as the most
famous warrior and obdurate
opponent to Brooke Rule in
the history of Sarawak.

VIII. OUTSTANDING PERSONNELS IN
SRI AMAN DIVISION

Sri Aman is a rural division but it has
produced outstanding personnels not only
s such as Hero Rentap but
k achieved independence
in 1963, Below is the list of
sion.

in the olden
also after Sara
within Malaysi
outstanding personnels in the

1

“Tan Sri Datuk Amar Stephen Kalong
Ningkan from Layar Betong, Saribas
was the first: Chiel Minister of
arawak from 22.7.1963 to 16.6.1966
and from 7.9.1966 1o 23.9.1966. He
ry-General of
(SNAP)
n‘gl\lcn'd on I(H 1961. He passed

was the f
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3

Datuk Amar Dunstan Endawie
Enchana.

Datuk Simon Dembab Maja.

away in Kuching on 31.3.1997 at the
age of 76. A road in Kuching is
named after him.

Datuk Penghulu Tawi Sli from
Sri Aman was the second Chief
Minister  of  Sarawak  from
17.6.1966 to 7.9.1966 and from
24.9.1966 10 6.7.1970. He died on
22121987, A road in Kuching
and another road in Sri Aman arce
named after him,

Dawk  Amar Dunstan  Endawic
Enchana from Krian Saratok was the
State Minister for Local Government
from 22.7.1963 to 16.6.1966 and
from 7.9.1966 1966 and
Deputy Chief Minister of Sarawak
from 9.9.1974 10 26.3.1981.




Y.B. Tan Sri Datuk Amar (Dr)
Alfred Jabu ak Numpang.

4) Dawk Simon Dembab Maja from
Engkilili was the Deputy Chief
Minister of Sarawak and Minister for
Lands and Mineral Resources from
7.7.1970 10 22.7.1973.

5) Tun Datuk Patinggi Haji Ahmad
Zaidi Mohamad Nor who was the
Council Negri Member from Kalaka
was the Minister for Local
Government  from  9.9.1974 10

1979. A road in Kuching is

named after Tun.

6) Y.B. Tan Sri Dawk Amar (Dr)
Alfred Jabu ak Numpang who is
the Council Negri Member from
Layar, Betong is the Deputy Chicf
Minister from 9.9.1974 until today.
He is also the State Minister for Land
Development.

8

9

)

B. Encik Dublin Unting ak
Ingkot.

Y.B. Encik Dublin Unting ak
Ingkot who is the Council Negri
Member from Batang Ai, Lubok
Antu is the Assistant Minister for
Social Development Sarawak from
2.1.1998 until today.

Y.B. Encik Peter Nyarok ak Entrie
who is the Council Negri
Member from Krian Saratok is the
State  Assistant  Minister  for
Tourism Sarawak from 2.1.1998
until  today.

Y.B. Datuk Peter Tinggom ak
Kamarau who is the Member of
Parliament from Saratok. He was
the Deputy Federal Minister for
tional Unity and Social
lopment until 9. 12.1999.




Y.B. Datuk Peter Tinggom ak.

Kemarau.

10) Y.B. Dawk Douglas
Uggah  Embas  who
is the Member of
Parliament from
Betong. He was the
Parliament g
Secretary of Minis)
for Rural Development
until 12. 1999 and
he ppointed as
the Deputy  Federal
Minister in the Prime
Minister’s Department
on 11.12.1999.

Z

Y.B. Encik Bolhassan bin Haji Di.

11) YB. Encik Bolhassan
bin Haji Di who is the Member of
Council Negri from Beting Maro is

the Assistant. Minister in the Chief

Minister's Office.

12) Encik Hollis Tini from Sri Aman was
the Assistant Minister for Welfare in
the 1980s until March 1987 A road

Y.B. Datuk Douglas Ugigah Embas.

Y.B. Encik Peter Nyarok ak Entrie.

Encik Hollis ak Tini.

in Sri Aman is named after him.  He
passed away on 20.1.1993.

13) Datuk Daniel Tajem ak Miri who was a

Member of Council Negri from Bukit
Begunan was the Deputy Chief Minister
of  Sarw and  Minister  for
Communication and Works from 26.3.81




Datuk Daniel Tajem ak Miri.

1o March, 1987. He is now Malaysian
High Commissioner in New Zealand.

14) Dak Edmund Langgu ak Saga
from Saratok was the Deputy
Federal Ministe for Agriculture.

15) Tan Sri Dawk Gerunsin Lembat

from Saratok was the first
n appointed as the State
i and he retired
il Service in 1979.
ay in Kuching on

He passed
12.12.1995.

IX. SRIAMAN BIG FIRE

Since the establishment of Simanggang
Bazaar (Sri Aman) in 1864 the bazaar was
gutted by fire three times. In 1864 after Fort
Alice was built, a group of Chinese Teochews
built about 10 units of Attap shophouses along
the existing Main Bazaar for petty trading with
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Tan Sri Datuk Gerunsin Lembat.

the local people there. However, in 1868,
Simanggang Bazaar was gutted by a big fire but
within the same year, the shopkeepers rebuilt
the shophouses. The second big fire occurred
on 13.1.1928 in which two rows of 56 wooden




shophouses in the Main Bazaar were
completely gutted by fire. After the big fire,
Sir Charles Vyner Brooke, the third Wi
Rajah of Sarawak visited the site and he
approved the financial grant of $1,500/-
for every shop owner to rebuild the
shophouses. All the shophouses were rebuilt
at the beginning of 1929,

The third big fire started
on 7.2.1983 at about 11.45
pm. Two rows consisting 20
units of about 50-year old
shophouses in the Main Bazaar
were  gutted by fire.

Fortunately, there was no loss
of

human  life in  both
ons. Today, all the 3 rows
of shophouses facing Batang
Lupar River are replaced by
Sstorey concerete shophouses.

X TRANSPORTATION IN
THE OLDEN DAYS
In the olden days prior
to the  construction  of
Kuching/Sri Aman  Road,
communication between Sri
Aman and  other 1s
especially Kuching and Sibu
were all by riverine transport.
Before the use of engine ships,
it 1ok the sailing-wind ships
ri

about two weeks from
Aman 1o reach Kuching.
After  the introduction  of

steamships, it still took o
days and one night to arrive
in Kuching.

In 1960 before the completion of
Kuching/Sri Aman Road, it took a vehicle
about 6 hours to travel along the gravel and
muddy road to reach Kuching. After the
road was tarred, it takes about three hours to
drive from Sri Aman to Kuching.

There was an airstrip about 3 kilometres
from Sri Aman Town and it was built in the year

Hoover
Hotel - the
Highest
Building in
Sri Aman.

Simanggang
Theatre,
Sri Aman.



1960. It was used especially before
Kuching/Sri Aman  Road was
accessible to the public and

ially during the Ind ia/
confrontation  time.

er, with effect from 1979, the Ghost's
e was stopped due to lack lholnr'
of customers. Demon's
Pool where
Lubok
XI. Lubok Antu District Antu got
its name.

1) Lubok Antu in General

Lubok Antu Bazaar is the
administrative
headquarters of  Lubok
Antu District which covers
an arca of 2,338 square
kilometres.  The district
has one sub-district i.c.
Engkilili.  Based on 1991
census, Lubok Antu had a
population of 22,270, the
majority of them are the
Ibans. The Chinese and
the Malays are the minor
communities staying
around Lubok Antu Bazaar
and  Engkilili  Bazaar.
However, based on 1999

Orang
Utan - the
Landmark
of Lubok
Antu.

MidYear Population Estimate, the olden days, people taking bath or

District had a population of 26,400. swimming in the pool had a fecling

Orang Utan is the landmark of that someone at the bottom of the
Lubok Antu. pool was trying to pull them down. |
They believed it was the work of the H

2) How did Lubok Antu get its name. invisible power. Slowly, the pool

The name “Lubok Antu” derives became welkknown as the ghostly

from a pool just at the side of Fort pooland in local term “Lubok Antu™
Arundell, the District Office. In the until today.
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There was another legend
related by Mr. Peter Goullart
in his book “River of the
White Lily™ in 1965 that
Lubok Anti was known as
“Demon’s Pool™. In the olden
ays, an old and monstrously
large crocodile atways lurked
at the bottom and surfaced
only to seize an unwary beast
which came out of the jungle
for a drink, or a man,
unfortunate enough to have
his boat overturmed at this
malignant spot. The local
people  believed  that  the
crocodile was an evil spirit.
The evil spirit which lived in
the pool eventug ade the
place to be known as “Lubok
Ant”,

Lubok Antu Bazaar

Lubok Antu Bazaar which was
first established in 1872 has 16
old  doublestorey  wooden
shophouses, Lubok  Antu
Council Market and a Chinese
Temple along Kapitan Chua Kam
Boon Road. Another 6 double-
storey concrete shophouses and the

bus station are found at the back of

the main bazaar along Penghulu
Ngali Road. The only hotel in the
bazaar is Kelingkang Inn which is
housed in the 3storey concrete
building. Altogether there are 23
shophouses in Lubok Antu Bazaar,

Although Lubok Antu is a small
bazaar, the river front along Batang
i has a beautiful landscaping arca
and  children playground. Upon
the completion of 83-kilometre Sri
Aman/Lubok  Antu Road  with
effect from 17.6.1967, the riverine
transport from Engkilili to Lubok
Antu Bazaar ceased its activity. The
Bazaar from that time onwards is

accessible by road.

Fort
Arundell,
Lubok

Antu

Lubok
Antu
Bazaar.
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Forts

There are two forts being
built by the Brooke Regime
in  the district.  Fort
Arundell was constructed in
1912 in Lubok Anw. It was
named in honour of the
Resident  of Simanggang
Division (Sri Aman
Division), Mr. Gilbert Roger
Hamris Arundell.  He was
killed in the Ulu Ai in
1942 when the Japanese
attacked Sarawak during
World War II. The fort was rebuilt
in 1947, Fort Leonora which was
built in Engkilili in 1924 was
named after the wife of the third
White Rajah Sir Charles Vyner
Brooke and it was also the name of
his eldest daughter. During the
colonial days, Fort Leonora was
renovated and became the office of
Lubok Antu District Council. A
new buidling for Engkilili Sub-
District which carried the name of
Fort Leonora was built a litde
further away from the “old fort” on
a small hill top. Now it is being
Sub-district.  Office,

0il Palm Plantation

A total of 8,255 hectares of oil palm
plantations thrive in the vicinity of
the Batang Ai hydro-electric power
station and the surrounding areas.
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An oil palm mill was constucted
along Lubok Antu Road and the
crude palm oil is exported to
Singapore, Bangladesh, India and
European countries. The oil palm
projects have provided many job
opportunitics for the local people
in the district. One oil palm
processing factory was built at
Jalan Ridan/Lubok Antu at the
cost of RM16.6 million and it was
declared open by YAB the Chief
Minister, Datuk nggi Tan Sri
(Dr.) Haji Abdul Taib Mahmud on
5.5.1985.

Batang Ai Hydro-electric Power Station
Sarawak's first hydro-clectric power
station is located at Batang Ai in
Lubok Antu district. Builtata cost of
RM560 million, the plant generates
108 MW power and 614 GWB of

New Fort
Leonora,

Enghalili.

e



energy i The power station
was officially declared open by the
Prime Minister of Malaysia, YAB

i Dr. Mahathir Mohamad on

There are altogether four dams
namely Main Dam, Lima Saddle
Dam, Bekatan Saddle Dam and
addle Dam which make
up Batang Ai Station. It is managed
by the Sarawak Electricity Supply
Corporation  (SESCO). In 1977,
feasibility studies for the project were
first conducted. Five years later the
Batang Ai river was diverted. In April

1985, the first unit came into service
and in September 1985, the last
fourth unit was completed for
operation.

XII EARLY CHINESE SETTLEMENT IN
ENGKILILI

Engkilili is a sub-district of Lubok Antu
and based on 1991 Census, it
population of 12,561, Engkilili Ba
first established in 1888, In 1920, there were
3 Auap shophouses and then it was

reased up to 12 shophouses.  However,
1930, 8 of the Attap shophouses were
gutted by fire. Today, Engkilili has about 80

The

Batang Ai
Hydropower
Station
supiplies
electricity to
Kuching
and its
surrounding
areas. Itis
operated by
SESCO and
it generates
10SMW and
614GWB
energy per
annum.



Enghilili

Bazaar.

shophouses of which 49 of them are old
wooden shophouses which were built from
1917 onwards. Engkilili derived its name
from a local fruit which were plenty around
Engkil in the olden day Lubok
Antu District Council has made an effort to
plant some Engkilili trees in the park area
near District Office, Engkilili. The fruits are
red in colour, sweet but with a bit of sour
taste. In 1854, Chinese Hakka immigrants
led by Bong Chic came from Pontianak and
Sambas in Kalimantan Indonesia to Engkilili
through Tebedu in Serian. The Hoppo
kka numbering about 300-500 were
acted to Marup because of the gold
deposit there, They came to Marup to work
in the gold mine but some of them became
padi and vegetable farmers. In 1917,
Chinese Teochews began to settle down in
Engkil and most of them were traders
aying in Engkilili Bazaar.

Based on the Sarawak Gazette of
September 1870, there were about 450
Chinese settled down at Marup, Engkilili. At
that time, Marup was one of the best known
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gold fields in Sarawak and it yielded the
highest quality gold ore. Hence, the Chinese
formed the Fifteen Kongsi at Marup to run
their daily administration.  Today, most of
the Chinese Hakka in Engkilili including
the old headman Bong Nam Siong, aged 91,
were the descendents of the Fifteen Kongsi
Chinese. Today, gold ore deposit still occurs
at Subang in the Marup Valley and the
Sungai Sleh area is identified as a promising
gold ore deposit arca.

XIII. BETONG DISTRICT (SARIBAS)
1) Betong in General

Betong is the administrative
headquarters of Saribas District. The
district takes its name from the

Enghiliti Fruit,

T "



Rubber -
the symbol
of Betong,

Saribas  River  which Bes
flows from its source at
Bukit Sadok whereas the
town derives its name
from a kind of big
bamboo locally known
as “Buluh Betong™ and
its scientific name is
Dendrocalamus asper. In
the olden days, there
were plenty of Buluh
Betong widely grown in
the vicinity of Betong
area. Saribas District has
an area of 1,776 square
kilometres.

Saribas district has three sub-districts
namely Spach, Pusa and Debak.
Pusa Bazaar is 72 kilometres by road
from Betong whereas Debak B
is 53 kilometres by road from the
district headquarters. Spaoh Bazaar
is 46 kilometres by road 1o Betong.
According to 1991 Census, Spaoh
subdistrict had a population of
11.218, Pusa had a population of
Debak  had  a
population of 8,647. Spaoh Bazuar
which was first built in 1920
consists of 32 doublestorey wooden
shophouses, Pusa Bazaar which was
first established in 1864 has 24 new
concrete doublestorey shophouses
in the new township whereas Debak
Bazaar which was first sited in 1860
contains 55 concrete doublestorey
shophouses. Based on 1991 Census,
wibas District had a population of

aar

Fort Lily,
Betong.
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44,979, the majority of them are the
Ibans followed by the Malays and the
Chinese. In 1999, according to the
MidYear Population Estimate, the
population of the District had
increased up to 52,200

Historical Background

The history of the district is
colourful with stories of Anti-Rajah
Movement, fortresses and river
bates during 1840s and 1860s.
The local heroes who were deadly
against the White Rajah'’s rule were
Rentap, O.K.P. Dana Bayang and
his sons, Saji, Nanang, Luyoh and
Buda as well as Linggir of Paku.

Betong Bazaar was first established
along Batang Saribas in 1890s and
it consisted of 16 Attap shophouses.
In 1915, Betong Bazaar was gutted
by fire but later on it was rebuilt
for business. However, in 1925,
another big fire destroyed the
whole bazaar. In 1927, 11 units of
doubl y wooden shop

were constructed and  before
the second World War in 1941,
another 30 doublestorey wooden
shophouses were completed in
Betong. The first Chinese school
known as Chung San Primary
School was built in 1925, Today
there are 96 shophouses in the
town. At the beginning of 20th
century, Saribas district started o
cultivate cash crops such as coffee

and rubber. Betong was also the
centre where the Iban began to
accept Christianity and modern
education  through  schooling
provided by the Anglican
missionary.

There is a fort called Fort Lily in
Betong. It was named after the
third name of the wife of Rajah
Charles Brooke. It was built in
1855 by the Brooke Regime. The
building was first built with Nipah
roof but later it was replaced by
Belian shingles. This fort was built
o check the movements of Saji
and his followers from Ulu Layar
to attack other people staying down
river. Saji was an Iban hero from
Padeh River and he did not like
foreigners to rule over the Iban
i He quentl
challenged the Brooke's authority
and many a time he even boasted
that he would take Charles Brooke's
head. In April 1858, an expedition
had been sent against him by the
Brooke's authority but the hero
managed to escape. He successfully
attacked and destroyed Betong Fort
in July 1858. However, Saji was
killed near Kuala Langkit by the
Brooke's force. Later, Fort Lily was
used as a fortress to defend against
attacks by the Iban Hero Rentap
and their followers from Bukit
Sadok. The fort was for many years
in the past used as government
offices.




3) Legend of Dayang Isah in Pusa

Pusa is one of the three subdistricts
of Saribas. Located at Batang Rimbas,
Pusa seems to have a long historical
record besides Sarawak River Delta.
In local dialect, “Pusa”™ means
“cat”. However, there is another
version which suggested that “Pusa”
actually derives from  the word
“Pusat” because in the olden days,
Pusa was the “Pusat” (centre) of
settlement in the arca.

On 30.7.1997, the then Minister for

Social Development, YB, Dato Haji s ”’""f":";
=i of the grave of
Adenan Haji Satem declared open o the grave
Dayang Isah
the renovation of three old mm?h Tandang
belonging to the following persons in Sari.

Kampung Kaloh, Pusa:-

a) Al am  Dato Godam
Ibnu Bendahara Harun;

b)  Pengiran Temenggong Pengiran
Abdul Kadir Ibnu Pengiran
Sidewa Maharaja; and

©) Dayang Isah Tandang Sari

binti Pengiran Abdul Kadir.

During the opening ceremony, Y.B.
Dato Haji Adenan  Haji Sates
announced that the three tombs had
been declared as a historical site by
the State: Government of Sarawak.
The three ancestral graves dated back
o the 17th century. Dato Godam
wits @ Minangkabau royalty from
Sumatra while Pengiran Temenggong

Pengiran Abdul Kadir w:
of the Brunei royal far

as a member

With the restoration of the graves,
the people of Pusa become the
proud custodians of the histori
cemeted cording to Penghulu
Haji Eki bin Haji Daud of Pusa,
g Isah is their own Mahsuri
who was born in Pusa. He said,
“She was so beautiful that many
people fell in love with her”. The
story of Dayang Isah  was
confirmed by the Head of Brunei
Historical Centre, Pehin Jawatan
Dalam Seri Maharaja Dato Seri




Utama Dr. Haji Awang
Mohd Jamil Sifri during
the  “Majlis  Tahlil”
ceremony at the grave sites
in 1997. He said, "Dayang
Isah Tandang Sari binu
Pengiran  Temenggong
Pengiran Abdul Kadir was
incredible beautiful and
her beauty attracted many
men. Although she was
married to a strong and
likeable man, she was
being followed  around
even  when  she  was
accompanied by her
husband.  Soon  her
husband  became  very
jealous and Dayang lsah
who became  depressed
ok her own life by
strangling  hersell  with
seven threads consisting of
seven colours™

Pengiran  Temenggong
Pengiran  Abdul  Kadir
came to Pusa after his
other daughter Dayang
Che' was made the third wife of
Sultan Nasruddin of Brunei (1690-
1710 A.D.). In Pusa, he met Dato
Godam and he promised Dato
Godam to marry that daughter. Dato
Godam went to Brunei bringing a
brass cannon. Being a brave and
clever man who helped the Sultan
1o solve a lot of internal problems,
the wish of Dato Godam to marry
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Dayang Che', the daughter of
Pengiran Temenggong Pengiran
Abdul Kadir was granted. He
brought Dayang Che’ to Pusa where
the couple had two children,
Menteri Uban and Menteri Puteh.
After sometime, Dato Godam  took
Menteri Uban to Minangkabau
where the son became Bendahara
in place of Dato Godam'’s father,

District
Office,
Betong,




4,

5

Bendahara Harun. His second son
was brought over to Brunei where he
served the country as his grandfather
before him, Dato Godam  retumed
to Pusa where he spent his life until
his death.

Integrated Agriculture Project

In order to raise the standard of
rural people, Integrated Agriculture
Sttion Layar was established near
Ulu Layar Road junction about
21 kilometres from Betong Town.
Land acquisition started in 1990 and
development works started in 1991,
The station which has an arca of
290 hectares emphasized on the
integrated  approach  for  crops,
livestock and fisherics developments.
The facilities in the station are
developed to cater for training
production and rescarch work.

nawre treks and wips w local farms
and plantations. Betong new District
Office costing RM2.4 million was
constructed on 12.10.1990 10 replace
the government offices housed at Fort
Lily. Today more concrete shophouses,
Council market, District Hospital,
Government  Technical  Secondary
School and other new government
buildings are built in Betong Town.
On 18.3.1995, the RM2.5 million mini-
stadium was declared open in Betong.
Within  the same year, Rentap
Community Hall costing RM2.1
million was also completed for public
use. On 111 atabout 1,00 p.m., a
row of five wooden shophouses in
Betong Town was razed by firc. The
loss was estimated in the region of
RM1.75 million and 58 people were
made homeless.

Based on a survey carried out in
February, 1999, Betong Town had 96

Betong Today shophouses. The details are as follows:-
Bukit Saban Resort was
built along Paku River | Type of shophouses No. of units
near Betong Town on
1591965 The whote | 1) Doublestorey waoden shophouses 53
project costed nearly 2) Doublestorey concrete shophouses 5
RM5 million. - Buklt | g) 1y b1ecstorey new concrete shiophiouses 32
Saban Resort which AR S

along Jalan Lee Kai Teng
promotes culture,
adventire and nature 4) Three-storey concrete shophouses 6
provides 50 fully air- 5) 5 units of double-storey wooden -
conditioned rooms for shophouses burnt down on 11.1.1999
tourists and local |
people to stay. It Total: 96
offers longhouse visits, -




There is one cinema, Loxing
Theawe, four small medium-s
hotels, 2 commercial b
Council Wet Market and Council
Multipurpose Market to provide a
venue for hawkers to do business
in the town. A new Betong Crystal
Commercial Centre is  under
planning and it is sited along Jalan
Montegrai and Jalan Sie Meng
Chiaw. Sarawak Economic
Development Corperation (SEDC)
is also planning to build 24 units
of shophouses in Betong Town.
When it is materialised, there
will be an additional of 62 units of

shophouses in Betong Town.

The symbol of Betong Town is
Rubber Tree. This is because
District was one of the first
di in Sarawak being planted
with rubber trees in the early 20th
Century and rubber gardens are
still very common in Saribas a

XIV. SARATOK DISTRICT (KALAKA)
1) Saratok in General

Saratok is the administrative
headquarters of Kalaka District
which covers an area of 1,687
square kilometres. The distr t has
three sub-districts namely Roban,
Nanga Budu and Kabong. Both
Roban Bazaar and Kabong Bazaar
were established in 1900s. Roban
Bazaar which is 21 kilometres by

road from Saratok has 45 double-
storey concrete shophouses and 6
threestorey concrete shophouses

whereas Kabong Bazaar is 59
kilometres by road from Saratok
and it has 20 double-storey wooden
shophouses. Nanga Budu which is
98 kilometres by road from Saratok
has a village shop only. 1991
Census showed that Roban sub-
district had a population of 6,728,
Kabong  sub-district  had  a
population of 10,090 whereas
Nanga Budu sub-district had a
population of 3,038. Based on
1991 census, Kalaka District had a
population of 87,198, the majority
of them are the Ibans followed by
the Malays and the Chinese.

The
Landmark of
Saratok - Oil
Palm Fruit,

P
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However, according
to 1999 Mid-Year
Population Estimate, the
population of the district
wats 44,800. The symbol of
Kalaka District is oil palm
fruit because SALCRA has
planted  big oil palm
estates in the district.

The Origin of the Name of
Saratok

How did Saratok get her
name? There was a story
related by the locals that
in the olden days, one
old Malay Dato and his
guide who wanted to
visit  their v
staying somewhere in
the area of present
Saratok Town. Due to
his old age, the Dato
always walked to the
wrong direction. His
guide  kept ing,
“Salah Tok” (it means its
wrong, Dato). Later on,
the local people called
the place lah Tok™
and slowly it pronounced as
“Saratok™ until today.

es

There was another version which
revealed that the name of Saratok
was actually derived from a local fruit
called “Salak™. In the olden days, the

place where present Saratok Town is
situated was full of Salak fruits.
Everybody who visited the place
would say, “Salak Tu" which literally
means is Salak fruit”. Slowly
“Salak Tu™ was pronounced as
“Saratok” until today.

A section of
Saratok

Toun.

" District Offfice,

Saratok.

= e T



3) Historical Background

Kalaka was a rural district
and based on 1871 Census it
had a population of 9,530.
The majority of the people
were the Malays (2,724), the
Ibans (6,741), Chinese (62)
and Indians (3).

Fort Charles at Kabong was
first built by the Brooke's
officer Mr. Maxwell in 1878
to discharge administrative
matters and to collect taxes
from the people in the
district. It was collapsed in 1893
due to soil erosion and it was rebuilt
further inland in 1895. Ten years
after Fort Charles was built, Fort
Ranec at Saratok was built in 1888, It
was originally a temporary building
with Attap roofing and round
timber. Now it is used as the District
Office. In Saratok Bazaar, rows of
wooden shophouses along Batang
Krian were first built by the Chinese
Hokkien in early 1900s. The Chinese
Min Syn Primary School was
constructed in 1919 when more
Chinese were seuling down in
Saratok.

Around 1888 there were Ibans
found setling along Krian River
and Seblak River, Malays at Kabong
and Sessang whereas the Chinese
at Saratok, Kabong and Roban
Bazaars. Their main activities were

planting padi, fishing and sago
planting. In 1900, rubber planting
which was brought into the Saribas
District. was spread over to Krian
River.

In 1976, Datk Amar Dunstan
Endawie Enchana from Krian
Saratok was appointed as the Deputy
Chief Minister of Sarawak and Datuk
Edmund Langgu ak Saga also from
Saratok was appointed as the Deputy
Federal Minister for Agriculture in
Kuala Lumpur. In 1965, Tan Sri
Datuk Gerusin Lembat from Kalaka
District was appointed as the first
State Secretary of Sarawak. In 1979
when Tan Sri Datuk Gerusin Lembat
retired, Abang Yusuf Puteh also from
the district took over the post of
State Secretary until he retired in
1984

3



Telaga Mok -
Haji Kiah at
the foot of
District
Office,
Saratok.

There are two historical sites in
Saratok. One old well popularly
known as Telaga Mok Haji
Kiah is located at the foot of
District Office, Saratok. The
well never runs dry even
during dry weather. The site
of Temenggong Tandok's
longhouse at Krian Tengah
was burned down in 1833 by
the Ibans from Banting,
Lingga led by ljau Lang. At
that time, Saratok was still
under the rule of Sultan of
Brunei. Perhaps one day the
authority  concerned  may
declare both Telaga Mok

4)

Kiah and  Temenggong
ndok’s Longhouse as historical
sites in Sarawak.

Saratok Toun

Saratok Town was gutted by fire in
June 1970 Half of 56 units of
wooden shophouses on stilt were
burnt down. On 10.5.1972, the
construction of Saratok concrete
shophouses commenced. In October
1973, 61 concrete shophouses were
constructed  at the  land  just
ent to the old Town. In 1981,
ten more concrete shophouses were
constructed, a new District Mosque
costing RM316,000.00 and a new
grand Chinese Temple were also
completed. St. Peter's Church built
in the late 1930s was replaced by a
new concrete church in 1969, The
sites of Saratok old town along Jalan
Ong Ho San are being used for the
construction of new Min Syn Primary

Old Saratok
Toum before it
was burned
down in June,
1970,




School, new District. Community
Hall, new Council Market and
Saratok Bus Station. There are four
secondary schools in the district, two
in Saratok, one in Roban and one
in Kabong. Besides there are two
commercial banks and 10 small
medium size hotels in the town.

Based on a survey conducted in
February 19 Saratok Town has
121 units of shophouses. The details
are as follows:-

kilometres. Although the Town of Peace is
being by-passed by 9 kilometres at 181th
kilometre Kuching/Sibu Highway, the pace of
development is steady, There are three sub-
districts namely Mecludam, Lingga and Pantu
in Sti Aman District. 1991 Census showed that
Jud: ibdistrict had a p jion of
5,122, Lingga sub-listrict had a population of
3,099 whereas Panw subdiswict had a
population of 8,439, Meludam Bazaar which
was established in 1924 consists of 15 wooden
shophouses on stilts and Lingga Bazaar which
was built in 1849 has 22 wooden shophouses
on stilts. Pantu which became a

Saratok Town Proper builtin 1973

9) Double- storey concrete shophouses along
Jalan Ong Chui Seng

3) Double- storey concrete shophouses along
Jalan Tarang

4) Doubl y concrete st
Jalan Wee Geok Eng/J

I along
alan Lim Ah Hei

5) Three- storey concrete shophouses
(2 blocks) along Jalan Saratok

Total:

. of units

Type of shophouses Ne
1) Double- storey concrete shophouses in

subdistrict in 1975 has a row of 18
shophouses in Pantu Bazaar which
61 was first constructed in 1910

In 1967 when the author was first
posted to Sri Aman District (it was
then known as Simanggang) as a
9 Sarawak Administrative Officer
(SAO),  Kuching/Simanggang
Road was still a gravel and dusty
road. It took more than four
hours from  Kuching to
9 Simanggang by road. There were
about 100 shophouses in this rural
town. There were four rows of
wooden shophouses along the
Main Bazaar, three rows of

20

XV. SRIAMAN TODAY

According 0 1991 Census, Sri Aman
District_had a population of 60,085.
However, in 1999 MidYear Population
Estimate, it had increased 1o 66,200. The
district  has of 3,846 squarc

an area

17

concrete shophouses along the
Kapitan Road and two rows of
newly completed concrete shophouses along
the Club Road with Simanggang Theatre at the
end of the road. The old wooden State
Government Office along Jalan Istana was used
10 accommodate R&DO, Treasury and Land
and Surveys Department. The old Kubu Alice




was still used by other government agencies on
the first floor and Divisional Prison on the
ground floor.

In 1999, the number of shophouses in
the town has increased more than two folds.
The old shophouses and the burntdown
shophouses are being replaced by new
concrete shophouses.  The town extension is
towards the Club Road, Hospital Road, Paya
Road, Durian Road, Brayun Road and Sabu
Road.  Based on the survey conducted in
February 1999, Bandar Sri Aman has a total of
265 units of shophouses. However, the
industralised shops along Kuching/Sri Aman
Road and Sabu Road are not included in the
survey. The details of the survey are as follows:-

lonely now because all the government
agencies and Divisional Prison have moved out
to their own respective buildings along Jalan
Abang Aing and Sabu Road. Perhaps one day
the old fort could be wmed into a Divisional
Museum. Besides, there are numerous hawker
stalls and lock-up shops being built in the town
centre especially along Hospital Road to assist
the Bumiputras in their small business.

In the 19605 there was only one bank i.e.

The Standard Chartered Bank and there were
only one small hotel i.c. Simanggang Hotel
and one big hotel i.c. Hoover Hotel. However,
today Sri Aman has seven banking companies
and seven big and small hotels around the
town to provide facilities not only to the local
people butalso visitors and tourists to

Type of shophouses

1) Double- storey concrete shophouses
2) Old wooden shophouse

3) Three- storey concrete shophouse
4) Fourstorey concrete shophouse

5) Fivestorey concrete shophouse

Total:

the Town of Peace. In 1993, Tze Hun

No. of units Kok Chinese Temple was rebuilt at
the cost of RMI million. Tt was
115 declared open by the then Minister
of Finance and Infrastructure
1 Development Datuk Dr. George

129 Chan on 31.1.1993.
17 The newly completed 54-kilometre
Sri Aman/Lingga Road which was
3 opened to traffic in June 1998
= certainly provides casier access to
265 the »pcnpl(t.ill Ex\lul?ng. Stumbin,
Tanjung Bijat and Lingga areas to
come over to Sri Aman by road

The new magnificient Resident’s Office
was constructed a few years ago to replace
the old R&DO/Treasury/Land & Survey
Department building, Fort Alice remains

and this  obviously increases the
influx of people to the town. The arcas
along the road are well known to have
fertile soil and will be developed for
commercial agricultural purposes. This is




also part of the overall plan to develop Sri
Aman as an economic centre and the
development of the hinterlands will certainly
contribute the faster growth of Sri Aman
Division. 300,000 hectares of Native Customary
Right land in Undup and Bukit Begunan with
an investment of RM600 milion have been
approved for implementation in stages with
effect from the year 2000. By then, this oil
palm schemes will benefit 30 longhouses in
Undup and 50 longhouses in Bukit Begunan
arcas.

A new town square costing RM2 million
will be built at an area covering 7 hectares of
the land near the town's Civic Centre. Itwill be
in the shape of a large Terabai (Iban Warrior’s
Shield) with four roundabouts at each comer
and a big one encircling the sides. The town
square will also include the completion of a
landscaping project, a water fountain and
recreational facilities. Upon completion, it will
act as an important catalyst to spur the
economic growth of this oncesleepy town.
Work on the 625-metre long Sri Aman
riverfront project began in June 1999 The

RMS800,000.00 project would be completed
within the next eight years, Upon completion,
it would further beautify the waterfront and
esplanade project which is to be implemented
between Simanggang River and Fort Alice
along the Batang Lupar.

In spite of the fact that the physical
¥ of the town and it: ing is
slow, itis definitely steady and it meets the basic
requirement of the people in this rural town.
The town has not only expanded more than
wo folds for the past three decades but also
new government buildings, RM2.9 million Sri
Aman Civic Centre, new divisional mosque,
new outdoor stadium at the site of the old
airport, new magnificent MDSA library are also
being built in the town centre. The
establishment of industralised arcas along Sri
Aman/Kuching Road and many housing
estates such as Kampung Muhibbah, Taman
Azba, Taman Norita, Taman Siang, Sri Jaya
Lowcost Housing, Taman Vistago, etc have
actually helped to make Sri Aman a bigger
town as well as a better, more comfortable and
more peaccful place to stay in.
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Sarikei - The Town of Pineapples

1. INTRODUCTION

Sarikei Division, the Sixth Division of
Sarawak, has an area of 6,969 square kilometres
and based on 1991 Census, it had a population
of 127,537. However, according to 1999 Mid-
Year Population Estimate, Sarikei Division had a
population of 151,300, The majority of the
people are Chinese, Ibans, Melanaus and
Malays.  About 65% of the land in Sarikei
Division is not suitable for agricultural
p , about 18% of the land is suitable for
agricultural activities (Class 2 and Class 3) and
the other 17% of the land is marginal suitable.
However, large scale of commercial farming of

maize, soya beans and tapioca grow very well on
Sarikei soil.

Historically, Sarikei was part and parcel of
Brunei Territory until 1853, It became part of
Sarawak Territory when the Sultan of Brunci
Abdul Mumin ceded the Lower Rajang Basin ©
the White Rajah of Sarawak Sir James Brooke in
1853, In July, 1929 Sarikei became a district
headquarters of Lower Rajang Basin. Prior to
1..4.1973, Sarikei Division was part of the Third
Division with Divisional Headquarters at Sibu, In
order w facilitate more effective administration

1 in the

cash crops particularly padi, ¢ ial
levestock rearings and poultry farmings are
being encouraged. Sarikei Division can also
become a major producer of animal feeds since

and 1o im more P

area, the State Government approved Sarikei to
become a division. Now it has five districts and
three sub-districts namely:

District Sub-district
1) Sarikei Belawai
2) Meradong
(Bintangor)
3) Daro
4) Julau Pakan
5) Matu Igan

Population in 1991

49,407
26,972

13,441
28,213
9,504

Total:




fourteen bazaars in the whole division

namely:-

3]
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)
7
8)
9)
10)
)
12)
13)

Sarikei Town
Bintangor (Binatang) Town
Belawai Bazaar

Pakan Bazaar
Julau Bazaar

Daro Bazaar

Matu Bazaar
Kuala Matu Bazaar

Selalang Bazaar
n Bazaar

Nanga Wak
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14) Meluan
15) Gunung Ayer Bazaar
16) Paloh Bazaar

THE ORIGIN OF THE NAME OF
SARIKEI

(1) Version 1

An old story revealed that in the
olden days there was no name
being given to Sarikei Town. The
whole was known as Lower
Rajang Basin. In 1853 after Sir
James Brooke took over the
control of Lower Rajang Basin
from the Sultan of Brunei, he sent

Aenal view
of Sarikei
Town.



(2

his official to visit places along
Batang Rajang. A Malay driver was
sending the Brooke's official to the
area using a longhoat. Upon
arriving at the present site of
Sarikei Town, the official asked in
English, “What is the name of the
place?” The Malay driver not
knowing any English language, did
not answer but shook his head only.
The official got angry and scolded
the Malay driver “Silly guide!™
Then the Malay driver thinking the
official was naming the place as
“Silly guide” answered, “Ya, silly
guide”. Then the Brooke's official
named the place “Silly guide”
which eventually pronounced as
“Sarikei” until today.

Version 2

Another story related that the
Chinese Cantonese  who  first
migrated 1o Lower Rajang Basin
area in the early 20th century
settled around the arca called Sari.
They were farmers and many of
them reared chickens for sale in
the market. The Cantonese
pronounced chicken as "Kei" in
their own dialect. Whenever they
sold the chicken, people would
enquire where were these chickens
from. The Cantonese answered
“Sari Kei” - the chicken from Sari.
Eventually, the people in the area
called the place “Sarikei”.

Il SETTLEMENTS IN SARIKEL

Sometime in 1854, a group of Chinese
Hokkien came from China and settled down in
Rajang District (Sarikei). They built Auap
houses, planted vegetables and reared chickens.
Four wooden shophouses with Auap roof were
first built by the Chinese Hokkien along Batang
Rajang for petty trading. Later on, two morc
wooden shophouses were constructed and
followed by another row of 8 shophouses were
being built too. On 4.1,1856 Julau Dayaks came
o Sarikei and bumed down the Bazaar.
Subsequently, the Bazaar was rebuilt. By the
year 1927, 36 wooden shophouses and one
cinema were built in Sarikei Bazaar already.
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From 1902 to 1917, there were about
1,000 Cantonese immigrants being brought
over to Sibu by Then Kung Suk, the Cantonese
pioneer in Rajang Basin. Some Cantonese
migrated to Sarikei to start pepper planting.
When the Foochow immigrants led by Wong
Ching Poh moved from Sibu to Sarikei in 1910,
they were permitted by the Malay Tua
Kampung Haji Omar to start farming on the
castern bank of the Nyelong River and another
settlement was established at the Sungai Sarikei
in 1914. They cleared the forest, built Attap
houses and planted vegetables as well as fruit
trees on the land they cleared. In 1914, the
Rajah Brooke Government permitted the
Foochow setlers to migrate to Sarikei and
Repok arcas. From that time onwards, groups
of Foochow came down from Sibu and started
rubber planting and pepper planting. In 1927,
due to the increase of the Chinese population
in Sarikei, a Chinese primary school known as
Kwong Chiaw Primary School was built to cater
the Chinese children for primary educatio
In 1926, Foochow settlement extended to Ja
and by 1932, the surrounding areas of Sarikei,
Repok and Jakar were populated by Foochow
setders. On 20.5.1972, the Kwong Lee Bank,
Sarikei commenced its business in the town.
On 15.10.1972, Sarikei Foochow Association
was formed o look after the welfare and
interest of the Foochow people.

IV. HERO OF SARIKEI - SHERIP

MASAHOR (1810-1890)

The most owstanding hero from Sarikei
Division was none other than Sherip Masahor
who spent the whole of his adult life struggling
against the Britsh who attempted to setde
down in and ruled over Sarawak.

Sherip Masahor who was born in
Brunei about the year 1810 migrated to Igan
when he was still a young man and, later on,
he moved to Rajang District where he settled
down there. He was not only friendly to the
local Malays and the Melanaus but also the
Ibans along Batang Rajang arcas. Sherip
Masahor became so influential and powerful
among the locals that he ok over the
administration of the Rajang District from
Datu  Abdul Rahman, the Sultan’s
representative from Brunei. He seized the
power first and asked for the Sultan’s
permission later. The Sultan of Brunei had
no choice but to appoint Sherip Masahor as
the Governor of Rajang District.

In 1853 Sultan Abdul Mumin of Brunci
ceded the Lower Rajang Basin to the White
Rajah of Sarawak, Sir James Brooke. The
White Rajah retained Sherip Masahor in his

Sherip Masahor



position but Sherip Masahor paid litde
attention and continued to act in the
semidindependent manner as usual. In

fact, Sherip Masahor was deadly
against Rajah James Brooke to rule over
Sarawak. When Sir James Brooke began
to swallow up more territories of the
Sultanate of Brunei, he together with
Datu Patinggi Gapurplanned to attack
Kuching but they failed. Datu Patinggi
Gapur was sent to Mecca for pilgrimage
whereas Sherip Masahor retmed home
in Sarikei.

In 1855 when Sherip Masahor
intervened in a  dispute  between
Pengiran Ersat and Pengiran Matusin at
Mukah, he was fined by the second
White Rajah Sir Charles Brooke. After
several abortive attempts to get rid of the
Brooke Rule, Sherip Masahor was
banished to Singapore on 1.7.1861. He
lived in Singapore for the rest of his
life. He was given a small pension by
the Sarawak Government and  he
supplemented it by building boats for
sale. Sherip Masahor died in Singapore
in February, 1890 still full of plans and hope o
push the Europeans out of his beloved
Sarawak.

Sherip Masahor was declared as a hero
by the State Government of wak on
97.7.1993. His relief figure was inserted on a
plague around the base of the column of
Heroes' Monument at Sarawak Muscum
Garden, Kuching. A road between Tun Jugah
Road and Rock Road in Kuching and another
road in Sarikei are named after this great man.

MATU DISTRICT

1) Matu in General

Formerly, Maw was a subdistrict
of Daro. On 55.1991, Matu was
upgraded as a full district and
incorporated in the Sarikei Division.
Matu is the 28th district and the last
district of Sarawak. It covers an area
of 680 square kilometres. In 1940, it
was estimated that the population in
Matu was in the region of 3,000.

District

Office Cum
Community
Hall, Matu.

Matu/Daro
District
Council
Building
under
construction.
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Based on 1991 Census, Matu had a
population of 9,504, the majority
of them are the Melanaus,
followed by the Ibans, Chinese and
Malays.  However, in 1999,
according  to  the  Mid-Year
Population Estimate, Matu District
had a population of 11,400. Igan
is the only sub-district of Mat and
it had a population of 2,268 based
on 1991 Census.

How did Matu and Igan get their
names

According to Tuan Haji Dawi,

aged 90, of Kampung Jemoreng, the
name “Maw” is a Malay word. In
Melanau dialect, it is pronounced as
“Matau™. Matau is a local tree which has
alotof flowers but it does not bear fruit.
Since the area was full of Matau trees, it
was called “Matau™ or “Matu” unil today.
Sungai Matau is flowing at the side of
Kampung Sok. not far from Matw
Bazaar. “Igan” derived her name from a
kind of local fish called “Igan” which
were found in the arca.

Historical Background
In the 1600s, Pangeran Sallch and his
father, Pangeran Ishak came from Brunci
10 Matu for general trading. Pangeran
Salleh married with a local Melanau lady
and settled down at Kampung Sekaan. It
was Pangeran Salleh who first brought the
Islam over to Matw more than 300 years
most of the Melanaus in Matu
Muslims while some are
converted into Christianity and a handful
of them still remain pagans.

4) Matu Bazaar

Matu Bazaar is the administrative
headquarters of Maw District.  The
Bazaar was first established by a group
of Chinese Hokkien at the opposite
bank of the present Maw Bazaar in
1885, They came direct from China
and  waded with the Melanaus
especially on sago products. However,
in 1897, the whole Bazaar was gutted
by fire and the shopkeepers suffered
a big loss. The shopkeepers rebuilt

their shophouses within the same
year. After 30 years, Matu Bazaar was
gutted by the fire for a second tume in
1927

In 1929, the new Matu Bazaar was
built at the present site and the old
bazaar site was used for residential
purposes. A bridge was constructed
across Jemoreng River in order o
connect the bazaar arca and the

Matu
Bazaar.
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6)

residential areas. Today, there are
17 wooden shophouses on stilt and
one Chinese Temple at Matu Bazaar.
The Bazaar is both accessible by land
and by river.

Matu Kampungs and Agriculture
Produce

The whole district has 19 Kampungs
and longhouses namely Kampung
Tian, Jemoreng, aan  Besar,
Sckaan Kedl, Kuala Matu, Beruan
Mapal, Beruan Besar, Sok, Skim
Lobak Balu, Kampung Lobak Balu,
Bertong, Pergau, Patau Baru, Patau
Lama, Berjaya, Bawang, Alot,
Tanjung Jol, Rumah Gangge dan
Rumah Edi. Of all the Kampungs,
Kampung Sok which is the only
Melanau traditional longhouse is the
most famous. It consists of 26 doors,
and it was built in 1885 during the
time of disorder and chaos. The
longhouse is being declared as one of
the historical buildings in Sarawak.

£

Matu District has planted 585
hectares of wet padi and 150
hectares of coconut trees.
In 1997 based on Maw
Agriculture Report, it has
planted 1,240 hectares of
sago palms and 248 hectares
of oil palm under FELCRA
Gugusan Matu.

Matu Development
After being upgraded as a
full district in 1991 the

i

development  of Matw  district
gathered greater momentum.  The
construction of 24-kilometre road
from Matu to Daro was completed in
1992 and 44kilometre Matu/Igan
road costing RM60 million was
constructed in 1997, The new
District  Office  cum  Dewan
Masyarakat costing RM5 million
was built in February 1997. The
construction of Mat/Daro District
Council  Building was completed
in 1999, Besides, there are other
government agencics and secondary
schools being established in the
district to provide the basic needs to
the locals.

VI. DARO DISTRICT
1) Daro in General and Origin of the

Name of Daro

Daro was also a sub-district before
but on 2.4.1973, it was upgraded to
a full district. Now it is a district




2)

under  Sarikei  Division.
“Daro™ M: word. In
Melanau  dialect, it is
pronounced as “Daru”. In
the olden days, there were
many stagnant pools in the
low-lying in Daro.
Hence, “Daru” which meant
“stagnant pool” was named
after the place. Slowly, it was
pronounced as “Daro” until
today.

Daro  Bazaar is  the
administrative headquarters
of the district. Daro District
covers an area of 861 square
kilometres and based on
1991 Census, the population
of Daro District was 13,441.
However, in 1999, according
to the MidYear Population
Estimate, the population of
Daro District had increased
up 1o 16,100. The majority
of the population are
Melanaus with the Chinese
staying around Daro Bazaar
and the Ibans staying at the
countryside.

Daro Bazaar

According to an oral tradition,
Chinese Hokkien came to Daro for
petty rading sometime in the 1890s.
At first, they built a row of wooden
shophouses with Auap roof along
Sungai  Daro. The  Chinese
Tuapekong Temple which they built

still exists at the side of the Bazaar
facing Sungai Daro. Today, there
are 3 rows of 18 wooden shophouses,
2 concrete shophouses and one
hotel with 10 units of small shoplots
in Daro Bazaar. There is one small
bank operated by Bank Pertanian
Malaysia at the Bazaar. The
landmark of Daro District is Ikan
Terubok because there are plenty
of such fish along the coastal area
of Daro and Kuala Daro as well.

Chinese
Temple,
Dar.
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Besides, there are crabs which are not
only plentiful but cheap in the Daro
Market.

Communication in Daro

Daro is accessible both by river and by
land. It takes an hour by speedboat
from Sarikei to reach Daro Bazaar
and regular express boats are plying
Sarikei/Daro and the nearby arcas
daily. Daro is connected by road to
Matu, Igan, Oya and Mukah. The
distance from Daro to Matu is 24
kilometres.

Agriculture Produce

The Melanaus in Daro cultivate sago,
coconut and padi while some of them
are fishermen. Based on Agriculture
Statistics for the year 1997, Daro
District has planted 1,386 hectares of
sago and 248 hectares of oil palms.
The district has also planted 148
hectares of coconut trees producing
1,776,000 coconuts and 958 hectares
of wet padi in the same year.

Daro Development

After being upgraded as a district, the
government agencies such as R&DO
Office, Police Station, Council
Office, Agriculture Office are fully
established. District Office Daro
costing RM590,700/- was  declared
open by Assistant Minister of
Infrastructure  Development  and
Communication, Y. B. Datuk Abdul
Wahab Haji Dolah on 21.10.1999. A

83

new secondary school known as
SMK Toh Puan Datin Patinggi
Hajjah Normah costing RM6.25
million was completed on 26,.8.1984.
An integrated sport complex is 0
be built at Kilomewe Five along
Daro/Matu Road. At the moment,
the site has been filled with sand.

VII. JULAU DISTRICT
1) Julau in General

Formerly, Julau was a subdistrict of
Kanowit.  On 24.1973, Julau was
upgraded to a full district and
incorporated within the Sarikei
Division.




Julau Bazaar is the
administrative
headquarters of the
district and Pakan is
the only sub-district
which had 2
population of 12913
based  on 1991
Census. There are
shophouses in Pakan
Bazaar and 9 new
shophouses are still
under construction
in June 1999 In the
olden days, there
were many  Pakan
durian trees in Pakan
arca. That is why the
place is named after
the name of the
durian tree  called
Pakan. Julau District
MPAsSes an area
628 square

enc
of
kilometres and based
on 1991 Census, it
had a population of
28,213, the majority
of the people are
the Ibans, followed
by the Chinese and
some Malays. The
Ibans ©  mostly
farmers with shifting
cultivation as their main occupation
but many of them venture into
pepper, rubber and cocoa plantations
as their main cash crops. The Chinese
confine themselves at the bazaar
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areas in Julau, Pakan, Nanga W.
and Meluan. Hows
to 1999 Mid-Year Population
Estimate, the population of Julau
District was 33,000,

Julau
Main

New
memarial
tomb of
Rentap at
Bubkit Sibau
Pakan.




2) Origin of the Name of Julau

How did Julau get her name?
Julau is sitvated inland from
Batang Rajang and at the
confluence of Julau River and
Kanowit River. In the olden
days, some visitors and even
some local people who
wanted to visit Julau could
hardly notice the existence of
Julau seulement due to the
thick jungle around the area
and poor cye sight.  Hence,
they called the place “Ulau”
which means “hardly notice its
existence” in Iban language. Slow
was pronounced as “Julau” until today.

Another version of the legend was that
in the olden days, head-hunting in
was rampant. When a group
nau people who intended 1o
settle down in Julau saw a head hanging
on the tree top. They did not setde
down there but they called the place “Ju
Ulau”, In Melanau (Rajang)dialect, *Ju
Ulau” means “one human head™.
Eventually, it was pronounced as “Julau”
until today.

Establishment of Julau Bazaar

Julau Bazaar was built by Chinese
Foochows under the leadership of Lee
Ee Lock who came from Sibu to Julau
in 1936, At first they built 6 wooden
shophouses with Atap roof at the
present Julau Bazaar site. In 1940, six
more shophouses were built and in the
same year, the Roman Catholic Mission
also came and built St. Alphonsus

School in Julau. The business at first
was poor. Slowly, the Ibans sold
rubber and Belian posts to the
Chinese Towkays who sold salt,
tobacco and others to the Tbans in
rewm. Julau district produces a lot
of Belian for buildings and pepper
posts. The landmark of Julau is a
Burung Kenyalang standing on &
burial post.

During the Japancse occupation
from 19411945, Julau suffered
wremendously and business dropped.
When the Japanese occupation
ended in 1945, the business picked
up again. In 1949, 12 more wooden
shophouses were constructed. In
1958, 10 concrete shophouses were
built. However, in 1964, six wooden
shophouses were bumt down and all
the properties were destroyed. In
1978, six shop lots were given to the
ip and the shopl
were completed in 1980, Julau was
accessible by road from Bintangor
in 1964.

Y. B. Tan Sri
Datuk Amar
Alfind Jabu
ak.

Numpang
declared open
“Batw
Pengingat
Rentap” at
Bukit Sibav,
Pakan on
28.10.1989.
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4)

5)

Historical Sites

Julau District has  two
historical  sites.  Fort
Brooke was  built at
Meluan in 1935. The fort
which is located at Nanga
Meluan is built entirely
of Belian wood and the
walls are very thick as to
be  bulletproof. It is
cally  built at the
hill. Initially, this fort housed
the White Rajah’s police and troops as
well as the offi
government activities and  ensure
security against mids by Anti-Rajah
Movem led by Asun and his
followers from the Kanowit River.
The fort was also once used as the
Subdistrict Office and Police Station.
Between 1954 and 1981, the fort was
used as the District Council Office
and Education Department.

At Bukit Sibau in Pakan the Iban
hero, Panglima Rantap's tomb was
built by the Sarawak Government as a
memorial and wibute o him as a
great warmior who dared to go against
the Brooke's Rule. It was built in the
year 1989 and was declared open by
the Deputy Chief Minister of Sa
YB Tan Sri Dawk Amar Alfred ]1I)n
ak Numpang on 28.10.1989.

Agriculture Produce

Julau District is the major rubber
producing area in Sarikei Division.
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Up to 1996, there were more than
22,000 hectares of land being
planted with rubber. In 1996, more
than 2,340 tonnes of rubber sheets
were produced. The area for
pepper planting was more than 640
hectares and in 1996, about 1,500
tonnes of black pepper and 15
tonnes of white pepper  were
Planning to develop
Land in Jul
is  within  the new
development  masterplan. Some
16,000 hectares of the land within
Sungai Wak/Lemujan and Sungai/
Ulu Julau areas will be developed
into oil palm plantations in 1999,

6) Julau Today

Besides riverine transport, Jul:
accessible by road from  Sarikei,
Bintangor, Kanowit and Sibu. Based
on a survey conducted in February
, Julau Bazaar has 34 units of
The details are as

shophouses.
follows:-

Kubu
Broooke
(1935).




Type of shophouses No. of units
1) Double- y concrete shop! 18
2) Threestorey concrete shophouses 16

Towl: 84

The Ibans seule down in
scattered  arcas  in  the
longhouses. The Malays and
the Melanaus are found in 8
different  Kampungs  along
Batang Serdeng and Lobak
Seman. In 1999, according to the
MidYear Population Estimate,

lation of the district

There is one theatre known as Poh
Ling Cinema in the Bazar. The
District. Council has built a 9stall
hawker centre but due to economic
downturn, the hawker stalls have
closed down for quite sometime
already. The District  Office,
Agriculture  Office  and  other
government agencies are sited about
wwo kilometres from the Bazaar.
Julau is a multiracial bazaar where
the people live together peacefully
and friendly like members of a big
family.

VIIL. MERADONG DISTRICT

1) Meradong in General
Bintangor Town is  the
administrative headquarters
of Meradong District. The
district has an area of 1,084
square kilometres and based
on 1991 Census, it had a
population of 26972, The
Chinese is the majority group
and they live mainly in
Bintangor Town and in 13
different Chinese settlements.

©

had increased up to 31,100
The topography of the district is
generally flat in the riverine
arcas with high water table and
frequently subject to floods. The
soils are mainly of Mukah and
Anderson series. In the midland,
the topography is undulating to
hilly. Soils are mainly of Merit,
Kapit and Bekenu series. In
the midland, major crops are
pepper, rubber,  hill  padi,

fruits and vegetables whereas

District
Office,
Meradong,
Bintangor
(1994).




in the riverine areas, wet
padi, citrus, pincapples
and sago are found in the
region.

2) The Origin of the Name of
“Binatang” and “Bintangor™

The  former  name  of

Bintangor was "Binatang™ - Another
the Town of the beasts. In section of
the olden days, there were Bintangor
many monkeys, deers, wild Town,
ich used to come to
ason. According 5]

o a legend, after the Brooke's when he saw a lot of wild animals
official visited Sa , he came up to jumping here and there replied,

the present site of Bintangor, he “Iw Binatang™. (Binatang means
asked his Malay driver what was the animals in Malay). Then the
name of the place, The Malay driver Brooke's offi named the place

“Bina ". After Sarikei was

upgraded to a division in 1973, the
authority concerned changed the
unpleasant name of the town from
“Binatang” to “Bintangor™ - a type
of wild tree (Calophyllum spp.)
which is very common in the
district and the tree is found to
contain a chemical compound
which can be used in aiding the
fight against HIV, the virus known
to cause AIDS (Acquired Immune
Deficiency Syndrome). Based on
the  pre-clinic: trials,  the
compounds Calanolide A and B in
Bintangor Tree inhibits  the
proliferation of HIV may prevent
the outbreak of AIDS in an HIV
patient.

Bintangor
Tive and its




3) Agriculture Produce

The  symbol  of
Meradong  District is
Bintangor Orange. Itis
still @ very popular type
of fruit in the district
where it is planted
along the riverine 2
and along the roads
by the Chinese and
Iban farmers.  Honey
Orange, Limau Susu
and Pamelo are also
beginning to gain their
popularity especially in
the  midland 5
Based on statistic figure
supplied by Agriculure
Department
Meradong, there were
216 hectares of land
in the district being
planted with Bintangor
Orange, Limau Jepun
and Honey Orange
until 1997. Up to 1997,
Bintangor had planted
nearly 300 hectares
of rubber producing
1,025  tonnes  of

s

rubber  sheets, 2,777
hectares of wet/hill
padi producing more

than 4,000 tonnes of padi and 425
hectares of pepper  producing
500 tonnes of white pepper.

4) Binatang/Bintangor Town

Binatang Bazaar was first established
by Chinese Hokkien sometime in
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Bintangor
Orange - the
symbol of
Bintangor
Toun.

Bintangor
Main
Bazaar.
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1900s.  From 1908 to 1910, there
were some  Chinese  Foochows
migrating to Binatang. However,
the official and big groups of
Foochow migration to Binatang
started in 1921/1922 o open up
the virgin jungle for agricultural
activities.  In 1960s, the main
shopping street stretched from the
Custom Office along the river for a
considerable distant and almost
every shophouse exhibited cases and
baskets of Binatang Oranges. On
7.7.1992 the new Meradong District
Police Headquarters costing RM5.2
million was completed so that peace
and security in the district could be
well under contol. On 23.6.1993,
the opening of Bintangor/Bakong
Road costing RM4 million was not
only providing easier access to
Bakong but also opening up more
land along the road for
agricultural purposes.

also under construction.  Besides,
the road systems in and around the
town have also been greatly
improved. In 1994, the District
Officer and his staff moved out from
the old District Office which they
had occupied since 1948 to the new
District Office Meradong which was
built under the Federal Fund. In
1996 the office reccived District
Office Quality Award from the State
Government as the recognition for
the quality improvement efforts
rendered to the public.

According to a survey conducted in
February 1999, Bintangor Town
has a total of 232 units of various
shophouses mostly situated along
Jalan Dermaga, Jalan Kelupu and
their nearby areas. The  details of
the shophouses are as fi

In recent years, the Tipe of shophouses Mo it
basic public iti 1) Doubl y concrete shoph S 24

and  facilities  of
Bintangor have been 2) Threestorey concrete shophouses 177
5::(:‘2[::{’ r;::.d'hz_l: 3) Fourstorey concrete shophouses 31
i dscaped, | e
market, Tota 232

new  government

buildings, new
shophouses, banking
facilities and hotels are constructed
to provide beuer facilities in the
town. The District Sport Complex is

Bintangor Town is obviously
growing and prospering town
it is the second biggest town in
Sarikei Division.




Y.B. Datuk Law Hieng Ding. Y.B. Datuk David Teng Lung Chi.  Y.B. Encik William Mawan ak Ikom.

IX. OUTSTANDING LEADERS IN
SARIKEI DIVISION

The followings are considered to be
the outstanding leaders in Sarikei Division.

1) Y.B. Datuk Law Hieng Ding who
fember of Parliament from
is the Federal Minister
for Science, Technology and
Environment.

2) YB. Datuk David Teng Lung Chi
who is the Member of Council
Negri from Repok, Sarikei is the
State  Assistant  Minister  for
Environment and Health as well as
Agriculture and Food Industry.

3) YB. Encik William Ikom @ William
Mawan ak. Ikom who is the Member
of Council Negri from Pakan is the
State Assistant Minister for Finance
and Public Utlities.

4) Y.B. Datuk Haji Abdul Wahab bin Haji

Dolah, Member of Council Negri
from Mat/Daro is the St
Assistant Minister for Infrastructure
Development and Communication.

5) Encik Sandom ak. Nyuak from

6)

Sarikei was the Minister of State
from 24.9.1966 to 7.6.1970.

Y.B. Datuk Mohamed Effendi Norwawi
was the Deputy Chairman of SEDC
from January 1977 to December 1979
and later as its Executive Chairman
from September 1981 to May 1995. He
is the Chairman of Encorp Group Sdn
Bhd and Broadcasting Station NTV 7.
He is currently a Member of Council
Negri from Dalat and he was clected
as a Member Parliament for Kuala
Rajang on 29.11.1999. He was
appointed as the Federal Minister for
Agriculture on 10.12.1999.

T e




Y.B. Datuk Haji Abdul Wahab bin

Haji Dolah

X.  SARIKEI DISTRICT

Sarikei Town in General
Sarikei
headqu

Town is the divisional
riers as well  as
strative  headquarters  of
arikei District. The district covers
n area of 1,716 square kilometres
and based on 1991 Census, it had a
population of 49,407, However,
according 1o 1999 Mid-Ye
Population Estimate, the population
of Sarikei District had increased up
,700. The majority of the
people are the Chinese, Melanaus,
Ibans and Malays. It has one sub-
district called Belawai which had a
population of 6,097 based on 1991
Census. Belawai sub-district has a
small Belawai Bazaar with 5 units of
shopouses. Sarikei Town is built

ar

Encik Sandom anak Nywak.
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V.B. Datuk Mohamed Effendi
Norwaun.

between Sungai Sarikei on the left
hand side and Sungai Nyclong on
the right.

Sarikei is known as the Pineapple
Town because it has produced
large quantity of unique-textured,
tasty and juicy “Sarikei Pineapple”.
Sarikei is also known as the
Pepper Town  because of its large
production of high-quality pepper.
In fact, Sarikei has always been
well-known for its agricultural
produce and it was in the last
decade that it started to develop
along the path of commerce and
industry. Presently, ikei has
emerged with a flourishing and
rapidly progressive climate of
development. The Resident and
District Office Sarikei was built in

@




Map of
Sarikei
Town.
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/ Sarikei Town Center
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1937, but the Resident’s Office
moved to Wisma Jubli Mutiara in
1993.

Sarikei Division plays an important
part in the history of Sarawak's
timber industry because it was here
that the value of Ramin forests was
first established by the Colonial
Timber Company which  was

B

formed at the end of Second
World War in 1945 by a group of
Australians who had served in the
military forces of Sarawak.

On 16.6.1988 Sarikei Civic Centre
costing  RM2.:2 million was
constructed ‘at the town centre.
On 16.8.1993, the tenstorey state
government building, the Wisma
Jubli Mutiara, was declared open
for use. It marked an important
milestone in the development of
government building in Sarikei.
Besides, there are the Federal
Complex, the District  Council
Building, the Telecom Building, the
Sport Complex, the Swimming pool,
the Customs Buidling and the Port
Authority Building being built in
the town. All these impressive
buildings have given a new
countenance to  Sarikei  Town.
Under Sarikei District Council’s
jurisdiction, a number of functional
projects including the Sungai
Nyclong Hawker Centre (1989),
the Sungai Rajang Hawker Centre
(1991), SDC renovated and new
Administrative Office (1995) and
Sarikei Traffic Garden (1996) have
been completed to provide better
service to the people there.

P

loy and related it
over the past years. The public
amenities and  infrastructure  of

|



further  enhance its  future
development. The Sarikei Waterfront
Esplanade is a favourite place among
the locals, It has express boat waiting
sheds, greeneries, the  famous
“Pineapple” landmark and children
playground. As the population of
Sarikei increases, the appearance of a
new urban area is in the making.

Gl eToie Because of its flourishing commerce,
""'n,f,'.f" of the finance and banking business is
Sarike, also developing relatively fast. Today,

Sarikei is proud to have 7 commercial
banks and 6 finance companies as
well as a number of medium  hotels
and pri linics in the own.

e

Furthermore, the development of
sports, the promotion of touris
industry and its related hotel
industry as well as other consumer
services  have thrusted  Sarikei
towards modernisation. The future

District development  of  Sarikei  will

Office depend  on better

Sarikei built communication networks to link
in 1937,

Bintangor, Sibu
well as Sri Aman

Division. According to the Sarikei
such as medical services, Agriculture Annual Report 1997,

Sarike

water and electricity  supplies, the district had planted 168
telecommunication services and the hectares of Sarikei pineapples.
network of roads in the urban and Most of the sweet pineapples are
rural areas have shown remarkable sold locally and some are exported
improvement. The bridge linking to other divisions. There were
the Sarikei town on both sides of 3,952 hectares of land being

the Sarikei River has enabled the planted with rubber and 988,000
expansion of Sarikei and it will Kilogrammes of rubber sheets were
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Aerial view
of Tanjung
Manis
Timber
Processing
Zone.

2,

)

produced. Besides, there were 466
hectares of land planted with
pepper and 2,180 hectares of land
planted with hill/wet padi. In
1997, it produced 1,713 tonnes of
black pepper, 214 tonnes of white
pepper, 2,272 tonnes of wet padi
and 890 tonnes of hill padi.

Tanjung Manis

a) Location and Background
Sarikei is the gateway to Tanjung
Manis Timber Processing Zone
and it is strategically located at
13 kilometres upriver from the
mouth of the Rajang River. It is
the largest of the five timber

regions in Sarawak and the region
produces the biggest supply of
timber in Sarawak. It is accessible
o ocean-going vessels and it
facilitates exportation of timber
products produced in the Timber
Processing Zone. Tanjung Manis is
a natural port and it is welkknown
as an important export point for
logs and timber products since the
early 1940s.

“Tanjung Manis Timber Processing
Zone, a growth centre with an
area of 3,000 hectares and its
development  costing  RM270
million, is the brainchild of the
Chief Minister of Sarawak YAB

o



Datk Patinggi Tan Sri (Dr)
Haji Abdul Taib Mahmud. It
will be the largest integrated
timber complex with its own
well-planned township so far
established in Sarawak. The
concept is to centralise the
industry within proximity of
the source of raw materials.

Implementation

Based on  the information
available from Sarawak  Timber
Industry Development
Corporation, the  Tanjung

anis TPZ will be implemented
four phases for a period of
20 years as follows:-

Phase

1
1
m
1\

Year Arca

1990-1995 510 hecares
1996-2000 780 hectares
2001-2005 900 hectares
20052010 805 hectares

Accessibility

Tanjung Manis is not only
accessible by river through the
mighty Batang Rajang, but it is
also accessible by road. On
23.3.1998, the 23-kilometre
Tanjung Manis/Serdeng Road
costing RM42 millions was fully
completed 1o link the timber
complex to the nearby areas
in Igan, Maw, Mukah and

Serdeng. A RM45 million 25-
kilometre road is to be built to
link Belawai to Tanjung Manis.
Eventually, Tanjung  Manis
coastal areas will also be linked
to the major towns such as Sibu,
Bintulu, Miri and even Kuching.

Works on the first phrase of the
RM41 million Tanjung Manis
Airport sited on a 200-hectare
land in Belawai would be
completed by the middle of the
year 2001. This was announced
by the Chief M er - of
Sarawak, YAB Datuk Patinggi
Tan Sri (Dr) Haji Abdul Taib
Mahmud on 19.4.1998. Upon
completion, the 1.2-kilometre
airstrip will cater the DASH
8200 series, a 37 passenger
aircraft and, hence, it would
bring the timber processing
zone closer o all  the major
towns in the State. At the same
time, the Airport would provide
a faster and more convenient
mode of tansportation for the
people including foreigners,
investors and the local people
o the timber  processing
complex.  The second phrase
of the project will extend the
aintrip by 300 mewres. Upon
final completion by the year
2010, the airstrip will be able 1o
handle ten aircrafts at a time
and will cater the DASH 8300
series aircrafts as well.

e —




d)

e)

Fishing Complex

A fishing complex
will be  built in
the Tanjung Manis
Timber  Processing
Zone by Sarawak
Economic
Development
Corporation (SEDC)
to provide facilities
like food-processing,
ice plants or cold
storage  rooms and
platoon wharves. The
additional facilities
would be fully utilised
by the fishermen to
unload their catches
before their products
could be transported
and processed into
manufactured  food
products for export.
The setting up of
the complex would
help  to  enhance
Tanjung Manis as a
strategic o n
with  facilities  for
ocean-bound liners o berth
at the port.

Rajang Port Authority
Building

The Rajang Port Authority
building at the Tanjung Manis
Processing Zone costing RM75
million is poised to become an
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important port-of<calls for ocean
liners as it offers the best and
most uptodate port facilities as
well as qualified personnels in
cargo handling,. When fully
completed, it will provide
excellent port facilities to all
users in Batang Rajang Basin
arecas.

< Payang Puri

Hotel, Sarikei
Toum.

Sarikei

8 Divisional

Maosque.




Future of Tanjung
Manis

With its vast tracts of
fertile land endowed
with  rich  natwral
resources, njung
Manis area will become
one  of the most
progressive rural growth
centres in the State.
The  development  of
the timber processing
industries, sago and oil
palm plantations as well
as  mechanised i
estates in the
areas  have in
enhanced the econg
potentials for the benefit
of the State and the
local  people  there.
Describing  Tanjung
Manis as the best
natural deepwater port
in the region, the Chiel
Minister of  Sarawak
believed that by the year
2005 - 2008, Tanjung
Manis would become a
new industrial  satellite
township with a population of
30,000, He was optimistic that
in addition to the existence of
the wood-based industries, an
additional of 100,000 hectares
of land will be used for  padi
plantation in Pulau Bruit, sago
and oil palm plantations in
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Matu, Igan and Mukah areas
and aquaculture  projects in
Tanjung  Manis and Lower
Rajang areas. Local people who
have migrated to urban areas
will return to grab the numerous

job opportunities created from

these industries.

The entrance
of Taman
Tasik,

Sarikei.

Taman Tasik
Sarikei.




3) Taman Tasik Sarikei

The opening of a new
pristine landmark, the
Taman  Tasik

at Kilometre 2.
Repok in June 1998 had
brought joy and cheers
to the local populace of
the Pineapple Town.
Costing RM1.4 million
upon completion, the
3 hectare garden will
become  the  “green
lung” of the town
to create a healthy
environment and
cleaner  atmosphere.
The vast changes done
on the land  has
nevertheless
tansformed  the area
into pleasant and scenic
atmosphere covered by
an undulating garden
showing a  natural
hilly scenery. The lake
garden includes
landscaping, a hill top
pavilion, jogging track,
recreation areas,
artificial lake of 2,000
square  metres, food
kiosks and a fountain.
The idea behind this
momentous project is
to  provide  better
recreational facilities 10
cater the needs of the
increasing population. Its

Civic Cenlre,
Sarikei along
Jalan Market.
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4. Semangkoi Country Park

aim is to improve and
upgrade the quality of life
and living standard of the
people as well as enhance
towards the creation of a
clean and healthy image of
the town,

Besides Taman Tasik Sarikei,
Semangkoi  Country Park
along  Sarikei/Sri Aman
Road is also a popular place
for the local people to enjoy
the natral environment
and spend their weekend
in  the jungle. Bukit
Semangkoi was once the
forgotten  area, it was
transformed by Sarikei
District  Council into a
designated well-known
recreational spot for  local
residents and  visitors to
carry out their outdoor

a ies.  Its main
attractions the
waterfall amidst  natural

surroundings coupled with
camping sites, rest house,
canteen, man-made lake,

children’s pool and
playground.
Sarikei Town Today

According o a survey conducted in
February 1999, there are 439 units

of various shophouses in Sarikei.
However, the total does not include
the industrial shops established along
Jalan Industi and Jalan Repok. The

Is of the shophouses are as
follows:-

Wharf Road,

St. Anthony’s
Church,
Sarikei.




No. Location Type of concrete shophouses Total
Sstorey  4storey  3storey 2storey  I-storey
1) Jalan Bank 28 39 67
9)  Jalan Repok 36 35 16 2(wooden) 89
3)  Jalan Merdeka 10 18 28
4)  Jalan Masjid Lama 3 16 49
5)  Jalan Central 3 8 11
6)  Jalan Bersatu 14 21 8 43
7)  Jalan Tok Tok 11 6 17
8)  Jalan Jubli Mutiara 40 40
9)  Jalan Nyelong 17 17
10) Jalan Abdul Razak 27 27
11) Jalan Abdul Karim 51 51
Total: 13 206 155 63 2 439

As a whole, the town of Pineapple is
developing steadily in the Lower
Rajang Basin. The government’s
cfforts, complemented by the full
support of the people will set a new
pace of developmentin Sarikei. With
the spreading of its wing  to Sarikei,
Chemai Jaya College has really created
cducational opportunities for the
students in this booming division to
pursue their academic ambitions
and to seek further educational
advancement in their own homeland.
Memorandum of Understanding was
signed between the Government
represented by Y. B. Dawk Law
Hieng Ding, the Federal Minister
for Science, Technology —and

Environment and Encik Ismail Mohd.
Yusof, the Chief Executive Officer cum
Principal of Chermai Jaya College in
Sarikei on 17.10.1999 in order to
proceed with the establishment of the
college in Sarikei in May 2000. Some
days in the near future, Sarikei may
tumn into a bustling centre not only for
academic study and commercial
trading but also for commercial
farming in Sarawak, doing justice 0
the division’s famed oranges and
pineapples! Obviously following the
footsteps of Sibu Town, Sarikei will
become @a robust and economic
powerhouse of the Lower Rajang as
well as one of the fastest developing
towns in Sarawak.






Sibu - The Town of Express Boats

I. INTRODUCTION

Sibu Division, the Third Division of
Sarawak, has an area of 12,640 square
kilometres and based on 1991 Census, it
had a population of 259,127. However,
according to the 1999  Mid-Year
Population Estimate, the population of
Sibu Division had increased up to
$14,200. Altogether Sibu Division has
1,081 villages/longhouses  consisting of
21,133 families.

Historically, Sibu was part of Brunei
Territory until 1853, In 1853 Sultan
Abdul Mumin of Brunci ceded the Lower
Rajang Basin to James Brooke and, hence,
it became part of Sarawak Territory from

that time onwards. Originally, the only
settlement in Sibu was a small Melanau
Kampung called Kampung Nangka, a
lile way down the Igan. Slowly, Sibu
town was developed on a swampy low-
lying area where the main stream of the
Rajang divides into two, the Rajang
Proper and the Igan.

Prior to 2,4.1973, Sibu Division was
known as Third Division and the present
Sarikei and Kapit Divisions were under its
jurisdiction. However, after 2.4.1973, part
of Third Division became Sibu Division.
The Division comprises of four districts
and two sub-districts namely:-

District Sub-district Population in 1991
1) Sibu District - 170,430
2)  Dalat District Oya Sub-district 21,609
3)  Mukah District Balingian Sub-district 42,000
4)  Kanowit District 25,088

Total 259,127




Map of Sibu Town




Sibu Division has 4 towns and 17
bazaars in the whole division namely:-

1) Sibu Town

2)  Kanowit Town

3) Mukah Town

4) Sungai Merah Bazaar
(Sin Choo San)

5) Durin Bazaar

Machan Bazaar

7) Nanga Dap Bazaar

8) Ngemah Bazaar

9) Stapang Bazaar

10) Selangau Bazaar

11) Dalat Bazaar

12) Sungai Kut Bazaar

13) Oya Bazaar

14) Balingian Bazaar

15) Nanga Tamin Bazaar

16) Tamin Bazaar,
59th Kilometre
Sibu/Bintulu Road

17) Tepus Bazaar

18) Teku Bazaar

19) Pradom Bazaar

20) Pusat Indah, Aup

21) Sibu Jaya New Township

II. THE ORIGIN OF THE NAME OF
SIBU

A story revealed that in the olden days,
there were plenty of wild rambutan trees
around the present Sibu Town. Soon after
Sir James Brooke took over the
ministration of Rajang Basin from Brunci
in 1853, his official was sent to visit places
along Batang Rajang. When he arrived at the

existing site of Sibu Town, he pointed to the
wild rambutan trees growing in abundance
and asked “What is the name of the tree?”
The guide who was an Iban answered,
“Sibau” (wild rambutan). Then the Brooke's
official named the place “Sibau” which
cventually was pronounced as “Sibu” until
present day.

However until today, Sibu Municipal
Council (SMC) has not decided whether Sibu
is to be known as the Town of Buah Sibau,
Buah Dabai or Expressboats. The former
Chairman of Sibu Municipal Council, Encik
Kong Sien Han, said, "Questionnaires have
been prepared and to be sent to the people
to seek for their opinion. The choice must
reflect the town’s identity™.

The crest of
Sibu Municipal



Further information on the
likely symbols of Sibu Town is
appended belows-

1) Buah Sibau (Scientific

5

Name: Sapindaceae)
Buah Sibau is the wild
rambutan  which s
similar to the ordinary
rambutan in appearance
but it is smaller in size
and more hairy.  Buah
Sibau is rather sour and
its flesh does not come
off from the seed casily.
The skin is a bit thicker
with  reddish  and
greenish tones than the
ordinary rambutan.

A drawing of the Sibau
fruit can be found at the
crest of Sibu Municipal
Council. It is dangling
from the beak of the
hornbill.

Buah Dabai (Scientific
Name: Canarium
Odontophyllum)

Buah Dabai is a type of local olive
which can be found in abundance in
Sibu markets. Rather dark in colour
over the skin and deep purple at the
inside, the fruitis shaped like a rughy
ball. For the better quality Dabai, the
flesh s usually yellowish in colour
and whitish flesh s considered
second class Dabai. Besides, the

3
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inferior variety has thinng

flesh over a somewhat bigger s

Express Boats

Sibu is very famous of her
acrody aped  express
boats notonly in Malaysia but also in
South East Asia
“Made in Sibu” express boats could

amically-s|

nd even beyond.

be scen plying the countries in South
China Sea.

Buah Sibau

y (Wild

Rambutan).

Fruiting
Dabai
(Canarum
odantophyllum)
bree.




The modern express boat is
le or even bigger than the

Bocing 735-500 series. A check
reveals that about 30 big and small

View of Sibu

shipyards along Batang Rajang and
Igan River are building express
boats for sale in the local markets
and overscas.
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III.  EARLY MALING/SIBU
s :

In 1851, Anglican Bishop MacDougal
who accompanied Tuan Besar Brooke Brooke
1o visit Kanowit arca mentioned that there was
a small village called Sibu (Maling). Sibu was
producing salt at that time and people who
proceeded o Kanowit normally would stop
over at Sibu, Even the first Mill Hill Catholic
Missionary to Batang Rajang often stopped at
Sibu for overnights before proceeding to
Kanowit. Sibu was a place of great importance
and this prompted Father Dunn o start a
mission in Sibu in November 1897.

Fort Brooke was established in 1862 on
an island at the river bend opposite the site of
the present Sibu town.  This river bend was
called Tanjung Maling and the village on the
island was also called Maling, Meanwhile the
Il settlement, Sibu, opposite Maling grew
up rapidly due to its position as a riverine port.
Because it was very near o Maling, it was
sometimes called Maling Town. The fort was
built not only for the purpose of defence but
also as a centre of government administration.
On 1351870, Fort Brooke was attacked by
Lintong and Kanowit Dayaks. The earliest
Chinese who came to do business near the Fort
Brooke were the Chinese Hokkien and the
Teochew. By 1871, there were about 20
wooden shophouses in Maling already.

On 1.6.1873 the Rajang Basin became a
residency with its Divisional Headquarters at
Sibu. This new status  brought rapid
development to Sibu.  Inspite of the fact
that Kanowit became a commercial centre
sometime in 18405 and the building of Fort

Emma in 1859, by 1880 Sibu had over taken
Kanowit as a riverine port of great importance.
In 1887 the Sibu Chinese traders with the
Government’s aids built at the site of the
present Channel Road a row of 60 belian-wood
shophouses. A systematic plan of Sibu Bazaar
developed atabout thi 2

IV. EARLY CHINESE SETTLEMENT
ALONG LOWER RAJANG RIVER

After the mid-nineteenth century, a great
number of Chinese especially the Hokkien
merchants came to settle in the Rajang Valley,
Sarawak.  This was brought about by two
important factors, Firsty, Sarawak under the
White i became politically stable and
peaceful which atracted various races from the
neighbouring regions. Sccondly, the White
h encouraged and armanged for the
Chinese settlers to come and cultivate the land
for agricultural purposes as well as 10 start
various business in order to develop the
cconomy of Sarawak. In 1880, Rajah Charles
Brooke amanged 500 Chinese Hokkien to
setle down in the lower Rajang area. Majority
of the Hokkien setders came to Sibu to do
business with the natives there.  They built
Auap houses along the bank of Loba
Lembangan where the Palace Theatre now
sited.

In order 1o attract the Chinese to come
and to develop the economy of Sarawak,
especially along the Rajang Basin, Rajah
Charles Brooke put an advertisement in The
wak Gazette printed on 29.11.1880.
Quoted below is the Sarawak Government
Notification from Rajah Charles Brooke.




=
Government Notification

1, Charles Brooke, Rajah make known the following terms which the
Gavernment of Sarawak hereby agrees to fulfill with any Company of
Chinese who will engage to bring into the Rajang River Chinese settlers
with wives and families numbering not less than three hundred souls,
who will employ themselves in gardening and farming paddy or in other

cultivations -

Ist -

2nd -

3rd -

th

5th -

6th -

The Government will provide land sufficient for their
requirements free of charge.

The Government on first starting will build them temporary
houses, and make a good path to their landing place.

The Government will give them one Pasu of rice per man or
woman a month and a little salt and half the amount to
cuery child for the first 12 months.

The Government engage 1o keep upstream communication
with Kuching and carry any necessaries for these settlers on
the most reasonable terms.

The Government will build a Police Station near them to
protect them and assist in making themselves understood in
the native language and generally look after them.

In carrying out the above engagements the Government
expect the said Chinese will permanently settle in the
territory of Sarawak.

Kuching, 11 November, 1880
(Note: 1 Pasu = 14.4 kilogrammes approx.)

G



A scene of old

street Sibu after
big fire in
1928,

Sibu big flood
at Market
Road in
1934.

It was under the terms and conditions

laid down by the White Rajah that
arrangements were made for about 500
Chinese 10 come over and to cultivate the
land along the Lower Rajang areas. Later on,
many of these Chinese moved to Sibu area.
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However, large scale  of
Chinese immigration into the
Rajang did not occur until the
turn of the 20th centry when
the  Government  directly
sponsored the entry of three
different  Chinese  dialect
groups into the Rajang, the
Foochows in 1900, the
Cantonese in 1901, and the
Henghuas in 1911, Following
the introduction of the rubber
trees late in the first decade of
the 20th century, many
thousands of Chinese
immigrants poured into the State over the next
three decades.

Below are the four famous pioneers who
brought in big numbers of Chinese
immigrants to Sibu




==

Sibu old
toumn.

Old Central
Road, Sibu.

1) Teo Yien Too (1867-1950) Hokkien
Pioncer

In the year 1884, Teo Yien Too, the
pioneer of Hokkien arrived in
Maling (Sibu) from China. At that

time, ng (Sibu) had about 100
Chinese, most of them were the
Hokkien and Teochew groups. They
resided in Attap Street (the present
area along the Palace Theatre) and
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Mz Teo Yien Too (1867 - 1950)
Ist Chinese Headman for Sibni.

involved themselves in rubber and
pepper tradings with the indigenous
people in Batang Rajang areas. In
1897, Teo Yien Too was one of the
fund raising committee members
to rebuild the Eng Ann Teng
Tuapekong  Temple. He was
appointed as the first Kapitan China
for Sibu arca by the Brooke
Government from 1906 10 1927. Teo
Yien Too who married in 1900 had
$ sons and 2 daughters.

During the Japanese occupation,
he together with 27 others were
arrested by the Japanese authority
for the alleged involvement in Anti-
Japanese activities. However, they
were released after 33 days of
detention. Kapitan Teo passed away
in Sibu Main Bazaar in 1950 at the
age of 83.




2) Wong Nai Siong (1849-1924)

Foochow Pioneer

The most famous Chinese pioneer
10 open up Sibu (or New Foochow
as it was called in the olden days) was
none other than the famous Wong
Nai Siong. He was introduced to
the second White Rajah, Sir Charles
Brooke by his sonsindaw Dr. Lim
Boon Keng in 1900. With the
assistance of Kapitan Ong Tiang
Swee of Kuching, Wong Nai Siong
drew up an agreement with the
White Rajah.

Wong Nai Siong, the eldest of four
sons ofa farmer, Wong King Po, was
bom in July 1849 at Mintsing villa
in Foochow District of Fukien
Province, China. In 1894, Wong Nai
Siong possessed a scholastic degree
of Hau Lieng (2nd degree) of the
Ching Dynasty.

He was a patriot and a revolutionary
of China. In 1898 when the Reform
ment initiated by the scholars

failed, he escaped
Nanyang (South East Asia). So, in
1900 he armived at Sarawak seeking
agriculral land for cultivation and
he signed an agreement with the
second White Rajah of Sarawak to
bring in farmers to seule
cultivate the land in the Rajang
Basin on 27.7.1900. The White
Rajah gave him a loan of $30.000 to
cover the costs of transporting the
settlers from China o Sibu. The
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Wong Nai Siong
(1849 1924)

Joan was to be repaid over a period
of five years. Wong undertook to
recover the loan from the seters by
ing them to pay twothird of
their annual produce as tax until the
debt was fully repaid.

On 20.2.1901, seventy-two Foochows
were brought over by Wong Nai
Siong from China to Sungai Merah
(Sin Choo San). On 16.3.1901,
another 535 Foochows were brought
over to Sungai Merah o join the
first group of pioncers. In order  to
cope up with the gradual increasing
Foochow community, a school
known as Guong Ann was opened in
Sungai Merah in 1901 and another
school known as Kwong Hua School
was established at Sungai Sadit.
Wong Nai Siong was appointed as
“Gangzhu” or Proprictor to take
charge of the Foochow settlers when




the sewlement was fully
established in Sungai
Merah.

In 1901, Wong Nai
Siong  obmined a
second loan of $10,000
from the White Rajah to
bring more setlers to
Sibu. He gave the
money to Lik Chiang
for safe-keeping but Lik
Chiang ran away to
Taiwan with the money.

On 7.6.1902, Wong Nai
Siong managed to bring
another group of 511
Foochows and set up a
custom office at Lower
Rajang to collect tolls
from farmers  and
traders.  This landed
him in wouble because
he was accused of
collecting taxes without
the Rajah’s authority.
He was arrested but was
released  not  long
afterwards.  Upon his
release, he promised to pay the
debts incurred but he failed due
poor harvests by the Foochow
Community. In the end, the White
Rajah gave up hope to collect the
repayment of loan.

In Junc 1904, Wong Nai Siong
retrned to China and he died at

218

Mintsing on 22.9.1924 at the age of
76. Although he spent less than four
years in Sarawak, he made a great
impact on the State. He introduced
one of the most forceful
communities i.e. Foochow into
Sarawak. In those days the Foochows
did not know any of the local dialects
and, hence, they encountered

New Federal

Sungai
Merah
Bazaar, Sibu.



numerous problem
However, they never gave
up. Their resillence and
simple mindedness in
carving outabetter  life
amid a  harsh  and
uncompromising
environment where
dise and illnesses
came in many names
and forms, deserved the
highest respect.

Undaunted, they tilled  the
land, experimenting with
different crops while some
traded with the local tribes
and other traders. It was
virtually and-to-mouth
existence for the Foochows
in those days. However, all
these hardships led to the
success of the Foochow in
Sibu.

Today the people in Sibu
especially the  Foochow
community still respect
and  remember  Wong
Nai Siong. A Chine
Secondary School and a
street in Sibu were named
after him in 1950 and 1945
respectively. Wong Nai Siong could
therefore be considered as one of the
great men and the founder of Sibu.

After Wong Nai Siong left for China,
Rev. James Hoover was appointed
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in Sibu. - Within 32 years
under the leadership of Rev. James
Hoover, the settlements achieved
great  success, developed  and
expanded  besides atracting more
influx of new Foochow settlers from

Sibu
Municipal
Council
Building.

Civic Centrr,
Sibu.




China to Sibu. The expansion of
Foochow setlements from 1910 o
1940 in Sarawak are as follows:-

Region of Expansion
Foochow Settlement extended to Kanowit
Foochow settlement extended to Sarikei

Foochow settlement extended to Binatang (Bintangor)

Foochow settlement extended to Kapit
Foochow settlement extended to Mukah

Foochow settlement extended to Bintulu and Baram

Foochow settlement extended to Julau
Foochow setlement extended to Kuching

Then Kung Suk.
(1870 - 1936)

3)

In 1991, Foochows in Sibu celebrated
their 90th anniversary in a grand w
Foochows from all over the world came
to Sibu to witness the grand occasion.

Then Kung Suk (Tang Kung Shook)
(1870-1936)Cantonese Pioneer

A Cantonese pioneer from Sanshui
District of Guangdong Province in
China, Then Kung Suk passed the
Provincial Examination and actively
involved in the Reform Movement
in China. He migrated to Nanyang
(South  East o seek for
employment. On 5. together
with Chiang Cho Shiong, another
Cantonese  pioncer  signed  an
agreement with Rajah Charles Brooke
to bring in Cantonese farmers from
China to Sibu. From 1902 w 1917,
there were about 1,000 Cantonese
immigrants being brought over to Sibu.
They had opened up areas in Lanang
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and Salim mainly for pepper and rubber
plantings but later it spread out to the
following localities:-

Year  Locality
1911 Sungai Stabau
1912 Lower Naman
1914 Sungai Naman
1915 Upper
1916 Sungai Nibong and Durin
1917 Tanjung Lukut,

Sungai Petai,

Sungai Pok, and

Sungai Pak.

Then Kung Suk was appointed as
“Gangzhu” or Proprictor in Guangdong
settlement in Sibu. He returmed to China
in 1910 and died on 13.8,1936. As a
pioneer in opening up the Rajang Basin,
he was well respected and remembered.
A road known as Jalan Then Kung Suk, is
named after him in Sibu.




4) Rev. Dr. William Brewster - Leader of
Henghua Settlement

Under the leadership of Rev. Dr.
William Brewster and Methodist
Pastor Li Zhang Shui, an agreement
with White Rajah Sir Charles Brooke
was signed 1o recruit Henghua
people from Putian and ~ Zianyou
China to Sibu. On 2251912, the
first group of Henghua setters
totalling 1o 101 were seuled at
Sungai Merah, Sibu. On 17.6.1913,
a second group numbering 44
Henghua seulers also arrived to join
the fist group of the immigrants.
Altogether,  they opened up four
Henghua  Seulements  namely
Henghua Seulement at Sunga
Merah in 1912, Henghu
Settlement at Sun, cku in 19
Henghua Settdement at Penasu,
Igan River on 1928 and Henghua
Seulement at Sungai Poi in Upper
Rajang in 1929,

V. SIBU IN THE EARLY DAYS

In the olden days, Sibu used 1o suffer
flash flood several times a year because the Sibu
is lowlying with poor drainage. There
was a river called Sungai Lembangan (also
known as Pulau Babi locally) which flowed
along the back of Lau King Howe Hospital,
passing through Kampung Nyabor, Palace
Theare and Main Bazaar before entering
Rajang River. Now, this river had long been
filled up and high raised buildings are being
built on it.
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v
Rev. Dr. William Brewster.
(1872 - 1935)

On the night of 10.2.1889, Sibu
wooden bazaar consisting 60 shophouses
was gutted by fire, the whole Bazaar was
burnt to the ground including the more
permanent shophouses built in 1887. The
cost of the damage was estimated in the
region of $15,000.00. After the big fire, all
shopkeepers wanted to build concrete
shophouses but due to financial difficulties,
only temporary timber shophouses were
constructed to meet the immediate needs
within the same This fire had caused

much  destruction and delay o the
development of Sibu area.

By carly 20th Century, Sibu had become
the commercial cenue of the Rajang Basin
after 20 years of fire destruction,  The vast
hinterland with rich natural resources such as
timber and the growing population had
caused business in the town 1o flourish. The
Chinese in Sibu at that time were mostly




traders with a few being engaged in farming.
At the outskirts of the town lived the Malays
and Melanaus in Kampung Nyabor, Kampung
Hilir, Kampung Datu and Kampung Nangka.
Further into the interior were the Iban
longhouses. Business transaction between the
natives and the Chinese was mostly through
barter trading. On 7.3.1928 Sibu Town was
destroyed by fire for the second time. The
shopkeepers took quite sometime to rebuild
the shophouses.

In 1871, the Tuapckong Temple was
built by the Hokkien settlers in Sibu to serve
as the centre of Chinese religious activities

and to house the statue of Tuapekong
deity which they brought from China. In
August 1897, Sibu Chinese rebuilt the
temple designed in the traditional style at
the cost of $9,106/-. However, in 1945,
when the Allied Forces recaptured Sibu
Town from the Japanese, the temple was
destroyed due to the bombing but the
Tuapek statue ined 1
Twelve years later, new Tuapekong
Temple under the chairmanship of Chew
Geok Lin was built and it was declared
open by Sir Anthony Abell, the third
British Colonial Governor of Sarawak on
7.9.1957. In 1987, the management
under the chairmanship of Chu Tieng
Bok carried out the building of a pagoda
for worship of the Goddess of Mercy and
on 4.5.1989, the pagoda building was
declared open by the late Y.B. Datk
Amar Sim Kheng Hong, the then Deputy
Chief Minister of Sarawak.

VI. HEROES OF SIBU - MALAY HERO
ROSLI BIN DHOBY (1932-1950) &
OTHERS

Sibu had produced an outstanding hero
when Sarawak was a colony under the British
Rule. He was none other than Rosli bin Dhoby
who refused to be ruled by the British
Colonialism. At the age of 17, Rosli bin Dhoby
was a student-teacher and he was active in Sibu-
based Malay Youth Movement.

On 8.12.1949, Rosli bin Dhoby made a
heroic history when he headed the Rukun 13
(Black Crow Group) who killed Mr. Duncan
Stewart, the second Colonial Governor of

R
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Sarawak in Sibu.  Being an idealistic young Sidek were hanged on 2.3.1950 while Bujang

man, Rosli bin Dhoby believed that he could
end the colonial rule by killing the Governor.
In the end, Rosli bin Dhoby and 18 other
members of the Malay Youth Movement were
arrested by the Colonial Government.

Mr. Duncan  Stewart, the second
Governor of Sarawak was stabbed by Rosli bin
Dhoby using a uaditional poisonous dagger.
The Governor was rushed to Lau King Howe
Hospital and next morming, he was flown to
Singapore for treatment. However, Mr. Duncan
Stewart died of severe injuries on 10.12.1949,
The Heroes, Rosli bin Dhoby and Morshidi bin
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bin Suntong and Awang Rambli bin Haji
Matasruddin - (Amit) were  executed  on
3.2.1950. 15 other comrades were imprisoned
for a period in between 3 weeks to 15 years.

After 46 years, the remains of our heroes,
Rosli bin Dhoby, Morshidi Sidek, Bujang
Suntong and Awang Ramli were exhumed
from the Central Prison, Kuching and reburied
at the cemetery of Masjid An Nur, Sibu on
2.3.1996.

In the eye of the Colonial Government,
Rosli bin Dhoby and his comrades were




“Get out of
Sarawak or
you die!”
shouted Rosli
Dhaobry when
he stabbed
Mr. Duncan
Stewart to
death in Sibu

—

nothing more than criminals who led a group
of Sibubased Malay Youth Movement to kill
the second Colonial Governor, Mr. Duncan
Stewart in 1949. Rosli bin Dhoby and others
were actually neither criminals nor murderers
but freedom fighters against the British
Colonial Rule. They were in fact carly
nationalists who did not want a colonial rule.
They died for the sake of defending the rights
and sovercignty of Sarawak against Whi
Men's Rule.

In order to honour his patriotic spirit
and safe guarding the sovereignty of Sarawak,
a secondary school along Sibu New Airport
Road (Tunku Abdul Rahman Road) was

named after Rosli bin Dhoby. On 27.7.1993,
Rosli bin Dhoby was officially declared by the
State Government of Sarawak as one of the
heroes of Sarawak. Even his comrades namely
Morshidi Sidek, Bujang Suntong and Awang
Ramli are well remembered in Sibu. A road
cach is named after three of them in Sibu
Town.

VIL. SIBU UNDER JAPANESE
OCCUPATION
On 25.12.1941 the Japanese troops
occupied Kuching and, on the same day, the
Japanese bombers carried out air strike on
Sibu. On 27.12.1941 Mr. Andrew MacPherson,



The tomb of
Rosli Dholy

in Sibu.

Raosli Dholry

the Resident of Sibu, appointed Datu
Mohammud to take charge of Sibu and then
he left for Upper Rajang together with other
opean officers.  Unfortunately, they were
betrayed and all were killed by the Japanese at
Upper Batang Ai.

After the departure of the Resident,
rioters started looting the government rice
store and British Company stores in the
godowns. On 28.12.1941 the government padi
store at Bukit Lima was also forced open but
the Chinese leaders with the help of the police
force managed to prevent the looting.

On 19.1.1942, a Japanese troop led by
Asoaarrived in Sibu and thus putting an end 1o
the looting and disorder. On 23.6.1942, Senda
Kojiro was appointed as the Japanese Resident
of Sibu. Together with 60 Japanese officials
Senda  Kojiro  formed  the  divisional

1942, the Japanese
ary govemment carried out a massive
arrest of the Chinese leaders who were
suspected  to raise money for China Reliel
Fund. However, the 21 personalities were
released on 16.9.1942. By October 1942, all
schools were ordered to close and the Japanese
Public Schools were opened to brainwash the
people through schooling.

The Japanese Military Government
impounded large areas at Sungai Merah for
building an airport.  The airport  was
constructed by forcing the local workers o
complete it but later it was bombed by the
Allied planes. In 1944, the Japanese arrested
more than 30 Chinese accusing them for anti-
Japanese activities. On 9.6.1945, some of them
were executed while others had to serve
imprisonment.  Meanwhile, the Allied Forces
ack began. On ¢ 1945, the

counter:




Aerial view
of Sibu
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Australian  Force landed at Bario and,
wltancously, Allied planes began to bomb
Sibu. Finally, on 1581945 the Japanese
surrendered unconditionally to the Allied
Forces. The Japanese Resident of Sibu carried a
white flag and handed over his sword to Major
Sochon of the Allied Forces as a symbol of
Japanese’s surrender thus ending the Japanese
rule in Sibu for 3 years and 8 months.

VIII. RACIAL COMMUNITIES IN SIBU
DISTRICT

Sibu, the second largest town in Saraw:
is the main port and gateway for the Rajang
Basin. Also known as “New Foochow” because
Sibu was actually developed by the hardworking
Foochows in the carly 20th Century.

The Town is situated at the bank of Lower
Rajang River and it is about 104 kilometres
from Kuala Rajang. Sibu is a good place for
tourists to shop for handicrafts and it has an

excellent native market. From
here, the famous express boats
leave for all destinations along
Rajang River, making Sibu an
ideal jumping-off point for
visiting indigenous people such
as the Tban, Orang Ulu, Malay
and Melanau communities.

The arca of Sibu District
is 3,150 square kilometres.
Based on 1980 census statistics,
the population of Sibu was
130,595, The details are as
follows:-

Clock Tower
within
Rajang
Esplanade,



Race  Population  Percentage

Chinese 80,938 62%
Iban 24,877 19.1%
Malay 13,672 o
Melanau B

Bidayuh 0.4%
Others 0.9%
Total: 100%

However, according 1o
1991 census, the population
of Sibu had increased up 10

170,430,
30% for the past 10 years.

th
In I

Population  Estimate,  the
population of Sibu District had

furthe

a)  Chinese Community

increase of more

based on the Mid-Yea

increased up to 208,200,

The Chinese
migration and
settlement in Sibu

1912, A further Henghua immigration
took place three years later.

Among the Chinese population in
Sibu Division, the following persons
are the most outstanding figures:-

1) Teo Yien Too (1867-1950) was the
Chinese Hokkien Pioneer in Sibu.
He became the first Kapitan China
for Sibu from 1906 0 1927. He
died in Sibu in 19

first started by the  Tan Sn Datuk Amar Ling Beng Siewe Datuk Amar Ling Beng Siong,

Hokkien community

in 1880 but the impact was not great
becanse the number of Hokkien
immigrants was Il In actual fact,
the three big setlement projects were
started off by the Foochow founder,
Mr. Wong Nai Siong on 20.2.1901, the
antonese pioneer, Mr. Then Kung
Suk in 1902 and a Methodist
Missionary worker, Dr. Rev. William
Brewster  who  led  Henghua
community from China to Sibu in

2) Wong Nai Siong (1849-1924) was the
n Sibu.
1924,

Chinese Foochow Pioneer
He died in China in the y

3) Then Kung Suk (1870-1936) was the
Sibu.
He passed away in China on
13.8.1936,

Chinese Cantonese Pionees

4) Tan Sri Dawk Amar Ling Beng
Siew was  the President of Sarawak




Tan Sri Datuk Patinggi Dr. Wong

Soon Kat.

o

Chinese Association (SCA) which
came on the political scene in
July 1962 but was dissolved in
1974. From 1955 to 1962, he was
a Member of Council Negri.
From 1958 dll 1962, he was a
Member of Sarawak Supreme
Council and from 1963 10 1969,
he was a Member of Parliament.

Datuk Amar Ling Beng Siong
from Sibu became the State
Minister of Youth and Culture
of Sarawak from 24.9.1966 to
6.7.1970.

Tan Sri Datuk Patinggi Dr. Wong
Soon Kai from Sibu was the
President of Sarawak United
People’s Party (1990-1997) and
he was appointed as the Deputy
Chief Minister of Sarawak from

Y.B. Datuk Wong Soon Koh.

Y.B. Dr. Soon Choon Teck.

1991 - 1996. Now he is the State
Science Advisor.

7) YB. Dawk Wong Soon Koh, a
Member of Council Negri from
Bawang Assan is the State Minister
of Infrastructure Development
and Communications. He was
the former  Speaker of Council
Negri Sarawak from 1.3.1994 w0
14.11.1996.

8) Y.B. Dr. Soon Choon Teck, @
Member of Council Negri from
Dudong is the State Assistant
Minister of Environment and
Public Health.

b) Malay Community

Sometime in the middle of 19th
century the Malays, formerly coastal
dwellers, began to move into Sibu




area  from the west
part of Sarawak. They
continued  their trade
and ook advantage of
the riches of the virgin
itory along
Finally, they
settled down in Sibu
at  Kampung Nyabor,
I\.uupung Nangka and
»ung Masjid, Sibu.

The outstanding M.
figures from Sibu Division
are as follows:-

1) Tun Datk Patinggi
Tuanku Haji Bujang bin Tuanku
Osman  (1898-1986) was the
second Head of State of Sarawak
from 1969 - 1977. He died in
Kuching on 28.11.1986 at the age
of 88,

Tun  Dawk Patinggi  Haji
Ahmad Zaidi Adruce Mohd.
Nor of Kampung Hilir, Sibu
became the present Head of
State of vak from 1985
until today.

¢) Iban Community

At the beginning of 19th centry,
groups of Ibans started o penetrate
the headwaters of Katibas and
Sarikei from Batang Lupar and
Batang Saribas, By 1850, they had
reached the vicinity of Lower Rajang
especially around Sibu area. Many

Ibans started to grow cash crops such
as rubber and pepper but some of
them still centred very much on padi
shifting cultivation.  Later on, many
Ibans left home to work at the timber
companics.

The oustanding Iban leaders from
Sibu Division are as follows:

1) YB. Dawk Amar Leo Moggic
ak. Irok is the Member of
Parliament from Kanowit. He is
the President of Parti Bansa
Dayak Sarawak (PBDS) which
was formed in September, 1983
and he is the Federal Minister of
Energy, Telecommunication and
Multimedia. He was the State
Minister for Local Government
and Welfare Services from 1974-
1979,

Sibu old
mosque has a
three-storey
roof which is
pyramidical
in shape.




3) YB. Dauk Gramong Juna
is the Member of Council
Negri from Ngemah. He is
the State Assistant Minister
of Rural Development and
Land Development.

4) YB. Encik Joseph Entulu
Belaun is the Member of
Council Negri from Tamin
and he is the State Assistant
Minister of Youth and
Sports.

Y.B. Datuk Amar Leo Moggie ak.  Datuk Penghulu Francis Umpa ak. o) Mol Comeuniniy

Irok. Empam. Melanau community was
believed to be the carliest
inhabitants in Sibu District.
There is a Melanau
settlement at Kampung
Nangka. Following the
cession of Rajang area by
the Brunei in 1853 and
1861, Melanaus gave up
their longhouse domicile
gradually  and  built
individual houses in the
Kampungs until today.

Nowadays, the Melanau
population can be found

¥B Datuk Gramong Juna. Y.B. Encik Jaseph Entulu Belaun. in the Rajang delta region,
Kanowit, Mukah, Dalat,
2) Datuk Penghulu Francis Umpau Oya, Balingian, Beluin and

ak Empam from Kanowit Tanjung in Sibu_ Division.

became the State Minister for
Lands an Mineral Resources
from 1.8.1963 10 6.7.1970.

The outstanding Melanau
figures from Sibu Division
arcas follows:-
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IX. RUMAH MALAYSIA

Although Sibu is historically a
new place when compared
with other areas in Sarawak, it
has created a history when it
became the venue for a
meeting for the formation of
first elected State Government
of Sarawak.

The luxurious mansion of Tan
Sri Datk Amar Ling Beng
Siew built in 1962 at No. 25,
Upper Lanang Road, Sibu was
declared by the Chief Mini
of  Sarawak,
1) Tun Dawk Patinggi Abang Haji Patinggi Tan Sri (Dr)
Muhammad  Salahuddin  from Mahmud as a historical site and named
Kampung Nang] bu be “Rumah Malaysia” during the State’s 20th
the third Head of § Merdeka Celebration in Malaysia in 1983,
from 1977 w0 1981,

Y.B. Datuk Dr. Leo Michael Toyad. Datuk Pengiran Hipni Pengiran
Anu.

It was in this very building that the State
political leaders of various races in

2) YB. Dawk Dr. Leo
Michacl Toyad who
is the Member of

Parliament from
Mukah is the Federal
Deputy Minister for

Foreign Affairs.

3) Dawk Pengiran Hipni
Pengiran Anu from
Mukah became the
State Minister and

Minister for Welfar
from  1.8.1963 Rumah
Malaysia.

6.7.1970.
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Sarawak such as the Chinese,
the Ibans, the Malays, the
Melanaus, the Orang Uly, etc
met at a crucial meeting in July
1963 to form the first elected
Government of Sarawak.

MUKAH DISTRICT
(1) Mukah in General

Mukah  Town is the
administrative headquarters
of Mukah District and it
has one  sub-district i.e.
Balingian. The district has
an area of 5,019 square
kilometres. Based on 1871
Census, Mukah District had
a population of 9,514. The
majority of the population
were the Melanaus (8,761)
the Ibans (611), Chinese
(119) and Indians (23). In
the 1991 Census it had a
population of 42,000, the
majority of them are the
Melanaus and the Ibans
followed by the Chinese
and the Malays. How
according to 1999 Mid-Year

Population Estimate, the
population of the district had
increased up to 51,100, The
Melanaus are found along the
coastal areas of Mukah and
Balingian whereas the Ibans are
staying mostly in Selangau and Ulu
Balingian areas. The Chinese who

g

are mostly Hokkien, Teochew
and Foochow are concentrating

themselves  in  Mukah  Town,
Balingian Bazaar and Selangau
Bazaar. There are about 331
7 Lot st
of a total of 6,614 farm families in
the district.

The older
part of Sibw
Town.

Sibu Town
along Batang
Rajang.



(2) The Origin of the

Name of Mukah
Mukah is originally
called "Muka™ which
means “face” because
it derived from a
legend sometime in
the I4th  century.
When the first group
of Melanaus reached
the mouth of Mukah
River by boats (in the
olden days the river
was known as Tellian
River), they were
weak and  thirsty.
However, they were
saved by a beautiful
lady who beckoned them to follow
her.  Once they reached a fresh
water well, she disappeared behind
the trees and was never appeared
again. Not knowing her name but
remembering her beautiful face,
hence, the group named the place
“Muka” Over the years, the word
was  adulterated through  local
pronouncation and hence, “Muka”
became “Mukah” until today. The
Melanaus first seuled down in
Kampung Boyan at Kuala Mukah. It
was estimated that there were about
one hundred houses in Kampung
Boyan, but today the Kampung was
no longer in existence and its
iginal site is now used by the
Electricity Supply Power
on (SESCO).

(3) Historical Background

Based on a map published in Italy
in 1595, the word “Malano” was
written along the coastal area
where the rivers of Oya, Mukah
and Balingian run. This might
suggest  that  the  Melanau
community had settled down
in these areas already. The
Melanaus refer themselves as “A-
Likou” meaning “people of the
river”. Generally, the Melanau in
Mukah can be categorised into
three  sub-groups namely the
Muslim, the Christian and the
Pagan Melanau.

Before the coming of Islam around
the 15th century, the Melanaus were

Mukah Toum
along Jalan
Pasar.
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all Pagans and were ruled
by their own chiefs. The
most famous chief was the
legendary Tugau, who lived
in the Retus, a tributary of
the Igan River. Tugau,
harbouring under illusions
of grandeur, one day decided
to challenge the Brunei
Sultanate and demanded
tribute and submission from
Sultan Mohammad. It was a
foolhardy challenge.

The Melanaus were badly
beaten in two decisive attacks
and Brunei claimed i
territory from the Tutong to
the Igan as part of its empire.
The Melanau chiefs were
later replaced with Brunei
Pengirans and a good deal of
inter-marriages  took  place
between the Brunei noblemen
and the Melanau women.
Their descendants are to be
found in many of the Sarawak
coastal areas to this day.

Hero of Melanau Community - Setia
Raja

In the 19th century, the famous
Melanau leader in Mukah was
Pehin Orang Kaya Setia Raja
Abang Manai bin Abang Dreman.
He was a responsible leader who
could protect his people from the
enemy and solve the problems of
his people. He was not only well

esy d by his own
and even his enemy butalso by the
Brunei authority and the Brooke
Regime. He was declared as one
of the heroes in the State by the
State Government of Sarawak on
27.7.1993. In order to remember
him, a road each in Kuching, Miri
and Mukah known as Jalan Setia
Raja are named after the hero. In

Balingian
Bazaar,




Setia Raja
Abang
Manai.

Mukah, the RM7.2 ion
Boulevard and the  RM4 million
District. Mosque are also named
after Setia Raja.

(5) Mukah Town

Mukah first bazwar which was made
of Atap was built by the Chinese
traders at Kuala Mukah soon after
Mukah area was ceded by the Sultan
of Brunei to the White Rajah of
Sarawak in 1861 A fort known as
Fort Burdett which was named after
James Brooke's good friend, Miss
Burdett Couus, was then built in
Mukah. However, the Bazar was
burned down a few years later
Sometime in the late 1860s, Mukah
Bazaar was rebuilt at the existing
Mukah Old Town. In June, 1945,
Mukah Bazar was bombed by the

Allied Force in order to chase a
the Japanese invaders in the arca.
The Bazaar was again completely
gutted by the fire. However, a few
years after the liberation, rows of
loubles y wooden shoph
were built along the present Jalan
Pasar, Mukah.

way

Today, Mukah has two towns. The
old Mukah Town along Sungai
Mukah consists of 22 units of 3-storey
concrete shophouses of which 20 of
them replaced the 20 wooden
shophouses burnt down in 1990,
There are another 10 units of 2-
storey conerete shophouses and 40

The
Landmark of
Mukah -
Tkan Merah




units of 2storey. wooden
shophouses totalling to 72
shophouses in the old town.
The new Mukah Township
which is  threequarter
kilometre  from the old
town consists of 127 3storey
concrete modern
shophouses. The Chinese
Temple which has a history of
more than 120 years old was
rebuilt and declared open by
the then Deputy Chief
Minister of Sarawak Y.B. Tan
Sri Damk Amar Sim Kheng
Hong on 14.5.1988. The
Chinese  Primary  School
known as Chong Boon was
built a few years after the
establishment of the old
Mukah Town. The only
Cinema in the town is Sieng
Seng Theatre. The landmark
of Mukah is Tkan Merah (Red
Fish) which is found plentiful
ngai Mukah and
The local
Melanau marinated raw fish
called Umai is the most popular
delicacy in Mukah. There are 3
banking agencies, 6 small hotels and
one private clinic in the old town
whereas  there are 2 banking
agendies, one hotel and one private
clinic in the new township. Besides,
there are two resorts namely Mukah
Kaul and Pentai Harmoni situated at
4th kilometre Jalan Mukah/Oya
along the beach side. Both St

along

patrick Primary and Secondary
Schools which were built in 1905
provide educational facilities in
Mukah.

(6) Sago Industry
Even in the olden days, sago flour
was onc of the Mukah main
products. The sago factories were
built so that the locals could sell

Raja Setia
Mosque,
Mukah,



Sago logs in
Mukah.

The  sago

their sago logs for processing. The
first sago factory was built in Mukah
in 1880. It was made of bricks
situated at the edge of the river in
Mukah Town. In 1918, the factory
was closed down when the price of
sago flour dropped to low price.
Today the square shaped, twenty
metre high chimney is the only
remain of the first sago flour factory
in Mukah.

processing  and
manufacturing  industry in  the
coastal region of the Rajang Basin,
as from the mid-1980's has entered

age of modemisation. It used 1o
be a manually operated cottage
industry, but now it is factory
operated and fully mechanised.
ccording to the management of
Sago Industries Sendirian
Berhiad in Mubkah; thesago palm isa
store of treasure and gold mine of
the area. Every part of the palm - the
leaves, barks, and siftings - is useful,
and sago flour is getting more and
more widely used as an ingredient in
food and drug manufacturing
i ies, Itis used as an ingredi

in the manufacturing of a myriad of
items, for example, granulated

The disused
sago furnance,
now a
landmark of
Mukah.




sauce like the Ajinomoto, glucose,
wine, vinegar, dark and light soya
sauces, paper, starch, office glue,
pills like Panadol, cakes, biscuits,
rice  noodles like Beehoon and
Kuehteow and dessert like pudding.
With the assistance from Agriculture
Deparunent, Tabaloi indusury is
being set up at Kampung levels in
Mukah. The most successful one was
established at Kampung Tutus Hilir
in 1990. Since then, the production
of Tabaloi (welkknown local snacks
made from sago flour) is on the
increase. Being a fishing town,
Mukah is wellknown for its fish
crackers  commonly known as
Keropok. The Keropok making is a4
booming cottage industry in Mukah.
Presently, in the international
market, the demand is so great that
at times a situation arises where
demand is greater than production.

About 5,000 familics living in the
coastal region of the Mukah District
are involved in the sago indusuy;
most of them supply sago logs to the
four main sago-flour processing
factories in the arca. Based on 1998
Mukah Agriculture Report, the small
holders have planted 4,452 matured
sago and 3,287 immatured sago in
the district. In Mukah, Land Custody
and  Development  Authority
(LCDA) has planted sago palms in
peat soil along Tanjung Telian,
Petanak, Judan, Batang Mukah,
Batang Balingian, Sungai Dijih,

=

Sungai Scbakong and Bukit areas.
From 1988 to 1995, Mukah Sago
Plantation (MSP) has planted a total
area of 7,890 hectares of

Sebakong Sago Plantation (SSP) has
planted 3,508 hectares of  sago
palms from 1995 to 1996 and a total
of 6,500 hectares will be planted by
the year 1999. The sago estates have
created vast jobs opportunities for
the locals.

(7) Mukah Today

Mukah Town is accessible by a 162
kilometre road from Sibu, by river
and by air using Twin-Otter aircraft.
Balingian, the only subddistrict in
Mukah, is 59 kilometres by road
from Mukah Town and it has 20
doubl wooden shop

on stilt. 1991 Census showed that
Balingian ~ Sub-district  had  a
population of 17,217,

Lignitic coal deposit occurs in the
coastal lowlands between Mukah
River and Balingian River. Since
1975 until 1991, several companies
conducted prospectings in the areas.
“The prospecting results estimated at
about 270 million tonnes of coal
exist in the Mukah/Balingian coal
field. Small arcas at Panarch and
Nanga Lemai were also being
prospected. Preliminary estimati

indicated a reserve of 43.6 million
tonnes and 8.3 million tonnes of
coal deposit respectively. The use of




coal as a fuel will be most suitable
for an onsite or nearsite power
generating  staion o provide
electricity not only to Mukah district
but also to the booming towns of
Bintulu and Sibu.

The industries like sago processing
and manufacturing, timber and
wood-based and oil palm have greatly
improved the economy of the people
in Mukah. The oil palm estate along
Mukah/Selangau Road is planted in
big scale by LK
3,600 hectares
production. In Balingian, about 93
hectares are planted by FELCRA 2
36 hectares are in production, Now,
along the picturesque banks of the
Mukah river, new houses have sprung
up; Mukah is flourishing when a new
township is being rapidly developed.
More residential houses and housing
estates are being built along the new
township as well as along Mukah/
Dalat Road. A Youth Camp which is
situated at Sungai Petain is also
completed to train the youths in the
area.  Besides, it has beautiful and
wanquil beaches and friendly people
staying this small but beautiful
town which is rich in its cultural
i Pesta Kaul (In Melanau
Pesta Kaul™ means “coming

festival”), a Melanau

together
traditional festival is celebrated in
April cach year as a ritual of

thanksgiving  and
for good fortune.

purification,
propitiation
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Dewan Suarah building incorporated
the Melanau culture was built in
Mukah at the cost of RM2.5 million.
It was opened to the public on
25.7.1988. Dewan Sukan, an indoor
stadium, was also built in 1996 to
provide a venue for indoor sport and
social activities in the own. Mukah is
definitely developing especially in its
sago industry and oil palm estates. It
is one of the fastest rural developing
towns in Sarawak.

KANOWIT DISTRICT

1) General Information

2

Kanowit Town is the administrative
headquarters of the Kanowit district.
Based on 1991 Census, it had a
population of 25,088 of which the
majority of them are the Ibans
followed by the Chinese, the
aus and the Malays. In - 1999,
ding to the Mid-Year Population
Estimate, the population of the
district_had increased up to 29,000.
Kanowit District has an area of
square  kilometres. It has

thr
small bazaars namely Ngemah Bazaar

(9 shophouses), Nanga Dap (12
shophouses) and Machan Bazaar (15
shophouses).

How did Kanowit get her name.
According to Mr Frederick Boyle
FR.GS. in his book “Adventures
Among the Dyaks of Borneo™ 1867,
he  pronounced  “Kanowit™ as

“Kennowit™. He described  that




The
Landmark
of Kanowit
Ihan
Duyong.

“Kennowit” was actually the name of

a small community who s
around Kanowit area  in
the olden days. However,
as time passed, more and
more Ibans migrated to
the area and, hence,
intermarriage took place
between the Kanowits @
the Ibans. Slowly, being a
minority race, the
were  diminishing  in
numbers and  eventually
were absorbed into the Iban
community. Although today
the Kanowit community is
no more in existence, the

name  “Kanowit”  still

remains as the name of the district as
well as Kanowit Town.

The name of Kanowit has another
version. According to an oral
tradition, the name ‘Kanowit” actually
came from the English term “Cannot
Wait™. After Batang Rajang area was
ceded to the Brooke authority by the
Sultan of Brunei in 1861, a Brooke
official came to Kanowit to name the
arca. When he arrived at the area, he
could not wait but to ease himself after
a long joumey from downriver. He
shouted at the Malay driver to stop
the boat because he “cannot wait” any
longer. After that, when he asked the
driver what was the name of the place.
Recalling what the Brooke's official
shouted a moment ago, he answered,
“Cannot Wait", Eventually, the place
was known as “Cannot Wait” and later
it was pronounced as “Kanowit” until
today.

Fort Emma
Kanowit,




3) Establishment of Kanowit

Bazaar

Kanowit was the first
commercial  centre  in
Batang Rajang Basin being
established sometime in
1840s.  According to Mr.
Frederick  Boyle, there
were wooden shophouses
built upon piles about 15
feet  high  with  broad
verendah in front by the
Chir Hokkien and the
Malays along the river
bank. However, the bazaar
was gutted by fire in 1856,
In the following year, the
shopkeepers rebuilt the
Kanowit Bazaar. In order
to protect the shopkeepers
from being attacked by
the pirates and at the
same time o establish the
Brooke Regime's influence
in the area after Brunei
ceded the Lower Rajang
area to the White Rajah, in
1 Fort Emma was first
built at Kanowit Bazaar. It
was  named after  the
mother of Rajah Charles Brooke.
The fort was rebuilt along Jalan
Kubu towards the end of year
1859,

In April, 1883 the Catholic Mission
was transferred from Kapit to

Kanowit.  Father Edmund Dunn
and Father Keizer started a small
school called St. Francis Xavier's
School in Kanowit. The school was
completed in 1886 at the cost of
$4,000/-, a large sum of money in
those days.

District Office
cum

Community
Hall
Kanowit.

Jalan Pekan,
Kanowit.
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In 1910, the Foochow settlement
was extended from Sibu to Kanowit.
Some  Foochows became  the
shopkeepers while others ventured
into rubber and pepper gardenings
at Nanga Jih and Lian Hup Estate
in Kanowit. Later on, Chinese
Cantonese also came and settled
down in the Kanowit arca. On
9.11.1950, Kanowit Bazaar was
completely gutted by fire. With the
assistance  from  the  Colonial
Government  of  Sarawak, 58
concrete shophouses were built and
completed within a few years.

Hero Sawing

Kanowit was famous in the olden
days because it had produced a hero
in the person of Sawing. Sawing was
bormn in Kanowit in the carly 19th
Century. He was the greatgreat
grandfather of Tua Kampung of
Kampung Bedil, Lenya bin Jaro, a
Melanau Rajang and a Christian.
Sawing had a mix-blood of Ukit and
Tanjung (Rajang). The hero hated
the white men from overseas
because they came to Sarawak,
scized the land, imposed taxes and
ruled over his people.

Sawing was the close comrade of
Sherip Masahor, the then Governor
of Sarikei who was also deadly
against the foreign rule over his
people. When Sir James Brooke
took over the control of the whole
of Batang Rajang basin in 1861, he

wried to exercise his authority in
Batang Rajang area. Sawing and
his comrades, Skalai and Talip
protected their strong fold at Kabah
in Ulu Kanowit against the intruders.
On 7.6.1859, Orang Ulu Hero
Sawing and his followers attacked
Fort Emma. The auack was also
partly due o the fact that Sawing was
a bachelor who fell in love with a
Kanowit beautiful girl. The girl
wanted Sawing to take a white man's
head in order to prove his bravery.
The Fort was completely burnt down
by Sawing's force and Brooke's
officials, Mr. Charles Fox and Mr.
Henry Steele who were stationed at
the fort was killed by Sawing. The
heads of Mr. Fox and Mr. Stecle were
taken by our hero Sawing.

Sawing,
Kanowit.




In July 1859 Charles Brooke
organised an expedition of 3,000
men to counter-attack Sawing’s
force but he failed to penectrate
the stronghold of Sawing at
Kabah. Later on, Charles Brooke
organised a second expedition
with more men and weapons to
atack Sawing.  Although Sawing
and his men fought bravely but
cy were outnumbered and was
i an 100 of his
followers being killed.  His fort
at Kabah was burned down.
However, Sawing, Skalai and Talip
did not surrender but they
retreated  safely o a
longhouse in Belaga.

The Kayan Community hid our
hero and his men and, at the same
time, did not want to co-operate
with the intruder. On 15.5.1863,
Brooke's forces reached Pelagus
Rapids. His force captured a few
Kayans, burned down many
longhouses  and  killed  many
innocent ns, but Sawing and
his force still managed 1o escape
from the enemy.  In December,
1863 in order to avoid further
bloodshed of the innocent Kayans
and the destruction of their
properties by the Brooke's force,
Sawing surrendered himself to the
intruder voluntarily, but Brooke
had no mercy on our hero. Sawing
was exccuted with a Kris. On
27.7.1993, Sawing was officiall

declared as one of the heroes of
Sarawak by the State Government
and his relief figure has been
portrayed in relief on a plague
around the base of the column of
Heroes' Monument at the Sarawak
Muscum Garden, Kuching.

Penghulu Asun’s Revolt

In 1931, Penghulu Asun led the
Ibans of Kanowit, Entabai and
Julau along Rajang River of Sibu
Division in a revolt against the
White Rajah and some young
Ibans banded together to go head-
hunting.  The cause of the revolt
was economic rather than tribal.
Because of the World Economic
Slump, the prices of rubber and
Jjungle produce dropped and the
Ibans could not their taxes.
Besides, the government insisted
on carrying out all regulations
causing  much discontenument
among the people who blamed the
government for their hardships,
resulting in the revolt. Rajah
Charles Vyner Brooke sent the
Sarawak Rangers on an expedition
to put down  the revolt. Finally,
in  December 1932, Asun
surrendered o the government
but he was exiled to Lundu. In
1933, he migrated 10 Kuching
where he died in 1958. Asun’s
revolt caused quite a  great
influence on the Ibans as he had a
big group of Iban followers. In




order to prevent -this rebellious
influence from spreading, Rajah
Charles  Vyner  Brooke, on
$0.12.1931, had the native leaders
assembled in front of the Sibu
Resident's Office to pledge their
royalty to the Brooke authority and
they promised to maintain peace
and harmony among

Shophouses No. of units

1) Doublestorey concrete 58 units
shophouses along
Jalan Pekan

Kanowit Today

Today, Kanowit Town is a prosperous
and peaceful place where multiracial
population are staying together
ha iously. Gi agencie

such as District  Office  cum
Community Hall, Police Station,
District Council, Library Building, etc
and other basic facilities have been
established along Jalan Wayang and
Jalan Access in Kanowit Town to serve
the people in the district. Besides
riverine transport along Batang
Rajang, Kanowit is also accessible by a
72kilometre road from Sibu as well
as Sarikei and Kuching. It is
anticipated that upon the completion
of the Durin Bridge in 2002, the
development of Kanowit will be more
intense because the area is more
accessible from  other parts of
Sarawak to further spur its economic
activities.

Based on a survey conducted in
December, 1998, Kanowit Town has
81 units of shophouses. The details
are as follows:

2) Doublestorey concrete 4 units.
shophouses along Jalan
St

3) Threestorey concrete 9 units
shophouses along
Jalan Kubu

4) Threestorey concrete 10 units

shophouses, along Jalan
Access, near Bus Station
and Kanowit Park

Total : 81 units

Besides the shophouses, the Chinese
Temple, Hock Ann Teng Temple,
which was registered with the
Registrar of Societics on 6.8.1973 is
situated at the side of Batang Rajang,
The Chinese Primary School known
as SRB Yee Ting which is almost
as old as the Kanowit Town is
established along Jalan Wayang.
Kanowit Council Market is also built
along Jalan Pekan to serve the
people in the town. Kubu Emma
which is situated along Jalan Kubu
has become a tourist spot. In the
town, there are two commercial
banks and three medium size hotels
to provide service to the people




there.  There are 2 sccondary
schools, 37 primary schools, one
government hospital and 6 rural
clinics in Kanowit District. A section
of the river bank in front of Kanowit
Town has been constructed with
retaining wall partly to stop the soil
crosion but mainly to provide
L ificati and  landscaping
along the river bank. If the
remaining part of the river bank
between the mosque and the wharf
along Jalan Kubu could be provided
with the similar retaining wall,
Kanowit Town will become more
beawtiful and more tidy rural town
along Batang Rajang.

About 24,000 hectares from the
projected 60,000 hectares of Native
Customary Rights Land in Kelimut
Kanowit District_have now been
developed by Land Custody and
Development  Authority  (LCDA)
nd other commercial companics
into large scale commercial oil palm
estates since 19.8.1996. There are
1453 lc people  from 85
longhouses participated in the oil
alm scheme. The first harvest
400 hectares of oil palm
commenced on 19.8.1999. It is
expected by the year 2007, about
320,000 wnnes of oil palm will be
harvested  bringing an expected
revenue of RMS0 million. Oil palm
industry  will  definitely  bring
progress and raise the living
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standard of the people of Kanowit
District.  Besides, a sugar cane
commercial project has  been
established at Sungai Lukut with
the assistance from  Agriculture
Department. An area of 35 hectares
of land have been planted with sugar
cane. The sugar canes are sold to
Sibu and other nearby towns for
sugar cane drir Itis understood
that the income from the sale of
sugar canes for the farmers is quite
high.

As a whole Kanowit is developing
steadily and itis obvious that it isa
district which “cannot wait” for
development  to come by itself
but rather it is going after the
development such as oil palm
plantations, infrastructure  projects
and even sport stadium so that  the
people can enjoy the fruit of
development earlier than expected.
With the positive effort to transtorm
Kanowit into a plantation district, it
is expected that by the year 2000
Kanowit will be a better place to
work and to live

DALAT DISTRICT
1) Dalat in General

Dalat Bazaar is the administrative
headquarters of Dalat  District.
Before 241973, Dalat was a sub-
district. of Mukah. However, after
the former Third Division was




2,

divided into three divisions,
Dalat was upgraded as a
district and  now it has one
subdistrict namely Oya Sub-
district with a population
of 18,264 based on 1991
Census. Oya Bazaar which is
27 kilometres by road from
Mukah has 18 double -storey
wooden shophouses on stilts.
Based on 1991 Census, Dalat
District had a population of
21,609, the majority of them
are the Melanaus, followed
by the Chinese and the
Ibans. However, according
o 1999 Mid-Year
Population Estimate, the
population of the District
was 25,900. Dalat District
hasan area of 2217 square
kilometres. Dalat Bazaar is 43
kilometres  from  Mukah
Town by road.

How did Dalat and Oya get
their names.

According 1o an oral
tradition, the name “Dalat™
actually derived from the
word “Lalat” which means housefly in
Malay/ Melanau dialect. In the olden
days, there were plenty of houseflies in
Dalat area. Slowly the word “Lalat™ was
pronounced as “Dalat” or “Dalad” in
Melanau language until today. The
name *Oya” derived from Oy
which are common in the subdistrict.

3) Dalat Bazaar

Between 18621871,  Chinese
Hokkien from China came over o
Dalat and Oya areas to do petty
trading business. At first, they
participated in sago business with
the local Melanaus, slowly they

Dalat
Bazaar.




purchased rubber and sago
flour from the locals for
export. The Chinese
Tuapekong Temple, Dalat was
builtin 1899, In 1905, the first
Chinese Primary School was
built in Dalat and in 1935, the
new  Primary  School  was
constructed to replace the old
one built 30 years ago. There
were three rows of wooden
shophouses in Dalat Bazaar,
Christianity brought over to
Dalat in the early 1900s by the
Mill Hill Missionary priests.
Although the majority of the
Melanau community in Dalat
are Muslims, there are about
30% of the Melanaus who are
the followers of Christian
religion.

D:

is a small Bazaar. On
5.7.1991 at 2,00 a.m., a big
fire gutted two rows of 27 old
shophouses and one cinema.
It has only 11 old wooden
shophouses and one Chinese
Temple left at the Bazaar
site.  Hence, 27 temporary
shophouses were erected at the
back of the Dalat B: . While
iting for the new Dalat Bazaar
to  be  materialised, scattered
houses at the back of Dalat Bazaar
tum into temporary shophouses
and one small hotel is also found
in the residential area at the back
of the Bazaar. The only bank, Bank

~

4,

Utama, is located at  the ground
floor of District Office, Dalat.

Man-made Canal - Sungai Kut

The most famous ma: de canal
in Dalat is Sungai Kut. In the
olden days, the Melanaus called it
Sungai Kikut (literally means a
dug-out river) but somehow it is

District Office,
Dalat.

Integrated
Sport
Complex
Dalat.
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known as Kut Canal today. The canal is
probably the only navigable man-made
passageway in Sarawak. The 10
kilometre long canal, built in the carly
19005 by the legendary Melanau leaders
called Jilang and his brother, connects
Batang Igan and Batang Rajang for
easier riverine communication in the
arca. In 1952, Public Works Department
deepened  the canal so that motorised
crafis could pass through. Public Works
Department maintained the canal untl
1980 and it ceased maintaining the
canal from that time onwards.

Dalat Development

The Malanau community in Dalat are
mostly involving themselves in sago
processing  factories  and  fishing
industry. In Dalat, Land Custody and
Development — Authority  (LCDA)
through Dalat Sago Plantation (DSP)
has planted 1,600 hectares of sago
palms at Mudan, Oya from 1993 o
1996. DSP will be expanded to 10,000
hectares and plantings to be completed
by 2001. Based on Dalat District
Agriculture Report 1998, there were
15475 hectares of matred sago palms
producing 18,600 tonnes of refined wet
sago flour and 9,306 hectares of
immatured sago palms in Dalat District.
Dalat District has 1,100 hectares of
land planted with oil palms. Coconut
plantations about 120 hectares arc
found along the stretch of coastal
sandy soil between Kampung Judan
and Kampung Penat whercas hill padi
cultivation concentrates along upper

-
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parts of Batang Oya. Both Dalat and
Oya are connected by road to Mukah,
Bintulu and Sibu. There is also a road
which links Dalat to Kampung Brunei,
Kampung Baru and Kekan Sungai Kut.
In 1996, a multi-million Ringgit of
Integrated  Sport  Complex  was

constructed in Dalat and it has
provided a venue of sport, games and
even cultural activities in  the district.
Although, Dalat is a small district, it has
all the basic necessary requirements of
a big district.

M. Lau

XIIL. LAU KING HOWE HOSPITAL
MEMORIAL MUSEUM
The memorial muscum was officially
declared open by Tan Sri Datuk Patinggi Dr.
Wong Soon the then Deputy Chief
Minister of Sarawak on 3.8.1996.

Basically, the museum serves two
urposes: one as an honour to Lau King Howe
who founded the hospital and the other to
display equipment used at the hospital before

King Howe.



Lau King
Howe
Hospital.

it ceased operation in 1994 with the opening
of the new Sibu General Hospital on
1.9.1994.

Lau King Howe was the son of Rev. Lau
Meng Shy. In 1916, he migrated from China
o Sibu and managed a rubber plantation
there.  Lau King Howe was a kind
hearted  Christian who wanted to
improve the medical service in
Sibu.  He donated all his propertics
[ rawak  Government  for the
establishment of a hospital in Sibu. On
2.11.1930 the Sarawak Government
cepted the donation and named the
hospital as Lau King Howe Hospital in
honour of the donor. On 7.3.1931, he
was awarded a medal by Sir Chs
Vyner Brooke, the third White Ra
Sarawak.  After the award, Lau King
Howe returned to China where he died
in 1932,
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XIV. SIBU TODAY

Today, among the towns in the
Rajang Basin, the one with the
most  population and  fastest
development is Sibu. It is an
important industrial port as well
trading centre in Batang
In Sibu District  the
population based on 1991 Census
was 170,430. However, according
to 1999 Mid-Year Population
Estimate, the population  of
Sibu District  had increased up
to 208,2 (0. Presently, the total

as

population of the Sibu Rural
District is more than 60,000
whereas the population of Sibu Municipality
has  140,000. Because of the dense
cone ion of popul. and a flourishing
cconomy, the of Sibu is continually

transformed and expanded into a bigger town.

In recent years, the basic public amenities
and facilities of Sibu have been greatly

Sibu
Waterfront.




Rajang Port
Authonity
Building.

Sibu New
Market.

improved.
RM138 million Sibu New General Hospital,

The new Port Authority Building,

Nyabor Road and Wong Nai Siong
Road. The building costing RM9.7
million with 374 parking lots was
completed in 1993. In 1996, the
hawkers' problem was solved with
the completion of the new Central
Market along Channel Road.
Costing RM12 million, it provides
498 hawker stalls/lots for the
hawkers to do their business in the
town.

In the urban Sibu, the commercial
corporate groups are developing
at an amazing rate. Commercial
complexes and classy hotels have
sprung up one after another, The
multistorey Hock Hua  Bank
building which was completed in
1995 is one of the most magnificent
buildings in Sibu. Wisma Sanyan, a
27storey building costing RM200
million commenced its construction
in March, 1996. Upon completion,
it will be the highest building not
in Sibu but also in the whole

. Because of its rapid
growth, the present Sibu urban

area is now over-crowded and must

extend inland towards the Oya Road region.
This will be the direction for the future

Kemuyang Youth Camp and other g
buildings were constructed one after another
and are now fully operational. The road system
which used 1o be less developed has also been
widened and further improved. In order
1o solve the parking problem in the town, a
6storey parking building was built by Sibu
Municipal Council at the junction of Kampung
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of Sibu. The establist of a
new township at Sibu Jaya, 25 kilometres from
Sibu Town along Jalan Tunku Abdul Rahman
is a good cxample of decentralisation of
Sibu population. Upon full mmpkuon in
2003, Sibu Jaya new township containing an
area of 1,200 acres will be a model estate for
a peaceful and comfortable place for



Hock Hua
Bank New
Building.

the people to live in. The birth of Sibu Jayais to
acilitate the future expansion of growth of Sibu
Town. The concept of the creation of the twin
township, Sibu and Sibu Jaya, is to draw away the
population from the congested town of Sibu to
a new township with proper planning and
healthy environment. Another new direction of
future urban development is the old airport site
where the new Sibu Municipal Council Building
estimated 1o cost RM30 million, a new fire
station, RM10 million Tun Ahmad Zaidi
Stadium which can accommodate some 14,500
spectators and  many other  government
agencies will be properly planned and built. At
the moment, the new Federal Complex has
been built near Sungai Merah arca. Morcover,
another indoor stadium costing RM5 million
will be built at Bukit Lama by the year 2000. In
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1998, a sum of RM20 million for Phase I of
the 11-hectare Sibu Town Square project had
been allocated. Upon completion in early
21st Century, it will become the biggest town
i k. The new RM120 million
airport about 25 kilometres along Jalan
Tunku Abdul Rahman, Sibu was declared
open for operation on 31.5.1994. Since then,
Boeing planes can land at Sibu Airport
bringing more people to and from Kuching
as well as Kuala Lumpur and Kota Kinabalu.
The installation of two units of acrobridges
costing RM9 milliom at Sibu Airport is
expected to be completed in April 2000 so
that better service can be provided to airport
users,

Wisma
Sanyan, a
27 storeys
building, 15
under
construction
in Sibu.
When
completed, it
will be the
highest
building in
Sarawak.




A section of
Bukit Aup
Jubilee Park,
Sibu.

In order to provide a big town hall anda
centre for the study and research on the ethnic

cultures of all the races living in the Rajang
Basin, the building of Civic Centre Sibu costing
RMS million was builtand opened 1o members
of the public on 4.7.1988. In 1996, the United
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College Sarawak (UCS) was set up Lo
address the pressing need  for
providing local sdents certain type
of professional courses at affordable
fees. The college can accommodate
1,200 students.  Later, Kolej
Damansara Utama was established in
Sibu and, hence, these colleges have
made Sibu a centre of education
excellence in Central Sarawak. The
Jubilee Park at Aup becomes a
favourite place to relax and unwind
since its opening in March 1993. The
project which was implemented in
two phrases was fully completed in July 1996 at
the total cost of RM7 million. The park covers
more than 9 hectares of the land and it
includes an observation tower, pavilion,
landscaped garden, lagoon and barbecue
arcas. This is the place where majority of

The new Sibu
Airport about
25 km from
Sibu town.



11§ K

the Sibu populace spend their leisure time.
In 1988, RM1 Mil ng Esplanade was
completed and the Mission Mini Park was also
built at the cost of RM480,000/-, In 1998, the
construction of Bukit Lima Recreational Park
was completed at the cost of RM618,000/- All
these  projects are undertaken by Sibu
Municipal  Council 1o provide more
recreational and green areas o Sibu Town,

Presentls
building cor
Sibu. Unlike the
past, these corporate groups hay
ization with a capable board of

ny corporate groups
nd housing estates in
ate companies of the
a sound

organi
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managing directors and their continual
development  and  expansion can  be
pected. Before the end of 20th Centur
Sibu will have the highest building in
Sarawak and by the turn of next century, the
town will have the biggest Town Squ
the state. Besides, the longest bridge in the
State known as the Durin Bridge is unde
construction across Batang Rajang near Sibu
and it is expected to be completed in the
year 2002, Costing more than RM150
million, the L5-kilometre bridge will
complete the missing link along the Pan
Borneo Highway. Upon completion, it will
definitely progress and faster

Sibu
commercial
area.




development to Sibu and its surrounding the private sectors and the government
arcas. By then, Sibu will have all the qualities to agencies, Sibu City is in the making. It is
qualify itself to be a city in the central region of obvious and certain that Sibu will become a
Sarawak. With the close cooperation between Garden City in 2005 as scheduled,

e e e L
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Kapit - The Town of Natural Resources

1. INTRODUCTION

Kapit Division, the Seventh Division of
Sarawak, has an arca of 38,934 square
kilometres and based on 1991 census, it had
a population of 96,256. However, according
to 1999 Mid-Year Population Estimate, the
Division had a population of 122,300, It
stands as the largest division in Sarawak with
about three-tenth of the total area of the

Hunc\cr. the adoption of m\pm\'cd
y and

introduced by the Agriculture Depnruncul

has gradually been accepted by the farmers.

The rivers in the Division produce the
state fish called “Ikan Semah” and other
pupular fnsh  water fish like "'l'cng‘\dak and

state. The Division is made up of undulati

hills and mountains covered by virgin jungles
and secondary forests. The land mass is
drained by Batang Rajang, the longest river
in Sarawak and its many tributaries are
Batang Balleh, Batang Katibas, Batang Balui
and Sungai Belaga. About 10% of the land is
suitable for agricultural use and 89.7% is
under Class 5 and 05 soil which are
unsuitable for agriculture activities. Shifting
cultivation of hill padi is stll predominant.

are mainly in the
form of Ionghouscs. except for towns/
bazaars of Kapit, Song, Belaga and one Malay
Kampung each in the three District
Headquarters, all dotted along the rivers.
There are about 490 main settlements all
along the rivers, only a few longhouses are
about a kilometre away from the river.

Kapit Division has three districts and
one sub district namely:-

District

1) Kapit District
2) Song District
3) Belaga District

Sub-district

1) Nanga Merit

Population
(1991 Census)
55,759
17,937
22,569

Total: 96,265
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Kapit is an interior division and,
it has only 1 town and 7 bazaars

1) Kapit Town

2)  Song Bazaar

3)  Belaga Bazaar

4)  Nanga Merit Bazaar
7)) Pelagus Rapid Bazaar
6)  Giam Pasang Bazaar
7)  Bakun Bazaar

8)  Nanga Gaat Bazaar

ORIGIN OF THE NAME OF KAPIT

There are two versions as to how Kapit
got her name.
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Version I

In the olden ¢ before  the
establishment of Kapit Town, there
were some Iban bamboo longhouses
sited along Sungai Kapit. The wall and
the floor of the longhouses were made
of split bamboosheets tied together.
Whenever the local people wanted o
%o to the area, they would say, “Kami
ngagai Rumah Panjai Kepit™ (in Iban
language) which means “we go to Kepit
(split bamboo-sheets)  longhouse”.
Evenuually, the place was called "Kepit™
and slowly it was pronounced as *Kapit”
until today.




Version Il

Another story revealed that the name
“Kapit” actually derived from the
words “Keep it".

It happened that after Batang Rajang
arca was annexed to Sarawak in 1861,
a Brooke's official arrived at Kapit by
longboat. He was feeling hungry after
a long journey and so he gave some
money to his Malay driver and asked
him to buy some food for him. When
the driver returned with the food, he
handed over the food parcel and the
balance of money to the Brooke's
official. Since the driver had provided
excellent service to him, he asked the
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driver 1o keep the change, i.e. “keep
it". Later on, the offici ked the
driver what was the name of the plac
The dri nply answered, “keep
and eventually it was pronounced as
“Kapit” until today.

HISTORICAL BACKGROUND

(1) The Birth of Kapit Division

There was an evidence to prove
that Kapit Division was inhabited
by human beings for quite a long
time. The Sarawak Museum found
seventy-nine quadrangular adzes
at an open site at the junction
between Sungai Putai and Ulu

District
Office
Kapit.




Balleh above Kapit in
association with  many
locally made soft pouery,
several chert and agate
spear-heads, stone bark
beater, brass carings and
bangles as well
spears and Knives,

Kapit Division was a
District. of the former
Third  Division  which
was defined in Sarawak
Constitution on 1.6.1873,
The Division was.
enlarged by the addition
on 27.6.1882  of Baram
Ri d territory south
to Tanjung  Kedurong
which was ceded to
Sarawak by the Sultan of
Brunei on  13.6.1882.
This area  was
removed on 28.7.18
form, with Trusan Ri
the newly constituted
Fourth
Third
redefined
“from Rajang River to
Tanjung Kedurong™. At
the Council N meeting on
16.10.1924, the White Rajah
announced the constitution of a
“Coast Division”, embracing the
area between Tanjung Kedurong
and Igan Ri leaving  Third
Division restricted o the great
Rajang River and its wibutaries.

originally

g s
THEVETIA FERUVIANG

!
TROFET FLOWER

The Coast Division was, however,
abolished by a notification in
the Government Gazette dated
3.1.1928 and Third Division was
extended to embrace the territory
which lies between the mouth of
Igan River and Sarikei River. On
2.4.1973, Third Division was

Trumpet
Flower -
Official
Flowwer of
Kaput.

Tourist
Map of
Kapit.
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again divided into three
isi Third
Division, Sixth Division and
Seventh  Division. By the
Administrative Areas Order
1987, all the Divisions were
renamed after the divisional
headquarters. Hence since
January 1987, Seventh
Division is known as Kapit
Division. Encik Pancras
Eddy was oppointed as the
first Resident of Kapit
Division from 2.4.1973 to
20.3.1978.

Aerial view
of Kapit
Lown with
Civie Gentre
at the front
ground.



Kapit Toun

Around 1880 Chinese Hokkien
me from China and settled down
in Kapit for general rading. After
Fort Sylvia was built in l\.npu in
1880, more d more C
Hokkien settled down in Kap
According to the Sarawak Gazette
of 131888, new  wooden
shophouses were built in Kapit
in addition to the sting 18
shophouses built carlier. At that
time the population of Kapit
Bazaar and its surrounding
was about 300 of which 200 wer
Chinese Hokkien and 100 were the
Malays. In 1881, the Chinese

Tuapekong Temple was established
at the present site and in 1929, Hock
Nam Chinese Primary School was
built to cater the school children not
only from Kapit itself but also from
Song and Belaga areas.

During second World War, Japanese
troops occupied Kapit Town from
1941 10 1945, The Allied Force
acked the Japanese Force at
Kapit in June 1945 and, as a result
of it, all the wooden shophouses
were bombed and destroyed. After
the Allied. Force recaptured Kapit
on 24.6.1945, temporary Auap
shophouses rebuilt  for

were

Kapit in the
early 1900s.
Only Fort
Sylvia is in
the picture.




42 modern
shophouses  were
From 1969 onwards,
Council new market, new Federal
Complex,  Resident's  Office,
District Office, Pol Station,
General Hospital, Radio
Television Station and a secon
school were built in order to
provide a better service to the
people in Kapit Town.

business. In 1950,
wooden
constructed.

(3) Fort Sylvia and Nanga Balleh Fort
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building. The construction of the
fort started in 1878 and it was
completed two years later at a cost
of $3,000/-. The fort was known as
Fort Sylvia in 1925 in honour of
Rance Sylvia, wife of the third
White Rajah, Sir Charles Vyner
Brooke.

The idea of establishing a fort in
this area was mooted out because
of the White Rajah's growing
concern over the migration of
the Ibans into this majestic river of
Batang Rajang. The Ibans who
migrated 1o Batang Rajang had

Kapit Toon
in 1946,




already established
themselves at ikei
around Sibu
Kanowit Rive
its tributaries, the Poi
and Ngemah branches
of Batang  Rajang.
The migration process
continued  on  into
Katibas River, another
major  tribut: of
Batang The
migrants who settled in
Katibas River composed
mainly of the B:
Ibans. The migration from
Batang Lupar was via the Embaloh
(Kanyau) a tributary of Kapuas
River in the Indonesian Borneo
thence 1o the headwaters of
Katibas River.

The migration o Katibas River
subsequently led to the emergence
of the Ibans in Batang Rajang and
Balleh River which later prompted
the White Rajah to establish a fort
in the Upper Rajang. He realised
ituations in the Upper
ang could not be effectively
administered from  Fort Emma
which he established at Kanowit
1859,

Batang Rajang was sparsely setded
and Balleh River was virtually
uninhabited, affording a great
expanse of virgin territory and a
shifting cultivators” paradise which

was most desirable to the eves of
the potential immigrants. The
White Rajah knew that, once the
Ibans were well established in their
new land, it would be impossible to
keep them from raiding and
headhunting against their scatered
neighbours,  He could therefore
not afford to allow such migration

and the warlike activities of the
Ibans in the Balleh area.

Adventurous as they were, the
Ibans disclaimed the White Rajah’s
sovereignty through open protests
because the sort of restrictions
imposed by the White Rajah was
amounting 1o depriving them of
their rights and their way of life, as
WONOmMous existence

against the
they had enjoyed under the Sultan
of Brunei. By 1874, despite the
prohibitions and measures taken by

Kapit tawn
in 19605




the White Rajah, the
migration from Katibas
River had spread to Batang
Rajang and as far upstream
as the mouth of Mujong
River in Balleh. A fort was
then established at the
confluence of Balleh River
and Batang Rajang and it
was completed in 1875,
Pending the completion
of the fort, a steam boat
was stationed at the spot
supposedly for the triple
purposes of preventing the
advance of boats on warpath, of
affording protection to the party
working at the fort and of
obstructing the inflow of  the Batang
Rajang Ibans into Balleh River.
However, almost immediately the
steamer was there, fleets of Than
warboats were seen entering Balleh
River. Despite shots being fired from
the steamer, the Ibans did not tum
back. The firings only angered
the Ibans who became more
defiant. They wilfully ignored the
government activities which ook
place at Nanga Balleh.

Neither the steamer nor the fort
succeeded in stopping the migration
or the accompanying warlike
activities. The fort at Nanga Balleh
had a short history because a few
years later it was abandoned and
dismantled. The construction of a
new fort at Kapit commenced in

1879 and it was completed in 1880.
Resident of Third Division Mr. Hugh
Low accounted for the reason which
led to the moving of the fort from
Nanga Balleh to Kapit as follows:-

“The fort had been moved from Nanga
Balleh to Kapit in 1879, after Rajah
Charles Brooke had nearly drowned at
the former site in 1877 when his
steamer "Ghita” was swept against the
river bank by the dangerous currents
which prevail there™.

When the fort was moved to Kapitin
1879, the affairs in Upper Rajang
particularly in the Balleh area were
most crucial. By 1880, the year of its
completion, the increasingly defiant
headhunting evolved into open
Anti-Rajah Movement. In protest to
the White Rajah’s government, the
dissident Ibans retreated to Bukit
Batu, a limestone crag at the




headwaters of the Mujong a tributary
of Balleh River. The White Rajah
had o conduct punitive expeditions
against these fighters. The first Bukit
Batu expedition was carried out on
9.21881 and the second one was
organised on 6.7.1881. The Anti-
Rajah fighters withstood the wo
expeditions but later, in the same
year, they submitted themselves 10
the White Rajah. At least during that
era, with the surrender of the Balleh
fighters, Rajah Charles Brooke was
able 1o comain the notorious Balleh
immigrants by reseuling them in
Batang Rajang below the Fort Sylvia
at Kapit. Balleh River was then closed
down for further settlement.
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Extravaganty  built from  Belian
timbers, the workmanship and
finishing touches of the building
were comparatively crude and rough
by modern carpentry sandards. The
tough and thick Belian walling of the
Fort Sylvia in those days was obviously
meant to withstand possible attacks
by the Anti-Rajah fighters. The bird's
eye holes on the wall around the
building afforded the fortmen the
advantage of secing from inside
without being noticed from the

owside in times of auacks. From
the holes they could also shoot
the invaders. Like most forts, it was
constructed on - contribution  basis.
The local people whom the White
Rajah had won over to recognise

War
Council on
Bukit Batu
Expedition
in 1881.



his sovereignty contributed the
assorted timbers. With a handful of
“Lovalists” and meagre construction
implements and materials, Fort
Sylvia was constructed. Wonderfully
the building remains to this day
and is amongst the few oldest
fine government buildings to be
preserved.

IV. ADMINISTRATION AND
BROOKE'S OFFICERS
During the reign of Sir James Brooke
(1841-1868) and Sir Charles Brooke (1868
1917) there were no formally constituted
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Districts within the Divisions and the term
“District Officer” was unknown. It was only
after 1920, during the reign of Sir Charles
Vyner Brooke (1917-1941; 1945-1946) that
“Districts” were formally designated within
the Divisions and District Officers were
appointed.

The most welkknown officer to have
served in Kapit in the olden days was
undoubtedly Domingo de Rozario (popularly
known as Mingo), whose father wasa Portugese
chef in the service of Sir James Brooke.
Rozario was bom at the Astana’s kitchen in
Kuching and served the Brooke Government
from 1880 to 1911,

Aerial view
of Kapit
Town in
19905,



In the early days, the entire government
service in the Upper ng consisted of
Domingo de Rozario, assisted by one or twvo
Malay Native Officers and a handful of
untrained, locally recruited ‘fortmen’. The
Resident of the Division normally remained in
Sibu and  visited Kapit occasionally. It was a
minimal administration even by Brooke
standards, For more than 30 years, De Rozario
was in sole officerin<charge of the Fort first
located at Nanga Balleh and later moved w0
Kapit except for very brief periods in 1905 and
1909 when cadet officers J.K. Caldecot and
FAW. Page-Turner were posted  there
respectively. In those days, De Rozario could
only watch helplessly as Iban war parties
returned from successful attacks on the other
tribal groups. It was evident that the Brooke's
government was powerless for many y
after the establishment of Fort Syly

V. IBAN MIGRATION AND PEACE

MAKING

(1) Migration to Balleh
Migrations into Balleh River and part
of Rajang Basin covering the area
between Belaga and Song took place
overland between one river and
another. The migrants would take
four or five days’ move, then build
their houses, and proceed o farm
for one or two fier which they
would continue their migration until
they arrived at their final destination,

Iban began migrating into Balleh
area well before the Brooke's arrival
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in about 1800 A.D. Their movement
was only one facet of a rigorous
pansion of populati

from Upper Batang Lupar, which also
resulted in the settlement of adjacent
arcas of the present Kalimantan,
Indonesia.  These areas included
portions of the Kanyau (Embaloh)
and Laboyan tributaries of Kapuas
River as well as the region north of
Kapuas Lakes,

The carliest route from Upper Batang
Lupar into Batang Rajang drainage
lies between the Kanyau (Enbaloh)
branch of Kapuas River, and the
headwaters of Katibas branch of
Batang Rajang. It is the route which
tavellers between the two areas have
always followed when  conditions
permitted and it was by U oute
that Batang Lupar Ibans came to settle
in Katibas River, a tributary of Batang
Rajang. In 1874, Iban migration
moved into Upper Batang Rajang.
Longhouse communities existed as far
upstream as the mouth of Mujong
River and individual families were
farming well beyond that point.

By 1887 because of the increasing
pressure  from  the  intending
immigrants, the White Rajah had 10
give way and allowed them 1o setde
along Batang Rajang and its tributaries
up to the Pelagus rapids. The
tributaries include Sungai Amang,
Sungai Aya, Sungai Encheremin,
Sungai Mela and Sungai Pelagus.




(2) Kapit Peace Making Ceremony 1893
between the Ibans of Rajang and
Batang Lupar
In 1893 inter-tribal feuds broke out,
fostered by the upriver Ibans of
Batang Rajang and Batang Lupar,
the latter being led by a remarkable
adventurer called Bantin who was
aided by Ngumbang. In the
following years the White Rajah
mounted several expeditions against
Bantin and Ngumbang who,
eventually in 1907, agreed to attend
a peace-meeting at Kapit, where in
the presence of Rajah Charles
Brooke and all the “Ulu Ai” Ibans
agreed to end their feuds with the
Thans of Batang Lupar.

The meeting at Kapit where Bantin
and many hundred Ibans who
had  been disaffected  towards
Government and the lower tribes for
some years past took place on
16.5.1907 before Rajah Charles
Brooke and Dr. Charles Hose,
Resident  Third Division, when
everything passed off satisfactorily.

After a pig killing ceremony  in
which Bantin and his “Ulu Ai"
followers swore eternal friendship
with Munan and the downriver
tribes, about a thousand Ibans
proceeded w Fort Sylia where the
great “"Aum” or meeting was held.

The pig killing  ceremony
produced a considerable amount

of case and contentment where
before a certain  feeling  of
nervousness was shown in  the
bearing of Bantin and his followers,
so much so that they would not
leave their Parangs or spears. In the
assembly, however, at Fort Sylvia no
arms were scen nor were there the
slightest signs of trepidation.

Bantin assured the White Rajah
of his good intentions for the
future and spoke feelingly and
comvincingly. In token of his
goodwill Bantin presented his spear
adomed with the long hair of his late
enemies to the White Rajah with this
remark “that as he was now a friend
the spear was of no further use to
him and no longer sharp™

Certain arrangements were made
about the payment of a fine which
would be eventually paid to those in
the Batang Lupar who had suffered
from Bantin’s awack. Bantin and
his “Ulu Ai" followers proceeded
to Batang Lupar to make peace
in Simanggang Disuict.  Great
satisfaction  between  all - parties
seemed to be the result of the peace-
making.

(3) Upper Rajang  Settlements and

Expeditions

The Balleh was still prohibited for
settlement. However, in 1895 despite
the prohibition, the settlers fought




their way by trekking up the
course of Kapit River, below
Fort §y and  from
thence  across  through
Pelajau and Antaroh to Sut
River, the lower tributary of
Balleh River. In this way
they artfully avoided the
Brooke authority stationed
at Fort Sylvia.

In 1902 the affairs of the
Upper  Rajang  became
more and more fluid  with
the news of Bantin's Anti-
b Movement in the Upper
Rajang. The Anti-Rajah Movement
stimulated a spirit of restlessness
amongst the related Ihans in the
Upper Rajang. As usual, defiance
of government authority took the
form of increasingly overt migration
combined mlh hudhunung During

=R

Iban leader named »\mm hmughi
his followers to Bukit Baw, where the
Anti-Rajah fighters of 1880 had made
their stand in order to resist the White
Rajah'’s authority. It ook a good deal
of negotiations before Ayum and his
followers were persuaded 10 leave
Bukit Batu and the hostile act
terminated. Bukit Batu had become a
symbol of resistance to the White
Rajah’s government. Another show
of resistance 10 the White Ra

ion was the ¢
of people at the same place in ! 1904,
led by Janting. The combined force

s

of the Kayans and Ibans led
by Resident Dr. Charles Hose
compelled Janting and his followers
1o move downstream in July 1904.

Kapit Town
Square.

Cultural
hentage in
Kapit Toun.




Balleh was officially allowed for
settlement in 1906 after Rajah
Charles Brooke met the Iban
leaders of the Upper Rajang.
There were already settlements in
Ballch, notably the group led by
Penghulu Merum in 1905 and
those trekking over to Sut River
in 1895, Merum and his followers
migrated when Rajah Charles
Brm)kc was away on leave. The
Muda who administered
the government in the
absence firmly held that Merum
and his followers should be
punished  severely.  Similarly,
Resident Ivon Kirkpatrick who
ook over from Dr. Charles Hose at
that time would like Balleh to
remain unsetled. However, when
Rajah Charles Brooke rewrned
from leave he did not sanction
the expedition against the Balleh
migrants. Instead he gave his
blessing to what Penghulu Merum
had done by making an order that
only Balleh Proper up to the
mouth of Nanga Ga'at be opened
1o settlers. The tributaries of the
Balleh were still prohibited for
settlement. In return for allowing
settlements in the main Balleh
River, the White Rajah obtained
the agreement of the Balleh Ibans
to launch attacks on the fighters
associated with Bantin in the Poi,
Kanowit and the Upper Batang
Lupar Rivers. It was perhaps
because of the Bantin’s Anti-Rajah

8

Movement and related reactions
in other predominantly Iban areas
that the White Rajah had to relax
his restriction on the settlements
of Ballech. He might have forescen
that it was the best bargain to calm
the Upper Rajang Iban and an
opportunity to impose on them to
assist in the fights against the
widespread insurgents. He had to
bow to the inevitable, knowing that
the prohibition would be ultimately
unenforceable,

The relaxation of Balleh for
settlement had done much more
nuisance than good to the
Brooke's administration in the
Upper Rajang. In later years,
Penghulu Merum and  others
overtly offended the White Rajah
by leading the migration into the
prohibited Ga'at and Mujong
Rivers. It was then not the
shortage of farming lands which
accounted for the migration as
their movement in Balleh had
gone far beyond an enormous
area of virgin jungle which could
casily sustain the system of shifting
cultivation for many more years to
come. 1t was culminated from the
desire for adventure of going into
a fresh territory for possible
headhunting activities. The small
bands of Punan Batu were said to
be wandering the headwaters of
Mujong River. There were the
nomadic Ukits and possibly the

=T



Bukitans in the Upper Balleh.
These small groups of nomadic
people afforded atractive head
hunting spree to the Ibans who
were intoxicated with the desire for
raidings and conquests.

The Balleh a
into flagrant raidings aga
people including the Kenyahs living
in the Indonesian Borneo, The most
obvious of such raids was made on
Uma Sulang 1in the Mahakam
River in 1913. The Dutch authorities
made  protests to the Saraw
Government. Embanassed by the

e

airs later developed
ist various

ivities of his subjects, the Wi
yjah could no longer be patient
but 0 take stern actions on the
offenders. Despite severe counter-
measures by the White Rajah,
Penghulu Merum and other Balleh
Ihans retreated to the headwaters of
Mujong River in 1914 in open revolt
i ‘srule. They had
the summit of

Salong Mountain.

The White Rajah launched the Ga'at
expedition in February 1915 10
punish the [bans for the misdeeds
they had done to those they raided
and for swbbornly ignoring his
authorities. In May 1915 he sent a
detachment of wak Rangers
for expedition to Mujong  River to
attack Penghulu Merum and his
followers at the Salong Mountain.
With the help of a cannon, the

266

Rajah’s force overpowered  the
supposedly  impregnable  Bukit
Salong and defeated Penghulu
Merum and his followers. Merum
stripped  off  his
Peng| for going obstinately
against the White Ra

was  then

As a result of the two expeditions,
most of the defeated Balleh  Ibans
Salong Mountain moved down to
the main Batang Rajang and the
band  of die-hard fighters of Ga'at
retreated to the headwaters of the
) and continued 1o ¢
troubles by raiding across the
Second and Third Divisions. In April
1916, the Ga warboats  were
proceeding to raid the upstream
Melanau of Batang Rajang. It was a
aring move because from Ga
they had to follow the Balleh Ri
before they could get up Batang
Ri . The confluence of Balleh
River and Batang Rajang is just half
an hour journey by longboat from
Kapit Syla Fort. Their warboats
were attacked in what was known as
the battle of Nanga Pila in which an
estimate of two hundred Iban
fighters were killed. The Brooke's
forces suffered no casualty.

The massacre at Nanga Pila did not
deter the spirit of the remaining
fighters.  The hostile stronghold at
the headwaters of the Ga'at was still
resistant and a menace to the White
Rajah who was eager 10 sce peace




The Historic
Peace-making
(evemony between
the Kayan,
Aenyah and lban
tribes held in
Kapit on

16.11. 1924,

The native tnbal  §

jead
slaughtered the
pigs, as a sign
of their
determination to
maintain peace.

4)

for the Upper Rajang.

In carly 1919

after the death of Charles Brooke,

his son
second Ga'

the

guns were used.

retres

n Muda Betam led the
at expedition to attack
people. This time machine
The last fighters
ed across the border o

Indonesian Borneo but later were

muud«l up and were repatriated to

wak. With the suppression of

Anti-Rajah  Movement, Fort

Sylvia eventually experienced peace
for the first time of its existence.

Kapit Peace Making Ceremony 1924
between the Orang Ulu & the Tbans

On 16.11. l‘)"l. the greatest and

peace-making

was \mnc\wd by the ‘hird White
Rajah, Sir Charles Vyner Brooke in

Kapit.

There had been enmity
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between the Ibans of the
Rajang River and its
uibutaries in  Sarawak
together with the Kayans,
Kenyahs and Kajangs of
Apoh Kayan and the Baloi
River in Indonesia Borneo.
The Iban Chief, Penghulu
Koh ak Jubang, of the
Rajang Ibans in Sarawak
led a party of 4,200 Ibans
and the leader from the
Indonesia Borneo  tribes,
Taman Kila, brought a
group of 960 warriors in 97
boats o come to meet in

Commemarative
Plaque in front
of Fort Sylvia
marking

the 70th
Anniversary of
the historic
Peace-making
Ceremony.



Temenggong Koh Anak Jubang

Tun Datuk Patinggi Tan Sri Datuk Amar (Dr.) Leonard Linggi

(1870-1956) Temenggong Jugah Anak Barieng Jugah

Kapit. As this involved the people of
Sarawak and the people of Dutch East
the third White Rajah of
Sarawak and Captain A.F. Molenaar of
the Royal Duich Colonial  Light
Infantry together with  his  Civil
Controller of the Apoh Ka
present as witnesses to this historic
peace-making ceremony in Kapit. This
unprecedented peace-making notonly
removed the enmity and war between
the wribes but also brought about the
ever lasting peace to the Rajang Basin.
In appreciation of his services in
connection with this peace-making,
Penghulu Koh ak  Jubang  was
promoted to the rank of Temenggong.
Temenggong  Koh  was  highly
respected by the Iban community and
he had been very active in the Sarawak
political arena for several decades until
his death on 4.11.1956. On 25.11.1994,

an were
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the Deputy Chicf Minister of §
Tan Sri Datuk Amar Alfred |
Numpang, officiated at a grand
assembly at Fort Sylia in Kapit to
commemorate the  peace-making
ceremony of 1924 between the Than
and the Orang Ulu communities,

WELL-KNOWN IBAN LEADERS IN
KAPIT

The well-known Iban leaders from Kapit

Divisions are as follows:-

1) Temenggong Koh ak Jubang (1870-
1956) from Katibas, Song was  the
Paramount Chief of the Ibans of
Kapit Division and a member of
Sarawak  Legislative Council. He
passed away in his longhouse at
Katibas, Song on 4.11.1956 at the age
of 86. A road in Kapit Town is named
after him.




2)

4

Tun Datuk Patinggi

Jugah ak Barieng
(1900-1981). He was
the founder of
the Party PESAKA
(Parti Pesaka Anak
Sarawak) and in
1973, he  led Pamty
Pesaka  and  Party
Bumiputera to merge
and became  Party
Pesaka  Bumiputera
Bersatu (PBB). He
became the Federal
Minister for Sarawak
from 19631974, He passed
in Kuching on 8.7.1981 at the
age of 81. A road in Kapit Town and
a road in Kuching City are named
after this Ihan great man. Another
road in Kapit Town known as Jalan
Puan Sri Tiong is named after his
wife.

Datuk Amar (Dr) Leonard Linggi
Jugah, a lawyer and successful
businessman from Kapit, was the
State Minister with Special Functions
from 7.7.1970 10 9.9.1974. He is the
Chairman of Tun Jugah Foundation.

YB. Dato Dr. James Jemut Masing
who is the Council Negri Member
from Balleh is the State Minister of
Tourism. He is one of the founders
and Vice-President of Parti Bansa
ak Sarawak. (PBDS)

Y.B. Dato Dr. James Jemut Masing.
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Datuk Tajang Laing:

. OTHER RACIAL COMMUNITIES IN
KAPIT

(1) Orang Ulu Community

found in Upper
ng and Balui area in Kapit
Division. The Penans are semi-
nomadic living in the remote upper
reaches of Balui and its tributaries.
The Kayan and Kenyah though
quite distinct, are often found in
association with each other and live
in the regions of the middle and the
upper reaches of the main rivers in
Sarawak and Kalimantan, Indonesia.
The Orang Ulu groups are primarily
subsistent farmers, planting hill rice,
rubber and other cash crops.

The Kenyah, Kayan, Kajang and
other related minority groups are
most skillful and decorative carvers
in Sarawak, producing a wide




Datuk Nyipa
Bato.

variety of beautiful wood carving
from huge burial structures to
small car-pendants  made  of
hombill ivory. They are also well-
known for building strong and
solid longhouses as well as long
boats.  The  Kenyahs  carve
traditional wooden masks which
are used in their  harvest
ceremony. The most common
form in these people’s carving is
the "aso’ motif, a dragon-like dog
with long s nout-curling fangs and
sets of long horns

In Kapit Division, there are o
famous Orang Ulu leaders namely

Dawk Tajang Laing and Datk
Nyipa Bato. Laing
was the S s from
22.7.1963 o0 7.9.1966 and S

Minister for Agriculture
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2)

)

from 24.9.1966 to
6.7.1970. Dawuk Nyipa Bato was
the State Minister from 7.7.1970

9.1974 and the State Minister
s from 9.9.1974

Forestry

Malay Community

The Malays, the minority group,
first started to set foot in Kapit in
the 1880's. They consisted of
farmers and traders.  Because of
the existence of Fort Sylvia security
was good,  the the Malays
came to trade there. Their goods

efor

such as jars, gongs, and goods
made of silver and bronze were
sold to the Ibans. Since the land
was fertile, they planted padi,
rubber and some  fruit
around their Kampung arcas. For
those who had the money started
their own small business in Kapit
Town.

Chinese Community

When Chinese first came to Kapit.
they were merely trying their luck
because the place was very rich with
its produce. They worked very hard
in the business field that some of
them became rich later. In 1929, a
Chinese Primary School called
Hock Nam School was built for
their children. /
setup to look after the security and

N organisation was

are of their members.




Chinese
Temple
Kapit.

According to some elderly Chinese,
the Chinese Hokkiens came to Kapit
in the carly 1880's to look for fortune.
They traded with the local people by
selling goods like salt, sugar, plates,
etc. which they imported from China
and Singapore. In retum they got

and rubber from the

pepper, rat
natives there.

In the year 1906, during the Brooke
reign, a group of Chinese Hakka who
followed the footstep of the Hokkien
came to Kapit seeking for fortune.
The number grew as time passed by.
Some of them were involved in
business whereas others became
farmers.

The Chinese Foochows came to Kapit
from China in carly 1919. However,
Jarge groups of Foochow actually
came from Sibu sometime in 1923.
The first Foochow to set foot here
was Teo Tien Kwong. He was a
businessman dealing with gold and
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silver. As time passed by, more and
more Foochow settlers came either
as pepper farmers or rubber tappers
and they scttled down along Sungai
Belit and Selirik arcas, However,
many of them have opened up their
own business now.

VIIL. KAPIT DURING JAPANESE
OCCUPATION

Although the Japanese occupied Sarawak
from 16.12.1941 until they surrendered on
15.8.1945, Kapit was not as bad as Kuching,
Sibu or Miri when compared with the cruel
treatment of the Japanese on the Sarawakians.
The Japanese after conquering Sibu on
19.1.1942 just sent some roops 10 station at
Kanowit, Song, Kapit and Belaga.

After successful landing at Bario in
Baram District on 25.3.1945, the Australian
Services Reconnaissance Department (SRD)
headed by Major Tom Harrison organised the
natives for a counterattack against the
Japanese. On 16.4.1945, SRD sent Major Bill
Sochon to command a group of armed troop
which consisted of 500 Iban warriors and other
natives together with some Chinese moved
over to Rajang River from Baram. They
managed to occupy Belaga on 16,1945 and
recapture Kapit on 24.6.1945. 3 days after they
reoccupied Song and on 38,1945 Kanowit also
fell into the hand of SRD,

As awhole Kapit Division scemed to be a
rescuing plice for the Australian force to chase
away the Japanese invaders from the soil of
Sarawak. Even the violent waters of the Pelagus
played an important part to get rid of the



Dewan
Suarah,

Kapit

Plagus
Resort,
Kapit

retreating Japanese in Upon successful
landing of the Australian troops, the Japanese
soldiers had been instructed to withdraw into

the centre of Bomeo. A Japanese party was
proceeding upriver accompanied by a number
of political prisoners. The Ibans accompanying
them had made up their minds o
Japanese at Pasir Nai, 7 i
troop and their prisoners were \Lmhhn red in
this massacre.

During the World War Two, when the
panese troop was attacked, many shophouses

in Kapit were destroyed. Under the new town
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plan, a compact square of new wooden
shophouses was built facing Batang
Rajang.

IX. TOURIST CENTRE AND
EDUCATION/MEDICAL
SERVICES

As the gateway o Upper Rajang, all

llers going to place

ay in the town
proceeding  uprivers. The  famous

Bakun and Murum Rapids are located

above Belaga whereas Pelagus Rapids,

where Pelagus Resort costing RM6
million is located, is accessible by boats
from Kapit. Pelagus Resort is an
environmentaHriendly hotel, blending
in with its natural  surroundings,
incorporating Inml traditions  of
architecture and de Built in the

style of an Ihan Iun;,,huum it has 40

rooms. Besides the

longhouse style stay agus

Resort, travellers can visit the flora and

fauna of nearby Pelagus National Park.

It was declared open on 23.8.1994.

before

Presently, there are 78 primary schools
and 6 secondary schools in Kapit Division to

provide education facilities to the school
children. The Medical Department  has
provided one district hospital in Kapit Town,
two dispensaries, cight rural clinics, nine sub»
dispensaries and  thirteen Vil Health
Centres in the whole division in order o
promote and upgrade the standard of living
and good health of the people. Besides, there
are thirty-three flying doctor service stations in

the interior arcas.




X. COMMUNICATION IN KAPIT
1) Riverine and Road Communication

At the moment, there is no road
connecting Kapit to the outside
world. All roads in Kapit lead to
the timber camps or nearby
longhou Kampungs and the
new township of Kapit. Kapitisa
It town with about 30
kilometres of road around it. With
its position midpoint of Rajang
River between Belaga and Sibu, it
is a great asset to this town of
about 5,000 multiracial people.
Express boats dart their way

up and down river, ferrying
passengers and cargo to Belaga
and places along Batang Rajang
down to Sibu. There is a
wemendous rise and fall in the
river water level at Kapit and

and muddy clif

Besides the movement of the
express boats along the swift and
turbulent Batang Rajang, another
common activity along the river in
front of Kapit Town is the stcamers
pulling consignment of timber
logs. Logs are bound together like
rows of matchsticks, stretching for
hundred of metres. However,
sinker logs are stacked on massive
metal barges and a mobile crane
travels with the load to assist with
the loading and unloading at the

2)

nearby sawmills or at Tanjung
Manis near Kuala Rajang.

Occasionally, barges of coal
from Merit-Pila arcas, about 13
kilometres east of the outcrops of
Long Hill are being pulled down
river by a launch for unloading at
Tanjung Manis in Sarikei Division
for export to Japan.

There is an airstrip in Kapit for
Twin-Otter aircraft to  land.
However, due to poor response
from the public, the air service was
terminated a few years ago.

Pelagus Rapids

There was a legend as to how the
Pelagus Rapids were formed.
Long long ago, a large serpent was
captured and sliced into seven
gments which were floated
down the river and settled at
Pelagus, forming the famous
Pelagus Rapids. When the water
level is low, the rocks are visible
and can be seen to be cleancut
rocks as if they had been sliced.
Until today, the locals still practise
the ritual of offerings to appease
the spirits of the Rapids. Locals
related a story of having seen a
man with colourful attire sitting
on the rock, resembling a dragon
at ‘Wong Nabau' in Iban meaning
‘Dragon Rapids', It is particularly
dangerous during low-water level

|
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as the rapids are stiff coupled
with a narrow space or passage
way to allow navigation of small
longboats or speedboats in the fast
flowing water. Hidden rocks
the major obstacles to riverine
transports.  There are  many
dangerous sections of rapids which
locally known as Lapoh, Sukat, Bidai,
Tilan, Makup, Batu Nabau, Lungga
and Mawang,

On the way by boats to Belaga,
travellers  must  pass  through
Pelagus Rapids infamously known
as the “"Rapids of Decath.” A
number of express boats, tg-
boats, speed-boats and more than
one  hundred longboats had
capsized at the Rapids resulting a
high rate of deaths. According to
an clderly man from Rumah
Belaja, Nanga Benin below the
mighty rapids, if “Anw Belang”
(White Ghost) appears at night, it
means that a tragedy is likely o
happen at the rapids. Another
local folk revealed that if a strange
sound in the form of extraloud
noise of splashing water, someone
seemed o “Berpantun” (reciting
of traditional  poems) or
“Betadoh™ (traditional music of
Iban dance “Ngajat”) was heard
from the rapids the previous
night, it was a sign of warning that
a tragedy was likely to happen
soon, Upon seeing "Antu Belang™
or hearing a strange and eerie

sound, the locals would normally
stay away from the rapids. Outside
pcoplc who do not believe such
superstition may have to pay for
the price.

The latest casualty involving 3
government staff including Kapit
Divisional Development Officer,
Encik Michael Duk Andos were
drowned at Sukat Rapid on
24.2.1999 at 2.30 pm. In actual
fa the r:lplds are a4 major
obstacle of riverine transportation.
For safety purpose, there is a
path along the right bank of the
river for the passengers to walk
through while the boat is man-
handled through the difficult
stretches.

The Pelagus played a historic role
in posing a barrier to the Iban
raiding partics warring on the
other indigenous groups who had
settled upriver, as few dared brave
the treacherous then.
Although  nowadays, the use of
engines makes passage easier,
going through the rapids can be a
bone chilling experience.

XI. NATURAL RESOURCES

Kapit Division is full of nawral
resources. The greater part of the division is
still covered by primary forests and larger
portions of the land especially in Ulu Balleh
and Ulu Balui are practically uninhabited.




Hence, Kapit Division is exporting
thousands of tonnes of timber logs
and processed timber each month
and the export of timber from
Kapit carns a lot of revenue for the
State. The timber industry is
spearheaded the speedy economic
development  which i
social changes in the di

Sarawak has widespread and
abundant occurrences of coal. One
of the largest coal deposits is
located in the Merit-Pila area and
Hose Mountains in Kapit Division.
The coal in the Merit-P; s of
lignitic and the main
industrial use is as a fuel for power
generation. The MeritPila deposi
is located in the upper reaches of
ilometres

up-stream of Kapit Town. Extensive
prospecting work was carried out
between 1974-1977. The following
zones have been identified as the
coal deposit arcas:-

1) Nanga Merit arca where
two major coal zones
designated awie-
Mujan and Me ebulan are found;
2) The Pila River are nd

3) The Long Hills area.

Prospecting work has indicated that a
total potential coal reserve of 250 million
tonnes is available in the MeritPila basin.
Logistics and the high cost of haulage
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continue to be prime concern of the mines;
these have rendered mining marginally
cconomical and risky. At present, a mining
company, The Global Minerals Sarawak, was
iven a mining certificate in 1982 and a
mining lease covering an area of 2,485
hectares in the Belawie-Mujan and the Long
Hill areas in 1985. Since mining operation
commenced in late 1988, about 1,205,000

Loading of
coal at
Marit-Pila,
Kapit.

Transporting
of logs in Ulu
Kapit,



Aerial view
of Belaga
Bazaar.

tonnes  of coal have been  produced. XII. BELAGA DISTRICT
Production in 1997 came from the Beredai

Mine amounting to 103,469 tonnes. Prospects 1) \Genweral dinformiction

for coal mining is good with the current Formerly, Belaga was a sub-district of
demand for coal by local power plants and Kapit District. ' On 1973, when
cement factories. Kapar Coalfired Power Kapit became a division, Belaga was
in Peninsular Malaysia is using also upgraded to a district. The

Pila coal to blend the imported coal. By district hasan area of 19,403 square

overed by

using Merit-Pila coal, this power station is kilometres and is mosth

sving between RM5 miillion and RM10 million dense tropical jungles, undulating
in foreign exchange each year. hills and mountain ranges.

In Ulu Balleh arca, there is also a Belaga Bazaar is the administrative
potential gold ore deposit. Two companics headquarters of Belaga  District.
have been given a General Prospecting Based on 1991 census, the district
Licence to prospect for gold deposit in the had a population of 22569 the
arca, majority of them are the Orang Ulu
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Landmark of
Belaga - The
conerete
RM13,000.
‘Belawing'
(Hornbill)
sculpture.
Acconding to
belief of the
Orang Ulu, the
bird passesses
extraondinary
poswers. It assists
prople having
good faith

followed by the Iban with
nese and the
Malays, staying around
Belaga Bazaar. However,
according 1© 1999 Mid-
Year Population Estimate,
Belaga District had a
population of 30,700.

some C

How did Belaga get her
name.

The name of Belaga
actually derived from the
name of an inland fish
found around the area.

The scientific name of Belaga fish is
Betia Splendens. However, some locals
said that “Belaga” in local Malay
means “Lawan Sendiri” (fighting
among themselves). In olden days,
Belaga was a place where one
community fighting against another
community for survival.

Belaga Bazaar

Before the establishment of the
Belaga  Bazaar, the trade was
nominited by the Malay traders who
were under the protection of the
Sultan of Brunei. During the
Brooke's rule, more Chinese were
migrating to the area. In 1893, the
Sarawak Gazette reported  that
there were 14 shophouses in the
Bazaar and 15 more were under
construction, 10 belonged 1o the
Chinese and 5 to the Malays. Belaga




Bazaar is located at the hilly 2
region of Upper Rajang Type of shophouses No. of units
Basin, at the confluence of | — B
Belaga River and Balui River. ) Double-storey semi concrete 9
The: shophouses. hers are shaphouses along Jalan Teo
mostly owned by the Chinese Tua Kheng
Hokkien and some local | o)y ) v concrete shoph 14
natives are also m“_'l“"g at the back of Main Bazaar and
themselves in petty trading. along Jalan Penghulu Hang Nyipa
During World War ILin 1945, 3)  Double-storey wooden shophouses 4
the Allied Forces  began on stilt along Jalan Penghulu
their counter-attack against Hang Nyipa
the Japanese at Belaga and
eventually liberated Belaga | 4)  Threesstorey concrete shophouses 10
on 191945, Belaga Bazaar along Jalan Teo Tua Kheng and
remained as it was after the Jalan Ului Lian
war. On 9.4.1979, 21 units of .
new shophouses were built 5)  Threestorey concrete sl}ophumcs 5
along Jalan Teo Tua Kheng nlullg_[:\]x‘n Ului Lian still under
in |Be However, ‘on construction
22.8.1995, the  disastrous 2 T
fire destroyed 3 rows of 20 Total : 52
old } s along Jalan
Penghulu  Hang  Nyipa

ooking  the Bl -

River. In 19 12 units of
temporary shophouses were
erected. In 1998, 6 units of 3
storey concrete shophouses
were constructed along Jalan
Ului Lian and other 5 units
are still under construction
to replace the 20 old
shophouses gutted by fire
in 19 Based on a survey
conducted in December,
1998, Belaga Bazaar consists
of the following shophouses:-
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1999, the 12 units of
temporary shophouses are still in
i There is no district
council for Bl District.
However, Kapit District Council
has established its branch office in
Belaga 1o provide essential service
1o the Bazaar. There are 6 units
of  Council wker stalls and
recreational  facilities  being
provided by the Kapit District
Council there.  Although Belaga
is a small bazaar, it has 6 small
hotels to provide accommodatior
to visitors and tourists. There is
one Mini Panggung 1o provide
enterainment in the area.

Fort Vyner

On  13.1.1884, the Brooke
authority built a fort at Jalan
Wharf Belaga. With the labour
and materials  contributed by
the local people, the actual
expenditure for the construction
of the fort was $295.93. It was
cailed Fort Vyner named after the
third White Rajah, Sir Charles
Vyner Brooke. During the Brooke
Regime, i used as a fort
as an administrative centre in the
region.

In 1965, the fort was demolished
and the construction of old District
Office Belaga was completed. On
31.7.1993, the new District Office
at Jalan Wharf was built and it was

3)

declared open by Y.B. Datuk
Gramong Juna, the then Assistant
Minister for Rural Development.
The District Officer together with
his stafl occupy the new office
leaving the old office (Fort Vyner)
for Post Office, 1AS office and
other Stte Agencies continue to
provide the essential service to the
people there.

Communication in Belaga

Belaga is accessible by river, air and
logging road. There is a ly
express boat service to and fro
Sibu/Kapit/Belaga. It takes more
than 7 hours from Sibu to Kapit
and then to Belaga, However from
Belaga to Kapit and Sibu it takes
only 6 hours, but the time taken
for both journeys depend on the
depth and the flow of river water,
When arriving at Belaga, one may
experience the unusual sight of
disarranged stairs leading from
the river to the top of the
embarkment.  This is because of
the constant change of the river
level. After a heavy downpour,
the river level rises dramatically.
However, within one hour or two,
turn into a torrent,
only to drop to its original level a
few hours later.

The new Belaga concrete wharf
was completed in 1993 and it was
declared open by Y.B. Dato
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Celestine Ujang, the then Minister
for Land Development  on
2781993, Since then the wharf
service has improved x;uisl‘:murily.
Belaga  Airfield 2
anjang was completed in l!)

It
situated downriver from Belaga

Bazaar which is about 15 minutes
by a longboat drive.
air service by Twin-otter aircraft
from Sibu to Belaga twice a week
and from Bintulu to Belaga once a
week. It takes about 50 minutes by
air from both ar Belaga Bazaar
is connected by a log
Tubau in Bintulu Division. It ta
about two to three hours from
Belaga to Tubau if the weather is
fine. However, if itis a wet weather
or the road condition is bad, the
Jjourney may take a longer time.

There is an

Bakun Dam Project

What will significantly affect the
future of Kapit Division is the
Bakun Dam Project at about 37
kilometres from Belaga at the
upper reaches of ll:\l River, a bi
tributary of Rajang River.

Bakun Dam l’rll_](‘(‘l which is
expected to be completed by the
year 2005 or later will cost an
immense sum of RM15 billion and
a production capacit
cga-watts of electricity.
mmoth Bakun Dam
begins operation, it will certainly
cause immeasurable impact on the
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whole of the Rajang Basin especially
Belaga area.  The Bakun Hydro-
electric Project will be the largest
power project in Malaysia and ako in
South East Asia.

The arca to be flooded will cover
70,000 hectares. When it is flooded,
over 100 islands will be created and
they will remain untouched as forest
islands. If the project is materialised,
it will position Sarawak as the “Power
House of Malaysi nd certainly it
ome a major player in
march  towards  full
m(hml.nsamm under the Vision
2020 and even beyond.

@

The State Government has spent over
RM200 million to resetde 10,000 local
people from 15 longhouses who are
affected by the Bakun Hydro-clectric
Project. They are going to be
in Sungai Asap arca in order to make
life in the Bakun Resculement Area as
comfortable as possible.  According
to Y.B. Dato Dr. James Masing, the
State Tourism Minister, who is also
the Chairman of the Resettlement
Commiuee and Bakun Trust Fund,
the government has spent a total of
RM272.2 million on facilities in the
new Resettlement Area in Sungai
Asap which include treated water,
electricity, roads,  shophouses,
schools, clinics and longhouses.
Very soon, Sungai Asap which is 86
ometre from Belaga will become
a sub-district.




n

The recent scaled-down Bakun
Hydroelectric Project is expected to
take at least six years to complete.
The first phrase of the construction
of a power station with capacity to
generate 500 mega-watts is expected
to be completed in three years. So far
the Government had paid RM950
million to take over the project from
Bakun Hydroelectric Corporation
and handed over 1o Tenaga onal
Bhd to head the consortium to
redevelop the project with the
participation  from  Sarawak
Government and private companies
in the State.

Belaga Today

Belaga has a small population but
with big land area and big Bakun
Project in the district. Although it is
the most interior district in Sarawak,
it is a peaceful and relaxing place.
People are friendly and living in their
own free world like brothers and
sisters in a big family. It is very
obvious that there is no more racial
conflict and ‘Belaga’ among the
ethnic groups as in the Brooke era.
The present Belaga is a multi-racial
district where people live happily and
harmoniously.

XIIL. SONG DISTRICT

General Information

Song was also a sub-district of
Kapit District initially. However,
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on 2.4.1973 when Kapit District
was upgraded to the Seventh
Division, Song became a district of
the Division. Song Bazaar is the
administrative headquarters of
Song District. Based on 1991
Census, Song District. had a
population of 17,937, the majority
of them are the Ibans, with some
Chinese and Malay communities
staying around Song Bazaar.
However, according to 1999 Mid-
Year Population Estimate, the
population of Song District had
increased up to 20,800. Song
District has an area of 3,935 square
kilometres.

Houw did Song get her name.

Based on the interview with the
late Mr. David Panggau Sandin,
the District Officer, Song, the
origin of the name *Song” actually
derived from the name of an
Orang Ulu who stayed at Nanga
Song long before the migration
of the Ibans from Batang Kapuas,
Kalimantan Indonesia in 1876. In
the olden days, whoever passing
the area would call the place
“Rumah Song” (Song's House)
and eventually, the place was
known as “Song”™ until today.

However, according to another
legend, when the Batang Rajang
Basin was ceded to the Brooke
Regime by the Sultan of Brunei in
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the year 1861, a Brooke's '
officer was sent over to name |
the places along
Rajang. When he arrived at
the present site of Song, he
was in a happy mood and
kept singing songs. In the
end, he named the place as
“Song” until today.

F

Historical Bachground

In 1876, the grandfather of
Temenggong Koh ak Jubang
and his followers migrated
from  Upper  Kapuas,
Kalimantan Indonesia to the
Katibas area. Due o constant
fighting between the Iban
and Kayan/Kenyah people
over the possession of good
farming land, Charles
Brooke decided that no Ibans
should be permitted to live in
Upper Katibas.  In October
1876, he forced the Tbans to
settle around Song, including
the  family  of  Koh's
grandfather.

In 1913 under the leadership of
Temenggong  Koh, the Iban
community started to plant rubber
in Song, but at the same time, they
still collected jungle produce
and practised hill padi shifting
cultivation,

4) Establishment of Song Bazaar

There was no record to show when
was the establishment of Song
Bazaar. However, it was believed that
it was only after 1876 when the
second White Rajah forced the Iban
community to setde down around
Song and after the establishment of
Kapit Bazaar in 1880 that Song

Song Main
Bazaar.

New
shophoses
at the back
of Song
Main
Bazaar.




Bazaar was established by the
Chinese Hokkien. According
to the Chinese elders in
Song, the first Song Bazaar
was built on the floating
platform at the opposite
bank of the present Bazaar
at Nanga Song by a group of
Chinese  Hokki in the
carly 1900s. The first Song
Kapitan China was Leong
Ah Swee. In 1945, Nanga
Song Bazaar was bombed by
the Australian Forces in
order to chase away the
Japanese and on 27.6.1945
Song was liberated.  After
bombing the shopkeepers
moved over to the present
Song Bazaar and put up
about 20 wooden shophouses
with Auap roof for petty
trading.  Some of the
shophouses were openced for
general wading  for the
purchase of rubber, Jelutong
and ratan  produce while
the other shophouses were
meant for residential purposes. It
was only after the World War 11
that better improved wooden
shophouses and a Chinese Primary
School were built 1o replace the
old ones. The present Chinese
Tuapckong Temple was built in
1975.

On 791978, a row of 6
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shophouses was gutted by fire. It
made 93 persons from 16 families
homeless.

Song Today

Based on a survey conducted in
December, 1998, Song  Bazaar
consists of 49 units of shophouses.
The details are as follows:-

Mini Sport
Complex,
Song.



Type of shophouses

Doublestorey semi wooden 18
shophouses in the Main Bazaar

Double-storey concrete shop- 1
houses at the side of Main Bazaar

3storey concrete shophouses at 6
the Main Bazaar

3storey concrete shophouses 21
at the back of Main Bazaar

Total: 49

No. of units

is no district council in Song
o it is under the
Jjurisdiction of Kapit District. Council
and Kapit District. Council Branch
Office has been established at the
side of Song Bazaar to
serve the people there.
Besides, a District
Council Market and
a new council wet

market are also built in
Song Bazaar for the
hawkers 10 trade. The
only motorable road in
Song District is Jalan
Song/Nanga  Tel
which is  about 6
kilometres long,

Government buildings
are also constructed 10

provide the basic adminis
the people there. A new minisport
stadium was constructed at the back of
the Song Bazaar. Completed in June,
1998 the stadium provides a venue of
sport and game activities in the area. In
the next five years dll 2005, a 8.5
kilometre road from Song Bazaar to
SMK Katibas costing RM15 million and
a 4 kilometre road to Temalat costing
RM7 million will be constructed in the
district. Besides, rural clinics at Nanga
Dalai, Sungai Iran, Nanga Janan,
Sungai Tekalit and Nanga Engkuah in
Upper Katibas at an estimated cost of
RM400,000/- cach will be built. In
Song Bazuar iself, a 28bed polyclinic
costing RMLS million and a new Song
wharf will also be builtin order to meet
the requirement of the development
and to cater the needs of the
increasing population in the district.

Land and
Survey
Department
at Kapit New
Tounship.




XIV. KAPIT TODAY

Kapit is typically rich in
colourful Than and Orang Ulu
culture. It is a small but
beautiful rural town about 100
kilometres from Sibu. There are
six banking agencies and about
ten big and small hotels
operating in Kapit Town. Kapit
District_has an area of 15,596
square  kilometres. In 1991,
Kapit District had a population
59. However, according
to 1 ‘)9 Mid-Year Population
Estimate, the  district  had
increased its population o
70,800. There is only one subdistrict called
Nanga Merit in Kapit District and 1991 Census
showed that it had a population of 6,482. Nanga
Merit has 4 units of singlestorey wooden
shophouses on stilt.

Based on a survey conducted in
December 1998, Kapit Town itself consists of
148 units of shophouses. The details are as

follows:-

Type of shophouses No. of units

1) Doublestore 23
semiswooden shophouses

2) Threestorey concrete 6
shophouses

3) Fourstorey concrele 119
shophouses
Total:

There are 5 empty shophouse lots which
are left vacant because the old shophouses
were gutted by fire sometime in 1996,
However, the new shophouses are now
under construction. Most of the fourstorey
shophouses in the town do have an additional
storey on the roof top. Hence, instead of four-
storey building, it has btc(lll\l‘ five-storey

The are
mm(h built along Jalan Teo Clmw Beng, Jalan
Penghulu Nyanggau and Jalan Wharf areas.

The main problem encountered in Kapit
is the shortage of manpower as most of the
able labourers are either away on ‘Berj; or
working in logging camps and coal mines
for better cash income. The arca under
agricultural activities are still small with pepper,
cocoa, rubber and hill padi as the main crops,
Shifting cultivation of hill padi which is stll a
predominant agricultural activity of the rural
population in the Division. However, the
adoption of appropriate improved technology

Express
boats at
Kapit

Wharf.



and management practices has
gradually been accepted by the
farmers. Since the introduction
icultural  Development
in 1991, 87 villages
which comprised of 2,049 Farm
have been  covered

Familics
under this programme.

After Kapit became  the
al Hes ulqu.mw\ of l)w

Centre costing RM3.8 million,

Government - Hospital,  Sport
nd even @ scenic Lily
Pond which were constructed in
Kapit Town. Besides, the timber
businesses picked up  which
made Kapit into a flourishing
town where the number of new
shops and conerete residential
houses increased, resulting in the
town extending into the rural
id  which was  once  the
undulating hills and secondary
jungles.  Moreover, the State
Government is - currently
planning and implementing
apit. New Township at Sungai
Bletek and a new Bletek Wharf is built at
the side of Batng Rajang for loading and
unloading puqnwm in the new township.
Meanwhile, a RM5.5 million bridge and access
road have h( n constructed across Sungai
Kapit to accelerate the development. Land and
Survey Department building, indoor stadium,
swimming pool and hostels have been built in
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the new township. In the next few years more
pected to

buildings and housing estates are exy
be built along Jalan Airport. Jalan l’t nghulu

Nyanggau, Jalan Selirik and Jalan Bletek arcas.
In 1999 sum of RM348,000/- has been

allocated by Kapit. District. Council for the
upgrading of the Kapit Town Among other

improvements, the replica of “Teresang™

Resident's
Office,
Kapt.

Shaphouses
along Julan
Penghulu
Vyanggau,
Kapit.




uaditional Iban offering place after *Miring”
ceremony will be made bigger and higher.
Trumpet flowers are quite common in Kapit.
Hence, trumpet flower becomes the symbol of
Kapit Town.

The economy of Kapit relies mainly on
timber industry, forest produce and coal
export which depend entirely on market
demands that are basically unstable.
Therefore, to ensure a bright future, Kapit
needs to expedite its development towards
a diversified economy. To enhance the
development of commerce and industry, vast
arcas of land can be utilised for growing cash
crops, rearing livestock such as cattle, and fresh
water fish culture; the rich forest resources and
mincral deposits can provide the raw materials
used in the light manufacturing industries;

]

roads must be constructed to provide better
land communication with the other major
the State. At the same time, we should
take advantage of the natural fauna and flora
of the Upper Rajang in order to develop its
eco-ourism industry. Only then can Kapit
develop steadily on the foundation of a
diversified economy without having to rely
solely on the timber industry.

As a whole Kapit Division is obviously
following the footstep of Sibu Division to
become one of the advance and higher living
standard  divisions. The progress an
outstanding achicvements of Kapit in politics,
economy and racial harmony ich are
interconnected with its colourful historical past
will definitely bring Kapit and its people a
glorious success when the country advances
towards the 21st Century.







Bintulu - The Energy Town of

1. INTRODUCTION

Bintulu Division, the 9th Division of
Sarawak, has an arca of 12,166 square
kilometres and based on 1991 census, it
had a population of 107,675. However,
according to the MidYear Population
imate 1999, Bintlu had a population of
142,400.  About 60% of the population are
concentrated in urban areas in Bintulu,
Tatau and Scbauh while the rest
scattered throughout the rural areas in the
division. The general physical features of
Bintulu are the coastal riverine flood plains,
the central undulating land and the interior
hilly land with steep slopes.

are

The population can be found in the
lower part of Kemena River where the
Malays, Melanaus and Chinese live. The Iban
community sty in the h River and
Pandan River. Further upriver, around Tubau
are Kayan people. Some Punan seulements

Sarawak

are found along the Jelalong River
Historically, Bintulu was part of Brunci
Territory until 10.8,1861. On 11.8.1861,
Sultan of Brunei ceded all rivers and lands
from Oya River to Tanjung Kidurong to the
Brooke Regime. From that time onwards,
Bintulu Division formed part of the Sarawak
Territory.

Prior to 1.1.1987, Bintulu was part of
the then Fourth Division with its
headquarters at Miri. During the Hari
an celebration centered in Binwlu
986, YAB the Chief Minister of
Sarawak, Datuk Patinggi Tan Sri (Dr) Haji
Abdul  Taib Mahmud announced the
upgrading of Bintulu District into a new
division of Sarawak with effect from 1.1.1987.
From then onwards, Bintulu became a
division of Sarawak and it has two districts
and one sub-district as follows:-

District Sub-district Population in 1991
(1) Binwlu District Sebauh Sub-district 86,342
(2)  Tatau District 21,333

Total:

107,675




Aenial view
of Bintulu

Toum,

In the whole of Bintulu Division, there
are 2 towns and 4 Bazaars namely:-

1) Bintlu Town
2) Tatau Town

3) Sebauh Bazaar
4) Pandan Bazaar
5) Labang Bazaar and
6) Tubau Bazaar

HISTORICAL BACKGROUND

1) Origin of Iban Commuunity
According to Mr. Michael Bun
book entitled “Iban Customs and
Traditions”, the Ibans in Borneo
especially in the Bintulu region

originally migrated  from
Island 10 Borneo while others came

from Kamoja (Kampuchea). In
order not 1o be ruled by a stronger
tribe  called  Kar + (Khmer

Rouge), the Ibans, headed by Data
Ayu, left Kamoja by rafts and
eventually they arrived in Merudu
Bay in Sabah. At the Merudu Bay,
they were subjected o frequent

raids by the people from Sulu
Island  (Southern  Philippines).
Hence, they got into the rafts again
and finally they reached a ¢
called Bintulu. Datu Ayu was later
nick-named  “Kemena™ by his
people.




2) Naming of Kemena River

The origin of naming “Kemena®
River still remains a mystery. Some
elders in Bintulu said that the river
“Kemena” was named after the
nick name of Datu Ayu whereas
others argued that Datu Ayu's
nick name derived from “Kemena™
River. However, another version
that when the Brooke's
official visited the area, he was
asked by a local folk, “Ke mana?”
(where do you go?). The Brooke's
official could not understand
Bahasa Melayu and
misunderstood that the local folk
told him the place was called “Ke
mana” and, hence, he named the
place as “Kemana™ and eventually
the word is pronounced as
“Kemena™ until today.

Origin of Melanau Community

t\uunhnb to a legend, the Melana

inally migrated from Bali Island,
ia to Sarawak more than 500
years ago. Being pagans at that time,
they moved away from Bali to
Sarawak in order to avoid being
converted to either Hinduism or
Islam. They travelled across Java Sea
and they first landed ata coastal area
in Lundu District now known as
Teluk Melano, From there, they
travelled along the coastal area of
Sarawak and finally they setded
down in various coastal areas in
between Kuala Rajang and Kuala
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Baram including Binwlu area.
Another group of the Melanau
ancestors were the Malays from
Brunei when Sarawak was under
the Brunei rule. A great deal of
intermarriages took place between
the Brunei noblemen and the
Melanau women. As a result there
are many Brunei descendants with
the title of Pengiran, Awangku and
Awang in Bintlu/Mukah areas. The
popular Melanau village in Bintulu
is Kampung Jepak where fish
drying, manufacturing Belacan and
Cencaluk as well as sago processing
are still very active in the area.

“Welcome to
Bintulu™~
The Energy
Tinem of
Sarawak.



III.  How Bintulu Got Her Name
There are four versions of the
legend as to how Binwlu got her
name.

1) One legend revealed thatin the
olden days, Bintlu people
generally had elongated head
and, hence, the place where
they stayed was given the name

“Bat Ulaw™. In the local i
Melanau  language,  “Bat” (Ulau).
means “long” and  “Ulau”
means “head™.  Hence, “Bat
Ulau™ means long headed.
2) According to another legend, the 3) The third version was still centered
origin of the name of “Bintulu” on heads more to picking up
started when head hunting was still heads of which the locals called it
rampant throughout Sarawak. The as “Menm Ulau™. “Menw” means
locals referred o head hunting as “pick™ and “Ulau™ means “head™.
“Milai™.  After “Milai”, the people Later, “Mentu Ulau”  became
smoked and dried the skulls at the
site where the Department
of Forest and Department
of Agriculture buildings
once stood. The process
was  known as “Betak”
in the local Melanau
dialect.  Hence, “Betak
Ulau” means “head drying Bintulu

Town i the
late 19505
The wooden
shophouses
are no more
in existence.

place™ As time passed
by, the word “Betak
Ulan”  faced  language
metamorphosis.  Thus,
“Betak  Ulau”™  became
“Bentulau” and later o
“Bintulu”™ until today.
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“Mentulau™.  When
the Brooke's officials
came, the sound of
“Mentulau”™  sounded
more like “Bintulu” to
the foreign cars and,
hence, the  name
“Bintulu” was known
and being  used undl
today.

The fast running water
from Sungai Jelalong
and Sungai Tubau which
flows into South China
Sea mixes with the river
water  from  Batang
Kemena at the mouth of
the river. Long ago, the
people who stayed at
Muara Batang Kemena
gave the name “Ba
Tulau™ to the place
where they stayed. “Ba”
in  Bintulu  Melanau
dialect means “water”
whereas “Tulau”™ means
xing”. Hence,
ulau” means “mixing
e’

wa

Whatever versions of the origin of
“Bintulu”, the legend generally
linked to the place with heads for
glory. Like the transformation of
the name, “Bat Ulau”, “Betak Ulau”,
or “Ment Ulau”, *Ba Tulau”, the
town's social economic and
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infrastructure  faces similar fate.
From a mere small fishing village
of 150 years ago, Bintulu has
wansformed into one of the fastest
developing towns in Sarawak today
and even in Malaysia, rich in natural
resources such as crude oil, gas, silica
sand, coal and tropical timber.

Old Bintulu

modern
Bintulu
Town.

Tanjung
Batu
Commercial
Centrr.



IV. MEETING PLACE OF
SARAWAK COUNCIL NEGRI

Bintulu created a history
when the first Council Negri of
Sarawak held the meeting there. It
therefore the birth place of the
Sarawak Legislative Council in
1867.

On 11.8.1861, the territory of
Sarawak was further enlarged when
the weak Sultan of Brunei ceded all
rivers and lands from Oya River to
Kidurong, Bintulu to the Brooke
Regime. Six years later, Rajah Mud
Sir Charles Brooke, called for the first meeting
of Council Negri in Bintlu on 8.9.1867. The
members of the Council Nej (General
Council as it was called then) 1867 were
appointed personally by Rajah James Brooke.
They were restricted to only 5 Brooke's officers,
16 Malay and Melanau leaders with the White
Rajah as the President.  The community
leaders were selected from Kuching, Lundu,
Lingga, Simanggang (Sri Aman), Saribas,
Kalaka, Sibu, Mukah, Oya and Binwlu. They
met at the first time in Bintlu to discuss the
general affairs of the State and o draw its
Standing Orders on various matters of great
importance to the population in the country
under Sarawak Rule. At that time, Bintulu was
merely a small fishing village. However, after
s of fast physical development, Bintulu
actually become one of the fastest

has
developing towns in Sarawak.

A clock tower monument, about 50
feet high, is erected at the site where the first
mecting of Counc gri was held in Bintlu,

Council
Negri
Plague.

Clock
monument
commemorating
the centenary of
first meeting of
Sarawak
Council Negri
in Bintulu on
8.9.1867.




Bintulu
commercial
ara.

A plaque explaining the monument
commemorating the centenary of the
affixed at

Council Negri meeting, the oldest assembly
and it is believed to be the
oldest in South East Asia. The clock tower
monument was renamed “Tugu Dewan
Undangan ~ Negri®  (Council Negri
Monument). The official naming of the
Council Negri Monument at Jalan Abang
. Bintulu was officiated by Deputy
Speaker of State Legislative Assembly, Dato’
Mohd. Asfia Awang Nassar on 21.1 1.1998.

V. THE GROWTH OF BINTULU

Bintulu Town is the headquarters of
Bintulu Division as well as Bintulu District. In
the olden days, it was only a fishing village
commonly known as “Belacan Bazaar” because
it produced and is still producing the best
Belacan or shrimp pastes, Duai fish and
Cencaluk. Moreover, it produced plenty of
rubber, Jelutong and Belian. Logging activity
was confined to a minimum operation only. It
could supply enough logs for the local
consumption only.

According to 1871 Census, Bintulu
District which had an area of 7,200 square



Sebauh
Bazaar.

had a small pog
ajority of the population were the
y/Melanau (4,118), Iban (139), Chinese
(77) and Indian (5). In 1991, the district had
a population of 86,342, However, based on the
MidYear Population Estimate 1999, the
population jumped up to 114,900, Sebau, the
only subdistrict, had a population of 18,830
based on 1991 Census. There are 55 units of
shophouses in Sebauh Bazar and the Bazar is
45 kilometres from Bintulu Town.

Bintulu Town is situated on the northerm
estuary of Kemena River and in actual fact the
township is situated at the mouth of Kemena
River. Itis just south of Tanjung Kidurong deep
scaport where once the people of Bintulu
fought and defeated the Tllanun pirates on
1241869 There was a fort known as Fort
Keppel which was named after Rajah James
Brooke's friend was built at Bintulu in 1868,
Chinese Teochew traders first came to Bintlu
and opened up their shophouses for trading in

1894. At first, they built 8 wooden
shophouses with Attap roof.
In 1896, Bintulu Bazaar had
increased  to 20 wooden
shophouses. In 1910, a Chinese
ary School was established in
Bintulu. Chinese Foochow from
Sibu came over to Bintulu in 1926
and they involved themselves
both in agricultural and business
sectors.

When Bintulu was celebrating her
100th year of becoming part of
Sarawak from Brunei in 1961 and
100th year of holding the first
Council Negri meeting in Bintulu in 1967,
nobody had ever expected that the then
small fishing village would become a highly
industrial town in 1980s. At that time, a
Regata was held at Bintulu wown which had a
population of about 3,000 only.

Changes only started in 1969 with the
discovery of natural gas and crude oil offshore
Bintlu. A both by the g
and the public sectors slowly concentrated on
Bintulu in order to divert the production of
sea food 1o industrial town. Planning for the
lishment of deep seaport at Tanjung
Kidurong was also intensified. With the huge
inflow of capital for industrial and commercial
ventures, the town has grown rapidly.

In 1970, the census figure showed that
the population of Bintulu Town was in the
region of 5,000. However, in 1977, the
population raised rapidly to 14,000 and in
1980, it double jumped to 28,000.




Dewan Suarah
Bintulu
costing RM7
million was
declared open
on

5.7. 1988,

VI. BINTULU - THE NEW GROWTH The State Government wishes to exploit

CENTRE OF SARAWAK valuable agricultural, forest and mineral

In 1k, 110 region can be as fortunate resources of the area. Furl]lc'ml()rc, the

a5 the Bintuly region jin terms ‘of natua)  @overnment alio intendsito bulld a'strong

resources of which it is well endowed with newwork of service centres ""“_"g"""‘_‘.""

inland and offshore. Both natral gas and  Siale 1o disperse the economic activiies

which now tends to concentrate in the large

urban centres of Kuching, Sibu and Miri.

The ambitious projects and plans for the

region in Bintulu necessitated the creation of

an autonomous body inter alia to do the
followings:-

crude oil were discovered offshore. Natural gas
was found at the Central Luconia fields in the
carly 1970s. Ten fields were found and five are
in production. Crude oil was found at the
Temena field. Besides, coal and silica sand are
found in large deposits in the areas near
Bintulu. Up to 1997 more than 4 million 1)
tonnes of silica sand were exported to Japan.

Moreover, the hinterland abounds with high

quality tropical timber and large tracts of 2) Undertake physical development
cultivable land for agricultural use. and planning;

Coordinate  the  development
ivities;

297



Gover s are sought for infrastructure and

3) Admini land including the
processing and approving of land
applications;

4) Undertake  development  of

commercial  buildings  and
residential houses;

Undertake  industrial — estate

development;

2]

6) Assume jurisdiction of the Local
Authority; and

7

Undertake business ventures cither
on its own or on jointventure basis.

As a result, Binwlu  Development
Authority (BDA) was established on 6.7.1978
o implement the important task. BDA started
in carly 1979 with the preparation of a
structure plan for the Bintlu Growth Centre.
The plan defined land use into residential,
comme agricultural and recreational
arcas. Any plan for the development of the
area should conform 1o the details provided in
the plan. The structure plan was completed to
meet both short and long term actual and
potential projects. Ample industrial sites are
able around the Deepsea Port at Tanjung
durong. Sites for the LNG Plant, Crude Oil
Terminal, Urea/Ammonia Plant, Palm Oil
Bulking Installation and the Port have been
established.

Locations for senvice industial estates
have been finalised and similarly those for
timber and agro-based industries. While land
is available or acquired through compensation,
funds from both the Stte and Federal

site developments. To promote the New
Economic Policy, industrial lots are sold to
Bumiputras at reasonable rates.

Two major residential zones have been
established.  One residential arca which is
near existing Bintlu town accommodates
about 40,000 people. Another area is near to
Kidurong Port where 1,000 acres are reserved
for houses for 25,000 residents in the 1990's
re the workers of the various industries at
ng Kidurong. Itis the implementation of
the mammoth projects and investnents that
made Binlu wellknown overnight to the
world.

who

With the discovery of natural gas, a
RM3,000 million plant to liquify nawral gas
was being set up. This is one of the most
oustanding development projects for this new
growth Centre. The plant processes some six
million tonnes uf LNG annually from the
Central Luconia Fields. The joint venture
project between Malaysia through Petronas
(65%), Shell BV (17.5%) and Mitsubishi
Corporation of Japan (17.5%) was being
implemented on a 700-acre site at Tanjung
Kidurong. The project was completed in 1983,

The Temena field produces around
10,000 barrels of crude oil per day. To
commodate this, a crude oil terminal was
constructed by the Sarawak Shell Berhad as a
contractor to the Petronas, The construction
costs RM75 million comprising of three crude
oil storage tanks with a capacity of 410,000
barrels each. This project located on the




MING, one of |

the biggest
liguidified
natural gas
establishments
in the world,
is situated at
Tg. Kidurong,

Bintulu. |
B

western boundary of the LNG Plant site was
completed in the 1979,

The Ur mmonia Plant is a joint-
venture project of the ASEAN Countrics.
Malaysia through Petronas holds 60% of the
shares of the project. Indonesia, Thailand
and the Philippines hold 13% each and
Singapore takes 1%. The project was
completed in 1984, this RM600 million
fertilizer plant is producing 1,500 tonnes of
Urea and 1,000 tonnes of Ammonia per day.
It is consumed by the local market as well as
by the other member nations of ASEAN.

he large areas of oil palm cultivation
in Bintulu Division by the Sarawak Land

Development Board have necessitated  the
construction of an export outlet near the
Decpsea Port. This RM16 million investment
is for the construction of storage tanks for
palm oil produced in the estates found along
the Miri/Bintulu Road and Bintulu/Sibu
Road.

Sites for other industries such as the
Aluminium Smelter, Electric Arc Steel
Furnace and the Iron-ore Reduction plant
have been completed. Of the three potential
projects, the Aluminium Smelter is the
largest, requiring about RM1,200 million
capital investment. This plant is producing
140,000 tonnes of Aluminium per year both
for local and overseas markets.




New Modern
Shophouses
along
Lebuhraya
Abang
Galau,
Bintulu.

BDA itself is pursuing a supporting role.
As a corollary 10 development, the influx of
people has brought a shortage of houses. BDA
is currently building houses for the major
industries. The Malaysia LNG Sdn. Bhd. the
organisation responsible for the LNG Project,
has approached BDA to construct 520 units of
houses for their stafl. accommodation. This
RMS0 million excluding land project is being
developed in several phases. The first pl
was completed in March 1981 and the rest in
1983, The Urea/Ammonia project requires
about 400 units. Infrasuructure works on a
large housing estate, the Kidurong Residential
Area where the LNG and BDA stafl. quarters
are located are being implemented. Light
industrics like garages, cold storage, printing
presses, workshops, warehouses ete. are located
in the light industrial estates.

Road building is being undertaken by
the Public Works Department. The RM10
ion Tanjung Kidurong road linking

Tanjung  Kidurong and
Bintulu was completed in
late 1979 and it was declared
open by the former YAB
Prime Minister of Malaysi:
the late Dato’ Hussein Onn
in September 1979. Roads
that arc being planned,
constructed and upgraded
include the Miri/Bintulu
Road, Bintulu/Ulu Batang
Mukah Road, Tanjung Batu
Link Road, Tanjung Batu
Road, Bukit Nyabau Road
and Kampung Jepak Road.
The BDA has also upgraded
and extended the urban roads in the town.
Meanwhile, the first trunk road was being
completed 1o serve other pl and Bintulu
as well.

Most of the major projects in Bintulu
revolves around the completion of the
Deepw This was a Federal
Government project costing more than RM400
million. It was completed  in 1982 and now it
becomes one of the largest por
This port is now serving Binwlu and its
surrounding arcas particularly the major
industries.

In the past few years, air passengers have
increased tremendously but the present
transport facilities have sev i i
present airport has a 4,500 hu runway
allowing only planes with the maximum size of
F27 to land. As a temporary measure, night

and flight frequencies were increased, Bintulu
“Town is perhaps the only town in Sarawak as




well as in Malaysia with the airport located right
in the middle of the town. Uniquely enough,
nowhere in the country can one step out of the
plane and walk right into the main street of the
town except Bintulu. This fact is recorded in
the Guinness of World Record as the town sited
nearest to an airport.

VIL. FAMOUS AND WELLKNOWN
PROJECTS

At the moment, the fast developing
Bintulu Town is famous and well-known to the
country as well as o the world in the following
projectsi-

1) Liquidified Petrolewn Gas Plants (LPG)

Bintulu makes Malaysia welbknown
because one of the largest Liquidified
Petroleum Gas Plants in the world
costing RM3.5 billion is being
installed  at ng Kidurong,
Bintulu. The Ma 1\3 ian Government
invested in this joint venture with
Shell and  Mitsubishi of Japan.
Petronas’ equity share in the
project is 65% while Shell
and  Mitsubishi  held  at
17.5% stake each. The first
batch of 57,000 tonnes of
liquified  petroleum  gas
was exported o Japan
on 29.1.1983. The Tokyo
Electric Power Incorporated
and Tokyo Gas Limited have

tonnes and 2 million tonnes

of liquidified petroleun gas
a year respectively.
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2)

Bintulu Fertilizer Factory

Bintulu is welkknown in ASEAN.
One ASEAN joint venture project
costing RM739 million, Bintulu
Fertilizer, making use of Liquidified
Petroleum Gas, was established in
Bintulu in 1985, It is the biggest
fertilizer f in Asia with a daily
production of fertilizer of 1,500
tonnes and the daily production of
anomie gas is 1,000 metric tonnes.
Malaysia through Petronas has 60%
equity sharcholding. Indonesia, the
Philippines and Thailand each hold a
13% share while Singapore has a
nominal one percent share.

Agriculture Park, Sibiew (Formerly
lowoun as Divisional Extension Training

and Development Centre)

Bintulu is chosen by the State
Government of Sarawak to establish
Agriculture  Park at Sibiew, 16
kilometres along Bintulu/Miri Road.
The Park with an area of 500 hectares

§
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Agriculture
Park, Sibiew.
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pnmdcs a venue for the people of
§ and Malaysia to know more
about our local vegetables, local
fruits, local jungle products, local
animals and fish. There are over 20
ypes of wild plants, an aay of
orchids, 77 types of fruits and flocks
of sheep in the park. It has become
an educational venue for students
and farmers as well as tourist centre
for both foreign and local tourists to
Bintle.  The Chief Minister, YAB
Dawk Patinggi Tan Sri (Dr) Haji
Abdul  Taib Mahmud officially
launched the park in conjunction
with the State Level Celebration of
Yang Dipertuan Agong's Birthday

held in Bintulu on 6.5.1990.
Bintulu  Wildlife Park (Taman
Tumbina)

Bintulu Wildlife Park or popularly
known as Taman Tumbina is the
zoological and botanical garden in
Binwlu.  Costing RM2,200,000.00,
Binwlu Wildlife Park is the first and
only park of its kind in Sarawak. It
is situated at Tanjung Kidurong
about 4 kilometres from the town
and opened to the public since
2.10.1990. The Wildlife Park with an
area of 12 hectares has collected
almost all the wild animals and birds
found in Sarawak and even a pair of
tigers are imported from Peninsular
Malaysia for the public to see. Itisa
living heritage and one of the most
attractive tourist centres in Bintulu.

5) Similajau National Park

6,

Located about 20 kilometres by
sca from Bintulu, 7,067 hectare
Similajau  National Park  was
opened to members of the public
since 1992, It is accessible both
by speedboats/longboats which
takes about 30 minutes or by a 6
kilometre road which takes about
15 minutes to reach the tropical
park there. The Park offers sun,
sand, forest, rapids and sca
together  with comfortable
accommodation  for munsls to
relax and stay there i
gazetted as a national
1976 with the primary aim of
conserving the flora, fauna and
unique geological characteristics
of the coastal area of Sarawak
Besides, it is the home of over 850
species of brids and 24 varieties of
mammals. The well-known plants
such as Tongkat Ali (Eurycoma
longisolia) and Bintangor trees
(Barringtonia asiatica) are found
there.

Tanjung Batu Beach

It is a beautiful and clean beach
facing South China Sea. Located
about 4 kilometres from the town,
the beach auracts not only the
foreign tourists but also the local
population to enjoy the fresh air,
hot sun, clean sand and salty water
at the doorstep.




7) Bintulu Deepsea Port, Kidurong
Bintulu Deepsea Port costing RM558
million was opened to the public
since 1.1.1983, Bintlu Port is an all-
weather port  which provides the
complete and modern facilities for
both international and  coastal
vessels. It has an access channel
measuring 6 kilometres long, 150
metres wide and 15 metres deep. It
can handle big ships up to 200,000
tonnage. It was officially declared
open by the then Yang Dipertua
Negeri TYT Tun Dawk Patinggi
Haji Abdul Rahman Ya'kub on
4.9.1983. On 26.6.1998, Bintulu Port
Authority was awarded MS 1SO 9002
for efficient port management.

With the completion of Bintulu
International Container Terminal at
the cost of RM280 million in 1998,
Bintulu Port Authority could provide
BICT quay of 450 metres of berth
length divided into two container
berths. It has 1,812 continer
ground slots and an additional open
storage yard of 66,450 square metres
apart from an operating capacity of
181,700 TEUS per annum. Hence,
the port is now easier for port users
1o handle cargoes and oil palm
tanker to meet Bintlu's industrial
needs.

8) Kemena Industrial Estate
Under the supenvision of Bintulu
Development - Authority  (BDA),
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9)

Industrial Estate arca is being
developed at Kemena. It consists of
an area of 42450 hectares and is
only 15 kilometres from the town. At
the moment, there are not less than
20 jointventure companies being set
up there. The Estate was declared
open by the then YAB Deputy Prime
Minister of Malaysia, Tun Ghafar
Baba.

Agricultural Plantation

Agriculture Development s a sunrise
industry in the State. Hence, Bintulu
having a hinterland of some 500,000
hectares  of land suitable for
agricultural  and  planiation
industries, is the target area for the
government to develop it.  About
20,000 hectares of the hinterland
have been planted with oil palms
and some 900 hectares have been
planted with cocoa. In the next 5 to
10 years, it is anticipated that at least
50,000 to 100,000 hectares of land
will be opened up for oil palm
i i or other agricultural
products by the new plantation
companies.

10) Tourism Potential

Bintulu region has alotof auractions
for the tourists, Besides Similajau
National Park, Tanjung Bat beach,
Wildlife Park and other industrial
areas, there are beautiful and
traditional longhouses located along
Kemena River to atract the tourists



to visit Bintilu.  The world famous
i Cave which is situated only
112 kilometres away by road from
Bintulu is another attraction to woo
the tourists to Binwlu Energy
Town. Morcover, Tanjung Batu
Coastal Reserve covering an are

the town. The reserve has been
developed into a beautiful and
relaxing recreational and
swimmin, 1. In addition, an 18-
hole golf course, public swimming
lagoon and international hotels
have also been built there to cate
the local people but also
foreign tourists.

11) Light Industrial Estate

Bintlu Development Authority
realised that supporting services
for the major industrial activities
are necessary. Hence, BDA has
developed two such estates namely
Bintulu Light Industrial Estate and
Kidurong Light Industrial Estate.
The former has an area of 38
hectares and was set up mainly to
cater for the needs of the local
people whereas the latter which
covers an area of 83 hectares
caters the supporting services for
ajor industries and services
related to Kidurong Port.

12) The Bintulu Edible Oils Sdn. Bhd.

The Bintulu Edible Oils Sdn. Bhd. is
the first palm oil refinery and

fractionation plant being established
in Sarawak. Costing RMI18 million
and located on a 6.6 hectare site at
Tanjung Kidurong, the plant we
declared open by the Chief Minister
of Sarawak YAB Datuk Patinggi Tan
Sri (Dr) Haji Abdul Taib Mahmud
on 30.7.1992. The project is jointy
owned by the Sarawak Land
Development Board (SLDB) and
two oil palm plantation companies,
lis Plantation Bhd and Austral
Enterprises Bhd. With a daily
production capacity of 400 tonnes
since its commencement in June,
1992, the BEO will cater for all the
crude  palm  oil  produced in

VIII. BDA NEW HEADQUARTERS

Situated along Bintulu/Miri Highway,
the new  headquarters  of  Bintwlu
Development Authority (BDA) which
completed in 1995, has become a new
landmark in the booming town. The building
has a unique shape. Some view it as a flving
saucer while others see it as a “Terendak”
1d a number of people

ng at it as a sea shell. A few visitors even
commented that the BDA new headquarters
to the extend of companing it as similar 1o the
majestic Kuching City North Commission
Building (DBKU) on the top of Bukit Siol
at Petra Whatever it is, BDA new
headquarters, the  sevensstorey  building
located on the highest point of Bintulu Town
offers a panoramic view of the whole town and
its surrounding growth centre.




BDA is building Kidurong
Library costing RM6.2 million.
Situated just next to the Civic
Centre, Bintuly, it will be one of the
largest libraries in the State and itis
a fully computerised public library
10 serve the population in Bintulu
with greater efficiency.

IX. TATAU DISTRICT
1) Tatau in General

Formerly, Tatau was a
sub-district of Bintulu
District. When Bintulu
wats declared as a division
on 111987, Tatau was
upgraded from a sub-
district to a district status
on the same day. Tatau
District covers an arca of
496 square kilometres
and based on 1991
Census, it had a

tion of 21,333,
cording 1o
the MidYear Population
Estimate 1999, Tatau
District had a popul
of 27,500. The majority

of them are the Ibans, followed by
the Melanaus, Chinese, Malays and

Orang Ulu,

2)

The Origin of the name of Tatau

The name “Tatau” actually derived
from a race called “Tatau™ in the
district.  According to a legend

published in the Sarawak Gazette
No. 1508 in July 1989, Tatau was the
son of the fist man and woman
created by a supernatural being.
The family stayed at Takan, the first
point of the Tatau River. When
Tatau grew up, he married w a
beautiful lady called Malong who was

BDA Library
Bintulu.




born in a Pedalai fruit.
Tatau and Malong had
many children. Brothers
and sisters married each
other.  Since there was
nobody else for them

o marry, Tatau’s
grandchildren also
intermarried among

themselves and, hence,
before Tatau died, he had
many many descendants
who stayed all over the
dist especially — at
Merebot,  Jelai  River,
Tatau River and Sap River.

Another legend was that
Tatau River was believed
to be named by a
Brooke's official.  After
the land from Oya River
10 Tanjung Kidurong was
ceded o the Brooke
Regime in 1861, an
official was sent to the
area to record the names
of | When  he
arrived at the present site
of Tatau Town, he asked the local
people “What is the name of the
placez”  The locals who did not
know English answered, “Tak
Tahu" (“Don’t know) and hence,
the Brooke official named the
place “Tak Tahu”, Eventually, it
was pronounced as “Tatau™ until
today.

3) Establishment of Tatau Bazaar

In 1884, Tatau Bazaar was first
established by a group of Chinese
Teochews who built 4 Auap
shophouses at the opposite bank of
the existing old Tatau Bazuar. In
1902, the shophouses were gutted by
fire. In 1903, the new shophouses
on stilt were built at the existing old

Tatau New
Township.

Distnct
Office, Tatau.
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Tatau Bazaar and later on, 2
more shophouses were added
in. However, in August, 190;
the bazaar was gutted by fire
for a second time. In 1906,
the whole Tatau Bazaar was
rebuilt.  In 1947, the first
Chinese Primary School was
established at one of the
shophouses with only 20
students and one teacher. Tt
was not until 1952 that the
present Primary
School built at the
present site to admit the
increasing students including
the native children in the
surrounding  areas.  One
magnificent  Chinese
Tuapekong Temple which is
as old as the ar was also
hun at the side of the old
au Bazaar. Taau is 62
kilometres from Bintulu by
road and it is also accessible
by river.

Chinese

was

Agriculture Produce

The main  agriculture
produce in the district arc pepper,
rubber, padi and coconut. Based on
Tatau District Agriculture Statistics for
the year 1996, 460 hectares of land
were planted with pepper, 4,105
hectares were planted with rubber,
1,109 hectares planted with both wet
and hill padi, 553 hectares were
planted with coconut ('\pu:l.llh .u
DID Sungai Serupai area and 2
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5,

hectares planted with sago along the
coastal area of Tatau.

Tatau Today

Today, Tatau has two towns. The
old town which is situated along
Tatau River consisted of 25 units of
double- storey wooden shophouses,
12 units of doublestorey concrete

Tataw Old
Town,

Tatau Old
Towen on
fire on

30.11.1998,



ook 1

§ 2 units of storey
concrete shophouses,  There were
altogether 39 units of shophouses
in the old town. However, on
30.11.1998 at 245 am., a big fire
gutted all  the 25 wooden
shophouses. The cost of damages was
estimated in the region of RM3
million and it made 136 people
homeless. The new township which
is about half a kilometre from the
old town is located near to Sibu/
Bintulu Highway. The new township
has more than 70 doublestorey
concrete shophouses. However, the
shopkeepers are not happy with the
overall planning of the new town
because they “Tak Tahu” (do not
know) why does the new  township
in the

having a car parking
centre of the new town with all the
shophouses facing outwards. One
row is facing the jungle, two rows are
facing the distant old Tatau town,
one row is facing Tatau River
and two other rows of the
shophouses are facing cach
other.  Hence, most of the
shopkeepers have to close the
frontage of the shophouses
nd open the back part of the
shophouses  for  business.
Moreover, there is no road
access to the front of the
shophouses.  Another  new
ip called

the new township has not been
implemented yet.

Bintulu is we
of silica sand in the state. Large quantity of
silica sand deposits are discovered along the

With the completion of Kemena
Bridge costing RMI5 million
1983 and also Tatau Bridge, more
vehicles and people pass through
Tatau. Besides the new township of
Tatau new government offices such
as  Distri Office, Agriculture
Office, new Secondary School,
Council New Market and other
government agenc are being
built  one after the other
Moreover, a new Integrated Sport
Complex is under planning and

v be materialised within the next
few years. Tatau Town is definitely
booming and becomes one of the
fast developing rural towns in
Sarawak.

ma

SILICA SAND, COAL AND TIMBER

-known for the production

Examining
silica sand
deposit in
Bintulu.



Locality map
of Bintulu
Towon. Sungai Kemena

coastal areas between Sungai Similajau and
Sungai Suai, Sungai Nyalau and Tanjung
Kidurong. Deposits of silica sand suitable for
glass manufacture have been discovered north
of Bintulu. Mining of silica sand first began in
1976 in the Bintulu area. Most of the deposits
were mined out by 1992 by the company, the
Scbangun Private Limited based in Binwlu.
Now the company has shifted its operation to
the Suai and Bakong areas. To date, the
amount of processed silica sand produced is
about 4.3 million tonnes. _In 1997, 203,000
tonnes of silica sand were produced by the
plantin Bintulu and all were exported to Japan
for making glass or other associated products.

Coal deposits near Binwlu have been

coal scams, though numerous, are generally
t00 thin to be mined profitably. At least 5 areas
namely Sungai Segan, Kampung Jepak, Sungai
Sepadok, Sungai Sera and Sungai Kelabat are
identified as having economic potential. The
coal resource of the Bintulu coal which is
generally of coking quality with moderate
swelling properties, is estimated at 20 million
tonnes.

About 125 million hectares of Sarawak
land is under forest, of which 3.4 million
hectares or 27.2% are in Bintulu Division. This
provides excellent opportunities for setting up
timber industries for downstream processing of
timber. At the moment, many timber related

known since 1913 and i i by the
Department of Geological Surveys showed that

" Ko full biished | their
F at Kemena and Jepak Timber
Industrial Estates.



XL BINTULU TODAY

The story of the rapid growth of
Bintulu is a story of a region which is
just the beginning to exploit in a
planned way its tremendous natural
resources both inland and offshore. Tt
is a story of a pla i ArS ago
was merel all fishing village with
a few hundred people only.  In 19705
it was launched into limelight of
international industrial circle.  From
the smell of Be
famous for
the more nauseatic pungent albeit
natal gas and petroleum.

now being replaced by

It is a story of an area where
fishing, farming and trading once used
to be the main sources of income but
which are now being replaced by the
major industries  offering  rapid
economic (Imdupnmu not only to
Bintlu but also rawak and
Malaysia as a whole.

i"

o

“Bintulu”™ may mean “head drying
place™ or “picking up head”, but it
a place with heads for glory.  One thing is
obyious that the name “Bintulu™ with an
intriguing origin left no trace of it but the aura
ofits glory past m ill linger in thy ca when
one ventures cruising up the Iban populated
areas along Kemena River.

It might be a “Pasar Belacan”™ one
hundred and fifty years ago, Bintulu has been
transformed from a fishing village into one of
the fastest developing and industrial towns in
Sarawak. Itis notonly rich in natural resources

810

communitics Imng m;,ﬂhm as
members of a big family. Although it may still
retain the old nick name “Pasar Belacan™, most
people will regard Bintulu as a highly industrial
town in Sarawak as well as the leading prime
industrial growth area in Malaysia.

Besides the rapid industrial growth, the
oil palm plantation industry is developing at a
rapid pace in Bintulu. Most of these plantations
are located along Bintulu/Miri Road. These

Bintulu
Stadium
along
Tanjung
Kidurong
Road.

A banking
building in
Bintulu Toun
Centre.



include the Austral Enterprises
planting 22,150  hectares,
Imbok Enterprise planting
11,380  hectares,  Sarawak
Pulp Industry planting 7,000
hectares, Subur Mas Enterprise
planting 5,000  hectares,
Tawakal ~ Sejati  Plantation
planting 4,000  hectares,
Majrany Corporation planting
3,770 hectares, Sahua
Enterprisc  planting 9,500
hectares, Hope and Hope
Plantation and Golden Hope
Plantation have also planted big
arcas of oil palm in the division.
Apart from these, Keresa Sdn.
Bhd. has plante

(785 hectares).

Bintulu Division has emerged

wo outstanding leaders namely:-

000 hectares of rattan out of
its 6,000 hectares at Tubau for rattan industry.
Most of the land classified under productive
agricultural land are planted with perennials
such as rubber (12,700 hectares) pepper (820
hectares), coconut (1,185 hectares) and sago

1) Dawk Penghulu Abok ak.

Jalin who was clected as a
member of Council Negri for
Kemena on 15.7.1963 became
the State Minister for Culture
from 7.7.1970 to 9.9.1974.

YB. Dato Celestine Ujang ak
Jilan was elected as a member
of Council Negri for Kemena
on 9.9.1974 and became a
State Minister for a number

Datuk Penghulu Abok ak Jalin.

Y.B. Dato Celestine Ujang ak Jilan.

of profolioes. He was the Speaker of
Council Negri Sarawak from 26.3.1981 to
18.3.1987. Now he is the State Minister
for Housing.

In 1980, the Aurora Beach Hotel which

was the first international hotel being built to
cater the local needs of foreigners coming and

sin

Magjid
Assyikirin,

Bintulu.



working in Bintulu. However, the
Aurora Beach Hotel building has
been dismantled alre n 11
storey hotel known as ParkCity
Beverly Hotel with 228 elegant
rooms was completed at the cost
of RM60 million. Now it has
become a landmark of Bintulu at
Tanjung Batu Road and it has
commenced its business in July,
1998, Binwlu Golf Course is
located about 8 kilometres off
Bintulu Town. This 18-hole golf
course provides most golfers
great  challenge due to its
undulating  terrain - with  the
breathtaking view of the South
China Sea.

Binwlu is connected to Sibu
by a 210-kilometre road and to
Miri by a 225-kilometre road and,
therefore, it lies more or less in
the middle of two major towns in
Sarawak. With the fuure rapid

will be located in Bintulu @
supply the facilities to the three
ivisi mely, Miri, Bintulu
ions. This is due to
the availability of a deep scaport at Tanjung
Kidurong, Bintulu, existence of a good road
transport network and the availability of
commercial and industrial spaces in the
town. The Bintulu Mosque known as Masjid
Assyikirin  (which means Gratefulness o
God) was built in 1988 to reflect the
gratefulness of the local residents for the gift

and Sibu Div
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of natural resources - oil and gas that has
allowed the wwn o evolve from a small
fishing village to a major oil and gas town.
The mosque costing RM6.5 was

> million
declared open on 8.7.1988. The newly
improved Chinese Fook Teck Temple and
the new Kuan Yin Tong Temple
added new colours to the town.

lso
The Civic

ParkCity
Beverly Hotel
- Landmark
of Bintulu.

Chinese Fook
Teck Temple
in the centre
of Bintulu
Town.



Pasar Utama,
Bintulu

Shophanses
along Jalan
Abang
Galau,
Bintulu

red open by YAB Ketua
Menteri £ 1 Sri Datuk Patinggi (Dr)
Haji Abdul
new modem doublestorey hawl
known as Pasar Utama was also b
into use in January, 1992, Kemena Bridge
costing RM15,000,000.00 and measuring 457

318

metres long was constructed and
declared open by Keta Menteri
Sarawak YAB Datwk Patinggi Tan
Sri (Dr.) Haji Abdul Taib Mahmud
on 13.12.1983. It is one of the
longest bridges in Sarawak. The
new RM100 million Bintulu New
Hospital located on 34 hectares of
hilly land along Jalan Nyabau, off
Tanjung Kidurong is operational
since 1.8.1999. The hospital has
208 beds with better equipment
and it is designed to cater for the
need of Bintulu people up to 2010.
New Government Buildings are
constructed along Tun Abdul Razak
Road and Sultan Iskander Road.
High raised commercial buildings
are continuing to be built along
Lebuh Raya Abang Galau and
Abang Galau Road. Along Tanjung
Batu Road and Tanjung Kidurong
Road, commercial centres and
housing estates are booming up.
Because of these developments, the
face of Bintlu is continually
transformed and its skyline has
enhanced its image as a new
developing town in Sarawak.

In 1894 there were only 8 units of
wooden shophouses with Auap roof in
Bintlu. After 105 y Bintulu fishing
village has changed itself into the third
largest town in Sarawak after Miri Town and
Sibu Town. According to a survey conducted
in June 1999 there are 1,263 units of
shophouses in Bintulu Town. The details are
as follows:-




2)

3

4)

6)

7

8)

Locality

Bintulu Town Centre

Jalan Sultan Iskandar

Kemena Jaya
Commercial Centre,
Jalan Sultan Iskandar

Medan Jaya Shopping
Centre, Jalan Tun
Hussein Onn

Tanjung Kidurong
ParkCity Area
Kampung Masjid

Kemena Commercial
Centre, Tanjung Batu

Type of shophouses

D
2)
3)
4)

3)

1)

2storey wooden shophouse

2storey concrete shophouse
3storey concrete shophouse
4storey contrete shophouse
Sstorey concrete shophouse

3storey concrete shophouse
4storey conerete shophouse

3storey concrete shophouse

3storey concrete shophouse

Sstorey concrete shophouse

3storey concrete shophouse

4storey concrete shophouse

3storey concrete shophouse
4storey concrete shophouse

Grand Total

180

180




The above figures do not include
buildings belonging to Plaza Hotel (7storey),
ParkCity Beverly Hotel (11storey), Hoover
Hotel (6storey), Li Hua Hotel (10storey),
BDA old Administrative Centre (3storey),
other industrial lots and other shophouses
within the residential parks around the town.

It has to be admitted that Bintulu is the
most rapid developing division in Sarawak. The
new Bintulu is a premier, wellplanned and

i lly aurative industrial town
developed by the Bintulu Development
Authority (BDA). The huge allocation and
foreign investment in industries enhance rapid

=]

industrialisation. Bintulu has really grown
into a sprawling cosmopolitan centre of more
than 100,000 people and one of the country's
largest natural gas, wood and petrol-chemical
industrial areas. Bintulu itself is full of energy
and, hence, the nick name for Bintulu - the
Energy Town of Sarawak is most appropriate
and rightly given. Bintlu is obviously the
emerging industrial dragon in Sarawak as
well as in Malaysia. Eventually, the State
Government’s vision to develop Bintulu into
a vibrant city with a new name of a “Garden
Industrial City” is in the making and
obviously, it will become a reality in the new
millennium.



CHAPTER 12

MIRI DIVISION

Map of Miri Division
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Welcome to
Mini Town,

Miri - The Oil Town of Sarawak

1. INTRODUCTION

Miri Division, the 4th

Sarawak, has an area of 26,777 square
kilometres and based on 1991 census, it had

a population of 232
m

of which the
ority of them are the Chinese, Malays,
Ibans, Orang Ulu and Mel; However,
according to the Mid-Y Population

Estimate 1999, Miri Division had a
population of 299,100.
On 19.6.1882, Miri Division from

Tanjung Kidurong to beyond Batang Baram,
formerly part and parcel of Brunei Territory
was ceded by the Sultan of Brunei to Brooke
Regime. Hence, from that time onwards, Miri

Division forms part of Sarawak Territory.

sion of

37

In 1882, the Divisional Headquarters
of Baram Division was in Marudi, (Claude
Town) about 90 kilometres from the sea.
Howeve

it was due to the discovery of il in
1910 that Miri developed much faster than
Marudi, the administrative centre was then
shifted from Marudi to Miri in 1912, From
me onwards, Baram Division changed
ame 1o Miri Division and Miri became
onal Headquarters of Miri Division
until today.

Miri Division has three forts but the
most famous fort was built at Claude Town
(Marudi) during the Brooke Regime. It was
called Kubu Hose built in 1901 in
remembrance of Dr. Charles
Hose who was the Resident of
Baram in 1888, The highest
mountain in Sarawak is Mount
Murud in Miri Di It is
P metres above sea |

aram  River which
through Miri Divisi
second longest river in Sai
It is 400 kilometres long.

flows
the
wak.

Prior to 1.1.1987, Miri Division
had three districts namely Miri
District, Baram District and
Bintulu District.  Nevertheless,
when Bintlu was declared a




division by YAB Ketua Menteri Sarawak,
Datk Patinggi Tan Sri (Dr.) Haji Abdul
Taib Mahmud on 31.8.1986, Miri Division
remains two districts and four sub-districts
from 1.1.1987 onwards.

II. HISTORICAL BACKGROUND
1) Evidence of human inhabitants in 14th
to 15th Century
Miri may be a new settlement as far as
the discovery of oil is concerned.
However, the recent

District Sub-district

1) Miri District 1) Sibuti Sub-district

2) Niah-Suai Sub-district

2) Baram District. 1) Long Lama Sub-district

(Marudi) 2) Bakong Sub-district
(Beluru)

Total:

Population in 1991 discovery of artefacts
Anamese Sukhotai's four
161,369 eyelets jar, a  water
dropper and a Sawan
71,986 Khalok oil jar unearthed
near the mouth of a
stream on the outskirts of
Miri beared evidence of
Siamese origin in the
14th to the 15th Century.
This discovery proves

There are altogether 17 towns/bazaars
in the Division namely:-

1) Min Town

2) Marudi Town (Claude Town)
3) Lutong Town

ala Baram Bazaar

5) Bekenu Bazaar

6) Baw Niah Bazaar

7) Sepupok Bazaar

8) Beluru Bazaar (Bakong Bazaar)
9) Niah Bazaar

10) Long Teru Bazaar

11) Lapok Bazaar

12) Long Lama Bazaar

13) Long Akah Bazaar

14) Bario Bazaar

15) Lambir Bazaar

16) Permy Jaya New Township, Tudan
17) Tanjung Nibong Bazaar

a1

that the area had been
inhabited in the above period
already.  Moreover, prior to 1910,
Orang Mirek and Malay settlements
could be found along Sungai Miri.

2) Datu Permaisuri’s Tomb

According to a legendary story
related by the late Daw Temenggong
Abang Kipali of Kuching, in the 15th
Century Datn Merpati Jepang's wife
Dayang Murdiah and his mother,
Datu Permaisuri, died at Kuala
Bat Buaya, Santubong, Using his
supernatural power, Daw Merpati
Jepang could carry their bodies
across the sea to Pujut near Mir
within a day and buried there. The
burial stone is still sacred (Kramat)
there.




However, according to Encik William
Chan in his book called “The Legend
of the Princess Permaisuri’s Tomb™,
Princess Permaisuri was a young and
beautiful princess from  Johore
Empire.  About one hundred y;
ago, she went on a cruise with her
husband and family. As they
approached Miri shore amidst a
storm, their cruiser was capsized. The
princess was washed ashore near
Tanjung Batu at Pujut and was saved
by the villagers there. In gratitude of
her narrow escape, she relinquished
her royalty for the life of a commoner,
devoting the rest for her life teaching
Islamic religion to the villagers. She
was s0 zealous in her missionary that
even her husband who later found
her could not persuade her to return
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toJohore. She died and was buried by
the villagers at the present site. Until
today, the villagers still venerate her
and pray to her at her tomb.

On 1.10.1996, the then Minister for
Social Development Sarawak, Y.B.

Aerial View
of Miri
Town,
1999.

Datu
Permaisuri’s
Tomb at
Kampung
Pujut
Tanjung
Batu, Miri.



Lutong
Monkey
(Lutung

).

Dato Haji Adenan Haji Satem visited
the site and he approved a sum of
RM30,000/- for the improvement,
beautification and landscaping works
of the area. In order to honour the old
and historical tomb, it will be gazeued
as a historical site by the State
Government.

The tomb of Datu Permaisuri is
actually located at a place which is ten
minutes by longboat from Kampung
Pujut upriver along Sungai Miri. A
plankwalk and a name plate *‘Makam
Datwr  Permaisuri®  have  been
constructed along the route from the
river  bank to the graveyard. A
government secondary school in Mir

along Miri River were Orang Mirek. Generally,
they referred themselves as “A-Likou Mirek™ or
“Likko Mirck™  Originally, they were non-
Muslims. However, due to the spread of Islam
from 15th Century onwards in the region, they
became Muslims.  “A-Likou Mirek™ or “Likko
Mirck™  means “people of Mirek River”.
Eventually, the name of the river Mirek
pronounced as “Miri” until today:

Besides the name of Miri which came
from “Orang Mirek”, the original name of
Canada Hill has no connection with a country
called Canada in North America. The original
name of Canada Hill was “Canda Hill" in Orang
k dialect. Slowly, it changes from “Canda
Hill™ to “Canada Hill” because it was named
after the Canadian drillers who were drilling the
oil well on the hill. There is a road called
“Brighton Road” in Miri. Again “Brighton” in
the Orang Mirck dialect means “valley”.

Lutong, the famous oil refinery town in
Miri Division. derived her name from a longtail
monkey called “Lutong”™. Before the discovery
of oil in Miri area in 1910, Lutong area consisted
of thick jungle where wild animals especially
monkeys were plentiful. - Since the longtail
monkeys called “Lutong” were everywhere in
the jungle, the locals called the place “Lutong™
undl today. In 1959, Sarawak Shell Company
built its b in Lutong Town.

known Sekolah M gal
Kerajaan Dat Permaisuri is named

after her.

as

IIl.  ORIGIN OF THE NAME OF MIRI AND
LUTONG

In the olden days, the carliest inhabitants

IV. MIRI IN THE EARLY DAYS

Before the discovery of oil in 1910, Miri
was a small coastal fishing Kampung with
about 20 scattered houses and a few shops.
These included a small bazaar, a gambling




Resident’s
Office, Miri
n 1950s.

Aerial view of
Miri Town 1n
the 1950s.

farm, a prawn shop and an Arab shop. The
trade at that time consisted mainly of Jelutong,
brassware, fish, Belacan and Budu. The
inhabitants knew very litde of the world
beyond Miri due to difficulties in road and
shipping communications in those days.

There were two Chinese provision
dealers and their main trade was corned-beef,
tinned milk and key beer. Eggs, bananas and

21

chickens were also available. The
fresh meat was wild boar meat,
buffalo meat and pigeons which
were plenty at the sea beach area.
Fresh fish was a popular food.
Whenever fishing boats arrived,
crowds of people rushed in to
snatch anything they could lay
their hands.

Miri settlement had actually been
wrested out from the jungle where
wild boars, monkeys and leopards
used to run around. Rats swarmed
the houses at night.  Dysentery
and malaria  were common
hazards in those days. The only
doctor was stationed in Labuan,
Hence, a small First-Aid Kit was
kept in the camp with medicine
for coughs, cholera and colds.
Castor oil was very popular among
the labour force to treat “Sakit
Perut” or “Sakit Kaki” or “Sakit
Demam”.

Communications were backward
in Miri. There were no roads,
only dusty tracks with no street
Everyone was advised to carry a
When one

lamps.
hurricane lamp at night.
European rode on a bicycle in Miri, the
whole Kampung folks twrned out in

amazement to watch him, There were
neither telegraph system nor telephone
service in those days. For urgent messages, a
special messenger came from Labuan via
Brunei, taking 4 days and 4 nights by foot on
the sea beach to deliver the message.



After the e centre was shifted
from Claude Town (Marudi) to Miri in 1912,
Miri began to develop at ¢ as an oil
town. The first Miri Resident’s Office was built
at the river bank along Kubu Road. It was &
centre where the District Office, Post Office o
other Government Agencies were located. The
guard on duty at the office would strike a
drilling pipe hourly (o remind the people of the
i nd at 6,00 pan. every evening, he would
blow his bugle to signal the lowering of the flag.

faster

In 1911, Oil Company set up one hospital
in Miri to provide medical care to its workers
as well as the general public who came for
medical treatment. In view of the increasing
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number of public patients, $S.0.L. hospital
was taken over by the Sarawak Government on
11.8.1960 in order to provide better medical
service to everybody in the area.

In 1913, Miri Club and Gymkhana Club
were formed by the Shell Company to provide
arecreational and social venue for the staff and
workers. In 1921, Miri Club and Gymkhana
Club merged into one body but retained the
name of Gymkhana Club. In 1924, Miri Golf
Club was formed for the golfers. When the
population grew, there was a need for spiritual
comfort among the Miri people. In 1917, the
Chinese C i blished a Tuapekong
Temple.

For the Christians, St. Columba's

Aerial view of
Miri Torom,

1960.



Church was built and consecrated on 3.9.1922
for the Anglicans and on 24.4.1931 St. Joseph's
Church was constructed and consecrated for its
followers to worship.

Education was also a necessity in a
growing town. In 1920, the first Chinese Chung
Hua School was built to provide primary
education among the Chinese children in the
town as well as the children of the oil company.
In 1924, Sekolah Melayu Anchi Miri was built
to admit Malay students. In 1931, St. Columba’s
English School was established by the
Anglicans and one year later, St. Joseph'’s
Primary School also opened to enrol
children to study in English.

By 1921, there were about 40 wooden
shophouses in Miri. In 1925, the Chinese waders
felt that there was a need to group themselves
together and, hence, they formed the Chinese
Chambers of Commerce to look after their
interest. In 1921, the first motor vehicle was
driven in Miri Town and in 1924, the 7 Mile
Miri/Lutong Road was completed and, hence,
more motor vehicles were imported and driven
in Miri. In 1931, outboard motors were used in
Miri to provide coastal and riverine service. Air
service was introduced to Miri upon the
completion of Lutong Airfield in 1937 butitwas
only confined to oil company aircrafts to land.

When Mir Town was
a need to provide coun rvice to the town.
Hence, in 1933, Miri Local Council was
established and on 1.1.1956 it was renamed as
Miri Urban District Council. On 9.1.1961, the
name was changed to Miri District Council. In
1981, the name was changed again and it was
known as Miri Municipal Council until today.

growing, there was
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During the World War Il and especially
towards the latter half of the Japanese
Occupation, Miri was the target of air raids
and bombings. After liberation in June, 1945,
Miri Town was almost wiped out. The
rehabilitation of the town was left in the hand.
of Colonial Government. At first wooden
shophouses were crected at the existing site.
However, from 1948 onwards, the wooden
shophouses were dismantled and replaced by
concrete shophouses. In December 1949, 2
rows of 14 units of doublestorey concrete
shophouses were built along the riverfront.
Later on, another 14 units of similar
shophouses were constructed. By 1951,
most of the existing doublestorey concrete
shophouses along Jalan Cina, Jalan Kingsway
and High Street were constructed. The Miri
Council Cenural Market was also completed
for petty hawkers. In 1957, Miri Theatre was
built in the town to provide entertainment to
the people there.

V. ORANG MIREK SETTLEMENT

Prior to the coming of outsiders to Miri
in 1910, there were small isolated Kampungs
of Orang Mirek in the areas at Kuala Sungai
Miri, Krokop, Bakam, Loak, Pujut and Piasau.
These Kampungs were situated along river
banks and consisted of individual Attap
houses. The inhabitants were farmers and
fishermen. Today, Kampung Kuala Sungai
Miri is no more in existence. However, other
Kampungs still exist although they now
accommodate larger, ethnically mixed
populations. Even at the present site of
Kampung Dagang, there was a small Orang
Mirck Kampung which was then known as
Kampung Masjid.




population. In 1977, there were about 2495
Orang Mirek staying in Kampung Pengkalan,
Kampung Bakam, Kampung Tanjung Bauw,
Kampung Kuala Adong, Kampung Tebangit,
Kampung Scherang, Kampung Jalan Pujut,
Kampung Lopeng Riam, Kampung Sungai
Miri Kecil, Kampung Song and Kampung
Dagang. In 1997, the estimated population of
Orang Mirck was in the region of 5,000. In
1982, Orang Mirek formed an Association
known as Persatuan Jatti Meirek, Miri, to look
after the welfare and interest of the community.

Temenggong ] Now it has more than 600 members.
Datuk Muip bin
Tabib, | " e

£ cept Orang Mirek, the majority of the

Malays and the Melanaus in Mird are not natives

to the arca. Most of them came from Kuching

and Mukah areas following the opening up of

According to Datuk Muip bin Tabib, an the Miri oilfield. Others came from elsewhere

Orang Mirck himself, the Orang Mirck in Miri Division, Bintulu Division, Brunei and

originally came from Long Miri in the Baram some from as far away as Indonesia.

Temenggong Datuk Muip bin Tabib was born
in 1902 and died on 29.7.1988 in Miri. A road

area more than 160 years ago and they
settled down in Miri for 6 generations a
They were being driven from their
homes in the Baram by the hostile
tribes. Linguistically, they belong o |
the Daleh dialect groups in Baram. |
They speak a language akin ©
the language spoken by Orang
Bakong, Orang Narum and Orang
Bel A small number of this

(!‘mlm.l group is also found in the Mayid
Sibuti arca. At-Taoqua,
Mini New
In 1947 Census, Orang Mirek Mosque
was counted separately. Later on, alang Jalan
Orang Mirck was included in Merpati.

the Malay population  because
the Orang Mirek has a small
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Miri Old
Masque built
n 1955,

known as Jalan Dawk Muip and a primary
school known as SRK Temenggong Datuk are
named after this Orang Mirek leader in Miri.

VI. MALAY SETTLEMENT IN MIRI

Before Miri was ceded to Sarawak by
Sultan of Brunei in 1882, Orang Kaya Imbil was
the representative of Sultan of Brunei in Miri.
He married to a Kenyah girl from Baram but
later he passed away in Tutong, His son, Orang
Kaya Miang succeeded his father and became
the Sultan’s representative in Miri. However,
upon the death of Orang Kaya Miang, there
was no representative being sent by Sultan of
Brunci to Mini. Thed affairs were leftin the
hands of the Malay Tua Kampungs of the arcas.

Upon the discovery of oil in Miri in 1910,
more Malays from Kuching and Batang Rajang
i to work with the Oil
alays also came from
Sabah, j
Malaysia and even Indonesia to seule down
in Kampung Dagang, Kampung Wireless,

migrated over to Mi
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Kampung Masjid and Kampung
Pangkalan. Nakhoda Awang Gafar
from Brunei was the first Malay who
brought Islam religion to Miri and
he built the first mosque made of
Attap along Sungai Miri. In 1912
Sayed Othman bin Syed Zain from
Sibu built the 2nd Miri Mosque
and Madrasatul Usmaniah Malay
School in Miri. In 1924, Sekolah
Melayn Anchi Miri was opened.
The %rd Miri Mosque and SRK
Agama Sckolah were constructed
in 1955, In 1970, the Malay
population was less than 10,000
but in 1991, their population had increased
up to 34,714,

On 21.8.1983, the construction of Miri
Mosque known as Masjid AtTaoqwa Miri was
completed at the cost of RM3 million. Itis the
fourth but grandest mosque in Miri Town.

Most of the Kuching Malays and Mukah
Melanaus migrated to Miri after World War 1l in
1945. Most of them were cither working with
the oil company or became fishermen and
sailors. Today, the Malay population can be
found in Kampung Dagang, Kampung Wireless,
Kampung Pujut, Kampung Pulau Melayu,
Kampung Pangkalan Lutong, Kampung Loak
and some stay in Miri Town arca.

Two roads namely Jalan Datu Merpati
and Jalan Datu Permaisuri are named after the
Malay hero and his mother and another road
known as Jalan Setia Raja was named after the
Melanau Hero Pehin Orang Kaya Setia Raja
Abang Manai, the great grandfather of YAB



Datuk Patinggi
Mahmud, the C
was born in Miri.

n Sri (Dr.) Haji Abdul Taib
Minister of Sarawak who

VIL. IBAN COMMUNITY

Before Baram/Miri arca was ¢
Brooke Regime in 1882, Ibans in Si
(Sri Aman) and Batang Rajang used to be
attacked by Brooke's force.  Hence, even
before 1882, groups of Iban community
migrated to Baram River. In 1884, big groups
of Ibans from Skrang and Entebu migrated
over to Dabai, Sungai Babi, Melikat and
Sebatang arcas.  They seuled down and
became mbber tappers, pepper planters, padi
farmers and jungle produce collectors.

In 1910 upon the discovery of oil in
racted more Iban immigrants from
Batang Lupar, Batang Rajang and Bintulu
arcas to move over and work in the oil ficlds.
In 19705, it was the timber industries boom
in Batang Baram and Miri areas, more Ibans
moved over to Miri.  Today, the Iban
commu can be found in Kampung Api,
Lutong, Taman Tunku, Kampung Sealine,
Kampung Bersatu and Canada Hill squatter
arcas. Later on, the Iban community moved to
Satap, Sungai Tiris, Nyallau, Sibuti and Niah
areas where they settled down there.

In 19605, Rumah Dayak Miri was built
at Jalan Merpati to look after the welfare
and interest of the Iban Community in Miri.
In 1970, it was rebuilt and declared opened
by Tun Dawk Patinggi Jugah ak Barieng on
30.5.1970. Tts first Chairman was Encik Francis
Loke followed by Dawk Edward J

326

Belayong. Later, Encik John Linang took over
Jeli when the lauer
became the State Minister. After John Linang,
Donald Landong and Edwin Dundang became
the Chairman one after another. The present
Chairman is Dr. Nuing Jeluing. A road in Miri
Town is named after Datuk Edward Jeli.

Based on census records in 1970, there
were about 25,216 Ibans in Miri Division. In
1980, it jumped 10 40,723 and in 1991 the
Iban population increased up o 68,241

VIII. CHINESE COMMUNITY
1) Migration of Chinese to Miri
In 1880, some Chinese Hokkien
businessmen went 1o Claude Town
(Marudi) 10 do business.
tme,  Claude  Town
administrative centre of the division
whereas Miri was a small fishing
village. Itwas only after the Brooke

Chan Chak.



Regime took over Baram/Miri
area from the Sultan of Brunei in
1882 that some Chinese came over
to Miri. Upon the oil discovery in
Miri in 1910 and the shifting of
the administrative centre from
Claude Town to Miri in 1912 more
Chinese rushed over and settled
down there.

In 1887, the Miri fishing village
had about 10 to 20 houses.
However, most of the population
were Orang Mirek staying on both
sides of Kuala Sungai Miri. The
Chinese who came to Miri
opened small provision shops for
business. At first there were two
Chinese shops and later it
increased to four shops. One of
the famous Chinese headmen in
Miri was Chan Chak. He died in
1927 and a road known as Jalan
Chan Chak in Miri was named
after him.

Slowly, Chinese workers from
China, Hong Kong and Singapore
were being employed in various
fields in the oil town. The poor
Chinese especially from
Guangdong Province of China
came in big groups to work in the
oil fields and subsequently settled
down in Miri. Today, most Chinese
in Miri are businessmen,
contractors, food suppliers and
developers whereas some of them

became government officers or oil
field workers. In the rural areas,
they are estate owners, farmers and
timber loggers.

The Chinese population in Miri
District have been growing steadily
from 1910 onwards. The breakdown

figures are as follows=-
Year  Chinese Population  Remark
1939 9,846
1947 9,465 Due to 2nd World War,
Chinese population
dispersed to other arcas
1960 16,432
1991 51,397
Most of the Chinese population
are Hakka (Kheh), Foochow and
Hokkien. Based on 1991 census,
the breakdown figures are as
follows:-
Chinese Dialect Population
Hokkien 8,939
Hakka (Kheh) 20,993
Foochow 11,798
Cantonese 4,228
Toechew 2,214
Others 8,225
Total: 51,397




Datuk Chia Chin Shin.

2) Chinese Tuapehong Temple, Miri

In the carly d firi was lack of
medical facilities and, hence, there
were a lot of infectious diseases.
Upon the advice from a Buddhist
monk, Kapitan China Chan Chak
built the Tuapekong Temple in Min
in 1917 During the second World
War, the temple was gutted by fire
due 10 bombings. The Sarawak
ment gave a picce of land
g 0.26 acres for the temple
0 be rebuilt.  In 1970, with the
assistance from both the Federal
Government  and  the  State
Government, a new Chinese
Tuapekong Temple was completed
at the present site at the cost of
RM180,000/-. It was declared open
on 24.5.1972.

YB. Datuk Peter Chin Fah Kui

Y.B. Datuk Amar Dr. Gearge Chan
Hong Nam.

3) Outstanding Chinese Leaders in Miri

There are a few outstanding
Chinese leaders in Miri, namely:-

Datuk  Chia Chin Sin was a
councillor of Miri  Municipal
Council in 1951 and in 1963, he was
a member of Council Negri. On
26.3.1981 he was appointed as the
State Assistant Minister for Welfare,
In 1991, he was appointed as the
Chinese Temenggong for Miri
Division until today.

YB. Dawk Peter Chin Fah Kui,
Member of Parliament of Miri is
the Deputy Federal Minister for
Housing and Local Government. He
was the Chainman of Miri Municipal
Council from 1984 1o 1987.
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3) YB. Duul Amar Dr. George Chan
Hong Nam, Member of Council
Negri of Piasau from April, 1987 is
the Deputy Chief Minister,
Minister for Finance and Public
Utility as well as Minister for Social
Development of Sarawak. He was
the Chairman of Miri Municipal
Council from 1981 to 1984. Datuk
Amar Dr. George Chan was first
elected as a Member of Parliament
in Miri in 1982 and in 1983, he was
clected as a Member of the
Council Negri for Piasau until
today. Now he is the President of
Sarawak United People’s Party
(SUPP) with effect from 1997.

IX. DISCOVERY OF ‘EARTH OIL’

The first oil well in Sarawak was drilled
on the top of Canada Hill, Miri on
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10.8.1910. The Well No. 1 now known as
“Grand Old Lady” has become the well-
known landmark and tourist attraction in
Miri.

In actual fact, the first discovery of oil in
Miri was recorded by Mr Claude de
Crespigny, the then Resident of Baram on
31.7.1882. In his , he mentioned that oil
being discovered in some 18 wells dug by
hand by the local inhabitants around Miri
area. At that time, the locals called the oil
“Earth Oil" or “Minyak Tanah”. Ever since,
the oily substance appeared in seepages and
the local people used the oil mixed with resin
for caulking boats, They even used it for
lighting, employing an open wick but
invariably caught fire which resulted burning
of their houses. In those days, the local
people believed that “Earth Oil” was
possessed by “Hantu” or Ghost which had the
supernatural power 10 burn down houses.

Dr. Charles
Hose.



Although De Crespigny recommended
to the second White Rajah of Sarawak, Sir
Charles Brooke for further investigation of
the discovery of “Earth Oil” (petroleum) in
1882, nothing was done as the demand for
petroleum in Sarawak was nil.

In 1888, when Dr. Charles Hose took
over the duties of Resident of Baram from
De Crespigny, he took seriously for the
search of the oil in the whole Claude
Town (now Marudi) was his first station
when he joined the Sarawak civil service.
With his predecessor’s notes, he further
explored and mapped the seepages in the
Baram Division. After the discovery of a
number of oil shows, he reported to the
Sarawak Government and later he arranged
the Anglo-Saxon Petroleum 1o develop
Sarawak's oil resources. On 10.8.1910, the
first well was spudded on the top of Canada
Hill. On 22.12.1910, oil was struck at 425 feet
and brought into production. By 1914, oil
from Sarawak was being used in ships of the
British and Japanese navies. It had to be
acknowledged that Dr. Charles Hose was the
virtual discoverer of Sarawak's oil.

X. MIRI DURING WORLD WAR II

By 1940 the oil field in Miri produced
Jjust over one million barrels during the year.
By then, however, the operators were less
concerned with producing oil rather than
closing down the field in case of enemy
invasion,

Second  World  War  found  two
opposing forces who tried to influence the

flow of Miri oil. On one side were the Allies
(and the Company), determined to keep
the oil in the ground. On the other side
were the Japanese invaders who equally
determined to get the oil out from the
carth.

Soon after the bad news of Pearl
Harbour being taken over by the enemy, the
first Japanese planes were seen making
reconnaissance flights over Miri  and
Lutong.  Immediately Company officials,
with the help of the tiny garrison stationed
in Miri, put Operation Denial into force. All
producing wells were scaled up, vital
equipment and machinery were dismantled
and shipped off to Singapore together with
skilled workers and important Company
papers. The Company was determined to
deny the invaders of all possible means of
producing oil. Busy with the Denial Scheme,
the Company officials themselves had barely
time to leave on the three ships which were
to take them to Kuching. They were
attacked from the air on their va

On 16.12.1941, a mere nine days after
the fall of Pearl Harbour, a Japanese invasion
force of about ten thousand men landed at
Tanjung Lobang. And a few months later, not
long after the fall of Singapore, they landed at
Miri a large number of skilled, experienced oil
ficld workers, accompanied by the very same
oil field equipment and machinery which had
been sent over to Singapore just before the
invision. The Japanese had managed to find
out exactly where were both men and
nery were hidden in Singapore and had
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promptly brought them back to Miri. The
Japanese made strenuous efforts to bring
the oilfield back into production. During
the three and a half years’ occupation, they
produced three quarter of a million barrels,
their peak production occurring in 1944.

In 1944, living conditions in Miri had
seriously deteriorated.  Towards the later
half of the Japanese Occupation, Miri and
Lutong became the target of innumerable
air raids - systematic bombing. Food, clothes
and medicines were scarce; sickness and
malnutrition rife. Those who worked for
the Oil Supplying Service were marginally
better off. They got regular rations of food,
even though rice was being substituted by
sweet potatoes and Ubi Kayu with alarming
frequency, even though they were not free
from tribulation. It was not at all unusual,
after a hard day's work on the oil field and at
the refinery, to be made to work on the
construction of the Lutong bridge and the
Lutong airstrip.

At the cemetery site ncar to St
Columba Kindergarten, Miri, a memorial
was erected at the side of n Dato Abang
Indeh. There were 28 people mostly
government officers, teachers, priests and
oil company workers who were suspected to

form anti-Japanese movement in 1945 were
killed and buried there. Originally, the
memorial was erected with a picce of wood
for remembrance. In 1980, it was replaced
by a concrete memorial post.
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XI. REHABILITATION AFTER THE WAR

On 10.6.1945, the Australian troops
occupied Labuan Island. Within 11 days, they
landed on the mainland and liberated Miri as
well as Seria. They were met by a scene of
1 i ing wells, demolish ilding
and wrecked installations. The main task then
was to resume oil production.

Although hostilities ceased on the
29.1945, some of the Japanese forces, a few
miles behind Miri, did not capitulate until
much later. Nevertheless, work had to go on,
bringing the buming wells under control and

War memorial
monument
along Jalan
Dato Abang
Indeh in
Miri.



clearing away the debris. Progress was
handicapped by lack of equif and

materials, especially on transport units and
welding sets.

The rehabilitation of the Miri and Seria
Fields was carried out with assistance of the
Australian Army engineers, To blanket the
flames, steam was raised in some handy
Japanese boilers and from the wells. In many
cases, the Japanese had dug pits around the
well-heads and these had filled with flaring
oil, making it difficult to approach. Naturally
many men were needed for the fire-fighting
operations.  Those Company workers who
had left behind during the war were obvious
candidates for the job. Many Company
workers, like Miri inhabitants, had fled into
the jungle during the war; they were
encouraged to come out by means of friendly
aircraft dropping leaflets with news of the
liberation.

By September 1945 all the fires were put
out. Attention now tumed to clearing up the
general mess, repairing the storage tanks, the
main trunk line between Seria and Lutong and
sealoading facilities. The only equipment
available was borrowed from the Army.
However, by November 1945 the Army was able
1o evacuate the oil field arcas. The first storage
tank in Lutong was satisfactorily repaired and
tested, and on 11.12.1945, oil began to flow
again in the Seria-Lutong pipeline.

It was not until October 1946 that any
appreciable output was achieved. At the end
of October, nearly 6,000 barrels were
produced. By the end of the year, the

rehabilitation staff were looking back with
satisfaction on twelve months of very
substantial progress, inspite of the stark
living conditions they had had to endure.
Food was scarce and cigarettes, tobacco and
drinks were supplied through army sources
on a strict army-ration basis. Tinned food
was received in reasonable quantities from
Australia, but there was, for some time, a
serious shortage of dairy produce. The
health  situation was never good, the
incidence of malaria being quite high.

By the end of August, 1946, the first
well drilled at Miri since the Japanese
withdrawal, was completed at 3,346 feet with
a regular production of 420 barrels per day.
The rebuilding of the Lutong refinery, the
testing and replacement of sea-lines had, of
course, been going on concurrently with
the resuscitation of the oil wells. There
remained a shortage of labour which at
times caused serious problems and the food
ituati 1 gh greatly imp 4 over
the previous years, stll left much to be
desired. There were transportation worries
and deliveries were still far from regular.

However, one major change to pre-war
days was the move of Shell’s exploration
and production headquarters from Miri to
Seria arising from the realisation that the
eld was a million barrel oil field and
the only one in North West Borneo. On the
nd, Miri Oilfield was declining and
that in spite of extensive exploration, no
new oilfields had been found in Sarawak.
The Refinery remained in Lutong as a
facility for both Miri and Seria.




Well No. 1. &

The first oil in
Sarawak was
struck here in

1910.

XII. THE GRAND OLD LADY OF MIRI

The Oil Well of Miri known as “The
Grand Old Lady" is situated on the top of
Canada Hill. The hill is a limestone ridge
overlooking Miri town and offering excellent
views of Miri town and the surrounding areas.
On 1.10.1972, the Miri Field was closed down.
Production of the Miri Field had never, of
course, returned 10 the preswar levels. It had
been obvious from the sharp drop in the
figures between 1929 and 1935, from five and a
half to two million barrels, that the reservoirs
were running down. In the postwar years only
once, in 1964, did production pass the 500,000
barrels mark. At the beginning of 1972, only

90 wells of 623 drilled during the history of the
field were still pumping. Production had fallen
0 450 barrels per day, and was dropping
rapidly. After 62 years of production, the oil
reserves in the Miri field were exhausted and
Sarawak Shell had no alternative but to close it
down. During the last month of operation, one
of the wells still creaking slowly up and down
was that same well that began the saga of Miri
Well No. 1.

The “Grand Old Lady” of Miri had had
a remarkable record over her 62 years of
life. She had operated almost nonstop from
22.12 1910, when she had first brought onto
production, until she was closed down in 1941
due to war action. During that time, she had
produced 563,484 barrels and was still
producing 10 barrels per day. Within the three
and a half years of Japanese occupation, Well
No. 1 worked for only 12 months during which
she produced 4,371 barrels. The well was
undamaged at the end of the war, and was
rehabilitated on 12.3.1947 with an initial
production of 9 barrels per day. At the close,
she was still managing to produce 3 barrels of
oil a day and when finally stopped, had
produced over 650,000 barrels of oil.

Miri No. 1's derrick involved herself in a
bush fire four months later. Fortunately, this
was extinguished in good time, for it was never
intended that the Grand Old Lady of Miri
should end her days in ignominy. Of all the
wells in Miri she alone had not been removed.
Soon she was to be restored to her old self
again and on 1.10.1973, after one year in
retirement, she was handed over to the
Sarawak Gt 10 be keptin p i




as an historical monument in the State. Now
the “Grand Old Lady” being the old rig in
Sarawak has become the symbol and landmark
of Miri,

XII MIRI DISTRICT AND PLACES OF
INTEREST

1) Miri in General

Miri Town is the Divisional
Headquarters of Miri Division since
1912. In the olden days, it was a small
fishing village but after oil was
discovered in 1910, Miri is well-
known as the Oil Town of Sarawak.
Miri town is sited at the mouth of
Miri River. The river has a shallow
bar which prevents all but small
coastal vessels from entering, and the
shallow coastal waters force large
ships to anchor about five kilometres
out to sea. General cargo is handled
by lighter and oil from the Lutong
refinery and storage tanks is loaded
through underwater pipes.

Miri District has an area of 4,707
square kilometres and had a
population of 173,313 based on 1991
Census. However, in 1999 according
to the Mid-Year Population Estimate,
Miri District had a population of
208,700. During the last few years,
there was a dramatic inerease in
population due to influx of job
seekers and contract workers from
other parts of the State.

Plantations and construction sectors
auract a lot of people from other

2)

divisions as apparent with the
increase of housing estates and
traffic flow in Miri Town.

Miri Development

Miri Town is rapidly expanding its
business as a commercial centre. Itis
located in North-East Sarawak close
to the Brunei border. In recent years
Miri has become a major tourist
gateway and the jumping-off point
for some of Sarawak’s world famous
National Parks such as Niah Cave,
Gunung Mulu and Lambir Hills.
Other  interesting  destinations
include  the Kelabit Highland, the
Headhunters’ Trail from Mulu o
Limbang and of course the ‘Grand
Old Lady" on the Canada Hill, Miri.

The town is fast becoming an
important tourism destination in
its own right, and plans are in hand
o wansform it into a resort city.
Construction has already started on
the new Miri Waterfront costing
RM200 million, and this will be
followed by a world<lass Marina.
Miri has four excellent luxury hotels
and more than 30 medium  class
hotels in all price categories, and
probably the best selection of food
outletsin Borneo. Combine this with
vibrant nightlife, bustling native
markets, traditional longhouse
culture and a number of popular
beaches nearby, Miri makes an ideal
base for exploring the National Parks
and a great place to relax for a few
days after the jungle trekking.




3) Places of interests around Miri

Toun

a) Hawaii Beach
Itis located at Kampung
Bakam, a 15 minute
drive from Miri. The
entrance is in the village
next to the bus stop, and
a wooden  footbridge
leads the visitors to the
palm-fringed beach,

b)  Tamu Muhibbah

The Tamu is a colourful native
market where a range of exotic
fruits and vegetables, handicrafts
and produce from upriver areas,
including fragrant “Bario Rice”

arc available on sale.

¢) Taman Selera

Itis a popular food centre and an
ideal spot for watching the sunset
on Brighton Beach. The beach
here is popular for joggers and Tai
Chi exponents in the momings.

d)  The Long Jetty

The jeuty is located on
peninsula across the Miri River.
Visitors can reach there by taking
a free ferry from Jalan Kubu. A
nice place for a swoll, and a
popular fishing spot. The whole
town seems to come out 1o watch

the sunset here.

335

4)  Places of interests beyond Miri Town
a) Lambir Hills National Park

It is one of the most accessible
parks by road and easily
cessible national parks in
Only 32 kilometres
it comprises of 6,952
hectares of sandstone  hills,
covered  with dipterocarp and
heath forest. Recent studies
suggest that Lambir Hills have
the greatest level of plant
biodiversity in the world! Besides
plant life, the forest is inhabited
by gibbons, tarsiers, flying
lizards, pangolins, wild boars
and various types of deer, as well
as 157 different species of birds.
Most of the wildlife is very shy,
although the calls of many
animals can be heard. Due toits
rugged terrain, Lambir Hills
with the highest peak rises 450

The famous
Lang Jetty at

"
Peninsula.
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metres above sea level are

also dotted with attractive

waterfalls, which are

their best afte

The P
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Gunung Mulu  National
Park-The  World's  9th
Wonder
The Park  which was
zetted as a National
1974 is one  of
most  spec
achievements  of  Sarawak’s
expanding network of natio
parks and it is accessible by river
and by air. Itis also the largest
national park, covering 52,866
hectares of prir nforest,
which is crisscrossed by fast
flowing rivers and clear jungle
streams. Mulu is dor ed by
three mountains - Gunung Mulu
(2,376 metres), Gunung Api
(1750 metres) and Gunung
Benarat (1,585 metres).  Yet
many of  Mulu's catest
atractions lie deep below the
surface. Hidden underneath
the forested slopes of these
ins is one of the largest
ms in the

mount.

limestone cave syst
world.

his system, a breath-taking
natural wonder, contains a

With the world’s largest cave
passage (Deer Cave), the world's
largest natural chamber (

Cave), it is not surprising that
Mulu is now world-famous. Over
200 kilometres of cave passages
have been surveyed but this is
thought to represent just 30-00%
of the actual total.

The oldest of Mulu's caves
started to form about 5 million
y o when sideways carth
movements  resulted in the
formation of both limestone and
sandstone mountains, lying side
by side. Millions of years of heavy
rain and the action of rivers and
running water carved out the vast
subterrancan system  that exists
today.

Royal Mulu
Resont.




Mulu.
National
Park

There are three adventure treks
and one show cave in Gunung
Mulu National Park.

The Pinnacles of Gunung Api

Located in a shallow valley 1,200
metres above sea level, the famous
Mulu Pinnacles consist of a series
of 45 metres high, razorsharp
limestone spikes that tower above
the surrounding vegetation, mid-

way up the slopes of Gunung Api.
The trek to view them is one of
the most popular routes in the
park but the Pinnacle Summit
Trek is a tough and challenging
one. The trail itself is very steep
(near vertical in parts) and
requires a certain level of fitness.

Gunung Mulu Summit Trek

The climb to the summit of
Gunung Mulu (2,376 metres) is
the toughest organised trek in the
park. It requires a high level of
fitness and a sense of adventure.
Indeed, Gunung Mulu has always
attracted adventurers. In the
19th Century, Mr. Spenser St John
and Dr. Charles Hose, attempted
to conquer Mount Mulu. They
and other explorers and
mountaineers failed. It was not
until the 1920's, when a Berawan
rhino hunter named Tama
Nilong discovered the ‘south-
west' ridge, that a way to the
summit was found. In 1932,
Tama  Nilong led Lord
Shackleton and an  Oxford
University Expedition to the
summit of Mulu.

The Headhunter's Trail

The Headhunter's Trail is a great
way of entering or leaving
Gunung Mulu National Park.
The trek is organised by travel
operators and combines upriver
travel, jungle trekking and an



The Statue
of Abraham
Lincoln at
the entrance
of Deer
Cave, Mulu

overnight  stay  at an  Iban
longhouse. The trail iself follows
the route taken by Kayan
headhunting parties who paddied
up the Mel River to the
Melinau Gorge. They then dragged
their longboats through the forest
for 3 kilometres until they reached
the banks of the Terikan Rive
where they launched headhuntiv

raids against the people of the
Limbang area.

Mulu Show Caves

Mulu’s four Show Caves were
selected for their uniqueness or
sheer beauty. They are accessible by
plankwalks and welllit concrete
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paths. Stuategically positioned spotlights
highlight the unique features of the
individual caves. A plankwalk leads
through the forest 1o Deer Cave and
Lang’s Cave whilst Clearwater Cave and
Wind Cave are reached by taking a
longboat up the Melinau R or by
following a 4 kilometre natural trail.

Deer Cave is reached by following a
three kilometre plankwalk.  There is
much to see on the way to the

e,
including some superb minforest,
jungle streams and an ancient Penan
burial cave.

Deer Cave is the largest cave passage in
the world. Ttis just over 2 kilometres in
length and never less than 90 metres
high and wide. The main chamber,
which is partially lit by sunlight, is 174

metres wide and 122 metres high. This
used o shelter
and, hence, the local Penan and
Berawan people named  the
Deer Cave.

is the area where de

A path leads into the cave and winds its
way around, following the natural
contours of the cave floor. Although the
path is i, a flashlight is uscful for
examining the guano-<overed
floor and its population of insects. The
path evenwally leads to the “Garden of

©

Eden” where a hole in the cave roof lets
ina shaft of light which allows  the rich
green vegetation to thrive. Another
feature is the famous profile of Abraham
Lincoln of USA. which guards the
southemn entrance of the cave.




Deer Cave is- the
home to many
species  of  bats.
Between 5 pm. to 7
pm, if the weather
is fine, visitors may
be weated 10 the
spectacular sight of a
black cloud  of free-
tailed bats emerging
from the entrance
of the cave

0 go
in search of food.
Originally, this cloud
was  thought 1o
contain hundreds of
thousands of bats
but a recent study suggests that
the figure is well over a million.

A visit to Deer Cave is usually
combined with one to Lang's
. whose entrance is a short
away from that of Deer
Cave. Lang's Cave, named after
the man who first introduced
spelcologists to the cave in 1978, is
the smallest of the show caves

worth seeing. These
the more auractive by
strategically positioned spotlights
which highlight stalactites and
stalagmites. As the cave is relatively
small and welHi
opportunities to see some of its
inhabitants such as bats, swiftlets
and even cavedwelling snakes.

offers good
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Niah Cave

Located within Niah National
Park containing an arca of 3,140
hectares, the Great Niah Cave is
no doubt that it is one of the
world's largest caves and it is
accessible by 107 kilometre road
from Miri. Its gaping mouth (the
West Mouth) is over 60 metres
high and ncarly 250 metres
wide, The West Mouth is the site
of some of the most important
archacological discoveries in
sutheast Asia. The site was first
investigated in 1 by Sarawak
Museum.  Excavations outside
the West Mouth revealed layers
of human artefacts (bone and
stone tools, cooking utensils and
omaments) reaching back to
the Palacolithic era. The most

Niah Cave,
Miri.



Niah Cavr,
Trail Ma.

sensational discovery, in carly
1958, was an intact human skull
estimated to be 40,000 years old.
This discovery was not readily
accepted by most  of the
scientific community, who felt
that Borneo was settled by
modern men  much  later.
However, recent discoveries in
Australia and modern dating
techniques  suggest  the
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discovery at Niah Cave was
right.  Just inside the West
Mouth, along the left hand
wall, is a site that has been
used as a cemetery  since the
carliest human settlements.
The types of burials range
from simple shallow graves to
sophisticated  ritual  burials
in coffins or urns with
accompanying grave goods
such as pottery, mats and

iles. These different types
suggest that the
cemetery was used from the
earliest Palacolithic era until
the bronze age. Isolated burial
sites have also been found
inside the cave. Because of
these valuable finds, the entire
cave system is now under the
protection of the Sarawak
Museum.

The plankwalk passes through
4 narrow passage to a second
large chamber, known as the
Padang, where shafts of sunlight
enter through fissures in the
cave  roof, giving a  tuly
spectacular - view.  After  the
Padang the cave narrows and
becomes pitch black, but with a
strong torch one can see many
interesting  rock  formations.
Afterashort walk the plankwalk
leads out into the open and on
to the Painted Cave.




Landmark of
Bekenu - Oil
Patm Fruit.

The Painted Cave also has an
important burial site (1o the
right of the entrance), but
from a much later era. Here,
the deads  were placed in
boatshaped coffins for the
journey into the afterlife. The
cemetery was probably used as
recently as 1000 A.D. The
remains and coffins have been
d to the safe custody of
arawak Museum, but the
paintings that give the cave its
name can stll be seen. The
paintings, made with red
hacmatite run in a long
narrow strip along the wall

341

d,

behind the fenced-off burial
area. They are quite faint.
They mostly depict boats filled
with hun figures, making
the hazardous journey to the
land of the deads.

Atsunset, two enormous black
clouds entering the great cave
and leaving the West Mouth.
Whilst 16 million bats are
heading out to feed in the
forest, illion swiftlets are
returning to their nests. A
truly unforgettable sight. Niah
ional Park was declared
as the jonal Park in
1974 although the caves
were  declared as a National
Historic Monument as long
as 1958.

Niah Site Museum

Niah Site Muscum which is
located at Pangkalan Lobang
was opened to members of
the public on 381.8.1998.
The museum displays all
the archacological heritages
uncarthed from the Niah
Caves, including a 40,000 year
old human skulls found at the
Western Mouth of the Great
Cave and a replica of the
Painted Cave where the only
red haematic rock paintings
in Borneo of at least 1,000
years old was found.



Bekenu New
Bazaar,

5)  Sibuti Sub-District

Sibuti is the subdistrict of Miri
District and based on 1991 census,
it had a population of 12,179.
Bekenu Bazaar is the sub<district
headquarters of Sibuti and it is 63
kilometres by road from
Miri. Bekenu Bazaar was
fistestablished by the
Chinese Chao Ann on
the oppasite bank of the
existing bazaar in 1895,
At first there was only
one Attap shophouse. By
1925, there were already
18 units of wooden/Attap
shophouses in Bekenu
Bazaar and Chung Hua
Primary School was built
in 1926 However, in 1933
the whole bazaar was
gutted by fire. A few

years later 25 units of wooden
shophouses were rebuilt at
the same  bazaar site. In
1945, Allied Forces came
and bombed Bekenu Bazaar
in order to chase away the
Japanese  invaders  who
occupied  the area  since
1941, Again  the whole
bazaar was burned to the
ground. In 1951, the Colonial
Government established
the present Bekenu Bazaar
at the existing site. Today
there are 66 doublestorey
concrete/semi concrete
shophouses and 16 three-
storey  uncompleted  concrete
shophouses in Bekenu. In view of
the fact that Sibuti area has
planted plenty of oil palms, the
symbol of Bekenu is the oil-palm
fruit.

Batu Niah
Bazaar.



Landmark of
Batu Niak-
Birds” Nest.

6

Niah-Suai Sub-district

Niah-Suai is another sub-district of Miri
District and based on 1991 census, it
29,

had a popula
Bazur is the headquarters of Niah-
Suai Subdistrict and it is about 112
kilometres by road from Miri
Bazaar was established by the Chinese
Chao Ann on the opposite bank of the
existing bazaar in 1890, At first there
were only 6 wooden shophouses on
stilt. In 1922, Chung Hua Primary
School was established in Niah. In
1989, the old wooden shophouses were
dismantled and moved over to the
existing Niah Bazaar site. Today there
are 18 units of doublestorey concrete
shophouses in Niah Bazaar.
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11 kilometres

away from Niah Bazaar is
another bigger bazaar known as Batu
Niah Bazaar and the bazar was
established after the Second World
War. At first, there was only a
shophouse but slowly itincreased to 4.
Up to 1978, there were 15 units of
doublestorey wooden shophouses but
aiter 1978, all the 15 units of wooden
shophouses were replaced by concrete
shophouses. Today there are 127 units
of doublestorey and 3storey concrete
shophouses in Batu Niah Bazaar. The
symbol of Niah-Suai Subdistrict is
the Bird-nests because Niah Cave
produces large quantity of birds’ nests.

XIV. BARAM DISTRICT (MARUDI)
1) Historical Background

Marudi Town is the administrative
headquarters of Baram District and it
is about 68 kilometres from Kuala
Baram. Based on 1991 Census, it had
apopulation of 71,286, the majority of
them are Orang Ulu (the Kayan, the
Kenyah, the Kelabit, the Penan, the
Berawan, the Kiput, the Sebop, the
Bisaya, the Seping and the Saban)
followed by Ibans, Chinese and
Malays. However, based on the Mid-
Year Population Estimate 1999,
Baram District had a population of
90,400. It has two sub-districts namely
Bakong and Long Lama in Ulu
Baram. Baram District has an area of
22,070 square kilometres and it is
therefore the biggest district in
Sarawak in term of area.



Aenial view
of Marudi |

Toum. [

Before 19.6.1882, Batang Baram was
partand parcel of Brunei Territory. In
1874, Kenyah and Kayan communities
stirred up Anti-Brunei Movement
because the Brunei authority imposed
heavy taxes on them. In the end, the
Brunei authority was being chased out
from Batang Baram and on 19.6.1882
the area was ceded to the Brooke
Regime of Sarawak. The first Resident
in the person of Mr. Claude de
Crespigny was sent over from the
Brooke Authority to administer Baram
area. Hence, the new administrative
centre for the Baram area was named

after the Resident and  called
“Claude Town™. Rows of wooden
shophouses with Atap roof were
built on 17.7.1882. The foundation
of Claude Town d on
19.7.1882. An administrative office
was established on a liwde hillop at
Claude Town in 1883. In 1901, Fort
Hose was built at Claude Town and it
was named after Dr. Charles Hose
who was the Resident of Baram in
1888, At that time Baram was a
dense jungle with rushing rivers and
high mountains with the scene of
fierce local tribal conflicts,




Civie Centre,
Maruds.

2) Administrative Centre moved to Miri

In 1910, oil was discovered in Miri
and, hence, the development in Miri
was faster than Claude Town. In
1912, the administrative centre of
the division was shifted to Miri. Why
did the name “Claude Town™ being
changed to “Marudi”. According to
a legend, upon the transfer of
administrative cenue from Claude
Town 0 Miri, people from
Miri always teased the
people especially the Ibans
around Claude Town in
Than language, “Malu Dek,
Kubu Claude Town udah
pindah ngagai Miri” which
means “Ashamed of you,
your fort (administrative
centre) has been moved o
Miri". As time passed, the
local people prefered to call
Claude Town as “Malu Dek”
and  slowly it was

pronounced as “Marudi” until
today. A small river known as
Sungai Marudi is flowing between
Marudi Town and Fort Hose.

3) Baram Regatta and Peace
Making

The first Baram Regatta was
organised in 1890. However, the.
most outstanding Regatta was
organised by Dr. Charles Hose
during his tenure as the Resident
of Baram from 6.4.1899 to
8.4.1899. It was held in
conjunction with the Baram Peace
ing Ceremony at Fort Hose in
which about 5,000 Kenyah, Kayan and
Madong people who agreed to end
their feuds and fighting against cach
other and, at the same time, o stay in
peace and be royal to the Brooke
Regime. The peace-making ended with
the smoking of cigarettes for good
fellowship and drinks of rice-wine

1899 Marudi
Peace
Making,



Baram

Regatta on
24.5.1997.

Fort Hose,
Marudi.

(Tuak). On 9.4.1899, the warriors
rewurned o their  respective
longhouses. Hence, the Regatta
competitive paddle boat racing was
hield once in two years so that all the
communities could mix together
peacefully undil today.
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4) Fort Hose

Fort Hose was declared as
a  historical  building on
16:4.1971 under on 14 of
the Antiquities Ordi
now replaced by the Sarawak
Cultural Hen Ordinance,
1993. The Fort was first built
in 1898 by Dr. Charles Hose as
a measure to control Anti-
Rajah Movement by the locals
in 1898 and it was completed
in 1901, It is situated atop a
strategic hill overlooking the
Baram River and there are two
cannons at its frontage. The
building was constructed of
Belian wood and most of the
an wood was donated by
habitants of the Baram
and its tributaries.

ice,

Since its completion until
1994, the fort was used as
the scat of administration
for the various government
departments including  the
District Office, Land and
Survey Department,
Information Department and
Welfare Office. Ttwas last used
by KEMAS as its office.

On 24.8.1994, Fort Hose was razed
by fire. In 1995, all the different
communities of the Baram District
conibuted a Belian pole for the
reconstruction of the historical




5)

monument. The Fort was
reconstructed according o its
original dimensions. It was
completed  and  declared
open on 25.5.1997 by the
Deputy  Chief Minister of
Sarawak, Y. B. Tan Sri Datuk
Amar  Alfred  Jabu ak
Numpang as the Baram
Regional Museum in Marudi
Town. This regional museum
is now exhibiting the history
of Baram, its economic
richness, tourism potential and
culwral diversity of the Baram
people in general.

There are two other forts
built in Ulu Baram. Lio Mat
Fort was built in 1911 but it
was further improved and
completed on 31.10.1969. The
other fort is Akah Fort which
was first built in 1929 but was
further renovated in 1996,

Loagan Bunut National Park

Tucked away on the upper
reaches of Sungai Bunut in
Baram District, is a huge lake, the
largest natural inland lake in Sarawak.
The local people call it Loagan Bunut
and it is located within Lemiting
Protected Forest. In 1991, an area of
10,736 hectares encompassing the 650
hectare lake was gazetted as a National
Park as part of the on-going cffort 0
preserve the unique habitats, rare
and valuable plants and  wildlife
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indigenous to the region. The lake is
dependent on the Sungai Bunut,
Sungai Tinjar and Sungai Baram
whose water levels are subject to
scasonal fluctuations and  this
accounts for the fluctuating levels of
the water in the lake. During dry
spells the lake is converted to vast
expanses of dry cracked mud.
Especially in May and June, the water




District

Office

Marudi,

level in the lake is low. This is the
time to witness and even to

participate in the  waditional
“Selambau™ method of fishing (the
local version of a lifinet), developed
and practised by the local Berawan.
Itis an exciting activity to harvest the
migrating fish during periods of
fuctuating water levels. It is also an
experience to kick off the shoes and
walk barefooted across the dry
cracked mud of the dried-up lake. In
April, 1999, the State Government
agreed to spend RMI2 million to
develop the first BIMP-EAGA eco-
tourism project in the park. The
projectincludes the 5.875 kilometres
of access road  from  Tinjar,
information centre, hostel chalets
and nature trails within the park. Itis
expected to be completed by April
2001, By then, visitors can drive from
Miri to the Park in 21/, hours.

6) Claude Town/Marudi Toun

As carly as 1882, a group of Chinese
Hokkien came from Kuching to
settle down in Baram for trading. At
first the locals did not like the
Chinese but slowly they welcomed
them. The locals sold jungle
produce such as ratan and Jelutong.
In return they bought clothings, salt
and tobacco from the Chinese
traders. In 1885, when the second
White Rajah, Charles Brooke
visited Claude Town, there were
already 45 Auap shophouses being
built there. Around 1888, there were
about 300 Chinese Hokkien and
Teochew putting up shophouses
in Claude Town. The Chinese
‘Tuapckong Temple was constructed
in 1890. In 1917, the temple was
further improved. In March, 1889,
there was a big fire which gutted
all the shophouses in Claude
Town. Within the same year, there
were 40 wooden shophouses being
rebuilt at the same site by the
Chinese shopkeepers. In 1891,
Baram wharf was constructec
Claude Town for casier loading
and unloading.

In 1905, rubber planting was
inoduced to Baram area by a Malay
leader, Dato Sharif Hamid from
Simanggang (Sri Aman). Asa result,
a school in Claude Town known as
SRK Dato Sharif Hamid was named
after him.




On 229.1918, the whole Marudi
Town was gutted by fire. 32 wooden
shophouses were burmed down and
the cost of damages estimated was in
the region of $300,000/- Within two
years and with the assistance from
the Brooke Government, 3 rows

of the shoph were erected

to build more new modern
shophouses in the extension arca.
A su was conducted in
October, 1998, it was discovered
that Marudi Town has a total of
170 shophouses. The details are as
follows:-

for business. In 1920, about 60| Type of shophouses

Chinese Foochow from Sibu
began to migrate to Marudi for
farming and rubber tappings.
In 1927, another group of
Chinese Foochow came direct
from China to Marudi. During
the second World War from
1941-1945, Baram also suffered

No. of units
i)  Twostorey wooden shophouse 22
ii) Twostorey concrete shophouse (e
iii) Threestorey concrete shophouse 66
iv) Fourstorey concrete shophouse 8

Total 170

the invasion of Japanese force,
but the damage was not as bad as the
other towns in Sarawak.

On 8.4.1946, Marudi Town suffered
the third big fire. The fire started
from a shop where a travelling
cinema’s film was gutted by fire. The
whole town was bumed down to
the ground. In 1950, concrete
shophouses were constructed  to
replace the wooden shophouses
which were gutted by the fire. The
fourth big fire occured on 17.7.1979
in which twe rows of 22 shophouses
in Marudi Town were burned down.
After the fourth big fire, the face of
Marudi Town was changing from
the status of rural centre to a moden
town in Baram. New concrete
shophouses were built either to
replace the bumed shophouses or
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Within the town, there are 4
mediumsized hotels and a number
of smaller hostels/lodging houses to
meet the requirement of the tourists
and visitors. There are four banking
agencies being established in the
town. There is one cinema called
Marudi Theatre but due to poor
business, the cinema was closed
down sometime in 1993 until woday.
A new Marudi Town Square costing
RM1 million was completed on
7.7.1998. It has become a local focal
point for family outings and other
social activities.

Today, Marudi Town is not only
the district headquarters of Baram
District, it is also a trading centre and
gateway to the world renowned
Gunung  Mulu  National  Park.



Tama Bulan Wang,

Marudi is now accessible by express
boats from Kuala Baram which takes
210 21/, hours and by air from Miri
which takes only 20 minutes.
Moreover, there are 4 other interior
arcas namely Long Lellang, Long
Seridan, Long Bangsa and Mulu are
accessible by air. Although Marudi is
notaccessible by road from Miri at the
moment, there are more than 500
vehicles in the town and the furthest
place by road is Lubok Nibong which
is 30 kilometres from Marudi Town.
The number of concrete shophouses,
banking facilities and hotels ha
increased in order to meet the
demands of the commercial and
tourist needs. New  government
offices, Federal Complex, RM+4
million Dewan Suarah to project the
culture of Orang Ulu and residential
are also built. The new District
ice Marudi was completed and
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Temenggong Datik Oyong Lawai
Jau.

Datuk foseph Balan Seling.

declared open on 17.7.1993 and the
new Council Market costing RM2.3
million was opened 0 members of
the public on 20.5.1995.

Baram Quistanding Leaders

The  outstz
Baram Distric

ding leaders from

i) Tama Bulan Wang, Kenyah
leader in the early 19th Century
ii) Temenggong Dawk Oyong

Lawai Jau, the Paramount
Chief of Orang Ulu in Baram in
the 1960s.

He passed away on
6.8.1974 at the age of 79. One
road in Marudi Town and
another road in Miri Town are
named after him.

iii) Datuk Joseph Balan Seling who
was the Council Negri Member
[elang Usan was the State




Minister of Works from 1987 1o
1991, He passed away in Miri
on 11111999 at the age of 55.

8) Long Lama Sub-district

Long Lama is a subdistrict
of Baram District and based
on 1991 Census, it has a
population of 45,452. Long
Lama is accessible both by road
and by river. The Bazaar is 153
kilometres from Miri and
75 kilometres from Bakong
through J.KR. road, Plantation
Road and Logging Road. The
journcy takes 4 hours by road
from Miri and it takes nearly 6 hours

Datuk Edward Jeli ak Belayang. Datuk Luhat Wan.

Minister for Local Government

from 9.9.1974 10 1984. He is by river from Miri through
now appointed as a Senator. Marudi. In 1905, a row of 5 wooden
shophouses  was  built at the

iv) Datuk Edward Jeli ak Belayang opposite bank of the present Long
who was the Council Negri Lama Bazaar, Due to soil erosion,
Member from Marudi was the the  shopkeepers  shifted the

State  Minister  for
Land Development
until 19.3.1987. A
road in Miri Town is
named after him.

v) Dawk Luhat Wan
who was the Member
of Parliament  of
Baram from 1969
until 1991. He was
the Federal Deputy
Minister of
Agriculture  from
1982 to 1987 and
Federal Deputy

Long Lama
Bazaar,




shophouses to the existing
Long lama Bazaar in
1927, By then, the
shophouses had increased
10 9 units. In 1945, the
Bazaar had increased 10 16
shophouses. Today, there
are 26 units of concrete
doublestorey shophouses
with 4 hotels along Jalan
Lee Kai Tai and Jalan
Layang Layang. A Council
Market in the Bazaar
together with the essential
agencies are  being
established to serve the people in the
area, There are some 40,000 hectares
of oil palm plantations planted by
Loagan Bunut Plantation, Bakong Oil
Palm Plantation and Rambungan
Hijau Oil Palm Plantations located
along Bakong/Long Lama Road and
Temala arcas. These plantations have
provided huge job opportunities and
business notonly to the locals but also
to the nearby areas.

government

Bakong  Sub-district (Beluru Sub-
district)

Bakong is another sub-district of
Baram District. Bakong Bazaar which
is 78 kilometres from Miri is accessible
by road from Miri. It takes about one
and half hours to wavel through part
of Binulu/Miri Road and Bakong
Road to reach the Bazaar. In fact, the
name “Bakong™ was one of the
indigenous races staying along a river
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called Bakong. In the
initially setded along
called Sungai Entibah.
they moved 10 a settlement called
Entulang along the same stream. After
many decades, they migrated over to
Beluru Bazaar where they still stay until
today. It was after they had setled
permanently in Beluru that they were
converted to Islam in the 19505,

arly days,they

From there,

Bakong Bazaar was established in 1930
by a group of Chinese Hokkien. On
411972, a big fire gutted all the 12
wooden shophouses in the Bazaar.
After 7 years, the existing Bakong
Bazaar was rebuilt. Today, there are
16 units of doublestorey concrete
shophouses, 18 units of hawker stalls
belonging o Persaian  Peniaga
Bumiputra Miri and one Council
Market in Bakong Bazaar. Based on
1991 Census, there are 10,465 people
staying in Bakong Sub-district.

Bakong
Bazaar,




Map of Miri Town

XV. MIRI TODAY

For the past twenty years, Miri town has
developed at a faster pace than Sibu. In actual
fact, Miri has over taken Sibu as far as the size of
the township is concerned and now it has
become the largest town in Sarawak and it still

panding its ercial and residential areas
towards Lopeng, Lutong Road, Riam Road,
Airport Road and Tanjung Lobang arcas.

Today, Petronas, the national oil
corporation and Shell Company are both
responsible for discovering, producing and
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refining oil in Sarawak. In 1985, Shell operated
about 110 structures offshore Sarawak and
Sabah with average daily production exceeding
200,000 barrels a day. The production was
almost half of Malaysia’s total oil production.

The RMI13.7 million Miri Indoor
Stadium is scheduled for completion in
1999. The stadium could be used for sports
and games as well as holding international
events such as conferences, exhibitions and
seminars. It can accommodate a seating
capacity of 4,000 people.




Brighton
Condominium
along Brighton
Road, Miri.

The world<class Miri City Fan Project
which is considered as Miri Municipal
Council's most  prestigions  project  was
completed in 1998, Covering an arca of 10
hectares and costing RM16 million, Phase 11 of
the project includes a 90 metre diameter
amphitheatre with a seating capacity of 5,000
people and 15,000 standing audience as well as
water fountains. The project will include a four
themed gardens namely Islamic, botanical,
formal and Chinese gardens. Phase 111 of the
project will include a muscum, a handicraft
centre and a libr When fully completed,
the RM36 million Fan project will be a
shining example of ination suetched

Town. Itwill be the only one of its kind so far
in having such a concept in Malaysia.

In view of the congestion in the town
centre, the government is building offices away
from the town. The construction and
completion of sixstorey Miri Inland Revenue
Board (IRB) office costing RM14 million at
BLD Garden along Miri-Pujut Road is a good
example.  Even Miri Port Authority (MPA) is
building its new office at Kuala Baram which is
30 kilometres from Miri Town. This again will
help to cease the waffic congestion in the town
centre and at the same time 1o encourage more
industries 10 be built at the 1,107 hectare-

to the limits to add function and beauty to Miri

industrial site near to the new Miri Port in Kuala




Chinese
Ganden at
City Fan
Square
Miri.

Judicial
Department,
Min.

mmplu nlmh commences its operation on
998 is strategically located within the

al park, deeper approach channels,
purpose-built berths and support facilitics for
all types of cargo. Eventually, the concept of a
onestop service centre is o be introduced at
Miri Port Authority at Kuala Baram.

Oil palm is mainly an estate
crop which is grown along
Miri/Bintulu Road. The large
scale oil palm plantations are
LKTS, Sarawak Oil Palm Sdn.
Bhd., BHD Sdn. Bhd., Saremas,
BLD, BINU and RH tation
Sdn. Bhd. These companies have
planted more than 220,260
hectares of oil palm up to 1997
The arcas planted by the small
holders among the longhouses
and Kampungs are 3,000 hectares
up to 1997. There are 4 oil palm
mills being established along
Miri/Bintulu Road.

In recent years, the basic public
amenities of Miri have been greatly
improved. The road system
especially along Miri Airport Road,
Miri Lutong Road and the major
town roads have been greatly

improved to  cease  traffic
congestion in the town. New

General Hospital, Civic Centre
costing RM7.6 million, multistorey
carpark and other government
buildings are constructed one after
another and are now in full
operation. Today Miri Town has
the largest number of luxurious and medium
class hotels in Sarawak. It also has the biggest
number of supermarkets for a town of its size.
The Boulevard shopping complex is simply
lmgr~ [k-suks. mulu‘smrcy hou‘l‘. shoppmg
] arcas
are h-.mg builtand ulmumly all these buildings
are changing Miri’s skyline and enhance its




Miri Town
towards
Canada

Hill

image as a resort city in fumire.  The tallest
building is the completion of Yu Lan Plaza
soaring some 24storey high. On 18.12.1985,
Miri new airport terminal costing RM12 million
began operation.  On 4.7.1988 Miri new
modern airport was completed to ease the
heavy air communication in the northern
region of Sarawak, The Brighton, the first
luxury beachside condominium is the latest
addition 10 Miri's skyscrapers. With exclusivity
in mind, Brighton promises an elegant and
luxurious feeling in Miri Town. On 5.8.1999
the Prime Minister of Malaysia, YAB Dato’ Seri
Dr. Mahathir Muhamad of ly launched the
New lu\mslup. Tudan,
Mu The new township will ha
low and medium lowcost houses by December
2000. By the year 2020, some 17,000 premises
will be set up in the Permy Jaya New Township

3,000 units of

to cater the need of some 80,000 residents in
the fast growing Miri Town.

XVI. FUTURE MIRI AS A RESORT CITY

Under the able and effective leadership
of the Chief Minister of Sarawak, YAB Datuk
Patinggi Tan Sri (Dr.) H: iji Abdul Taib
Mahmud, the future of Miri to become «
healthy Resort City will become a reality. By the
year 200; new Mini will arise, born of the
n of a locally born great man who looked
beyond the town's oil rigs and sand bars. The
booming Miri Town is greatly honoured 1o be
rhmcn as lh(' venue for lhr second university

Cur Im bm\rm

Tcmporuju Campus was
. On 14.10.1999, the
Federal Minister for Education, Dato Sri




costing
RM7.6
million was
declared

open on
20. 6. 1988.

bin Tun Abdul Razak, laid the foundation stone
for Curtin University Permanent Campus on
the 1,000 acres of land provided by the State
Government of Sarawak near Desa Senadin at
Lutong. Itis expected upon full completion of
the campus by 2002, this Australian prestigious
univensity could cater 10,000 students to pursue
their university education at home and,
morcover it would boost up the image of Miri as
a Resort City by the year 2005.

A group of farsighted and dedicated city
planners and architects are claiming the land
won from Sungai Miri and sca along the
scafront. The proposed development of the
RM300 million Miri Waterfront will be another
great bonus towards healthy living to Mirians
and visitors alike. A new town 1o be known as
Marina Park will emerge from the 200 hectare
business district. It will consolidate all
commercial, residential, reational and
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cultural developments into one vibrant centre.
In its overall plans, all land and sea traffic will
be streamlined, The new seafront protected by
landscaped sea walls will be dedicated to the
public for recreational purposes. Among the
enchancing features are the outdoor shopping
cafes, predestrian walks and malls, water
fountains and a can: The most popular
attractions are a river walkway with stone
bridges, scattered  hotels, shops and
entertainment outlets. Another attraction is a
breakwater serving as a vantage and gathering
point for fishing and relaxing.

Canda Hill or more popularly known as
Canada Hill will be the setting for a low-density
hilltop urban extension project. The hill will
continue to be the Mini's landmark of histori
significance.  The historical hill will also be
the gateway to the hinterland where a new
township, known as Eastwood Valley will be




built on the Garden City concept on the site
containing 1,400 hectares of flat land. Two 18-
hole golf courses will be built nearby and the
result is a recreational paradise for the local
residents of Miri Resort City.

The cons tion of Batang Baram
Bridge costing RM100 million will be
completed in the year 2001/2002. The
propased bridge which is 1,026 metres long
will be the first cable bridge in Sarawak. Upon
completion, it makes yet another important
milestone in the dm-lupmcn( in the northern
region of Sarawak and it will act as a catalyst to
spur the economic growth of Miri. Morcover,
the Baram Bridge will improve the links
between Brunci and Sarawak in trade and in
terms of visitors,

With all the wemendous progress and
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speedy development which are taking place in
the Miri booming town, itis very difficult not to
associate with the local hardworking leader in
the person of Deputy Chief Minister and
Minister for Finance and Public Uilitics, Y:B.
Datuk Amar Dr: George Chan Hong Nam and
hardworking team. Miri's population at
208,700 in 1999 is expected 10 grow up 10
300,000 by the year 2005. This is possible
because the growing economic opportunities
with increasing activities in the oil and timber
industries as well as commercial and tourism
scctors. For the past 10 years, this has proven
o be magnetic, both for lhc Mirians and its
huge hunuhml .|lung the Baram River and

build on this legacy of tod Miri \\1l| be
realised if all sectors work for it and by the year
2005, a new ultrmodern resort city will
become a reality and will be born in Sarawak.




CHAPTER 13

LIMBANG DIVISION

Map of Limbang Division




Limbang - The Town of Buffaloes

L. INTRODUCTION

Limbang Division, the Fifth Division of
Sarawak, has an area of 7,790 square kilometres
and based on 1991 census, it had a population
of 63,236. The majority communities are the
Malays, Kedayans, Lun Bawangs (Muruts)
Chinese  and  Bisayas, The  minority
communities include Tagals, Ibans, Bidayuhs,
Punans, Tabuns, Kelabits and Melanaus.
However, based on the MidYear Population
Estimate 1999, the population of Limbang
Division had increased up to 78,400,

Lun Bawangs are mostly found in the
highlands such as Ba’Kelalan, Long Semadoh
and Trusan whereas Bisaya are mostly staying in
Baw Danau. The Malay and  Kedayan
communities prefer to stay at Kuala Lawas,
Sundar, Sungai Limbang and around the towns
and urban areas. The Kedayans were the

Merapok and Long Tengoa whereas Punan
group themselves in Long Napir and Sungai
Adang areas. The diverse races have given rise
to @ harmonious mixture of different cultures
and faiths, reflecting Sarawakians’ cultural and
religious tolerance.

This Division is situated in northern
region sharing borders with Negara Brunei
Darussalam, Sabah and Kalimantan Indonesia
with close proximity to Federal Territory
Labuan. Both Limbang and Lawas are
accessible by air, land and rivers. Limbang is
the home of the pioneers of hill logging in
Sarawak. Numerous birds' nests caves can be
found in Merapok and Upper Lawas,

Limbang Division has two districts and
three sub-districts namely:-

original inhabi f Sungai

Kedayan in - Brunci  but . 2 P
migrated over to Limbang, District Sub-District Population in 1991
The dban comounlty. & | 5y oipanenivuier 1) Nanga Medamit 33,845
centred in Medamit area

whereas the Chinese are | 9) Lawas District 1) Trusan 29,391

staying in towns and bazaars.
As regard w  Tagal, a
distinctive Sabahan people
mostly staying in  Ulu

2) Sundar

Total:




There are altogether 2 towns and 10

bazaars in the division:-

1) Limbang Town

2) Lawas Town

3) Nanga Medamit Bazaar
4) Danau Bazaar

5) Punang Bazaar

6) Trusan Bazaar

7)  Awat-Awat Bazaar

8) Sundar Bazaar

9) Kuala Lawas Bazaar

10) Ba'kclalan Bazaar
11) Merapok Bazaar
12) Ukong Bazaar

ORIGIN OF THE NAME OF
LIMBANG

In the olden days, Pangkalan Terap

which was situated at the existing site of Police
Station Limbang was the old name of Limbang
Town. Slowly the name “Limbang” was used 1o
refer both for the river and the village.
However, there are three versions as 10 how
Limbang was being called in those days.

(1) Version One
In the olden days, Bukit Mas which
is situated behind the present
Limbang Town was supposed to
have some deposits of gold ore.
That is why the mountain is called
Bukit Mas (or Gold Mountain)
until today. People in those days
did go and pan the metal ores
supposed to be the gold ores. As
years gone by whoever went to pan

)

metal ores around Bukit Mas area
simply - said “Limbang”, “Limbang”
or "Melimbang™ in Bahasa Mclayu
means “panning gold™. Slowly, the
place was known as “Limbang” until
today.

Recently an enquiry was made to
Encik Alexander Unya, the Director
of Geological Surveys Sarawak, who
confirmed that there is no gold ore
deposit around Bukit Mas area in
Limbang. However, he believed that
the substance which in the olden
days people panned in the arca
might look like gold ores but actually
it was pyrites. Pyrites is a kind of
yellow mineral which contains
copper, tin and iron. Itis in fact a
classic Fool's Gold.

Version Two

In the olden days and even today,
Limbang produces tonnes of rice
not only for local consumption but
also for export to the nearby areas.
Hence, everyday people brought
their rice and washed along the river
bank. In the old Malay term,
washing rice is also “Limbang”.

A check at the Kamus Dewan (3rd
Edition) of Dewan Bahasa dan
Pustaka, Kuala Lumpur 1997
confirms  that “Limbang” or
“Melimbang™ means panning gold
or tin as well as washing rice.



(3) Version Three

Mr. Alastair Morrison,
the  Colonial  District
Officer  of Lawas in
19505 commented
Limbang River was a
splendid  stream.  He
wrote in the article  “In
Days Gone By” published
in Sarawak Gazette No.
1484 of 2nd Quarter
issue, July 1983 that the
old Murut name for
Limbang River is Fa
Brunei  but  whether
Brunei gave its name to the river or
the river gave S
name is not clear. However, he said,
“The very first Sultan of Brunei was
said to be a Murut Chief who was
converted to Islun”, He was Awang
Alak Betatar who changed his name
1o Sulan Muhammad.

1II.  HISTORICAL BACKGROUND

Limbang seemed 10 have been reached by
Hinduism and Buddhism long before Islun was
introduced to Borneo in the 15th Century. This
was evidence with the discovery of a statue of the
Hindu elephantheaded god. the G:
levelling the site for the construction of the
Residency in Limbang in 1921, It was possible
that the statue was part of the temple of
the same time, Batu Nisan or Tombstone was
albso found at the site of the Residency: Hence,
this is an evidence of the spread of Islam to
Limbang in the carly years as well.

Archieves

The  Sar: Muscum
showed that Limbang Divisi vas originally
part and parcel of the Malay Sulanate of
arly as the 15th Century. It was
also the core administrative centre of the
Brunei Sultanate. Ancient tales also related
that one Awang the brother of the
warrior Awang Samaun founded a kingdom
at Mount Berayong in Lawas.  Another
legend said that Awang Alak Betatar built a
ace in Sundar, a seulement at Trusan
River in Lawas.  Before 1800, there was no
human setement activities in Limbang and
Lawas. Perhaps only groups of Punan tribe
moved from place to place looking for food.
Sometimes, hunters from other tribes
ventured into the forest to look for wild
animals. It only during the reign of
Sultan Abdul Mumin of Brunei (1852-1885)
that many Malays and other communities
started to migrate to Limbang and Lawas
E for padi farming.

Limbang
Town in
19505,




29-foat
Goddess of
Mercy
Statue at
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Buddhist
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Pandaruan
Bukit Mas

Limbang was part of Brunei before
7.3.1890 and, at that time, it was a small
village ruled by Sultan Abdul Mumin.
Limbang was famous for its fertile soil and its
large export of padi and sago. Owing to its
importance, several groups including Rajah
Charles Brooke of Sarawak and the British
North Borneo Company tried to take over
Limbang.

In August, 1884 Pengiran Temenggong
of Brunei sent his representatives to Limbang
o collect revenue. However, due to
unforescen circumstances, the Limbang
people resisted the payment of revenue and
they even killed both the representatives. As
a result of the killing incident, in September
1884, Sultan Abdul Mumin instructed

Pengiran Temenggong to attack Limbang in
order to punish the guilty ones.

Until October 1884 the relationship of
Brunei and Limbang was strained and this
situation was exaggerated by Rajah Charles
Brooke as an excuse to annex Limbang into
Sarawak Territory. From 1884 to 1885, one
Anti-Brunei Movement was staged by the
people in Limbang Valley who preferred the
Brooke’s Rule rather than the Brunci's
Regime. In December 1884, some traders
from Sarawak were killed by a Murut at
Trusan River. Rajah Charles Brooke used the
killing as an excuse to seck indemnity from
Brunei. Pengiran Temenggong refused and
because of this, the Brooke Government
compelled Brunei to lease Trusan District to
Sarawak at $4,500/- per annum. In the end,
Rajah Charles Brooke succeeded in taking
over Trusan on 3.1.1885. After that, Sultan
Abdul Mumin passed away and Pengiran
Temenggong was crowned as the Sultan with
the title Sultan Hashim Tablud Alam.

On 17.9.1888 Brunei agreed to allow its
foreign affairs to be administered by the British
Government. On 17.3.1890 upon the request
of the local people of Limbang that Limbang
10 be under the rule of Sarawak, Rajah Charles
Brooke with an armed force hoisted the
Sarawak Flag there. The B‘m)n community
played an important part in the history of
Sarawak. It was a Bisaya who killed Pengiran
Makhota during one of his concubine-
collecting tours. It was also a Bisaya who
hoisted the Sarawak Flag and secured for the
White Rajah, Sir Charles Brooke the
annexation of Limbang in 1890,




Although the British Government did
not fully agree with the Brooke's action, they
allowed him to take over Limbang provided
that he paid a reasonable indemnity, Rajah
Charles Brooke agreed to pay $6,000 per year
to the Brunei authority.

On 5.1.1905, the Lawas River area
which was formerly leased to the British
North Borneo Company by Brunei was
annexed to Sarawak with the consent of the
British Government. On 13.2.1912, the 5th
Division or Limbang Division was formed,
Hence, the present size of Sarawak became
ity with effect from 5.1.1905 uniil

a e
today.

IV. OUTBREAK OF
DISEASES IN 1904-1905

Limbang Division was once ravaged by
outbreaks of tropical discases. In bewween
1904 and 1905, smallpox swept through the
arca, killing thousands of people, mostly
Lun Bawang. It was estimated that two-
thirds of Lun Bawang population in the
region died from the epidemic discase. For
rs, trained medical workers were
and in 1913 the only modermn
medical service lable was from a
government dresser who visited Lawas once
amonth. Only in 1931 there was a medical
dispensary built at Lawas and then in 1941
another built at Sundar. During the
Japanese Era (1941-1945) medical services
were virtually non-existent. Health ¢ 1
improved since Limbang was
liberated from the Japanese on 18.6.1945,
although in 1969 cases of smallpox were
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reported. Today, however, the people of
Limbang enjoy excellent health care. A
general hospital was built in Limbang Town
on 18.8.1961 and the clinics are centrally
located in most towns and villages manned
by junior hospital assistants and midwives.
Maternal and child care programmes are
casil; lable. However, due to the increase
new Divisional Hospital was
built along Jalan Pandaruan in 1980s to
replace the one built in 1961,

V. ECONOMY AND SOCIAL
DEVELOPMENT OF LIMBANG

Economically, padi production was a
major activity in the area even before the
arrival of the White Rajah James Brooke. At
the river plains, the rich alluvial soil is highly
conducive to the growth of padi Coupled
with the traditional padi planting skill of the
people in wet rice cultivation and in that of
hill padi in the highland, Limbang has
produced many bountiful harvests. Based on
the report from Agriculture Department in
Limbang, there were 1,430 hectares of wet
padi land and 2,100 hectares of hill padi land
in the division. In 1995/1996 harvesting
scason, Limbang Division 1 harvested
2,690 metric nnes of wet padi and 1,520
metric tonnes of hill padi. The people grow
more padi than they need and, hence, rice is
exported o other parts of Sarawak and even
to Brunei and Sabah for sale. Buffaloes are
commonly used to prepare the padi fields and
this animal also provides meat for the people
in Limbang. Based on statistics supplied by
Divisional Agriculture Office, Limbang, there
were 10,015 buffaloes in Limbang Division in




1997, of which 6,038 were found in
Limbang District whereas 3,977
were reared in Lawas District.
Because there are numerous
buffaloes in the division, Limbang
is therefore commonly known as
the “Land of the Buffaloes™.

Rubber was inuoduced o
the region before 1900 from
Malaya. For many however,
itwas grown only on a small scale.
In 1910 the planttion or estate
system began to establish butitwas
during the period of the Korean
War (1950-1953) that the price of
rubber boomed and many people switched
over to rubber as a cash crop.

Timber, however, remains the Division's
most valuable product. As early as 1901 it had
been a commercially visible proposition and
small quantities near the coastal areas had
been worked. The first large undertakings
began after 1920 when the Vamco Timber
Company began its operation and exported
the timber logs overscas.

In recent years, to insulate the economy
from dependence on only one or two products
and the vagaries of the world market, the
growing of other cash crops such as oil palm
and cocoa have also been encouraged. There
are also coconut plantations, cattle rearing and
freshwater fish farms. In 1998, Uta Hoe Sdn.
Bhd. with the co-operation of 5 longhouses at
Merutup, Ulu Kubong had planted 5,000
hectares of oil palms in the area.
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Limbang District Council was the first
council ever set up by the British Colonial
Government in 1948, It was also the first multi-
racial district. council in Sarawak upon the
enactment of the Local Authority Ordinance
in 1948, Itwas then known as "Limbang Mixed
Local Authority” and its first Chairman was TK.
Mulok bin Lampong. On 13.10,1998, Limbang
District Council celebrated its 50th anniversary
and YAB Ketua Menteri Sarawak, Datuk
Patinggi Tan Sri (Dr) Haji Abdul Taib
Mahmud delivered his keynote address at the
historic occasion in Limbang.

In the years since the formation of
Malaysia, Limbang has seen rapid social
development. This has been very obvious in
the fields of education, medical and health
services.  Educational services were limited at
first from the early 1900s to 1938 and the only
formal education available were the primary
schools started by the Chinese community.

Buffalo - the
Landmark of
Limbang.



Later on, Sckolah Rakyat was established in
Lawas town. Since then, the development of
cducation in Lawas has been steady and
primary education is available to all populated
areas. In 1963, Limbang Secondary School was
established and in 1970s, Lawas Secondary
School was built to admit secondary students,
Today, there are 4 secondary schools in
Limbang District and 3 secondary schools in
Lawas District. On 17.4.1971 people in
Limbang could receive radio broadcasting
programmes when the RM2.5 million Limbang
Broadcasting Station was in operation.

For a long time the only means of
transport in Limbang was on foot or by river.
Fortunately, it has been provided with four very
useful rivers, namely the Limbang River and
Pandaruan River which serve Limbang District
nd Lawas River
which serve Lawas District. The rivers are not
only a medium for the local people to get
around but have contributed significantly to
the economic development of the region.
Heavy and bulky products such as timber, rice
and bales of rubber are exported from
Limbang to the rest of the world. The
government has recognised the importance of
waterwiys in - the Division and continually
secking to improve their conditions.

VI. CHINESE COMMUNITY IN
LIMBANG
In 1887, Chinese Hokkien migrated
from Kuching and settled down in Limbang.

At first, they built Awap shophouses at
Pangkalan Terap (the present site of
Limbang Town) along Limbang River for
general trading with the local people there.
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Almost at the same time, they built an Auap
Chinese Temple for them to worship and o
seck spiritual protection in the new land. In
1890, a new Belian Chinese Temple was built at
the side of the old Limbang Hospital along
Kubong Road. In 1940s, Auap shophouses
were slowly replaced by wooden shophouses.

In 1964, when Sarawak Government
required the land of the Chinese Temple at
Kubong Road for development purpose, the
presentsite of the Chinese Temple was offered
for exchange. In 1977, with the assistance of
the then Deputy Chief Minister of Saraws
Tan Sri Datuk Amar Sim Kheng Hong and
Council Negri Member for Limbang Datuk
Amar James Wong, a new traditional concrete
Chin Temple  costing  more  than
RM165,000/- was constructed.  In August,
1978, it was completed and declared open on
10.9.1978.

Limbang € e Primary School was
first_established in a shophouse at No. 13,
Limbang Bazaar in 1918, According to Mr.
Lim Swee Seng, the Chainnan of the Chinese
School Management Commitice Limbang,
there were only 18 students and one teacher
when the school was first opened. In 1938, a
new school building consisting 2 classrooms
was built on 2 acres of land near Bukit Mas,
During the Japanese Occupation from 1941-
1945, the school was used by the Japanese to
teach Japanese language to the locals. From
1947 until 1987, the school building was
enlarged and extended on 5 occasions due to
the increase of students. Today, there are three
blocks of concrete buildings built along Jalan
Pandanian with nearly a thousand students
studying in this Chinese Primary School.




Duc to the ision of
Limbang Town, more tradings
around the area and more land - was
opened up for agricultural purposes,
nd more Chinese especially
Hokkien, Hakka,
ochew, Cantonese and

Hainam,
Foochow were migrating from other
parts of Sarawak to Limbang. On
1.6.1964, Limbang Town suffered a
great loss. Nine Chinese shophouses
in the town were gutted by fire and
11 people died due to the fire,
Within a few years, the nine concrete
shophouses were rebuilt by the
Chinese shopkeepers.

VIL. NANGA MEDAMIT SUB-
DISTRICT

Nanga Medamits the only sub-
district in Limbang District and based
on 1991 Census, it had a population
of 6.856 of which the majority are the
Ibans, followed by the Bisaya, Kelabit
and Chinese. The Ibans, most of
them migrated from Simanggang
(Sri Aman) and Lubok Antu, were
invited by Si arles Brooke to plant
coffec in Pandaruan and Ulu
Limbang areas. Though a sub-
district, it covers two-third of Limbang District
and it embraces the whole of Upper Limbang
and Ukong. Nanga Medamit Bazaar has six
wooden shophouses and itis situated on a small
hill along Limbang River. The Bazaar is linked
by a 42 kilometre road to Limbang Town, but
the road which is half tarsealed and half-gravel
road can reach the opposite bank of Nanga
Medamit Bazaar only.
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Nanga Medamit Bazaar which was
established sometime in 1950s serves as the
trading and administrative centre of Ulu
Limbang. Although the Bazaar has six
shophouses, only two shops are opened for
business. The rest of the shops are closed down
because the majority of the population are now
staying along the road at the opposite bank
where temporary hawker stalls are numerous.

District
Office,
Nanga
Medamit,



Limbang
Memorial
along
Jalan
Kubong,

The Sub-district which was established in

VIIL. BRUNEI REBELLION

In 1962, Limbang had its share of the
international limelight when Limbang or
Brunei Uprising brought its political and
strategic fame in Sarawak. On 8.12.1962, a
revolt involving some 2,000 rebels broke out in
i, headed by AM. Azahari and his
Peopl Party who deadly against the
formation of Malaysia.  He found support in
some arcas in Limbang and his force managed
to scize Limbang Town. In Limbang, the
rebellion was headed by a Sarawakian Kedayan
known as Salleh bin Kardin but he was killed by
the British roop. Another rebellion leader was
Haji Sallch bin Haji Sambas who was caught
and imprisioned for quite sometime by
Sarawak Government. Now he is the Penghulu
of Kampung Pahlawan in Limbang. However,
with little support from the local people and
prompt action by the 5000 British toops
airlifted  from  Singapore, the  British

1964 has the basic government facilities such as
the District Office, Dispensary, Agriculture
Department, Postal Service and
Police Station. Besides, there are
primary schools and a secondary
government school established in
1978, However, the new District
Office, new Agriculture Office and
quite & number of government
quarters have been built over the
opposite bank of the Bazaar.
Hence, itis a matter of time when
will the last 2 shophouses be
closed down and the new Nanga
Medamit Bazaar is to be built
across the Limbang River,

Town and

c recaptured Limbang
other arcas from the A

Police
Station,
Limbang.




Azahari's men retreated towards the
Indonesian border and those who
were caught and sentenced to
imprisonment in Limbang were
released before Malaysia Day on
16.9.1963.

Although the rebellion was over,
nine brave men from Sarawak
Constabulary and Royal Marine who
defended our counuy against AM.
Azahari’s force were killed in the
gallant performance of their duty. The
list of names of the officers is
appended below:-

Sarawak Constabulary
1) 652 CPL Kim Huat
2) 809 PC Bujang bin Mohamed
3) PC Insoll ak Chundang
4) PC Wan Jamluddin bin
Tuanku Alek who were killed in
action on 8.12.1962

42 Commando Royal Marines
1) CH/X 4748 Sgu. WG.

2)  RM 16883 Marine R.D. Formoy

3)  RM 16941 Marine Gerald Kier

4) 33 Marine Richard

5)  RM 21017 Marine Powell who
were killed in action on 12.12.1962

A monument in honour of all the nine
heroes who died in the defence of our country
against Brunei Rebellion was erected in front of
the Police Station, Limbang along Jalan Kubong,
The monument, which is known as the Limbang
Memorial, was unveiled by the British Colonial
Governor, Sir Alexander Waddell on 3.8.1963,

IX. LIMBANG REGIONAL MUSEUM

Limbang Regional Museum, the two-
storey wooden building at Jalan Kubong along
the bank of Limbang River, serves as a window
into the history of Limbang Division. In actual
fact, the present building is the replica of a fort
built in 1897 during the reign of second White
Rajah, Sir Charles Brooke, The original old fort

Limbang
Regional

Museum.

old

Cannon
at the
Limbang
Regional

Museum.



was built 1o guard the area against
insurgent natives in the olden days.
It was rebuilt in 1952 and in 1966,
the old fort was renovated.

After the Second World War,
the building wa ally used as the
Resident and District Office. Several
other government departments also
made use of this building before it
was gutted by fire in 1989,

Asithad already been declared
as a historical monument in 1988,
the building was rebuilt on the exact
site, in accordance with the original
architectural design in 1991, It was
declared open as the Regiona
Muscum for Limbang on 27.8.1994
by the then Minister of Social
Development, Dato Haji Adenan
Haji Satem.

The museum gives a grasp of
the history of Limbang and how it
wats ceded to Rajah Charles Brooke
by the Brunei Sultan:
account of its people and their
respective cultures is also avails
Handicraft, costumes and musical
instruments of the respective cthnic
groups are displayed on the upper floor of  the
building.  Books written on the Bisaya, a
predominant ethnic group here and the Lun
Bawang are also displayed.  Books written by
State Assemblyman for Limbang, Datuk Amar
James Wong Kim Min, are among the collected
items in the museum. In 1996, it had a total of
555 visitors followed by 4,179 in 1997, The
visitors were mostly students and tourists.

LAWAS DISTRICT
1) Historical Background

Lawas Town is the administrative
headquarters of Lawas District.
Based on 1991 Census, it had a
population of 20,391 with 7,000
In

residing in the town are
1999, according 1o the Mid-Ye

Lawas Tion
along Lawas
Riverbank.

Lawas Old
Toren.




Population Estimate, the populati
of Lawas District had increased up to
b, It has two sub-districts

Sundar and Trusan.  The
was District is 3,812 square
kilometres. Lawas is a bustling
frontier town with a predominately

agrarian-based economy.

Originally, Lawas was part of
Brunei but the Sultan of Brunci
leased it to the British North
Borneo Company. It was only on
5.1.1905, the Lawas River arca was
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annexed to Sarawak from British
North Borneo Company with
the consent from the British
Government.

How did the name of Lawas derived.

La n Bahasa Malaysia means
“Luas”, is a spacious and wide area.
In the olden days, people in the
area grouped themselves together
in the spacious area to settle down
there and, hence, a township was
born,

An aerial
view of
Lawas in
1993.



Kuala
Lawas
shophauses

However, there is another legend.
Long time ago, a group of merchants
acked and chased after by the
ites at Kuala Lawas. They escaped
and retreated to the present site of
Lawas Town. At that time, the are
was still thick jungle and they
managed 10 hide themselves there,
The pirates could not find them and
they returned 1o the sea. The
merchants felt relief, safe and secure,
In local Malay dialect, it was called
safe and secure) until

3) Lawas Inhabitants
The original inhabitants were the Lun
Bawangs (Muruts) and some Bisayas
staying in the downsiver. The Lun
Bawangs who are reserved hill people
are now largely c
to the upper reaches of the rivers,
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Downriver to Kuala Lawas live
mainly the Malays and Kedayans
with a few Tagals originally from
Sabah in the Merapok Valley.
Ba'Kelalan and Long Semadoh
are populated by Lun Bawangs
who cultivate rice on an
extensive  scale.  Generally,
Chinese populace dominates
the town and the bazaars as most
of them are shopkeepers and
traders. In 1905, there were
about 100 Chinese Hokkien in
Lawas. By 1941, the Chinese
population increased to 800.
From 1957-1960, more Chinese
especially the Foochow from Sibu and
Brunei migrated to Lawas.

Agriculture Produce

For the past few years, the Department
of Agriculture  had assisted  the
establishment of smoked fish industry
at Kampung Punang, a cottage and
handicraft making industry Lun
Bawang village called Kampung Tang
Itong and Lun Bawang Beadwork
industry at Kampung Long Tuma.
The implementation of the cottage
industries are aimed 1o rise the
living standard of the rural people and
to preserve the traditional stic
heritage of the Lun Bawang by
incorporting  modern  functional
features 1o the products. In 1991,
swamp Buffaloes were bred at the
ang Buffalo Swation. In 1998
the station had 153 heads of buffaloes
which had been redistributed within




the district. Since 1991, the station has
bred almost 400 buffaloes in its 1,210
acres of land. Private companies have
started oil palm plantations  with an
area of 13,000 hectares in Merapok and
Sundar areas in Lawas District.

A total of 208 hectares of land in Lawas
were planted with sweet coms in 1997.
Ba'kelalan apple is also very famous.
In the 19805, the Department of
Agriculture started its apple growing
project in Ba'kelalan. The apple
saplings were from Indonesia where the
experiment of growing apples had
been successful. Soon the local farmers
began o tapples in their orchards.
In term of the harvest, the original plot
currently produces about 10,000 apples
per harvest, three times a year
However, according o Mr. Joseph Wi
the former Assistant Director  of
Agriculture Limbang Division, the cost
per apple is in the region from RM2.00
to RM3.00. This is due to high cost
of transportation from Ba'kelalan to
Limbang. When compared  with
imported apple which is less than
RML.00 per apple, Ba'kelalan apple is
expensive. The introduction of
ting in Long Semadoh
which is 800 metres above the sea-level
is also quite successful. Large quantity
of cabbage is wansported to Lawas,
Limbang and Miri for sale.

The landmarks of Lawas are sweet
corn and apple. Sweet corn is the
most popular crop planted due to
casy market in Lawas and Brunei.
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Landmark
of Lawas -
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Landmark of
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5) (a) Lawas Today
Lawas is one of the two
districts in Limbang
Division and it s
accessible from Miri and
Limbang by win-otter air
flights. On 16.4.1993
new Airport Building was
completed and, hence,
better service could
be provided in Lawas.
The district is connected
to Sabah by road
lhl(lll),ll Merapok and
Brunei
through  Temburong,
The 35 kilometre Lawas/Merapok /
Sindumin - Road  costing RM13
million was opened to the public on
22111981 It was the first border
road between Sar and Sabah. At
the border point between Merapok
and Sindumin, Masjid Sahabat was
built as a venue for goodwill and
worship among the Malaysians of the
two states of Malaysia. Private logging
companies are extracting hill timber
along Jalan Long Semadoh and
Ba'kalalan where they construct and
maintain the logging road both for
their own logging tucks and other
vehicles to travel along the

(b) Lawas Toun
Before Japanese occupation in 1941,
Lawas Bazaar had more than 10
simple wooden shophouses built
along Sungai Lawas. Aft
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surrendered  and  left
concerete shophouses s
built in 1946 replacing the old
wooden shophouses in the Baz,

The present Lawas is a medium size
cozy town and people are friendly. In
the past few years, it has a lot of
development such as new roads, a
new airfield and a new township
which is well incorporated into the
old ownship. It can hardly tell where
the old town ends and the new town
begins. The local business is doing
well with the crossborder waffic from
Sabah and Brunei and the improved
transportation infrastructure.

Based on a survey being carried out in
October 1998, it was discovered that
there were 268 shophouses in Lawas
Town. The details are as follows:-

Shangsan
Hotel, the
haghest
building in
Lawas.




Type of shophouses No. of units

i) Twostorey old wooden 18
shophouses (2 rows)

ii) Threestorey concrete 236
shophouses

iii) Fourstorey concrete 7
shophouses

iv) Fivestorey concrete 4
shophouses

V) Six-storey concrete 3
shophouses

Total: 268

The new Lawas Council Market
was built at the side of

Lawas River and it

was declared open by

Ketua Menteri Sarawak,
YAB Datuk Patinggi Tan
Sri (Dr.) Haji Abdul
Mahmud  on
5.8.1996. At
moment, thei
banking agenci
11 big and small hotels
in Lawas Town. Besides,
new Churches, District
Office, District Council,
Federal Complex and
other government
buildings are being
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built within the town. A new
school known as SRK Agama
Lawas was cstablished at Banting
and it was opened on 25.8.1999.
A sport complex costing RM8
million is under construction at
the 15-hectare site at Banting and
it will be completed in the year
2000. The new RM4 million Lawas
Mosque will also be built in the
town soon,

XI. TRUSAN SUB-DISTRICT

Trusan is a sub-district of Lawas and
based on 1991 Census, it had a population
of 3,958, In local Malay dialect, “Trusan”
means canal or short cut. It was ceded by
the Sultan of Brunei to Rajah Charles
Brooke of Sarawak on 3.1.1885.

Masjid
Sahabat,
Merapok
(Sarawak)
/Sidumin
(Sabah).



Old Trusan
Bazaar with
the old Kubu

in the
background.

Fort Florence was built in
Trusan in 1887 for use by the
White Rajah’s officials. It was
named after Mrs.  Maxwell
whose husband was acting as
the Rajah ( s Brooke's
deputy. The Fort
space, a court room and a
prison walled up with thick
belian woods. At that time
insurrection in Limbang against
Brunei was still taking place.
With the establishment of Fifth
Division, Trusan was no longer
as important as before and

abig office
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District
Office,

Lawas.




New
Trusan

Merapok
Bazaar,

during the Colonial rule it further became
obsolete when Sundar, a rural town at the
mouth of Trusan River, was made a sub-district.
Fort Florence was dismantled and all building
materials were taken over o Sundar and to
build the District Sub-Office there.
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A group of about five
Chinese were believed to
have tavelled and settled
down in Trusan sometime in
1887. They were petty traders
and they sold essential goods
needed at that time in motor
launches. As time passed by,
their business got better
and then they built simple
wooden houses to store their
goods as well as to live in.
The site was opposite Kuala
Benganga. Their business
gradually fourished and,
hence, they needed much
better  and  permanent
shophouses.  Then  they
moved over to  Kuala
Benganga.

A few years later, the
situation in Trusan changed
from better to worst with
many punitive expeditions
made by the White Rajah to
Ulu Trusan after Trusan
came under his rule. With
the building of Fort
Florence in Trusan about
one kilometre away and the
many dangers faced by the
traders there, the Brooke Government then
requested the town to be moved nearer to
the Fort for security reason. 12 units of
wooden shophouses were built on stiltin a
single row, This was the founding of the
present Trusan Bazaar.




Auwat-Awat
Fishing
Village.

The early Chinese settlers who were
mostly men ook the nearby Murut women
as their wives because this was not only for
companion, but also for their safety. Trading
in the remote areas in the olden days was
dangerous as they might meet headhunters
or create misunderstandings. The Chinese
had no other relatives to wm t in time of
trouble and, morcover, the Muruts at that time
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were not as friendly as they are
today.  Besides, creating a good
and peaceful atmosphere between
them, the Chinese were able o sell
more of their goods and the Murut
too were able to get beter price for
their products.

The present Trusan Sub-district
was created on 2.1.1979 with its
Administrative Office built on top
of a hill overlooking the town
and the Trusan River. It is next
to thesite of the dismantled Fort
Florence. Itis in a commanding
position just as the Fort Florence
before.

Trusan Bazaar is 21 kilometres by
road from Lawas, one hour by river
powered by a 20 H.P. outboard
engine from Sundar and about 6
kilometres by foot track from the
International  Boundary  with
Temburong District of Brunei.
The old Bazar was completely
destroyed by fire on 20.9.1982. The
new bazaar consisting of 2 blocks of
15 units of doublestorey concrete
shophouses was constructed in
1998. Besides, new  Agriculture  Office,
Government Dispensary and Council Office
are built opposite to Trusan New Bazaar to
serve the people in the sub-district.

XII. SUNDAR SUB-DISTRICT

of
had

Sundar is another sub-district
Lawas and based on 1991 Census, it




Dato
Pengiran Haji
Matussin's
house at
Kampung
Dato, Kuala
Lauwas

a population of 4,471. Sundar Bazaar is
30 kilometres by land from Lawas and 9
kilometres from Sundar to reach the coastal
Kampung Awat-Awat. The old Sundar
Bazaar was gutted by fire in 1984. Today,
three rows of 20 new doublesstorey concrete
shophouses are built near to the old Sundar

Along the road towards Sundar
oil palms are being implemented by
a private company, known as Trade Wind
Sdn. Bhd. An oil palm factory is new under
construction in order to process the oil
produced from the plantation at the later
Awat-Awat is a location where four
Kampungs are grouped together at Kuala
Awat-Awat. It is famous for smoked fish
called T Most of the Tahai sold at
Lawas and Limbang comes from Awat-Awat.

stage.

XIIL DATO PENGIRAN HAJI MATUSSIN
BIN PENGIRAN HAJI ABU BAKAR
Dato Pengiran Haji Matussin was a

distinguished Brunei aristocrat with hereditary

Dato

Haji

right to administer Lawas River Valley. He was the
son of Pengiran Haji Abu Bakar who was
empowered the authority by Sultan Abdul
Mumin, the Ruler of Brunei from 1845 to 1885.
However, in 1902, Pengiran Haji Abu Bakar
leased the Lawas River to the Chartered Bank of
North Borneo (Sabah) for $6,000.00
per annum. Two years later in 1904
Pengiran Haji Matussin managed to
convince his father to rent the area to
Sir Charles Brooke, the second White
Rajah of Sarawak for the same
amount.  As a result, the Lawas
River Valley and Punang became
officially part of Sarawak on 5.1.1905,
However, Dato  Pengiran  Haji
Matussin kept a vast area of
agricultural Jand containing 1,800
acres at Kuala Lawas for his
descendents to farm until today, At
the moment, the land is administered
by Pengiran Ibrahim bin Pengiran

Pengiran

Matussin.



Sultan Abdul
Mumin,
Brunci.

Mumin, the fourth generation of Dato Pengiran
Haji Matussin. Dato Pengiran Haji Matussin was
nominated asa Member of the Council Negri in
Sarawak and he served exceptionally well for the
people in Lawas during World War 11 undl his
death on 10.5.1¢
the Divisional Advisory Council in Limbang
from 1949 onwards until 1952. The Dato was
wellknown as a very courteous old gentleman
who liked to smoke enormous Brunei cigar. A
road in Lawas Town is named after Dato
Pengiran Haji Matussin,

Dato Pengiran Haji Matussin's house was
built by a local carpenter named Marudin, who
paid 40 cents a day while his assistants
received 25 cents per person per day . The posts
of the house were made of concrete purchased
from Lawas Town while the planks were hand-
hewn by the Kedayans. The roof is of Belian
shingles. The construction of the house took
two years to complete.  There was a 150-eet
long jetty leading to two small halls by the river:

52. He was also a member of

One of the halls was used by Dato Pengiran
Haji Matussin as a venue for weddings and for
hearing cases. While the other was a guest
nong others, the Sultan of Brunei
ionally visited Lawas at that time,
1 halls had been destroyed. The
unique  construction
s sculptures on the

The jetty
house  possessed
techniques as well
concrete posts and carvings on the cupboards
in the guest room.

Dato Pengiran Haji Matussin's house at
Kampung Dato, Kuala Lawas rebuilt in
1952 and it had become a historical building
since 1995. Today, the house is occupied by a
great grandson  of Pen, Matussin,
Pengiran Ibrahim bin Pengiran Mumin. The
descendents of Dato Pengiran Haji Matussin
are still collecting RM6,000/- annually being
the hereditary right (Hak Tulin) for the
leasing of Lawas area to the State Government
of Sarawak. It seems that the period of leasing
under the agreement prepared and signed in
April 1905 is perpetuity because one of the
conditions as stated in the Agreement written
in Jawi is that the lease is lawfully in force as
long as “there are still a moon and stars in the
world!”

A field trip was organised by the author
to visit Kampung Dato, Kuala Lawas on
. he was met by Pengiran
him bin Pengiran Mumin, age 57 years
old. the fourth generation of Dato Pengiran
Haji Matussin. He is the Tua Kampung of
Kampung Dato Menengah, Kuala Lawas. He
confirmed that Dato Pengiran Haji Matuss
passed away on 10.5.1952 (26 hb Syaaban
1372) at the age of about 90 years old. His




Torahim bin

Pengiran

Pengiran
Mumin.

properties were reported and registered at
District Office, Lawas vide Probate Matter
No. 23/53. Letter of Administrati
issued to the descendents on 29.12.1954.
One of the agreements in the Probate
Matter was that the descendents of Dato
Pengiran Haji Matussin had the right to
share the building materials of the historical
house. Hence, carly 1960s when the two
halls and the jetty were about to be washed
away by river

crosion along the bank of
Kuala Lawas, the descendents dismantled
the halls and took the building
materials to build their individual houses.
Today only the main house is left as it is and
it is being maintained by Pengiran Ibrahim
bin Pengiran Mumin, As
payment of hereditary right (Hak Tulin),
T.K. Pengiran Ibrahim disclosed that he
d RM7.38 only out of RM 6,000/~
paid by the State Government of Sarawi
1998. According to him, more and more
descendents of Dato Pengiran Haji Matussin

aw
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are rece r shares in the hereditary
right (Hak Tulin) and hence, the payment
to per descendent is decreasing cach year.

Kuala Lawas is accessible by a 15-
kilometre road from Lawas Town for more
than 10 years already. It has 13 wooden
shophouses on stilts but only 3 shophouses
are opened for business. Since the house of
Dato Pengiran | ussin has become a
historical building with effect from 1995, itis
a good idea to reconstruct the house with
the orginial architectural design built in
1952. Upon completion, the house will
become a tourist attraction as a historical
monument in Lawas.

Graveyard of
Dato Pengiran
Haji Matussin
at Kuala
Lawas,



the implementation of the RM500 million
Bandar Baru Limbang on the outskirt of the
old twn. Besides, the newly completed 10-
storey 4star Purnama Hotel which is adjacent
to the Limbang  Plaza is another imposing
landmark in Limbang Town. At the moment,
Limbang  Plaza is  accommodating 12
government agencies as well as a public library
in its wp 5storey office complex The
commercial complex provides 194 individual
shop units, housing departmental stores,
supermarkets, bank, etc.

After the Japanese Occupation in 1945,
there were only 5 blocks of 45 semi
concrete/wooden shophouses being built
along Sungai Limbang. However, according
to a survey carried out in December,
1998, it was discovered that there were
240 shophouses in Limbang Town.

XIV. LIMBANG TODAY

The population of Limbang Type of Houses No: of units

District based on 1991 ('.cnsm was i) Twostorey semi-concrete

33,845, However, according to the shophouses 33

Mid-Year Population  Estimate

1999, the population of the district i) Twostorey concrete shophouses 4

had increased up to 41800 The | i) Threestorey conerete shophouscs 176

district. covers an area of 3,978

square kilometres. iv) Fourstorey concrete shophouses 27
Total: 240

Once dubbed the ‘Forgotten
Division’, Limbang is sect to

become a major township in

Sarawak in the near future. Among the most
imposing and outstanding structure is the
RM64 million 9storey commercial cum
office complex known as Limbang Plaza and

The expansion of Limbang Township is
limited within the strip of land aailable in
between Limbang River and Bukit Mas. Hence,
shophouses are mostly built along Jalan Wong




Aerial view of
Limbang
Town.

Eng, Jalan Pandaruan and Jalan
Buangsiol. Rex Cinema is the only theatre in
the town. In order to solve the problem of car
parking in the limited road areas in the town, a
7storey Pelita car park complex is built at the
side of Limbang Plaza. Besides, Limbang
District Council has constructed Council Pasar
Market and Market Tamu to cater the needs
of small hawkers in their business. The
development of Limbang Town is considered
to be quite fast. Within a period of half
century, Limbang town expands more than 4
times of its original size. Morcover, housing
estates and industrial areas are being built at
the outskirts of Limbang Town.

There has been a great improvement
in both land and water transport compared
to the past when the people from the
interior of Ba'Kelalan and Long Semadoh
had to spend at least a week’s walking from
their Kampungs to Lawas to sell their padi
and jungle produce. There are timber-
logging roads connecting the Kampungs,
even the most remote interiors of Limbang
and Lawas. The journey between Lawas
own and Long Semadoh which is 105
kilometres in distance takes 2'/; hours on
four-wheel drive. From Long Semadoh it
takes 2 hours to travel 58 kilometres on
logging road to reach Ba'kelalan. In fact, it




Limbang
Plaza

Pelita Multi-
storey Carpark
Building,
Limbang,

is a great improvement compared to one
week journey on foot from Ba'kelalan to
Lawas Town before the construction of the

logging road more than 10 ye

People now can travel by
river and by at ease with
the availability of express
launches and  speedboats
servicing from Limbang to
Lawas, Labuan and Brunei
Darussalam. Travellers now
can also use land transport
from [ ng to Kuching
Darussalam by
road and also from Limbang
\m Lawas to Kota Kinabalu in
ah. Limbang Airfield was
completed in 1963 and,
hence, air service is also
available by hopping on
the MAS Rum] Air Service

twin-ottel raft from Miri
to Limbang, 1 and
Lawas to

there is a (L\il\-

» the flight b(l\\cvll
1 and Long Semadoh
was terminated in Novermber,
1998  due o lack of
passagers

The  present Limbang
irfield which 6 years old
now, is too small for the fast
developing Limbang Town.
Flights are always delayed
and even cancelled while
wavellers are often facing shortage of flights.
A new airport, estimated at a cost of RM70
million will be built at Ranggau where the
m of 300 hectares of land costing

ai

acqui




The RM 2.6
million
Dewan
Suarah
building was
declared
open by the
Chief
Minister of

Sarawak on

11.7.1988.

RM7 million has been paid. According to the
State  Environment and Public Health
Minister, Y.B. Datk Amar James Wong, the
construction of the new Limbang airport will
commence in 2000.

In recent years, the basic
public amenities and facilities
of Limbang have been greatly
improved. The new Tamu
Market, the RM2.6 million
Dewan Suarah, the RM2.8
million Outdoor Stadium, the
RM2.8 million swimming
pool and new government
buildings are constructed one
after another which are now
fully  operational.  The
construction of the indoor
stadium costing RM7 million
at Kampung Scbukang, off
Mile 7 Roundabout was
completed on 15.3.1999, The
road systems in and around
the town have also been
greatly improved. With the
completion of RM23 million
Batu  Danau Bridge on
30.8.1994, visitors can travel
to and fro Limbang/Brunei
Darussalem/Miri  at  very
much shorter time and
convenience. More banking
facilities and more hotels are
being built in Limbang as a
sign of more tourists both
foreign and local are going
over to Limbang either on
business or on holiday. At the
moment, there are 8 banking agencies and
15 big and small hotels in Limbang Town.
The completion of Taman Tasik at Bukit
Mas a few years ago provides an excellent
recreational place for the local people and




tourists to exercise and relax
in the natural environment. A
sum of RM100,000/- has been
located to construct the
conerete steps, benches and
shelters as well as a look-out
location at the peak of Bukit
Mas so that climbers can have
a better facility for healthy
exercise, The Limbang
‘aterfront Esplanade along
Jalan Wong Tsap Eng is the
centre  for  recreational
purpose and for the holding
exhibitions as well as a place
for relaxation for the people
in Limbang. There are only
240 shophouses in Limbang
whereas  there  are 268
shophouses in Lawas. In spite
of the fact that the size of
township is smaller than Lawas
Town, Limbang’s business is
much better than Lawas. Even
the cost of shophouses in
Limbang is more than double
when compared to the similar
type of shophouses in Lawas.

The flow of visitors from
Brunei during the weekends
is in sharp contrast to other
towns in Sarawak during the
cconomic slowdown. Brunci
vehicles congest the Limbang
parking areas. Scores of licenced money
changers along Main Bazaar reach their
peak during the weekends. This is mainly

registered
roads and
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due to the fact that Limbang Town is closer
to Bandar Seri Begawan whereas Lawas
Town is further from Bandar Seri Begawan
and it is only accessible by the Brunei people
from Temburong arca.

man Tasik
Bukit Mas,
Limbang.

Limbang
Indoor
Stadium at
Mile 6
Roundabout.




V.B. Datuk Awang Tengah Ali

Hassan.

Limbang is famous not because of its
colourful histary or physical development. It is
because it has the longest serving statesman and
politician in the country in the person of Datuk
Amar James Wong Kim Min who has outlived
many of his peers and rival politicians. Datuk
Amar James Wong was a councillor with
Limbang District Council from 1953 to 1981
and he was a Member of Parliament in Limbang
from 1970-1974. He was once the Deputy Chief
Minister of Sarawak from 22 o
16.6.1966. Now he is the Council Negri Member
for Limbang and the State ster of
Environment and Public Health. He is one of
the founders and President of Sarawak National
Party (SNAP) in the State. Another outstanding
leader from Limbang Division is Datuk
Awang Tengah bin Ali Hassan who is the
Council Negri Member from Lawas since 1987
He is the State Assistant Minister in the Chief
and in the Ministry for

z

Minister's off
Planning and Resource Management.

Y.B. Datuk Amar James Wong Kim

Min.

Datuk Haji Noor Tahix,

Dawk Haji Noor Tahir who was the
clected Member of Council Negri of Lawas
from 1979 to 1987 became the State Minister for
Forestry and Special Function from 1983 and
later the State Minister for Environment and
Tourism until March 1987.

Limbang Town which had a population of
10,940 based on 1991 Census is obviously
growing from a small rural town in the 20th
century to a bigger, more beautiful and busy
town towards the 21st century. Limbang can
transform itself into a tourist paradise where its
natural beauty, such as the scenic Bukit Mas and
abak waterfall along Jalan Kubong,
ular Buda Caves in Ulu Medamit, hot
g at Sungai Tengua, Ulu Trusan and wild
tractions in Ulu Limbang and Ulu Lawas
be marketed to highyield tourists from all
over the world. Eventually, it will become the
important town and gateway in the northern
region of Sarawak.
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Name of Author/Publisher
AM. Cooper, 1968
Bintulu Development

Authority

Chang Pat Foh, 1995

Chang Pat Foh, 1997

Charles Leh &
Ipoi Dahan, 1997

Chee Guan Hock &
Chua Chong Siang, 1997

Chin, Lucas, 1980

Darrell N.C. Tsen &
John Then, 1994

Book/Magazine
“Men of Sarawak” Art Printing
Works, Kuala Lumpur

“Berita Binda™ Best Press,
Kuching, Sarawak

“The Land of Freedom Fighters™
Lee Ming Press Co.,
Kuching, Sarawak

“Heroes of the Land of
Horbill", Lee Ming Press Co.
Kuching, Sarawak

“A guide to Baram Regional
Muscum, Fort Hose, Marudi,
Sarawak”™ Heng Seng Brothers
Press, Kuching.

“The History of Social
Development of Miri Division™
Tieng Seng Printing & Trading
Sdn. Bhd. Miri

“Cultural Heritage Sarawak™
Lee Ming Press Co., Kuching,
Sarawak

“Towns of Sarawak 1994™
Desktop Publishing Sdn.Bhd
Kuching, Sarawak
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Department of Statistics
Malaysia (Sarawak Branch),
1992

Fong Hon Kah, 1996

Frederick Boyle ER.G.S.
1865.

Geological Survey
Department, Malaysia

Jabatan Pertanian
Sarawak, 1990

Kui Mee Huok, 1997

Kuching Municipal
Council, 1988

Kurt & Brigite
Junckerstorff, 1994

Liew Pak Khui, 1992

Malaysian Historical
Society (Sarawak Branch)

“Year of Statistics
1992 Sarawak™

“A History of the Development
Rajang Basin in Sarawak”
Sarawak Press Sdn. Bhd. Kuching

“Adventures Among the Dyaks of Borneo”

Annual Report for the year
1980-1996

“Sayur-sayuran dan Buah-buahan
Hutan di Sarawak”

“The Diffusion of Foochow
Settlement in Sibu/Binatang Area,
Central Sarawak 1901-1970"
Borneo Printing Co. Sdn.Bhd.
Sibu, Sarawak

“Kuching Towards A
New Horizon”

“Sarawak Magnificent and
Mystical” Eagle Trading Sdn.Bhd.
Malaysia

“The Gold Route of the Early
Sarawak Chinese” Champion
Printing Agency, Kuching

“Heritage Celebration™
Lee Ming Press Co. Kuching
1983
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alaysian Historical
Society (Sarawak Branch)
1988

Malaysian Information
Service, 1983

N.S. Haile, 1954

Paul Yong, 1991

Peter Goullart, 1965

Robert Hoebel, 1984

Sarawak Gazette

“Journal of the Malaysian
Historical Society Sarawak
Branch, 1988” Lee Ming
Press Co., Kuching

“Sarawak Report” (1963-1983),
Kim Hup Lee Printing Co.
Pre. Ltd., Singapore

“The Geology and Mineral
Resources of the Strap and
Sadong Valleys, West Sarawak™
Government Printing Office
Kuching

“A Dream of Freedom™

Eagle Trading Sdn.Bhd.

Petaling Jaya, Selangor

“River of the White Lily”

Cox & Wyman Lid., London

“Sarawak on the Island of

Eurasia Press

Singapore

1 No. 1457, July 1979 -
“Kapit”

2) No. 1461, Nov,, 1979
“Fort Sylvia Centenary™
by Edward Sadai Anja

3)  No. 1475, April, 1981
“A Sociological Study of
Urban Malays in Miri”

4)  No. 1476, July, 1981
“Bintulu - the New Growth
Centre of Sarawak™
by BDA
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7

8)

9)

10)

11)

12)

No. 1480, June, 1982
“A Trip from Belaga to
Sibu” by Goh Choo Thiaw

No. 1483, April, 1983
“Serian Town" by Chang
Pat Foh & Jimmy Adit and
“Julau Town" by Ambrose
Labang Jamba

No. 1484, July, 1983
“Nanga Medamit Town™
by Si Juk Seng and “In
Days Gone By" (Cont.)
by Alastair Morrison

No. 1485, October, 1983
“Trusan Bazaar™ by
Sanib Said

No. 1508, July, 1989
“The Legends of Tatau™ by
Ambrose Labang Jamba

No. 1509, Sept., 1989
“Residents & District
Officers of Kapit” by
Loh Chee Yin

No. 1521, Sept., 1992
“Puteri Santubong” by
Mohd. Zahir bin Haji
Ismail

No. 1526, Dec., 1993
“Mukah” by Ambrose
Labang Jamba
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27,

28.

30.

31

Sarawak Museum, 1995

Sarawak Museum &
Resident's Office Kapit
Sarawak Shell Bhd
Lutong, 1978

Tom Harrison, 1959

Tom Harrison, 1970

Tourism Malaysia
Ministry of Culture, Art
and Tourism, 1997

William Chang Wei Say,
1997

“Historical Buildings, Monuments
and Sites in Sarawak™

“Kapit Museum”

“The Miri Story”
Syarikat Berjaya Printing (Miri)
Sdn.Bhd.

“The People of Sarawak”
Government Printing Office,
Kuching

“The Malays of South West
rawak before Malaysia™
Macmillan & Co.Ltd.,

Malaysia National Parks

“Features of Indigenous
Fish Species™




Bahasa Malaysia

Aman
Antu/Hanw
Anugerah Sastera Negeri
Api

Astana

Auap

Badik
Bandar
Bangunan Yayasan Sarawak
Bapa

Barat

Baw

Baruk

Bedil

Belacan
Binatang
Buah

Buaya

Bukit
Bumiputra
Bunga
Burung
Cencaluk
Cukai

Datu Patinggi

Dewan
Dewan Rakyat

Dewan Suarah

Dewan Undangan Negri
Doa Selamat

Encik

Peace

Ghast

State Literature Award
Fire

Palace

Nipah Leaf

Dagger

Toun

Sarawak Foundation Building
Father

West

Stone, rock

Bidayuh Religious House
Cannon

Shrimp paste

Animal

Fruit

Crocodile

Hill

Native

Flower

Bird

Salted shrimp

Tax

High Ranking Title given
to a Native Chicf

Hall

Federal House of
Representatives

Civic Centre

State Legistative Assembly
Praying Service

Mr.



Gong

Gunung

Hadrah

Hak Tulin

Hari Kebangsaan
Hidup Selalu Berkhidmat
Hutan

Hujan

Tkan Merah
Jalan

Jambatan

Jaya

Kampung

Kanan

Kapitan (Cina)
Kem Belia
Kepala

Kereta Api

Ketua Menteri
Kiri
Kongsi

Kooperasi Serbaguna
Kris

Kuala

Kubu

Lama

Lawan Sendiri
Limau

Lubok

Mahsuri

Makam

Menteri
Merdeka

Muara

Musical Instrument
Mountain

Malay Musical Instrument
Hereditary right
National Day

Luve to serve
Forest/wild

Rain

Red Fish

Road

Bridge

Succeed

Village

Right

Chinese Headman
Youth Camp

Head

Train

Chicf Minister

Left

Company
Multi-Purpose Co-operative
Malay knife (dagger)
River Mouth

Fort

old

Fighting among themselves
Orange

Pool

Princess

Grave

Gold

Mosgue

Community

Eye

Minister
Independence

il

River Mouth




Mutiara
Nanas
Negara
Negeri
Orang Kaya Pemanca
Padi

Pangkalan

Panglima

Panggung

Parang

Pasar

Pasar Minggu
Pembangunan
Pendam

Penghulu

Pengiran

Puteh
Putra

Rahang

Rakyat

Raja (h)
Regatta

Rumah Panjang
Rumah Tinggi
Saha

akit Perut
Salak

Pearl

Pineapple

Country

State

Title Given to a Native Chief
Rice

Landing Place

Warrior

Theatre

Long knife

Bazaar

Sunday Market
Development

Graveyard

Title given to a Native Chicf
Title given to a Brunei

royal descendent
Businessman

Gooduwill

Association

Agriculture

Lady

Local Malay Name for cat
Property

Centre

White

Prince

Jering fruit - a type of smelling
Jruit in a hard black pods
People/public

King

Boat racing

Longhouse

Tall House

Friend

Fever

Leg pain

Stomachache

Thorny palm with edible fruits



Sama
Saudara
Sckolah Rendah Kerajaan
Sckolah N Kerajaa

Same/together
Brother/relative

Government Primary School
G Secondary School

Selamat Datang
Semenanjung
Simpang
Sungai

Sultan

Taman

Tanjung

Tasik

Telaga

Teluk
cmenggong
ngah

ndak

Tua Kampung
Tuan Besar
Tuang
Hulu/Ulu
Tugu Pahlawan
Tugu De
Ubi Kayu
Ulam

Yang Berhormat

Yang Amat Berhormat
Yang di-Pertua Negeri
Yang di-Pertuan Agong

an Undangan Negri

Welcome

Peninsular
Junction

River

Malay Ruler
Garden/Park
Land/Earth

Corner/Cape

Lake

Well

Bay

Title given to a Native Chicf
Middle/Centre

Melanau headgear
Native Village Head

Big Lord

Pour

Interior

Heroes' Monument
Council Negri Monwment
Tapioca

Leaves, fruits etc which are
caten raw

North

Yes

The Honourable

The Right Honourable
Head of State

Head of Nation/King
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